STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
8/7/2018 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

" Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the agenda for August 7, 2018.




DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the minutes for June 19, 2018.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the minutes for July 3, 2018.

CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of Justice Court Quarterly Report.

II

I

v

For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $1,675,947.76 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $3,055,760.83.

For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Corrections to 2018-19
Secured Tax Roll for Exemptions.

For possible action, review and possibly appoint Samuel K. Ward Real Estate
Appraisers & Consultants to appraise four properties located in the vicinity of the
Virginia City Fairgrounds area.

For possible action, approval of business license first readings:

A. INTEGRATED MANUFACTORING & SUPPYLY - Contractor / 620 Orvis Ave ~
San Jose, CA

B. AKAZAWA MACHINE CO.,LTD - General / 2-10-6 Tohgo Dohri ~ Osaka, JP
C. EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES, LLC - General / 210 Sixth Ave ~
Pittsburgh, PA

D. PETERSEN DEAN INC - Contractor / 39300 Civic Center Dr ~ Freemont, CA
E. DANIEL W. PHETTEPLACE, DBA: THE ELECTRCIAN - Contractor / 1275
Kleppe ~ Sparks, NV

F. GAEA GLOBAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC - General / 317 Whitcliff Ct ~ San
Ramon, CA

G. ASPEN DEVELOPERS CORP - Contractor / 2340 E. 5th St ~ Reno, NV

H. CUMMINS INC - General / 390 Intercresent St ~ Broomfield, Co

1. AEGIS ENGINEERING AND MNGMNT GROUP - General / 18601 LB] Fwy ~
Mesquite, TX

J. NORMAN S. WRIGHT MECH,EQUIP - Contractor / 99A South Hill Dr ~
Brisbane, CA

K. BERIAH VETTER, DBA: VETTER WERKS - Home / 131 Elizabeth Ln ~ Dayton,
NV

L. FUKAMI MANUFACTURING CO - General / 1121-1 Yamada ~ Gifu, JP

M. FARR WEST ENGINEERING - General / 5510 Longley Lane ~ Reno, NV

N. ZION BUILDERS INC - Contractor / 1170 Marietta Way ~ Sparks, NV

O. JOLT ELECTRIC LLC - Contractor / 152 Pebble Dr ~ Dayton, NV

P. USA SCALES, INC - General / 5401 Byron Hot Springs Rd ~ Byron, CA

Q. SUPERIOR TANK CO - Contractor / 9500 Lucas Ranch Rd ~ Bakersfield, CA




R. STEVEN GREEN - Home / 5438 Comstock Rd ~ Placerville, CA

S. MAYA’S SOUTH INDIAN CUISINE - General / 9655 Frankwood Dr ~ Reno, NV
T. AMIAD USA, INC - General / 120 Talbot Road ~ Mooresville, NC

U. AISYSTEMS CO,.LTD - General / 11-18 Motomachi ~ Osaka, JP

V. WTR ELECTRIC INC - Contractor / 6005 Hockberry ~ Reno, NV

W. COMINIX U.S.A. INC - General / 990 Hammond Dr ~ Atlanta, GA

X. HOLDIAY ENTERPRISES - Home / 2331 Empire Rd ~ Reno, NV

Y. WELSCO DRILLING CORP - Contractor / 2510 Beasley Dr ~ Fallon, NV

Z. POGGEMEYER DESIGN GROUP INC - General / 6960 Smoke Ranch Rd ~ Las
Vegas, NV

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of a presentation and overview of the proposed
economic development financing proposal for a special assessment district and tax
increment area for the effluent pipeline for certain properties in the Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of resolution 18-501 approving the economic
development financing proposal for the effluent pipeline for certain properties in the
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center; directing the Clerk of the County to notify the
Governor’s Office of Economic Development and the Interim Finance Committee of
the Nevada Legislature of the County’s approval; and providing other details in
connection therewith.

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and approval of resolution 18-502 concerning the financing of natural
resource projects; directing the Clerk of the County to notify the Interim Finance
Committee of the Nevada Legislature of a request for approval pursuant to NRS
278C.157 and 278C.280; and providing other details in connection therewith.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution 18-503 regarding the request by the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry to approve the Findings of Fact
pertaining to the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds in one or more
issues in an aggregate amount not to exceed $44,000,000 for the purpose of assisting in
the financing or refinancing of a portion of the additional costs of (i) constructing and
equipping a facility to be used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable
fuel products located on an approximately 19.4-acre site to be located at 3600 Peru




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada and (ii) the
improvements to and equipping of the facility used for preliminary sorting and
processing of municipal solid waste located on an approximately 10-acre site at 350
Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada. The project will be owned by
Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC, and operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. approval of
the County is required pursuant to NRS 349.580(2).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance 18- 288. An ordinance adding chapter 2.22 to the Storey
County Code establishing a procedure for creating or amending a list of appraisers
qualified to conduct appraisals of real property offered for sale or lease by the board
and providing for other matters properly related thereto.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

(Continued from July 3, 2018, board meeting.) Consideration of letters of interest and
appointment of a planning commissioner to fill the vacancy and serve the remainder
of the term representing Precinct 1 Virginia City on the Storey County Planning
Commission.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-286 an ordinance amending Chapter 2.12 of the
Storey County Code providing for the creation, duties, and powers of the Planning
Commission, and other properly related matters.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-285 an ordinance amending Chapter 2.44 of the
Storey County Code re-establishing the Storey County Regional Transportation
Commission, removing redundant provisions from Chapter 3.80 of the Storey County
Code, and providing for other matters properly related thereto.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

(Continued from the 07/03/18 board meeting) Modification to the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, LLC-Storey County Development Agreement, in accordance with
Section 5.2, by accepting and approving amendments to Chapter 8, and to the 1999
zoning ordinance provisions of Storey County Code 17.28 C Commercial Zone
modifying building height limitation from 3 stories or 45 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet,
adding to Section 17.28.020 Permitted Uses urgent-cares, truck sales, heavy equipment
sales, microbreweries, and micro-distilleries; adding to Section 17.28.030 Uses Subject
to Permit buildings exceeding 6 stories or 75 feet, and hospitals, convalescent homes,
and sanitariums; and amending SCC 17.36 11 Light Industrial Zone modifying
building height limitation from 4 stories or 50 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, and other
properly related matters.




18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Resolution No. 2018-500, for ten dollars, acceptance of grant, bargain, sale, and
conveyance from Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to Storey County rights, title,
and interest in real property described in Enclosure A, that being vacant property that
will facilitate county and other communications facilities at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Resolution No. 2018-499, for ten dollars, acceptance of grant, bargain, sale, and
conveyance from Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to Storey County rights, title,
and interest in real property described in Enclosure A, that being portions of Milan
Drive at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Action to approve the Storey County Fire Protection District Annual Operating Plan
with the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District.

ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Variance 2018-024 request to allow for a reduction to the rear yard setback for the
construction of a one-story addition to an existing building (Red Dog Saloon). The
applicant requests the rear yard setback be reduced from the required 10-feet to the
proposed O-feet. The property is located at 76 N. C Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-084-16.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of business license second readings:

A. ECOCLEAN, INC - General / 26801 Northwestern Hwy ~ Southfield, MI

B. 4 CONCRETE LLC - Contractor / 2735 Azuza Lane ~ Reno, NV

C. URETEK USA, INC - Contractor / 13900 Humble Rd ~ Tomball, TX

D. C.G. AUTOMATION & FIXTURE, INC - General / 5352 Rusche Dr ~ Comstock
Pk, MI

E. RON COLCORD CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 280 Vermillion ~ Reno, NV

F. ADVANTAGE TECHNICAL RESOUCING - General / 201 E. 4th St ~ Cincinnati,
OH |

G. AMERICAN SCALE CO, INC - General / 21326 E. Arrow Hwy ~ Covina, CA

H. LYRA CLINICAL ASSOCIATES, P.C. - General / 205 Park Rd ~ Burlingame, CA
I. ACE INSULATION NV INC - Contractor / 1306 Dynamic St ~ Petaluma, CA




J. WADE METAL WORKS LLC - General / 3025 Mill St ~ Reno, NV

K. MEE2, INC, DBA: RENO FORKLIFT - General / 171 Coney Island ~ Sparks, NV
L. FCC COMMUNICATION, INC - General / 1360 Greg St ~ Sparks, NV

M. SAIKAI ELECTIC CO, LTD - General / 34-19 Suehiro-cho ~ Osaka, JP

N. AEM CONSULTING GROUP, INC - General / 1125 Ivy Lane ~ Ashland, OR

O. ECARGO LLC, DBA: ROCKIN DINER ROLLIN - 545 Valle Verde ~ Sparks, NV
P. L.P.R. CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 1171 Des Moines Ave ~ Loveland, CO
AA. SAFETY ON SITE - General / 316 California Ave ~ Reno, NV

BB. NAISBITT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4 Hardy Dr ~ Sparks, NV

25. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
26. ADJOURNMENT
NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident. :

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ / www.ascr.usda.gov/ complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
Jetter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.




To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 8/1/2018; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By \V (ﬁlﬂﬂﬁﬂ E %ﬁ)QA
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meetingd‘ate: August 7, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1. Title: Approval of the minutes for June 19, 2018.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:
_@_ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

#4




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 19, 2018 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, County
Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Deputy
District Attorney Keith Loomis, Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne, Sheriff
Gerald Antinoro, Chief Deputy Tony Dosen, Public Works Director Jason Weizrbicki, Community
Relations Cherie Nevin, Project Coordinator Mike Northan, Battalion Chief Ron Adkins, Tourism
Director Deny Dotson, Senior Center Director Stacey Gilbert, Outside Counsel Robert Morris,
Wastewater Project Coordinator Mike Nevin, Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 19, 2018.
County Manager Whitten asked to remove Item #15.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for June 19, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
L (Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for February 6, 2018.
Public Comment:
None




Motion: Approve Minutes for February 6, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for May 15, 2018.
Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Minutes for May 15, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for May 21, 2018.
Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Minutes for May 21, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

7. CONSENT AGENDA:
I For possible action, approval of update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including 032 Records Management; 004 Travel; 035 Grant Approval; and
036 Grant Administration.

Il For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $497,623.87 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $922,993.52.

III For possible action, approval of first reading business license (submitted by the
Sheriff's Office):
A. U.S. Security Associates, Security Guard Service Provider, General Business
License, out of county 1320 Freeport Blvs., Sparks, NV 89431
B. Bonanza Saloon, Vincent Malfitano, General Business License, 27 N C St.
Virginia Clty, NV 89440
C. Delta Saloon, Vincent Malfitano, General Business License, 18 S C St. Virginia
City, NV 89440

IV For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A. ADVANCED SYSTEMS LCL - General / 1020 W. 14 Mile Rd ~ Clawson, MI
B. AMERICAN POWER SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 2995 Mill St ~ Reno, NV
C. KEN MORGAN - Contractor / 325 Neilson Rd ~ Reno, NV
D. MARIO LEPROVOST - Contractor / 1946 Wilder St ~ Reno, NV
E. PARLEVEL SYSTEMS INC - General / 114 E. Cevallos St ~ San Antonio, TX
F. VINEBURG MACHINING - General / 26 Stokes Dr ~ Carson City, NV
G. BENCH TEK SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 525 Aldo Ave ~ Santa Clara, CA




Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve today’s Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action-No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Sheriff Antinoro:
e Reported that “active assailant training” was held last week at TRI along with several area
businesses and their security.

Project Coordinator Mike Northan:
e Carpet has been cleaned and stretched in the District Attorney’s office.
o Plaster and painting are scheduled for the Judge’s Chambers, with touch up in the Clerk’s
Office.
e Restoration work continues on the windows at Pipers Opera House.
e Approximately 12 County employees took the OSHA 30 class and now have a 30 hour OSHA
certification. A new safety culture will be seen in Virginia City and Storey County.

Merilee Miller, River District:
e The Community Center was given new computers which have been installed.

John Miller, Louise Peri Park:
e Thank you to all Commissioners, staff, and to Lance Gilman for the generous donation
towards the playground equipment. Also to Public Works.
e The park is looking beautiful. Five donated trees will be planted soon.
e The Community Garden has been cleaned up and Public Works fixed the water systems.
o The basketball court could use a good cleaning.

County Manager Whitten said he would look into the issue of the trash bin that no one knows where
it came from. Also, the issue of signs along Peri Ranch Road is being looked at. This road is
definitely needed by the County as a secondary road for ingress and egress to the area.

Battalion Chief Ron Adkins:

e Itis fire season - crews have been out on both local fires.

e Weeding around Virginia City will soon take place. The fires have taken precedence.

e During the chili cook-off run, an individual suffered a life threatening issue. This person will
make a full recovery. It only took 4 minutes from the receipt of the call for the Fire
Department to arrive on the scene - despite all of the people in town and the blockades that
were set up.

e Statistics for the year to date - a total of 1,005 calls and Wednesday’s are the busiest days.

Vice Chairman McGuffey recommended that a first aid/first response stand be set up during events.




Chief Adkins responded that this is done during events such as the Grand Prix and Street Vibrations.
The chili cookoff is not expected to be as busy as those events. This year several streets were affected
by the sewer work.

Commissioner Gilman asked what percentage is EMT vs fire calls. Adkins reported last month there
were 9 fires and 164 EMS calls.

Chairman McBride commented regarding the call during the chili cookoff that loading equipment
and getting there in four minutes is pretty good timing,. It was good news having a “save” like that.

VCTC Director Deny Dotson:

o Agreed with Battalion Chief Adkins’ comments regarding the incident at the chili cook-off.
Hats off to the Fire Department for saving the man’s life - it was an amazing response. The
family thanked everyone very much. Issues of this type and safety plans are discussed
beforehand - barricades are opened up, people are moved, in order to get help in and out.

o July 4t events and fireworks donations are running short about $10,000 with two weeks to go.

» Whitney is doing a great job coordinating at Pipers Opera House. The calendar is almost full.

+ Soon the Slammer Museum will be open for people to visit on weekends in conjunction with
tours at Pipers.

e The V& T is doing great already - the train was up and running for Father’s Day.

Commissioner Gilman said he will pledge $5,000 towards the fireworks.

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin:

e After many meetings, federal highway funding for work on 6 Mile Canyon is proving to have
too many roadblocks and “red tape” for the cost benefit and Ms. Nevin, along with County
Manager Whitten and others, is recommending not moving forward with this source of
funding.

o Areas of concern on this road are marked and may be able to be improved or completed by the
County’s own personnel.

Mr. Whitten commented that timing is everything. NDOT has been a consistent friend and a huge
help in support of this project, however Federal Highways has too many strings.

Community Chest/Library Director Erik Schoen:
e The Youth Program, pre-K through middle school, is in full swing for the summer.
e The library is currently open Monday through Friday, 10 AM to 2 PM. Looking for Federal
and State funding. From the library the children’s programs can seen below.
A medical clinic is open and being utilized on Wednesdays for primary health care services.

Wastewater System Project Manager Mike Nevin - Update on projects:
Sewer project:
e Mr. Nevin reviewed a current map of completed areas.
o The project is 37 weeks in, with 150 days left to completion. 34,000+ linear feet of pipe has
been installed with 315 service connections completed.
e Currently work is being done on Mill Street from D to R. Mill Street will be open for the 4 of

July.




e The bottom of I Street is being worked on through the Fairgrounds, up to 341 and to the jail
parking lot. Drainage issues that have been ongoing for years are being addressed.
5 mile transmission line project:
o Out to bid with bid opening June 28th. The biggest concern will be the closing of Ophir Grade
road for a time.
Gold Hill septic project:
¢ NDEP requires a modeling analysis regarding any discharge into the Carson River basin. An
internal draft regarding the flow is being prepared and then a plan will be developed. The
process is moving along.

Senior Center Director Stacey Gilbert:
o The Senior Center will be closed June 28 and 29 for parking lot paving.
e A strategic plan is being reviewed to be presented next year.
e A $10,000 transportation program grant was received. They are looking for a new employee.

Public Works Director Jason Weizrbicki:

o Alot of prep work and drainage issues are being addressed at the Senior Center as well as in
an area of the parking lot in Mark Twain. The parking area for the Highlands mailbox area is
still on the “to do” list.

e The OSHA 30 class was a real eye-opener and brought in a lot of resources.

e Spray painting equipment for the curbing has been received and makes a lot of difference.

Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne:

e The next planning commission meeting is June 21 and will be addressing the sign ordinance.
Met with AT&T regarding installation of a cell tower on the south end of town and we are
looking for a site.

e Working on the mono pine in the Highlands, which should go live late summer to mid-

October.

e Focus is being given to transportation issues in the area. We are looking at reinstating the RTC

Commission and doing regional transportation studies. There are many benefits to doing this.
e Working on policy updates with the District Attorney’s Office.
¢ The Lands Bill is moving forward and has been attached to a National Defense Bill.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis:

¢ The Federal District Court issued a final ruling on the Sutro Springs roadway case, upholding
the decision that it is an RS2477 road. No appeal has been filed.

e M&M, LLC lawsuit has been decided by the Supreme Court, upholding the BOCC decision
denying their permit. This is also a final decision.

¢ Gave an update on the lawsuit filed by International Investments against Vanessa Stephens as
Clerk/ Treasurer-Tax Collector seeking quiet title to the Peri Ranch and Old Bridge Ranch
properties as one unit. There are past due taxes related to the property and an answer has
been filed in response on behalf of the Clerk/ Treasurer.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
e Reminder - the July 17 Commission meeting is cancelled. The next two meetings will be July
3, and August 7.




e The effluent pipeline project is alive - proceeding very slowly. A deposit has been given
allowing the County to engage financial advisors, bond counsel, engineer, and appraiser.

e OSHA 30 class was completed, heard great things about the class. Information from the class
will be transferred over to the safety committee. We look forward to a safety-conscious future.

¢ Met with the folks at NDOW and the County will be getting the great-horned owl that was
born at the Courthouse, and passed away, preserved and put on display in the slammer.

e Under correspondence on today’s agenda, there is a communication from Mr. Whitten
clarifying the decision and explaining the facts regarding cancellation of the Ferrari Hill Climb
event this year. We're not saying no to future events but there would have to be work and
hopefully a new organizer.

9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action-No Public Comment):

Commissioner Gilman: Gave a brief overview of the Opportunity Zones. Based on census track
information, Opportunity Zones are being allowed in each state. Nevada was approved potentially
for 270. The Governor had the opportunity to name 60. Opportunity Zones attract a lot of stranded
capital for investment under special circumstances. Rules and regulations are still being created.
Companies like Block Chains, in Storey County, are in a position to attract billions of dollars in
“stranded investment capital” in crypto- currency. Storey County was initially overlooked and Lyon
County received a significant share. A team worked with the counties and Federal Government so
that Storey County could have an Opportunity Zone. With the approval of both counties, Governor
Sandavol submitted a request to the Treasury to re-consider Storey County for an Opportunity Zone.
This was granted and is a tremendous opportunity to attract a lot of capital to the County’s economic

program.

Chairman McBride:
o The County is in the midst of “tourist season” with two events since the last Commission
meeting. The town has been unseasonably busy.
e Since being turned over to the Tourism Commission, tourism has exploded - the “bread and
butter” for the business district. Congratulations to the VCTC and Deny Dotson for all the
hard work.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public
Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) and approval for payment from fiscal year 2018-2019 funds.

Carol Ingalls, POOL/PACT representative, explained this year there is a 6.4% increase for the
County. Total insured property values increased by 14.3%, payroll increased almost 12%, with a
slight increase in employees and vehicles. The County, the landmarks, are well covered.

Allan Kalt, Chief Financial Officer for POOL/PACT provided an overview of the services and
benefits offered by POOL/PACT.

County Manager Whitten thanked Mr. Kalt and Ms. Ingalls. Mr. Whitten addressed cyber security
and the recent cyber security audit. There were no “smoking guns” - the County IT Director has
been doing a great job. There are always things that can be done to tighten security.

Mr. Whitten also thanked ASC, the County’s third party administrator picked by the POOL to handle
claims and settlement.

6




Mr. Whitten explained why the County chose a $5,000 deductible for several years, and how it paid
off with all of the damage suffered by the County in last year’s storms.

Mr. Kalt explained the cyber security audit and how the POOL interacts with the County IT
Department. The POOL invested $30-50,000 to do this audit and increased cyber coverage to $3
million without a cost allocation to the membership.

Ms. Ingalls mentioned the fact that as a member of A & H Insurance they are doing their best to make
sure that the County receives consistent service and response to problems. They are proud and
determined to be part of the (POOL/PACT) program. ’

Public Comment:
None

Vice Chairman McGuffey disclosed his wife is an employee of A & H Insurance and does not receive
any incentive or monetary gain related to this renewal.

Motion: I make a motion to accept the renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool
(POOL) and approve payment from fiscal year 2018-2019 funds, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the County Manager to approve a contract with
the United States Geological Survey (USGS) up to $30,000 for the voluntary and limited monitoring of
groundwater levels and quality, aquifer conditions, and other geotechnical matters in the Virginia
City Highlands, Highland Ranches, and Virginia Ranches area of Storey County during the 2018-19
fiscal year. This is a continuation of the prior year contract for this purpose.

David Smith, USGS hydrologist gave a summary of issues discovered over the past year:
e A couple of wells had substantial declines in groundwater levels;
e 30% of wells in one section were deepened or replaced;
e A concern is the Highlands is only 1/3 developed.

Details have been discussed with Austin Osborne and a project has been put together:
e Tounderstand the problem and what is going; and
e Identify where the groundwater levels are declining.

Mr. Smith reviewed accomplishments:
e Develop groundwater network to evaluate water level trends;
o Identify the declines;
o Develop a water table map and a water table change map in order to report where declines are
happening;
o Characterize the fractured rock aquifer system;
e Estimate recharge potential from Lousetown creek.




Approximately 62 homes were evaluated for the network - 55 are in the network. 40 wells in one
acre parcels, 14 in ten acre, and 1 in the forty acre parcels. Instruments have been added that
continuously monitor trends.

Mr. Smith explained what is being monitored and reviewed some conclusions being seen, including:
The one acre parcels are declining the most;

Ten acre parcels had a slightly less decline;

No change in the 40 acre parcel;

Is has been confirmed that Lousetown Creek is a losing stream providing recharge to the
aquifer system.

Mr. Smith said the project is 20% complete. There are very highly varied water levels throughout the
Highlands - an additional year of data will help in understanding the aquifer system. All data
collected is available on-line on the USGS website and on the Storey County website. Year two will
include continued monitoring of groundwater levels, precipitation, Lousetown Creek flow, and will
quantify losses to the system, and to develop a water table map and level change map.

Vice Chair McGuffey thanked Mr. Smith for bringing the information to the Highlands. Thisis a
well-worth it project to monitor and see what the future might bare.

Chairman McBride asked if they will be increasing the houses that are monitored.

David explained there is a pretty good distribution of volunteers. In areas they are missing data they
definitely add people. Water quality and levels vary throughout the Highlands.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde, Storey County resident: Thank you to the commission for engaging in this study.
Money well spent, the effort is appreciated.

County Manager Whitten thanked the USGS for this work.

Motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I, County Commissioner Jack McGutffey, authorize
the County Manager to approve a contract with the United States Geological Survey (USGS) up to
$30,000 for the voluntary and limited monitoring of groundwater levels and quality, aquifer
conditions, and other geotechnical matters in the Virginia City Highlands, Highland Ranches, and
Virginia Ranches area of Storey County during the 2018-19 fiscal year, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Request from NDOT to accept the annual work program.

NDOT Deputy Director Bill Hoffman introduced Murph Glover from NDOT, and gave an overview
of NDOT and current projects. This report included:
e Statistics on wildlife collisions and what is being done to minimize them.
e The “One Nevada Plan” - long-term plan for infrastructure, rail, and planning from a
performance measure standpoint.
e Interstate 11 - an important interstate with a long, involved process to be completed.

8




e Status of Electric Avenue traffic signal currently under construction and use of temporary
signals. Permanent signal to be installed this summer;

e Safety concerns at [-80/Lockwood interchange and also at the “spaghetti bowl” in Reno;

e How to get more I-80 lanes out to TRIC. All interchanges along this route will be looked at -
they may need to be changed depending on any widening;

e Statistics for Storey County - based on 2010 data; including commuting patterns, maintenance
funds spent on County roads;

¢ Funding from the State and Federal Government and what it covers;

e The steps and issues in planning of projects.

Mr. Hoffman reviewed the annual work program for Storey County:
e Remove and replace barrier rail on SR 439 (USA Parkway)

Richard Ochavalt, NDOT District 2 Traffic Engineering Supervisor, explained a decision had been
made to put in a cable barrier guardrail. It will be replaced with a concrete barrier rail for increased
safety and less maintenance.

Mr. Hoffman commented regarding I-80 that there is a five county transit study being done, NDOT is
doing a transportation feasibility study all to bring forward a strategic plan.

Mr. Whitten thanked Mr. Hoffman for taking leadership regarding regional transportation - working
with the County, RTC, Fernley and others. Mr. Hoffman met with Mr. Whitten within a short time of
last year’s meeting regarding issues that were brought up at that time. Important items are still there
and are being worked. Removal of NDOT storm drains affecting the County’s sewer plant was done.
However the situation with the Seymour property at the north end of C Street still needs to be
addressed. Mr. Whitten said the County has a great partnership with NDOT.

Mr. Hoffman said he is willing to work with the County on these issues and commended the County
for the work being done on transportation issues. NDOT will continue to work with the County on
the issues in Six Mile Canyon.

Public Comment:

Kris Thompson, project manager for TRI: Echoed Mr. Whitten's comments. NDOT has been superb
to work with especially with the growth and explosion of traffic in TRI. NDOT's efforts are
appreciated - they are truly focused on strategy and planning for the future.

Motion: I make a motion to accept NDOT’s annual work program, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution 18-497 per the request by the Director of the
State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry that the County transfer the amount of
$215,227.18 in tax-exempt private activity bond volume cap allocated to the County for year 2018 for
the purpose of assisting in the financing or refinancing of a portion of the costs of (i) improvements to
and equipping of a facility to be used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel
products located on an approximately 19.4 acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada and/ or (ii) improvements to and equipping of a facility

9




used for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an approximately 10
acre site located at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada. The County may transfer
such tax-exempt private activity bond volume cap to the Director of the State of Nevada Department
of Business and Industry pursuant to Section 348A.180 of the NAC.

County Manager Whitten explained the Nevada Department of Business and Industry are in
discussions with Fulcrum Biorefinery for financing another component (green energy municipal solid
waste project). For several years, the County has been requested to transfer its bond cap to other
authorities. The bond cap is something the County does not use and most jurisdictions are able to
transfer without any obligation on the transferring agency (the County). Fulcrum is requesting a
total of $45 million in support - the County’s cap is $215,227.18 which would be symbolic in support.

Mr. Whitten stresses there is no obligation to the County. There is no intended use for 2018 and the
transfer is consistent with past Board actions including support of Fulcrum and the Department of
Business and Industry in its support of Fulcrum. Staff recommends approval.

Mr. Whitten read the Resolution Title: Resolution 18-497, a Resolution of the Board of County
Commissioners of the County of Storey, Nevada providing for the transfer of the County’s 2018
Private Activity Bond Volume Cap to the Director of the State of Nevada, Department of Business
and Industry, of the State of Nevada.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion for approval of Resolution 18-497 providing for the transfer of the
County’s 2018 Private Activity Bond Volume Cap to the Director of the State of Nevada Department
of Business and Industry of the State of Nevada, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possibly appoint Joe Curtis, Candace Wheeler,
Cherie Nevin, Sierra Scott and Marshall McBride to sit on the nonprofit board for Pipers Opera
House.

Katie Demuth, Virginia City Tourism Commission/Pipers Opera House representative presented this
item. After purchase of Pipers Opera House, the County assumed management in January. There
was a non-profit Board at that time, and it has been determined the Board needs to be retained. A list
of proposed members was created over the last few months - Marshall McBride, Joe Curtis, Candace
Wheeler, Cherie Nevin, and Sierra Scott.

Chairman McBride asked if Comptroller Gallagher had provided assistance in getting the non-profit
status “squared away”.

Mr. Gallagher said there have been many conversations about it. This is a great step in the right

direction - with the non-profit Board there is an opportunity to search for assistance from groups like
the Harris and Pennington Foundations.

10




Vice Chairman McGuffey heard information at a NACO meeting regarding grants and suggested
looking at “billed grant”- the smaller the entity the less likely there will have to be a match, or at least,
very little.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the appointment of Joe Curtis, Candace Wheeler, Cherie Nevin,
Sierra Scott and Marshall McBride to sit on the nonprofit board for Pipers Opera House, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appointment of Tom Minkler to serve on the Canyon
General Improvement District to fill the unexpired term left vacant by the passing of Ralph Trotter.

Item removed, no action taken.

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Canvass of the Primary Election results held in and for
Storey County, Nevada on June 12, 2018.

Chairman McBride asked if there was any public comment regarding this item - the canvass of the
primary election results.

None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the results as submitted, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Chairman McBride called for recess at 12:18 PM
Meeting reconvened at 12:31 PM

17. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution 18-490 Transfer of funds from the 474 Fire
District to the Storey County Community Development Department in the amount of $195,000.

Mr. Gallagher gave an overview of the requirements set forth by the Department of Taxation
regarding transfers, augmentations, and appropriations. With over 5,000 line items, all department
heads have done a very good job of maintaining the line item budgeting.

Mr. Gallagher requested approval of transfer of $195,000 from 474 Fire District to Community
Development Department. Previously the Fire Department had its own building permit/fire marshal
- which has been transferred to Community Development. This is a transfer of those funds (for two
building inspectors and a fire marshal) to Community Development.

11




Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve Resolution 18-490 Transfer of funds from the 474 Fire District
to the Storey County Community Development Department in the amount of $195,000,

Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution 18-496 Augment 474 Fire District Mutual Aide
in the amount of $405,000.

Mr. Gallagher explained that he was in error in not budgeting for a special revenue fund. In order to
equal appropriations, this augmentation (funds received from out-of-district deployments) is
necessary.

No public comment.

Motion: I make a motion to approve Resolution 18-496 Augment 474 Fire District Mutual Aide in
the amount of $405,000 pursuant to NRS 354.598005, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

20. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 18-491, transfer of funds from the
Storey County Contingency Fund to the Piper's Opera House Fund in the amount of $67,000.

Mr. Gallagher: In prior years a stipend had been given to Pipers - when the County took over there
wasn’t a budget. This transfer will prevent over-appropriation and give time to look at this budget.

Chairman McBride: We help all of our non-profits, County-wide.
Mr. Whitten said the events being booked at the Opera House will be bringing in revenue.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ make a motion to approve Resolution 18-491, transfer of funds from the Storey County
Contingency Fund to Piper's Opera House Fund in the amount of $67,000, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution 18-492 Augment Storey County General Fund
and transfer to Storey County Capital Projects Fund in the amount of $2,000,000.

12




Mr. Gallagher explained this transfer is due to projects that are over $1 million at this time. In order
to continue funding capital projects, this transfer is requested. Funds will be used for Tyler and also
Devnet, the new computer infrastructure which should be in operation this time next year.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde: Asked if these items were already in the budget or are they being added?

Mr. Gallagher stated the items were in the Capital Project Fund.

Motion: I make a motion to approve Resolution 18-492, which augments Storey County General
Fund and transfer to Storey County Capital Projects Fund in the amount of $2,000,000 pursuant to
NRS 354.598005, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:

Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of transfers of appropriation within General
Fund Departments and Special Revenue Funds pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of
$633,400.

Mr. Gallagher noted these transfers:

e $337,000 from contingency to Community Development. This is in addition to the amount
coming from the 474 Fire District, and covers items and expenditures taken on since last
August;

e 5$208,000 to sewer;

e $67,000 to Pipers Opera House.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed transfer between objects in various departments. Transfers are allowed
between objects.

Public Comment:
Sam Toll, Gold Hill resident: Asked if any of the PERS transfers are related to anything other than
normal benefits? Also are any of the payments regarding adverse employee issues?

Mr. Gallagher: These (transfers) are pretty much relative to the extra pay period for the year. Also,
there were two new collective bargaining agreements this year - those contracts reflect PERS
increases.

Mr. Toll: No early retirement bonuses?

Mr. Gallagher: No.

Mr. Toll asked Mr. Gallagher to elaborate about an adverse, labor relations line item that was
mentioned.

Mr. Gallagher responded that he can’t as he cannot give the name.

Mr. Toll commented that previously when the Sheriff’s office was involved the names were
broadcast.

13




Mr. Whitten asked Mr. Toll (is he is referring to) the Public Works item?
Mr. Toll: That's the account it came out of - yes.

Mr. Whitten: The Commission previously publicly approved a settlement offer when changing
Public Works Directors. This was that settlement.

Vice Chairman McGuffey noted the agenda item states the amount as $633,400. Is this correct?

Mr. Gallagher: It should be $640,000.

Motion: I make a motion to approve transfers of appropriation within General Fund Departments
and Special Revenue Funds pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of $640,500 , Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution 18-493 Augmentation of the Storey County
Justice Court Fund in the amount of $7,000.

Mr. Gallagher: There was a $7,000 appropriation for Court View user fees, and $14,000 in higher-
than-anticipated revenue - $7,000 of which will be used to augment the Justice Court fund.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ make a motion to approve Resolution 18-493 Augmentation of the Storey County Justice
Court Fund pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of $7,000, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution 18-494 Augmentation of the Storey County
Indigent Fund in the amount of $5,500.

Mr. Gallagher: The Indigent Fund is funded by ad valorem. Total resources budgeted were $72,621;
total available resources are $81,621. Therefore, the budget needs to be augmented $5,500.

No public comment.

Motion: I make a motion to approve Resolution 18-494 Augmentation of the Storey County Indigent
Fund pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of $5,500, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of a transfer of funds from the 474 Fire Distict
to the Storey County Development Department and distributions as recommended in the amount of
$195,000.

14




Mr. Gallagher: This is the distribution of $195,000 from the 474 Fire District to Community
Development/Storey County General Fund.

No public comment.

Motion: [ make a motion for acceptance of funds transferred from the 474 Fire District in the amount
of $195,000 to the Storey County Community Development Department and the Comptroller’s

| recommendations on distribution of funds pursuant to NRS 354.598005, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by

‘ unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

| 27. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of a transfer of funds from the Storey County
Contingency Fund to the Virginia Divide Sewer in the amount of $208,500.

Mr. Gallagher noted this is a transfer of salaries, benefits, and capital outlay to the Virginia Divide
‘ sewer mainly due to the Gold Hill septic system.

No public comment.

Motion: I make a motion to approve Resolution 18-495 which transfers funds from the Storey
‘ County Contingency Fund to the Virginia Divide Sewer in the amount of $208,500 pursuant to
| NRS354.598005, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:

‘ Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

‘ 28. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD

29. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of a transfer of funds from the Storey County
‘ Contingency Fund to the Virginia Divide Sewer and distributions as recommended in the amount of
$208,500.

Mr. Gallagher: This is acceptance of the transfer from the Contingency Fund to the Virginia Divide
| Sewer.

‘ No public comment.

Motion: [ make a motion to approve acceptance of funds transferred from Storey County

| Contingency in the amount of $208,500 to the Virginia Divide Sewer Fund and the Comptroller’s

| recommendations on distribution of funds pursuant to NRS 354598005, Action: Approve, Moved
‘ by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

30. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Transfer of Appropriations in the Storey County Water
| Fund in the amount of $52,000.

Mr. Gallagher this appropriation comes out of the water fund to be distributed to salaries and
benefits. This is water and sewer. The total Public Works budget is actually very good. Last year,
salaries were reallocated to where they were supposed to be.

15




County Manager Whitten commended Hugh and Jennifer for all of their work. This is a very
complex and tedious process.

No public comment.

Motion: I make a motion to approve transfer of appropriations within the Storey County Water
Fund pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of $52,000, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Commissioner Gilman commented: Six years ago this “crew” decided to go to a line-item budget. I
am very proud of the staff. Adjustments are being made going into this fourth quarter and they are
being done with full transparency. This is fiscal responsibility and being very transparent. This is a
“banner moment” in the County. Thank you - you guys have done a great job.

Chairman McBride: I agree with Commissioner Gilman. With all of the departments, this is hard to
track. Every year it gets better and better.

31. RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD

32. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: and possible approval of first reading for On-Sale and Off-
Sale liquor licenses & Cabaret license for Bonanza Saloon, 27 N C St, Virginia City, NV
89440. Applicant is Vincent Malfitano.

Sheriff Antinoro said Mr. Malfitano, previously denied liquor & cabaret license, has re-applied. The
initial fingerprint check has been received - there is nothing there that would preclude him from
having a license and is being processed as with any other license. A temporary license will not be
issued as this operation will continue under the license of Tina Perkins until this item comes before
the Board in second reading and there is a decision.

Chairman McBride: Three years ago the same report was given (by the Sheriff) that everything was
okay. Before the State Gaming Commission there was a mountain of information - you said you
didn’t have the tools or accessibility to the information the State had.

Sheriff Antinoro: Does not believe that was the case. There was nothing uncovered in our
investigation that would preclude him from holding a liquor license. Gaming standards are far
different from liquor licenses.

Chairman McBride commented looking at what Mr. Malfitano’s finances were at the time - debt and
tax liens - falls under business probity in County Code.

Sheriff Antinoro said that without going over past history, this is a first reading. Coming with a first
reading is basically with fingerprint and criminal history that shows no exclusionary things. The rest
of the items, finances, etc., will be brought forward at the second reading. All we ever come forward
with at first reading is to make sure there are no criminal preclusions.

16




Chairman McBride: Thanks for that. We never get a staff report indicating how far you have gone in
investigation.

Sheriff Antinoro: They are provided on second readings.

Deputy District Attorney Loomis reviewed the previous denial:

e Mr. Malfitano applied in 2015 for a liquor license and was denied based largely on the findings
of the Gaming Commission.

e The denijal was challenged in District Court and upheld.

e It was appealed in the Nevada Supreme Court, and upheld - the decision based on language
in the ordinance stating that it has to be a satisfactory and profitable business enterprise.
Applicant challenged the term “satisfactory” was too vague to comply with the process. The
Supreme Court said, since it was an application for a license and not a revocation, the term
satisfactory was sufficient to comply with due process requirements.

e Applicant asserted reliance on information provided by the Gaming Commission violated his
rights as no other applicant was subjected to that type of requirement.

¢ The Supreme Court said there was a rational basis based on the information from the Gaming
Control Board addressing financial issues - the same as addressed in the (County’s) ordinance.

e The Nevada Supreme Court has settled those issues in terms of what this Board did
previously, and what can be done going forward.

Mr. Loomis said the County’s liquor license ordinance provides that application for a new license
may be submitted and considered for first reading following a 30-day investigative period. This has
been done. Additionally, the ordinance states, “additional investigative time may be taken by the
licensing authorities if required” - giving this Board the authority to do additional investigation if it
wishes. This is an option for the Board.

Chairman McBride and Commissioner Gilman disclosed that they are liquor and cabaret license
holders on C Street and they would not treat this application any different than any other application.

Chairman McBride asked if the Board approved this first reading, would the Board direct the Sheriff
to do further investigation, or should (the Board) direct outside investigation?

Mr. Loomis indicated this would be at the discretion of the Board.

Commissioner Gilman believes that outside investigation would be important.

Sheriff Antinoro said we are still involved in the background investigation, it has been assigned to an
investigator who has already been in contact with the Gaming Control Board. It would be

irresponsible to base a decision on what the previous Gaming Control Board as it is somewhat dated.

Mr. Loomis requested that the second reading introduce the findings of the Gaming Commission -
although somewhat dated, they are still relevant.

Vice Chairman McGuffey asked if there were any conflicts with the fact that the Sheriff's campaign
party was hosted at the Delta. Sheriff Antinoro clarified that no donation was made; the event was

17




set up through the Manager, Ms. Perkins, and was paid for with campaign funds. Mr. Loomis stated
there is no conflict.

Applicant Vincent Malfitano: Some things have changed and some have not since 2015. The Gaming
Control Board findings still are inaccurate, not factual and easily refuted.

Changes that have been made are that the businesses have been run successfully and continue to
employ. No actions have been brought against him. Talking about business probity, I didn’t “shutter
the doors”, the businesses are still there, still hiring people, still serving people and the community.

Chairman McBride: Has heard that Mr. Malfitano is going to reapply to the Gaming Commission.
Being licensed by Gaming would speak volumes.

Mr. Maliftano said that he is considering it and agrees 100%. The business is doing fine without the
gaming. The issue with the Gaming Control Board is that they are very powerful and cannot be
questioned. Going back to them would be to refute the findings, obtain a license, and to clear my
name - and just show them the facts. One of the things that have changed since the Board’s denial, is
that there is no debt on my properties - they are paid off. This shows business probity. The only
vehicle to refute the decision is to re-apply, which is very costly and time consuming.

Public Comment:

Sam Toll: Encourages you to take a look at the progress that has been made between the time of
denial of his licenses and today. His investment in the community is clear. Mr. Malfitano and Ms.
Perkins have each made significant investment, both in money and time, in the properties. He
deserves a fair shot.

Sheriff Antinoro clarified that with approval of the first reading, a temporary license would not be
issued until the second hearing.

Commissioner Gilman recommended that the District Attorney be asked to hire an outside,
consultant- attorney to do the background check and prep for presentation at the next reading.

County Manager suggested to consider not an attorney but a financial person - the County has legal
counsel.

Gilman clarified that it be a third party - independent- to give an “arms-length review” of the
background for the license.

Vice Chairman McGuffey commended Mr. Malfitano for his diligence in keeping the businesses open
and running.

Motion: I make a motion to approve the first reading and consideration for On-Sale and Off-Sale
liquor licenses & Cabaret license for Bonanza Saloon, 27 N C St, Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is
Vincent Malfitano, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman. Addition to motion by Commissioner
Gilman: I move to ask the District Attorney’s Office to bring in outside, investigative help looking at
Mr. Malfitano’s background and to prepare a report for the second reading, Seconded by: Vice

18




Chairman McGuffey, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=4)

33. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of first reading for
On-Sale and Off-Sale liquor licenses & Cabaret license for Delta Saloon, 18 S. C St, Virginia City, NV
89440. Applicant is Vincent Malfitano.

Sheriff Antinoro said this is the same as the previous item, with a different name and location.

Chairman McBride and Commissioner Gilman disclosed that they are liquor and cabaret license
holders on C Street and they would not treat this application any different than any other application.

No public comment.

Motion: I make a motion to approve the first reading and consideration for On-Sale and Off-Sale
liquor license & Cabaret license for Delta Saloon, 18 S. C St, Virginia City, NV 89440, applicant is
Vincent Malfitano and to direct the District Attorney’s Office to bring in outside counsel for the
background check, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=4)

34. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

35. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Business License second readings:
A.JACKSON QUALITY DRYWALL - Contractor / 1560 Willow Cr Ln ~ Gardnerville, NV
B. APOLLO CONSTRUCTION, INC - Contractor / 1133 W. Columbia Dr ~ Kennewick, WA
C. EDGE COMMUNICATION INC - Contractor / 2955 Hwy 40 W. ~ Verdi, NV

D. HENKEL - General / 32100 Stephenson Hwy ~ Madison Heights, MI

E. CLIMATE PROS OF NORTHERN NV - Contractor / 10090 Orchard Hill De ~ Reno, NV
F. RELEVATE, LLC - General / 2161 W. Enfield Way ~ Chandler, AZ

G. TIM BLAKELY IMAGING SOLUTIONS - Home Business / 2090 Lousetown Rd ~ VCH, NV
H. AIR TREATMENT CORP - General / 640 N. Puente St ~ Brea, CA

1. PRECISION MANHOLES, INC - Contractor / 770 E. Main St #321 ~ Lehi, UT

]J. PACIFIC CONSOLIDATED OF NV INC - General / 2615 Branson Ave ~ Plano, TX

K. GQS - GLOBAL QUALITY SUPPLY LLC - General / 333 H. St Ste. 5024 ~ Chula Vista, CA
L. RICKS AEC REPROGRAPHICS - General / 488 Kietzke Ln ~ Reno, NV

M. CRYSATL BARHAM - Handyman / 234 Prospector Rd ~ Dayton, NV

N. A & A TOWING, INC - General / 1395 E. 4th St ~ Reno, NV

O. MECHATECH INC- General / 435-1 Fuzinomori ~ Hikone-Shi, Japan

P. LELY TANK AND WASTE SOLUTIONS, LLC / General - 3033 Waltham ~ Sparks, NV
Q. ARC HEALTH & WELLNESS CNT - General / 82 E. Glendale ~ Reno, NV

R. ARC WORK PLACE SVC, LLC- General / 82 E. Glendale ~ Reno, NV

S. ALFA LAVAL INC - General / 5400 International Trade Dr ~ Richmond, VA

T. APPLIED ENGINEERING INC - General / 3300 Fiechtner Dr ~ Fargo, ND

U. CENTURY PLASTICS LLC - General / 15030 23 Mi Rd ~ Shelby Twp, MI

V. CYBERTROL ENGINEERING LLC - General /2950 Xenium Ln ~ Mpls, MN

W. ELECTRICAL SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 2710 Valley View Dr ~ Reno, NV

19




O o

X. MK NORTH AMERICA, INC - General / 105-125 Highland PK Dr ~ Bloomfield, CT
| Y. PFM INTEGRATORS INC- General / 2726 Autumn Woods Dr ~ Chaska, MN

Z. AMUNDSON ROOFING INC- Contractor / 8995 Terabyte Dr ~ Reno, NV

| AA. SAFETY ON SITE - General / 316 California Ave ~ Reno, NV

BB. NAISBITT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4 Hardy Dr ~ Sparks, NV

Mr. Whitten, on behalf of Community Development, requested approval of all items.

Motion: I make a motion to approve items A. through BB., Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
| Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

36. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

1 Sam Toll: Echoed Commissioner Gilman’s comments on transparency of this latest augmentation
process. I do a lot of public records request and no one is clearer or quicker than Mr. Gallagher and [
‘ am very grateful for the transparency of his office.

Mr. Toll said he attended the VCTC meeting on Thursday - about 35 merchants from C Street also
attended. The tenor of the room for cancelling the Ferrari races was untenable. The outcry represents
a disconnect between the VCTC and the folks whose job it is to support. It’s the jobs of the merchants

| to make the best of the visitors on C Street.

| Mr. Toll asked Mr. Whitten to reconsider the “iron clad door” being shut. Many merchants were
vocally upset. Mr. Toll said he reviewed papers from the last few year and found reasons to side
with you, and how disorganized and cavalier their (the organizers) attitude was, and (with this
event) the town is not as packed as with other events. The event did contribute to the High School
obtaining a new school bus. There is an opportunity to repair and reconsider.

Mr. Toll commented about the Opportunity Zone, understanding this will benefit some of the bigger
players at the Industrial Park. Again the tenor of the meeting, merchants are just hanging on and

| welcome every opportunity to increase the bottom line. Maybe a workshop could be put on the
agenda to help some of the people on C Street realize the advantage of the Opportunity Zone and

| explain what it is. Signatures have been collected from merchants which will be given to Mr. Whitten
- these people are frustrated and many are upset.

37. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 1:43 pm

Respectfully submitted,

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer

20




1.

2.

Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

W

Meeting date: August 7, 2018
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.

Title: Approval of the minutes for July 3, 2018.
Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969
Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:
_@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

5




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, JULY 3, 2018 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
MINUTES

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Commissioner Gilman, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, ,
Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Project Manager Mike Northan,
Planning Director/ Administrative Officer Austin Osborne, Fire Chief Jeff Nevin, Sewer Project
Manager Mike Nevin, Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo, Building Inspector Pete Renaud

Absent: Vice Chairman McGuffey

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for July 3, 2018.
Austin Osborne requested continuance of Item 18 unless Vice Chairman McGuffey arrives.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for July 3,2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for June 5 2018.
Public Comment:
None




Motion: Approve Minutes for June 5, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

5. CONSENT AGENDA:
I. For possible action, approval of adoption of Storey County Administrative Policy 018 Surveillance
in the Workplace.

II For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Corrections to Unsecured Tax Roll for
Overassessment.

111 For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Corrections to Unsecured Tax Roll for
Clerical Error.

IV For possible action, approval of Treasurer’s Report for May 2018.

V For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $412,214.63 and accounts payable
claims in the amount of $1,700,467 .44.

VI For possible action, approval of Business License First Readings:

A. ECOCLEAN, INC - General / 26801 Northwestern Hwy ~ Southfield, MI

B. 4 CONCRETE LLC - Contractor / 2735 Azuza Lane ~ Reno, NV

C. IGNACIO MADRIGAL-GONZALES, DBA:EL CARRETON - General/8716 Deer Cr ~ Stockton,
CA

D. URETEK USA, INC - Contractor / 13900 Humble Rd ~ Tomball, TX

E. C.G. AUTOMATION & FIXTURE, INC - General / 5352 Rusche Dr ~ Comstock Pk, MI
F. ECARGO LLC - General / 545 Valle Verde Dr ~ Sparks, NV

G. RON COLCORD CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 280 Vermillion ~ Reno, NV

H. ADVANTAGE TECHNICAL RESOUCING - General / 201 E. 4th St ~ Cincinnati, OH
I. AMERICAN SCALE CO, INC - General / 21326 E. Arrow Hwy ~ Covina, CA

J. LYRA CLINICAL ASSOCIATES, P.C. - General / 205 Park Rd ~ Burlingame, CA

K. ACE INSULATION NV INC - Contractor / 1306 Dynamic St ~ Petaluma, CA

L. WADE METAL WORKS LLC - General / 3025 Mill St ~ Reno, NV

M. MEE2, INC - General / 171 Coney Island ~ Sparks, NV

N. FCC COMMUNICATION, INC - General / 1360 Greg St ~ Sparks, NV

O. SAIKAI ELECTIC CO, LTD - General / 34-19 Suehiro-cho ~ Osaka, JP

P. AEM CONSULTING GROUP, INC - General / 1125 Ivy Lane ~ Ashland, OR

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for July 3, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner
Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=2)

6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action-No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Elaine Barkdull-Spencer, General Manager of the V&T Railway:
o There have been 12 weekends with the train running.

2




The larger steam engine, No. 18 - which can carry 3 cars - has not been running for 3 years.
No. 29 can carry only 2 cars, reducing the number of passengers that are able to ride to just
“break even”. There are many sold-out weekends and people are turned away.

The desire is to have 18 back running to increase the marketing fund.

This year operations are dependent on the Polar Express.

V&T Railroad is very popular and is a great asset.

Stickers are being ordered for passengers so that local merchants know who they are.
Hopefully merchants will give discounts to those wearing the stickers.

The railroad can easily make money but it is at disadvantage this season due to No. 18 being
out of service. No. 18 owned by the V&T Railway. Once it is back in service it will be viable
and the railway will be running in the black. It will not be up and running this season.
Polar Express tickets go on sale mid-July.

Mike Northan, Project Manager:

Status of flood damage repairs:
o Touch-up work in the Clerk’s Office has been completed;
Wall & ceiling in Recorder’s Office has been repaired;
Plaster and painting are done in the Judge’s Chambers. Wallpaper is being worked on;
Courtroom wall is being addressed where there has been water damage;
Station 72 painting is complete, flooring is being worked on;
o Carpet cleaning is scheduled in the District Attorney’s Office.
Pipers Cottage: Waiting for 3rd quote for proposed electrical work. HVAC quotes are in.
Once all quotes are in, permits will be obtained and work can start.

0 O O O

Mike Nevin, Wastewater Project Manager:

Ames crew continues to work, today being the last day until July 9%. Work is being done on
the eastern interceptor - the lines from the Divide across Hwy 341.

Mill Street is re-open for the weekend, as well as Carson up to D Street. Eventually work on
Mill will continue up to C Street.

Project is almost 80%. Anticipating pipe completion about September 1%, with cleanup work
after.

The draft has been completed for the Gold Hill Septic project and is in review. This document

will be sent to NDEP for concurrence on the plan.

Martin Azevedo, Fire Marshal:

Community Development staff attended OSHA 10 and 30 courses, passing successfully.
Fire Code Amendment on the Codes will be presented soon.

Fire Marshal contract is being re-written.

Active business licenses in 2016-17 were 1,781; there are 1,991 for 2017-18 - a big increase.

Pete Renaud, Building Inspector:

In 2017-17, 373 building permits were issued. 468 for 2017-18. Some permits are inspected
once, some up to ten times. They are pretty busy.
241 plans were reviewed in 2016-17; 368 for 2017-18, with more coming. A big increase.




Jeff Nevin, Fire Chief:

e Reminder - 4th of July is tomorrow and fireworks are illegal to possess in Nevada and Storey
County with a fine of $1,000 and/or 6 months in jail.

o Last week there was a 50 acre fire at the north end of the County which was quickly
controlled. Vegetation is very dry - people are reminded to be extra vigilant in their activities.

e Fire restrictions are in place for all Federal, State, and private lands. All motorized vehicles
must stay on established roads.

» Fireworks are scheduled for July 4t at approximately 9PM - time depends on wind
conditions.

Austin Osborne, Planning Director/Administrative Officer:
o The Safety Committee attended the OSHA classes and is taking them very seriously. A new
safety officer has been appointed and the safety plan is being updated.
e Lands Bill and Zip Code issue are moving forward.

7. BOARD COMMENT (No Action-No Public Comment):
Chairman McBride:
o Everyone is encouraged to come out and celebrate 4th of July. Parade at noon, cheerleaders
face-painting, several service organizations selling raffle tickets, and David John and the
Comstock Cowboys in the Bucket parking lot - with fireworks after 9PM.

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of interlocal
agreement with State Fire Marshal delegating duties relating to the administration and enforcement
of the 2012 International Fire Code to County.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis explained this agreement was approved by the Board in
February. Changes were made and the agreement is now back before the Board.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I, Commissioner Lance Gilman, move to approve adoption of the interlocal agreement with
the State Fire Marshal delegating inspection duties to Storey County, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Gilman Seconded by: Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Recommendation to award contract to the successful bidder
for the construction of the Five Mile Water Line Replacement Project, acceptance is condition upon
bid approval by the USDA Rural Development.

Project Manager Mike Nevin said this project has been an on-going process for several years. One of
the big concerns was acquiring the right-of-way for the line running from the Five Mile Reservoir into
Virginia City.

Chuck Reno from Farr West Engineering reviewed the design plans for the approximate 2.7 mile
project. Bid opening was held on June 28t - there were three bids. The low bid was from Ames




Construction for $1,288,368. Farr West’s estimate was $1,580,000. The bid award to Ames was
recommended; USDA concurred and also recommended the bid award.

Mr. Osborne said County Manager Whitten requested there be an “unofficial condition” that Jim
Jarrrett (Ames’ sewer project superintendent) be the superintendent on this project. Jim has been
amazing to work with in dealing with very difficult conditions and with residents.

Mr. Nevin concurred with Mr. Whitten and Mr. Osborne in their assessment of Mr. Jarrett and
believes Mr. Jarrett is here to stay to see this new project through. Ames Construction utilizes
“in-house” people on their projects making a substantial difference in their estimate. Start date is to
be determined - it is hoped this project will be completed before winter comes in.

Chairman McBride said there have been many residents who have complimented Ames and
employees.

Mr. Nevin explained the existing pipeline is the third installed from Lakeview in the 40’s or 50’s to
replace the wooden flume. There is lead around pipe joints - the pipeline crosses canyons, the Ophir
Grade, and open land. There has been a leak for years that cannot be fixed. It will be nice to get it
replaced.

Public Comment:
Caleb Dale, Project Manager for Ames Construction: Thanked Storey County and residents for
working with Ames on the current project. Jim Jarrett will be joining Ames on this next project.

Motion: I move to award the contract to Ames Construction for the construction of the Five Mile
Water Line Replacement Project, in the amount determined, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Gilman Seconded by: Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit Application 18-020: The applicant
requests a special use permit for the purpose of construction or placement of uses allowable in the F
Forestry zone including a site-built or manufactured single-family residence, agriculture and
horticulture uses incidental to the principal domestic use, general agricultural uses and structures,
continued use and maintenance of an existing solar energy generating facility, and other accessory
improvements related thereto on property located at 700 and 800 Menezes Way (APN 004-131-13)
Lockwood, Storey County Nevada.

Austin Osborne, Planning Director, presented this item. The Planning Commission has heard this
matter - an application from the Menezes brothers to utilize a portion of their forestry zoned
property to build a single family residence.
e Applicants have a solar farm with compliance issues that will be rolled in to this special use
permit.
e They are also requesting to expand the solar farm from 2 %2 to 10 acres, and add accessory
buildings.
o The property is approximately 187 acres in a remote area.
e The special use permit would allow the sale of power outside if applicants want.




o Issues were identified and are being resolved. This includes obtaining legal access to the land
- we would like the maps to be conditioned through a written deed or being drawn on the
maps to insure there is always access for applicant and other owners in the future.
e The request conforms with the zoning ordinance and Master Plan.
The Planning Commission was unanimous, with two absent. There were no objections by neighbors.

Public Comment:
None

Mr. Osborne read the Findings:

1. This special use permit is granted for the purpose construction or placement of uses allowable
in the F Forestry zone including a site-built or manufactured single-family residence, agriculture
and horticulture uses incidental to the principal domestic use, general agricultural uses and
structures, continued use and maintenance of an existing solar energy generating facility, and
other accessory improvements related thereto on property located at 700 and 800 Menezes Way

1 (APN 004.131.13), Lockwood, Storey County, Nevada.

2. The solar energy system on the subject property may be used for domestic and commercial

energy production purposes. However, if the solar energy system expands in area (beyond 10
‘ acres), an amendment to this special use permit or a new special use permit exclusive to that
expansion will be required. Should such occur in the future, a conditional approval or denial of
that exclusive special use permit or expansion for the solar use shall not affect the remaining
uses on the property under this special use permit (Special Use Permit No. 2018-020).

3. The existing solar energy generating system was permitted by the county and constructed

without a required special use permit, and, therefore, is a non-conforming use. The use,
| however, conforms to the purpose and allowed uses in the F Forestry zone, and the special use
permit hereby requested will resolve and nullify the nonconforming condition.

4. The proposed uses conform to Lockwood-Mustang planning area and do not conflict with the
| south abutting Lagomarsino planning area of the 2016 Storey County master plan, and the uses
conform to the master plan Resource designation.

5. The subject property is zoned F Forestry. This zone provides for a wide-range of uses, and each
use requires a special use permit to ensure that the subject land remains rural in character and
that environmental qualities of the land are protected from unnecessary degradation. The
proposals conform to the F Forestry zoning designation.

6. The subject property is located in a remote area of the county and the proposed use is further
isolated by the property’s immediate physical topography.

7. The special use permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
abutting properties or the surrounding area, and the zones and uses existing therein, and it
will comply with all federal, state, and county regulations.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning commission, the findings
of fact under section 3.1 of this report and/or other findings deemed appropriate by the board, and
compliance with all conditions of approval, I, Lance Gilman, hereby motion to approve Special Use
Permit No. 2018-020 for the construction or placement of uses allowable in the F Forestry zone
including a site-built or manufactured single-family residence, agriculture and horticulture uses

6




incidental to the principal domestic use, general agricultural uses and structures, continued use and
maintenance of an existing solar energy generating facility, and other accessory improvements related
thereto on property located at 700 and 800 Menezes Way (APN 004.131.13), Lockwood, Storey County,
Nevada. The solar energy system on the subject property may be used for domestic and commercial
energy production purposes. However, if the solar energy system expands in area (beyond 10 acres),
an amendment to this special use permit or a new special use permit exclusive to that expansion will
be required. A conditional approval or denial of that exclusive special use permit or expansion for the
solar use shall not affect the remaining uses on the property under Special Use Permit No. 2018-020,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the County Manager to approve a contract with
Robert G. Loveberg up to $12,000 to review, update, and amend Storey County's floodplain
ordinance to improve standards to meet or exceed FEMA minimum requirements, accommodate the
regional floodplain mapping and flood insurance rate maps (FIRMs), implement Carson River Flood
Mitigation Plan mitigation measures, and consider revisions necessitated by the 2017 flood event, as
set forth in the attached scope of work and schedule.

Austin Osborne explained this is a contract with a person who is working on floodplain and
watershed issues throughout the region to review and update the Storey County floodplain
ordinance to meet FEMA requirements and to be somewhat consistent with floodplain ordinances in
the region. This ordinance will improve the County’s FEMA CRS rating system - translating into
reducing flood hazard insurance for residents of Lockwood. This update will take 1 to 1 %2 years.

It also affects residents of Mark Twain. This is a County-wide ordinance.

Mr. Osborne said this is not a final determination, just a “move forward” in the ordinance process.
We would like to clarify Planner Kathy Canfield as floodplain manager. Kathy has earned a
“certified floodplain manager” certificate. The thought is she could be more of a “floodplain
coordinator” for all (County) departments in building or putting in road systems, drainages, working
with Cherie Nevin's office, and USDA.

Chairman McBride asked if Mr. Loveberg is an expert- reviewing the ordinance, and does he work
with other counties as well?

Mr. Osborne: This is what he does - yes, he works with other counties. The scope of work on the
contract needs adjustment on some of the dates, but it gives an idea of benchmarks and when they
will happen.

Commissioner Gilman: Have the County’s floodplain areas been mapped by FEMA and designated
as such? It's understood this a long process and could take seven to ten years for designation.

Mr. Osborne explained FEMA floodplain maps have been created on the Truckee River but not on the
Carson River Watershed. A very small flood hazard area is designated at Devils Gate south of Gold
Hill. Doing this “piecemeal” is the only way. The project in Mark Twain is being done through the
Carson Water Subconservancy and the County’s engineer - with every culvert and ditch being
mapped and looked at to see where water is coming from and to, and where improvements can be
made. In the future, the County may want to look at the Highlands and TRI, to do another study -

7




ultimately filling in the County with these studies and maps - then start planning on how to fix and
mitigate the problems.

Public Comment:

Steve Ayre, Virginia City resident: Has noticed damage to culverts and other areas in Mark Twain.
A developer changed the drainages “back in the day”, creating flooding in a lot of properties. Will
this study regulate property owners to keep them from damaging, diverting or changing culverts and
other areas?

Mr. Osborne: This is not an ordinance addressing storm water or floodplains in the County - this is a
contract to update and look at the current ordinance. The update will involve community residents
and staff. Mr. Ayre may be thinking of the Mark Twain flood plan - a separate program being put in
place and to look at whether the County wants to put in an ordinance that would state risks if
someone does something on their property that affects others.

Mr. Ayre said he thought that would be something the person would review as well.

Mr. Osborne: It can be, especially if there is a plan in place for that area showing conditions should
and do exist. It’s more difficult if there is not a plan.

Motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I Lance Gilman, make a motion to authorize the
County Manager to approve a contract with Robert G. Loveberg up to $12,000 to review, update, and
amend Storey County's floodplain ordinance to improve standards to meet or exceed FEMA
minimum requirements, accommodate the regional floodplain mapping and flood insurance rate
maps (FIRMs), implement Carson River Flood Mitigation Plan mitigation measures, and consider
revisions necessitated by the 2017 flood event, as set forth in the attached scope of work and
schedule, and to correct the word “suites” to the word “suits” on page 6 of the contract, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 18-498, Tax Rate Levy for 2018-
2019, total tax rate 3.4607.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher: This is a formality each year and approval of the 2018-19 tax rate of
3.4607 is recommended.

Chairman McBride commented the tax rate has been the same for ten years. It is lower than the 2004-
05 year with an increase of only .081 over the 2003-04 year. Since 2003-04, the County has only
increased the rate twice. The last 15 years has been pretty steady.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ approve Resolution 18-498 to set a tax rate levy for fiscal year 2018-2019, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Commissioner Gilman Seconded by: Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)




13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 18-488, a resolution setting grade
and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey
County officials.

Austin Osborne stated this is to be done annually - the County Commissioners determine the pay-
grade for appointed, non-represented, department head officials. This Resolution takes care of that.
This Resolution also provides for putting every employee, except Fire and Sheriff, on the same pay
schedule. This should have been done back to 2005. This creates a consistent compensation plan for
all employees. This is accordance with the 2018-19 budget.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County resident: Asked if any new positions were created with this. Are any
of these positions moving from one grade level to a higher grade level, or jumping several grade
levels?

Mr. Osborne: There is one new position - Assistant County Manager. This chart does not create
positions - it recognizes that the position might exist.

Regarding the grade levels: There are two salary range charts: One that existed since the 80’s or 90’s
that employees have not been in bargaining union contracts and are still on. There is a chart created
on or about 2005 where the union came in and created their own chart. Anyone represented in the
AFSCME union is on one chart ~ the rest of the employees remain on the existing 80’s/90’s up to 2005
chart. This creates problems and confusion. The goal is to migrate everyone into the same chart, but
not to create increases in salaries. To move people about where they are and adjust accordingly.

Ms. Barde asked if this moves the employee up to a higher grade because that where the position has
been leveled. Is there an impact to employees in these positions from a salary standpoint that will
affect the budget this year or next?

Mr. Osborne: Not the 2018-19 budget - it was all set for this.

Mr. Gallagher said this rate scale was approved for the budget going forward. There are some new
items that are not in the budget and will have to come before the Board for approval.

Chair McBride: All of the bases are probably not covered and we are over-covered in some areas.

Mr. Gallagher indicated that sometimes between the final budget and the end of the year - items
come up.

Mr. Osborne explained some positions are on the chart that are not utilized, but could become
available if needed. Approval does not create those positions,

Commissioner Gilman asked if approval will increase this year’s budget.

Mr. Osborne: No. The positions that it did not account for are not being proposed or created by this
adoption.




Motion: I, Lance Gilman move to approve Resolution No. 18-488, a resolution setting grade and
salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey
County officials, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded: Chairman
McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

14. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE DISTRICT BOARD

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 18-489, a resolution setting grade
and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 474.470 for appointed Storey
County Fire District officials.

Austin Osborne explained this is similar to the previous item, but for the 474 Fire District. The
structure of NRS 474.470 is different in that it states the Board of Fire Commissioners must make the
decision. There is a Division Chief position that is not being created, but is being carried over from
the past. Everything else is much the same.

Public Comment:
None

Commissioner Gilman: I assume this does not increase the payroll budget for this fiscal year.
Mr. Osborne: This conforms with the 2018-19 budget.

Motion: I, Commissioner Lance Gilman, move to approve Resolution 18-489, a resolution setting
grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 474.470 for appointed
Storey County Fire District officials, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

16. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of letters of interest and appointment of a
planning commissioner to fill the vacancy and serve the remainder of the term representing Precinct
1 Virginia City on the Storey County Planning Commission.

Mr. Osborne requested continuance to the August 7, 2018 Board meeting.

Public Comment:

None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Lance Gilman, motion to continue the
consideration of appointment of a planning commissioner to fill Precinct 1 vacancy until August 7,
2018 in order to approve further review of qualified applicants, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2) Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by:
Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Modification to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC-
Storey County Development Agreement, in accordance with Section 5.2, by accepting and approving

10




amendments to Chapter 8, Storey County Code 17.28 C Commercial Zone modifying building height
limitation from 3 stories or 45 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, adding to Section 17.28.020 Permitted Uses
urgent-care, truck sales, heavy equipment sales, microbreweries, and micro-distilleries; adding to
Section 17.28.030 Uses Subject to Permit buildings exceeding 6 stories or 75 feet, and hospitals,
convalescent homes, and sanitariums; and amending SCC 17.36 I1 Light Industrial Zone modifying
building height limitation from 4 stories of 50 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, and other properly related
matters.

Mr. Osborne requested this item be continued to August 7, 2018.

Public Comment:

None

Motion: I move to continue this item to August 7, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Business License Second Readings:

A. ADVANCED SYSTEMS LCL - General / 1020 W. 14 Mile Rd ~ Clawson, MI

B. AMERICAN POWER SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 2995 Mill St ~ Reno, NV

C. KEN MORGAN - Contractor / 325 Neilson Rd ~ Reno, NV

D. MARIO LEPROVOST - Contractor / 1946 Wilder St ~ Reno, NV

E. PARLEVEL SYSTEMS INC - General / 114 E. Cevallos St ~ San Antonio, TX

F. VINEBURG MACHINING - General / 26 Stokes Dr ~ Carson City, NV

G. BENCH TEK SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 525 Aldo Ave ~ Santa Clara, CA

Mr. Osborne, on behalf of Community Development, recommended approval of items A. through G.

Public Comment:

None

Motion: I make a motion to approve Business License Second Readings Items A. through G.,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

20. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
Chairman McBride: Everyone get out and celebrate 4t of July. Reminder don't use any fireworks.
The next regular scheduled meeting is cancelled - the next Board meeting will be August 7t.

21. ADJOURNMENT
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 10:37 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

By:ML@QIFJ:m
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer

11




Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 5 min
Agenda: Consent Regular [ Public Hearing Required [
1. Title: Justice Court Quarterly Report
2. Recommended Motion: Approve
3. Prepared By: E.F. Herrington, Justice of the Peace
Department: Justice Court 775-847-0962
4, Staff Summary:
5. Supporting Materials: EOP Listings for April, May, June, 2018
6. Fiscal Impact: None
Funds Available: n/a Fund: [J Comptroller [J
7. Legal Review Required: " District Attorney [J]
8. Reviewed By:
[l Department Head Department Name: Commissioners’ Office
[J County Manager [ Other Agency Review
9. Board Action:

] Approve [1 Approved with Modifications

] Denied O Continued

Agenda Item No. LQ ;




26 South B Street, Second Floor

Virginia City, Nevada 89440 ﬁoreycounty .org

Séﬂﬁ-ae AM10: 32

luly 2, 2018

QUARTERLY REPORT

Pursuant to NRS 4.100, attached please find End of Period Listing Reports for April, May, and June, 2018.

I, E.F. Herrington, Virginia Township Justice of the Peace, Storey County, Nevada, do hereby certify that
to the best of my knowledge and belief, the attached information is a full, true and correct statement of

NRS 4.100.
W

E.F. Herrington
Justice of the Peace

Subscribed and sworn before me
this A dayof 3 u\u\

%%wm%

Justice Court Clerk




00°00Z S dr 15994 o8eleiN SINOH-JBaUY
99'606'SE S |“1v10L a3syngsia
00°0ST ) Ja|josluo) a1eis AN J0A 924 8ui|i4 puog 801S€-000-0L1
S2°8T S J24nseau) Aluno) Aalols 994 1dudsues|
00C S Jainseas) Aluno) Aal0ls 994 snsua) T0ZPE-000-0LT
- S Jainseau] Aluno) Aal0ls 994 swie|d ||lews ¥0Z¥E-000-T00
00001 S Jajjosiuo) 81e1s AN 994 1no) Ajjeads INg 90Z¥€-000-0LT
00'v82'T S J3|(0J3u0) 31RIS AN (IWW) @24 1noD Ayepads LTZYE-000-0LT
0s'¢LL S Jainseau| Ayuno) Asiols U2.4eas SpJoday Y0 E-000-T00
00°L6€E S HNoY 2213snf diysumo] ejuigHA SOJIAISS [Bl19Ud 60.6C-000-L81
59°'8 S Jainseau] Ajuno) Aslols Auno) 01 sjuawAediang 60TSE-000-T00
000t S Jainseal] 91e1s AN 294 a3elleN Z12v€-000-0LT
00°018°T S HNo) 221snf diysumo] eiuiBaIA 994 Ayjioe4 Uno) TTTSE-000-L8T
L9°GL9'6T ) Jainseal Aluno) Asiols Auno) - auy 6015€-000-100
- S 19]jo1lu0] 91e1S AN S934 3JUB|OIA dlisawog 80¢t€-000-0LT
YELT S Jainseal] Ayuno) Aa103g saa4 Ado) Y0¥ E-000-T00
- S Jainseas] Ajuno) Asi01g BuijieiN payia) 0Zv€-000-T00
0009 S Jaunseai| Auno) Asiois 994 sisAjeuy [ed1wayd TOTSE-000-T00
00°0z¢ S HNo) donsnf diysumoy eluiS A 1NoJ aiasnr - S84 IAID ¥015€-000-£L8T
05°L€ S Jainseau| Ajuno) Aalols $994 |IAD Y0Cv€-000-100
0S°CIT S Jainseadj Ayuno) Aslols 934 8uissadold puog YOy E-000-100
S/°'8T S Jainsealj Ayuno) Asiolg 994 |eaddy
00°59C S Jainseal] Ayuno) Aa1oig 994 1uswWasInquiIsy Asulony StZv€-000-T00
00°StS S Jainseauj Auno) Aalols SISAjeUy J9)4BI 2139UDD) 294 YV TOTSE-000-08T
00'9¢6 ) 19]|041u0)) 31BIS AN (leseuan) alels - 834 vy YTTSE-000-0LT
00ZLE ) Jaanseas) Auno) Asuols BJIUdANT - 394 VYV €0TSE-000-100
00°C0ET S 1No) 201snf diysumo] eluidaip 1noj adnsnf - 894 vy ¥015€-000-L8T
00'5.92 S 49]1013U0) 9BIS AN (Oov) 21815 - 934 VY 90Z¥€-000-0LT
INNOYV a3isyungsia 33AVd INNOJDV

8T0C 1ddV - dO3 L4NOI IDILSNM dIHSNMOL VINIDHIA




00°0VT S dr 15994 98euJe SINOH-JaYyY
LT TTT'9C S |-1vL01 g3asynasia
00001 S J3}|0J1u0) 21e1S AN JOA 834 8ulji4 puog 80TSE-000-0LT
00°'€ $ Jainseau] Aluno) AaJ03§ 394 snsua) TOZYE-000-041
Jaunseau) Aluno) A2Jolg 934 swWie)) Jjews Y0z E-000-100
00°0¢¢ S J3[j043u0) 3eIS AN 934 1no) Ajjepads |Na 90¢€-000-0L1
05°888 S J9]j013u0D 92eIS AN (WW) 934 1n0o) Ajjedads LTZYE-000-0LT
S/'6E6 S Jainseas] Ajuno) As.ols y2Jeas Sp1od3y Y0ZHE-000-100
00091 S HNo) nsnf diysumo] ejuiSaA SOIIAIIS |eLRAd 60£6¢-000-L81
00'TT S 1aunseaus) Aluno) Aalois Awuno) o3 syuawAedianp 60TSE-000-T00
00°0v S Jainseal] 9115 AN 994 adelueN C1ere-000-0LT
00'0€€‘T S HNoD a21snr diysumo] eiutdiip 994 AM|1oE4 1IN0 TT1S9€-000-L8T
00°0Zv'cT S Jaunseas) Ayuno) Asuolg Aunoj - auyy 60TSE-000-100
- S J3j|01u0) 31815 AN S99 9JUB|0IA Jl3sawo(Q 80¢t€-000-0LT
00°s¢ S J3anseau| Ayuno) Aal0ig s394 Ado) Y0z E-000-100
- $ Jaunseal) Ayuno) Assois 3uijiey payie) v0Zv7E-000-T00
00'6€T S Jaunseai} Auno) Asiolg 994 sisAjeuy [eotway)d TOTSE-000-100
SYAAAS S HNoJ 321snf diysumo] einsaIA 1IN0 3dNSN[ - 83 |IND YOTSE-000-L8T
00°SL S Jainseal] Awuno) Aauois 5994 |IAD ¥0CvE-000-T00
00°SL S Jaunseauj Aluno) Aslols 934 Buissadsoid puog YOZYE-000-100
- S Jaunseau) Ayuno) Aalols 994 jeaddy
00°'S8T S Jainseau) Awuno) Aau01g 994 juswasinquisy Asuiony SYZvE-000-T00
00'¥8¢ S Jaunseasy Auno) Aslolig sisAjeuy JaXIRIA 9113U3D 334 YV TOTSE-000-08T
00°v0L S 49){0.3U0) 9)eIS AN {1es3uap) a3e)s - 994 VY Y1T1S€-000-0LT
00082 S Jainseau] Ayuno) Aasoig 3[IUBANS - 934 VY €0TSE-000-100
00°086 S Hno) aoisnf diysumo] einsai 1no) 321snf - 994 vV VY0TS€E-000-L8T
£9°698'S ) 19]|{0J1U0) 9l1els AN {Dov) e1e15 - 394 VY 90¢¥€-000-0LT

INNOY a3asyngsia J3Avd 1INNOJJV

8TOZ AVIN - d03 1¥N0D 3D1LSNI dIHSNMOL VINIDYIA




00°0T¢C S dr 15994 98etlie|N SINOH-I3YY
LT117'9 $ [-IvLOoL a3syngsia
00°00T $ 13]]013u03 31815 AN DO0A 994 8uli4 puog 80TSE-000-0LT
00°€ S Jainseal] Ajuno) Asl0ls 994 snsuad TOZYE-000-0L1
- s Jainseau] Ayuno) Aaiols 994 swie|) |lews v0Z¥€-000-100
00°0z¢ S J3jjonuo) a1eIs AN 924 1no) Ayerdads ing 90Z¥€-000-0LT
05'888 S Jajjosu03 31815 AN (W) @24 1no) Ajjenads LTTYE-000-0LT
SL'6€6 S Jainsead] AJuno) Asl0ls yoJeas spioday Y0ZrE-000-100
00°091 S HNOD 321SN[ diysumoy] eluisaip SIIIAIDS [ellald 6046¢-000-L8T
00°11 S J94nsealj Aluno) Aal01s Aluno) 031 syuswAediang 60TSE-000-T00
oo'ov ) 191nseal] a1elis AN 994 a8elLteN CICre-000-0LT
00°0€€1 S 1no) aonsnr diysumo] euidina 294 Aujoe4 uno) TTTSE-000-L8T
00°0Z¥'ET S Jainseal] Awuno) Asiois Awuno) - auyy 60TSE-000-T00
- S 13]]0U0) 9EIS AN S99 JUI|OIA Jlisawiog 80ZV€E-000-0LT
00°S€ S Jaunseauaj Ajuno) Asios s994 Ado) Y02 E-000-T00
- S Jainseal] Awuno) Asio0ls Suljle payia)d Y0Z€-000-100
00°6€T S Jainseal| Ayuno) Aaiois 994 sisAjeuy [ed1waY) TOTSE-000-100
STTLE S HNOD dd1snr diysumo] eluidiA 1N0) 321ISN[ - S394 |IAID ¥01S€-000-£81
00°SL S Jainseal| Ayuno) Asiols $994 |IAD t0ev€-000-100
00°S. S Jaunseau] Aluno) Aslois 994 8uissadoud puog ¥0Z¥€-000-100
- S Jainseau] Ajuno) Asuols 994 |eaddy
00's81 S Jainseau] Ajuno) Aalois 994 Juswasinquiay Asulony S¥Zv€-000-100
00°8¢€ S Jainseal] Aluno) Asl0ls sisAjeuy JayJe|y 21auUaD 994 Yy TOTSE-000-08T
00'v0L S J9]j01u0) aje1s AN (lessuan) ane1s - 984 vy YTTSE-000-0LT
00°08¢ S Jaunseas) Ayuno) Asi01s SJIUSANS - 334 YV €015£-000-T00
00°086 S HNno) d2nsnr diysumo] eluidia HNOD a211snf - 994 YV Y0TSE-000-L8T
£9°698'S S J3]|0.13u0) 3115 AN (Oov) a1.15 - 994 Vv 90Z¥€-000-0LT

INNOINYV a3syngdsia

J3IAVd

8TOC INNTM - dO3F LYNOD IDILSNT dIHSNMOL VINIDHIA

1NNOJDV




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 7, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

|
‘ 1. Title: For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $1,675,947.76
and accounts payable claims in the amount of $3,055,760.83.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.

| 3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969
4. Staff Summary: Attached.
5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:
@ Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

i County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ 1 Approved [ 1 Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

;ula‘ﬂ:‘_




FHANSVYIIL

JATTIOALANOD

YINOISSIWNOD YINOISSIWHOD NYWATIVHD

1SIDQUOTSSTUWWO) JO paeod Ajunod Asxo3s syl Agq psaoxddy

0S°68Y'S1¥ :pasangsIg TeI0L
0L°0S8°0T :1030Npag 03 IVIJSURIAL I8N TRIOL
€6 %P0 LT :a1td dag a1 uUoO paaix spog 20Aordwyg TeIOL
69°FE0'OTE :31sodag 3I0811Q 9s4oTdwg Te3oL
TIS°8S6°T :syooyD 92kordwg telol
62°SbZ’'8T :§Y09YD I030NP3d [e3IoL
8€°GSE‘LS :8d1rdd 103 a8jsuea] Iasn Te3I0OL
Jjunowy aafeqd ¢ pad # aa

/# duzg  /3x28ud

6 8 L 9 S ¥ € T 1 :sdnoxp T[1oxhed
81/22/L0 :93ed PUS-POTIad 8T/L2/L0 i93ed YdIYD retnboy :odAy T1oaked

AYVNINTITHAd I938169y yooud LOEE:2T 81/52/L0 runy
S obed WALSAS TIONAVd ALNNOD ATIOLS ¥0TS0¥d :3day




YTANSVIIL

YATTOALANOD

YIANOISSIWWOD YANOISSIWWOD NYWHIVHD

I SIBUOTESTWWOD JO pieod Ajunod Asxols ayl Aq psaoaxddy

Y€ 9TL ¥SS 1pasaANgsSTIg TeIOL
LY ELT'ET :1030npag 03 X8Isuevil IISN Te30lL
€6 95T LT :971d ded i1 uo pisjix spag 22AcTdwm Teilol
LL VLY '¥ZE :31sodag 3o2at1qg 99AoTduz Tejol
92 L6T’'C :s)oayy 99AoTdug TeloL
15°CZv8°SET :S3DOYD I03oNpad TRIOL
0Z €ELL'TY {84148 a103 Isjsued] I3SQ1 Tel0L
Junowy sohked # pad # aa

/# dwz  />08ud

6 8 L 9 s ¥ € ¢ 1 :isdnoxp 1101hed
81/80/L0 :93BQ PUS-POTIL®G 8T/€T/LO :33ed Dayd zernbey :adAl TT0Iked

AYUNIWITI™D Is3sthed ¥daYD LT:TO:ST 8T/TT/LO :uny
S abeq WALSAS TTIOYAYd ALNNOD AH¥OLS ¥0150¥d :3dey




YIANSYAALL

YATTOALAWOD

HINOISSIWWOD HANOISSIWWOD

NVWAIYHD

SI9UCTSSTWWO) 30 pieog Ajunod Aaxols 8yl Ag panoxddy

62°6LY'8B1T

00

Junowy

8T/90/4L0 :33BQ X28YD

AUYNIWITHAG I938TEaY ¥oayd
[4 abeq WILSAS TICUAVA ALNNOD AFIOLS

:83D8YD x030nped TeIOL

:8dlLAA 103 I3JSURI] XIS [RIOL

aaded # pea  # aa
/4% dug /yo9uD

zojonpag :adAl T10xked

PPiTZI0T §1/90/L0 funy
¥0TS0ud :3day




YFANSYIIL

YATTOULAWOD

UANOISSIWHWOD

YANOISSTIWWOD

NVWIIVHD

8T/%Z/90

AGYNINITEEL

S

abeg

19780 pPUS-POTIAL

:SI9UOTSSTWWO) Jo pirog Ajuno) Aaxols ayl Aq psaoaddy

LE TSS9’ LBE
68809 ST
68°81S°S
80°9%L L6T
I8 EVT ‘€
0L"62€°21
00°50E‘€S
Junouy

6 8 L

81/6Z/90 :33ed

I93s1bay Yooup
WALSAS TTO¥AYd ALNNOD AHIOLS

:pasIngsIa

1Joj3onpsg ©3 alajsueva] IIasN

:91Td dag IT@ UO pPISIX SPAQA

:31sodag 10sxIa
L sy0aYD

L gyYdAYD

askordug
29hotdug
EEY.Ae) geliiicy

aojonpad

184143 I03 I3Jsued] I8N

ashed

# pad
/4 dug

9 § % ¢ 2 1t :sdnoap Troaked
309D xe[nbey :adAl 1TOIARg

Te3oL

Te30L
Te3oL
Te30L
Te30L
Te3loL

TeloL

# aa
RG]

SETS PT 8T/LZ/90 :uny
v0IS0dd :3dey




YFTUNSYHAL

FITTIOALANOD

AANOISSIHWWOD YIANOISSIHWOD NVWAIVYHD

PSIBUCTSHTUWWO) FO pleog Ajuno) Aaxo3ls ayi Aq poaoaddy

9Z2°019°'66 $E08YD x030Mpag Ie3IoL
00" :8d1d4d X103 I83JSURIL X8SN TRIOL
Junowy saked # paa # aa
/% dwg  /3p8yd
81/90/L0 :3jed XOayd zo3onpaq :eadAl Tr1o1ARg
AAYNIWITIEG Ia3stbay yoaud $S5:9Z:0T 8T/90/L0 :uny

[4 abedq WILSAS TIOHAYd AINNOD XHAQLS V01504 :3dey




SHSTUYdHHIINT A¥¥dd £%526

00°5¢ 00°52 T1€S8 8T/02/L 41z9081 IANIWZINV-ZINA
qIYA  LLANNAE Z%526
00°S€T 00°S€T 11258 8T/02/L 8T/z1/L - 81/1/L
HY¥0€dd ‘¥IANIE 1%526
v 1L6 00°09 $LESS 81/0Z/L THEINT ST/L ® YI/L ‘ET/L
00°00¢€ pLESH 8T/02/¢L dA¥d IHOIN ¥1/L % €T/L
00°00€ YLESS 81/02/L dOEY'T 1O0dIA TIVOHLSYI
19121 YLESS 81/02/L HONYNIINIVHN HALYOLSYH
00°06T YLESE 8T/02/L ININNIVI¥IING 8/L % L/L
SHWY, ‘NVIEL 0vsZ6
00°00T 00°00T 06£S8 81/0€/9 8T/¥T/L
$98T ADE IiITNg 'O VITIAL 6£52C6
09°€99°1 09°€99°'1 8LEZSS 81/02/L SHITddNS dWY
TYNOILUNIILNI MOJUY 8EST6
00°L9T Y 00°L9T % 99€£58 81/02/L SHDIA¥IES ONIIMW 8T10Z X100
. alT ‘SYINIAVE WNINIDEY LESZE
TT°956°9 Z6°¥LE TLTS8 8T/0€/9 TYDISAHd NAHEA
08°SLY zLzse 8T/0€/9 TYDISAHd INOVD
6 VLE LTS8 81/0€/9 TYDISAHd W ‘SNOWIS
6 ¥LE zLzSe 8t/0€/9 TYDISAHd SEAMIL
T6 WLE ZL2ZS8 8T/0€/9 TYDISAHd NOSNVY
L9 LYY [4A4:] 8T/0€/9 TYDISAHd QNOWWYH
L9 LYY zLess 81/0€/9 TYOISAHd STAANY
55°8¥%S zLzZS8 81/0¢€/9 I¥DISAHd ZAATYA
L9 LYY zTLZS8 81/0€/9 TYDISAHd NITEWYH
LY LYY zLES8 8T/0E/9 TYDISAHd SHAMOH
26 ¥LE zL2S8 81/0€/9 TYDISAHd JANYYL
5" 89S zL2S8 8T/0€/9 TYDISAHA HOTAM
L9 LYY [4A41:] 81/0¢€/9 TYDISAHd NISOQ
26" VLE zLTs8 81/0¢€/9 TYDISAHd 21004
LY LYY ZL258 81/0€/9 TYDISAHd HANOONVHEL
L9 LYY zLTS8 8T/0€/9 TYDISAHA ¥IAQIOYHOS
SSANTIEM ANV HLITVAH DYV 9€G6Z6
£5°€68'696 €5 8ZL'ILY 95258 8T/0€/9 O€# TLZ AS LO-TEVASN
6€°8G6 PTE 95258 81/0€/9 DNIAVd 1ITILS
19°90Z°8LT 95258 81/0€/9 ONIAV LITALS
NOILDO¥LSNOD SAWY SES26
00°8%€ 00" 8¥%€ ¥52S8 81/02/L TYNNNY 6T-8T0C IWOV
OdWOD J0 ALIIDOS NYIINIWY PESZE
szrgee 05" 9% 96158 81/0¢/L HD
£€8°TL 96158 81/02/L dOHS
€8 TL 96158 81/0Z/¢L dOHS
08" €T z82S8 8T/02/L XYANOVT TL IS
LL8 78258 8T/02/L XYANNVT 2L 1S
[4:d¢he 18258 81/0€/9 A¥ANOVT %L IS
ONI 0DSTIY €EGZ6
00°529 00°0S2 €9€58 81/02/L SNIVYL HNIM S¥HLISOd ‘IYLANW
00°SZT €9€58 81/02/L YWYAAOTAN SYALSOd TYLIW
00°0S5¢Z £9€58 81/02/L SYHALSOd TYLHW
ONI SNOIS INIdTIY (4314
00°061°S 00°06T°S €9258 8T/0€/9 NOILVYOILSHANI INZANAJIANI
ALl ‘HIZNIMDVW ‘NOSITIV T€526
6% ZET LL'Le £LTS8 8T/0¢€/9 SHITAANS GWY
ZL V0T £L258 8T/0€/9 SHITddNS WY
ONI NON SVYDdIV 0€GZ6
TYL10L INOOWY H#SNYUL FLYA 4 0/4 NOILAI¥DSHEA HDIOANI HOANIA AAGNNN
ADFHD ADFHD
81/02/L WHALSIDIY MNDIHD 81/61/L0 : ®3eq uny

1 obeq AINAOD AHIOLS STETEd :ON 3xoday




4

9T €66°T

00" €9¢

00°59¢L

00°0SV

08°%0L'T

S6°LST
€€ 0%T
00 z0Z
L8°¢C
65°062°1
sz 8L
€L 682
0S°80T'T

zo zZve‘e

00°S%
00°00L
sg€ Lee
TY.LOL
MOFEHD

abeg

0092t
00°921
00°0€9
007201
0S €Tt
0088

00°2T1
00°80¢
00°%%1
00°06

9L°69T
00°0%¢

9L°891
vZ ¥61

00°99L

00°0ST
00°00¢

0¥ ¢zs8
ov-zss

§6°LST
€E€°0VT
00°¢20¢
L8 ¢
65°062°T

19°¥2¢t
v9-€Cy

€L°68T

00°TLT
0S°LE6

26°S¢t
L6 1Y

SE°69
00°8ST

LNNOWY

€6158 8T/0Z/L
€6158 81/02/L
60258 81/02/L
TLZS8 8t/oz/¢L
£22S8 8T/02/L
59258 8T/0€/9
59258 81/0€/9
59z58 81/0€/9
59258 81/0€/9
59258 81/0€/9
59258 8T/0€/9
LEESE 8t/02/¢L
19258 8T/02/L
98€58 8T/0€/9
10z58 8T/02/L
ocess 8T/02/L
06258 81/02/L
L9€ES8 81/02/L
L9ESS 81/02/L
L0ZS8 8T/02/L
T6€£S8 8T/0€/9
86TS8 8T/02/L
16158 81/0€/9
80258 8T/02/L
61€58 8T/0€/9
092zs8 8T/02/L
L8ESS 8T/0€E/9
21258 8T/02/L
z1zse 81/02/L
8zess 81/02/L
822s8 8T/02/L
82258 81/02/L
82zS8 8T/02/L
8zZS8 81/02/L
82¢S8 81/02/L
98258 81/02/L
ZLESE 81/02/L
58258 8T/02/L
YYESS 81/02/L
H#SNYAL chA-(ed # o0/d

81/0€/60-T0/L0 DDA
8T1/0€/60-10/L0 WX

av FAIND FANINIAAY

A100

av SEWHNSAIN

MESTYNdAY

II do

JHIHD

FANIVHL

8/9 ® 1/9 1dDrd EANITIAIUM
81/22/9 1Ld¥ WANS TV¥DSIA

QISYNEASIA LNIWHSINIVYD
qIASANISIA LNIWHSINAYD

SHAIL'0LD™

d0I440 DHA

0% 2s8
OILNEIALSIA JFANHOO¥d ATINL

dIND LISIA SLONAOY¥d dyTAVd

ANOHd 1LOdad AYMTIVY L3A

AILVYM NAQEYD dOOMADOT
SINAL ATINL HLY

SHIA NOILDITIOD
qIsydNgsSId LNIWHSINIVO

ASYD ‘ AFN ‘ATTIIINI- 0% €95dd
81/2T1/L - 8T/1/L

dNAAVH IOVLS TANWNSTIN
dONMIDVE ATWWNSAIN

ANIM ¥OSNOJS ¥IWNASAIW
Sdo¥d MAWANS AIW

Sd0¥d NAWWNS AIN

MOLOHUIA AVId S¥AAId
NOSUAHADOW/IDAAM MSHAA
dWnd DILAAS 6/L % 9/L

YIADIVHD THAVHL
YIOAVHD LINIWIADVIdHA

NOILJI¥OSEA dDI0ANI

8T/02/L WIALSIDAE ADEHD
ALNNOD AHYOLS

ONI AL ALINOWKWOD JDOLSWOD

(DA) FTIDINOYHD MDOLSWOD

AN 40 HDIAY¥HES NOILDATIOON

ONI HIIL OWO

Y040

AVIdSIQ ¥AAI0d dITIJAILAID
A7ddNS AAVILINVS TVALNID
dTHSYANLAYd O2TT1HD

ONI HTIHSYD

NINIAOIAWI TVAINID NOANVD

ONI STVINIA ALYVd LOTIWYD

TUYNOISSHAOAd ® SSHANISNG

ONI H¥Id S/ NOLIN"

SIMET LLODS ‘TIENNNg

INFY ¥ALLILSNVEL
$1d00T¥D YHDLOH

AYVID SEWYL ‘¥INd0d

YOANHA

81/61/L0
STE1dd

09526

65526

85526

LSS26
94526

95526
vSsce
£59¢26
25526
15526

05526

6¥526

8¥5¢6

LvSC6

9¥%Sce
Sv¥SZ6

vvSce

AFGWAN

MDHHD
: 93eg uny
:oN 3aoday




€

6€°8T0°1

007521
0S°LST
[4: k4

Zh €09°¢

00°089°L
00°08T°T

0€"909

0S°S%L’9
20" 0%

§9°ISL'¥ZT

05°0%6
¥0° 29
00°00S5°2T

90°L2S’¢E

65°00S
00" 0¥%L
Zv° 002 81
007 0L
007008
00°9¢
00°25S¢
TYLOL
MDEHD

obeg

PYLSE'T
£€°809
00°0%
90°0LE
00°s21
0S°LST
Z28°02

92 098’1
9T €9L

00°089°L
00°08T"T

86°98¢
cerele

0S°S¥L’9
20 0%
00°00¥%‘2
8L €56'V8
LL-9ee's
SL ESL'T
S0°86¢
0E"6%T°12
00°0L8"L
05" 0%6
v0° 29
00°00S‘2T

00°05¢e’¢€
90°LLT

657009
00°0%L
Zy 00Z°81
00°0L
007008
00°0¢t

60°9

LNNOWY

STES8
88¢58
ovess
ovesSe
68ES8
9€€58
852S8

202s8
20zs8

89258
96€£S8

TZES8
¥92ss

ve1S8
292s8
v0gss
r0€S8
60€S8
v0€s8
60€£58
v0€ss
¥0£s8
8%248
00zss
[324°T]

SL€98
SLESS

661498
0gess
SE€€S8
ceess
£€8258
£1248

£1288

#SNAL

8T/0€/9
8T/0Z/L
81/02/L
81/0z/L
8T/0€/9
81/0z/L
81/02/L

81/02/L
8T/02/L

81/0€/9
81/0€/9

8T/0€/9
8T/0Z/L

81/0€/9
81/02/L
81/0¢€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0£/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0Z/L
8T/02/L

81/02/L
81/0Z/L

81/02/L
8T/0€/9
81/02/L
81/0Z/L
81/0%Z/L
81/0Z/L

8T/02/L

J1¥d

81/02/L

# 0/4

Savod

YIMOL Avdd ANOd
SHILITILN AV¥A4 ONOd
IN3d Avdd aNOd

IDIAYES ATIALIVND SYAJId
810Z ‘9-Z X100

ANTO DILSVYTId - JIAWWY'IS

SE€E€ TISA/00¥% TINA IAL
¥€Z 7ISA/6L IND M

PE0P8TH LINIVIAWOD
Av¥d OL ¥3q¥o

(OYWS) €8Z60EE6# ILNNODDY
TIVL -@NVdO¥d

VIEWYD ALIN¥NDES AOOMADOT
A¥1"g IT At

8T-L10€ TTVYNNNY

0€ OFY AvVd 1LZdS

TZHASYL

A00¥ QHINIVYA I¥L INAL
NINJIINI/M NOILVOILIW

SC ASYL SILIFATIND

arg gdd TT#QIO ASYL
TESE09 1DDOV

dTS dIOAINVIW’'SST8ZLI

SHOIAYES ONILAADIL ATIArC
SHITddNS ATAL NI SYWX

SHYd J4IA'ISOd WD-8SZTHSLII
MHD JdOVNWVA INIddHY

8102 LOO -8102 LsSNHNY

T SONTIJd¥OHYY MAVd
ONILTINSNOD LWHAD

8T/21/L - 8T/1/¢L

NOILdT¥DSHAA ADIOANI

YALSIDEYE ADHHD
ALNNOD AHYOLS

alrT ‘IvH

OTT SLNAWLSHANI 41D
S3d 3 HLIWJHL NISVE LVIAD
NOL ‘AYAISNYYD

HADNIVED

WNITOYLA L1IS/ALVDO NIAATOD
'V q¥v¥Mmad ‘ONIAavIo

NIIDS TYDILATUNY DISNIAOA

dT SYDTTIYIHAL
271 ‘SNOILLVDINAWWOD 204

ANVANWOD TYNALSVA

ONIYHINIONAE LSAM JAVYL
LSNIVYMS ® Hd¥YOHL NOSMOINZ
ONI A1ddNS OINVY LIOITTA

ALTIOHLAV AZd JDIWONODA

T AQNVD ‘NVYONNA

NEdE ONI EDIA¥ES ANITHATIEA
LIVW ‘NOXId

ONI ‘LANAZEA

ONI A¥HS NOILONAO¥d d0¥D

INTOS ONILILINSNOD HFAILYAAD

D11 TTIW dTI09 ADOLSWOD
JOANIA

81/6T1/L0
STETdd

28526

18526
08526
6L926

8LSZ6

LLSZ6
9L5T6

SL526

vLSZ6
€LST6

[4AT43)

1LSZ6
0LSZ6
69926

89526

L9526
99626
S9S¢Z6
¥9s¢2e6
£95¢26

29526

19526

ATGNNN
ADIHD
ajeq uny
iON Jjxodsy




00°0%8°T1 L92s8 81/0Z/L ¥1d ¥ £d SALVId ¥ SLSEA

WAOJINA ¥ SLANDYL SHATIIN 86526
8L 188 [ 42847 Zvese 8T/02/L ¥yIdvd
-65°S zZvess 8T/0Z/L SALYDIIATLIVAED
SE°¥S 19€58 8T/0Z/L HDIJ40 S ¥ITIOUIAWOD
L0 96 99258 8T/02/L ¥ATAVLS ¥ YINIUVHS ‘ANI
1S°8%1 99258 8T/0¢2/L 1¥V¥D ¥EANOL ‘ANI IVD
26 1T 19¢€£48 8tr/0¢g/L FDI1440 S 4ITTOALAWNOD
11°89 T9€58 81/02/L 1440 S ¥ITIOULANOD
09" L8T SvZS8 81/0¢/L ¥AIVd
Zv L9 SHES8 8T/02/L SdITd4dAS FDIAJ0
96°0T1 992S8 8tT/02/L Sa¥d ILON 8XS
NI SNOILATOS HDIAA0 OALIW L6526
00°LTIT'T 0§ €¥%T 5TzS8 8T/0Z/L
00°TT S1zs8 8T/0Z/L
05°296 sT2S8 81/02/L 81/21/L - 8T/1/L
NOISNYKW AVMOVW 96526
€5°¢02°T £S°€0C'T £6258 8T/02/L HALNAWOD . FHOA
ONI SHINOLVNOHYT YW S6526
SL'€00'Y SL €00V 6£258 81/02Z/L
YITTOALIWOD 0D NOA'T v65¢26
00891 00°89T 6L2G8 8T/0€/9 SAXYIL ALIAAOUd IWAIYIAO
QIAYd ‘XYSANIT £€6526
00°050°T 00°0S0°T LYESSE 81/02/L NOILYSNAdWOD q0d AZAEO
‘D ONHOL ‘DITavd 26526
00°62 00°5¢ v¥TESS 8T/02Z/L ALLZ08T ZQISHIIHM
¥OOEEIN ‘ NYAJOLr 16526
06°6%8°¢ 2z 9s¢ 26258 81/0¢/L JALIVAY FTOSNOD Ld1
8b 2ZSE’T 26258 81/02/L QUVANVYLS SYIAYES SMOANIM
ZL 819 26258 81/02Z/L TYMENZY SANIMAYIOS
£0°S6 z6258 81/02/L AANOL ¥OVTIH LI
SETCE'T 26258 81/02/L QYYD HOVAIINI JALONOE SAVD
09°€8 £2ES8 8T/0€/9 INNOW M IHDIT LANIEYD
0s°¢2zZ 26258 81/0¢/L F19YD NOISNALXH
OT1 JO¥N0S TLI 06526
vZ 62T ¥Z 62T 8258 81/02/L SAITddNs IDIIA0
FYOLS ALINAWWOD AW SLIT 68526
86 °LYS 98 8EC L8ZS8 8T/02/L 8TAd ATINL AFAOLS/LPTIN
€7 06T 9vzss 8T/0¢€/9 Z/T FTOSNOD NIE QE¥HS
69°811 9vzs8 81/0€/9 ¢/T ITOSNOD NI€ dIAHS
NI LOW O4NI NIV.INNOW NO¥I 88526
S9°9%% 00°06€ 16258 8T/02/L SHITdANS ANY ST00L LI
¥9 0T 16258 81/02/L $100L II
T0°9% YZESS 8T/0€/9 ONIYALLIAT -7T00d
HOIAYES LIAEAD IOdEAd AWOH L8SZ6
0§ 0LE 05°82¢ jas4:1} 8T/02/L 81/21/L - 81/1/L
00° 2% ¥1258 81/02Z/L
OHDOS @¥¥M HIMNOd DIYOLSIH 98526
ZLLvee zLLYZ'2 ¥8€S8 8T/0€/9 ¥AIJ0D ¥a
SSENISNG V¥YAIS HOIH 58526
LS ET9'PT 08 LST'%T 9,258 8T/0€/9 SAITddNS HWY
LT 8% 9LZS8 81/0€/9 SHAITAANS "WV
09°LOY 9LTS8 81/0€/9 SHITAANS "WV
NIZHDS X¥NZH ¥85¢26
80°8T0'T 80°8T0'T g5es58 8t/02/L sSavod
ar1 ‘IvH £€8526
PHILSE‘T
TYIOL LNNOWY H#SNYEL ALVA # 0/d NOILATEOSEA HDIOANI JOaNda ATEWON
ADFHD ADIHD
8T/02/L ¥IALSIDIY ADHIHD 8T/6T/L0 @ @3eq uny

14 abeq ALNNOD AFYOLS STETEd ‘ON 3xoday




05°8%2 91¢s8 8T/0Z/L 81/21/L - 81/T/L

0S°1LT 91ZS8 81/02/L
0S"€ 91ZS8 8T/02/L
a OTIONY ‘INI¥LAL 12926
66 6¥%L'10¢C 66°6%L 102 96258 8T/0€E/9 §2€92540dMD0TZAAT OXH Al
AMANIHOVWN Fdvd 02926
zZ8°LOT Z8°LOT TIESS g8T/02/L dLZ908T IANIWZINV-ZINA
*d ‘NYAONOA ‘AQavd 61926
00°STE 00°STE Z0€S8 81/0€/9 dWd ¥8 X SL°€ 099S€L ISND
ONI IHOISNIWOLAO 819¢6
00°08S 00°06 62€58 81/0Z/L HdINS q¥VOdTIId NYH
00°06% £0ZS8 8T/02/L S090T SYILWNTd €
IS ® SDIHAYYD AAIS HHL NO L1926
00°69¢ 00°692 5LZS8 BT/0€/9 TYDISAHd QdA
HLNID HLTVAH TYNOILVANIDO 91926
86°22 66°GT 6298 8T/0€/9 ANT YATIVIL-¥YIEWOTd
66°9 56258 8T/0€/9 SNIJ¥ILLOD
SHSTHdUIINT OLAY ATTIHA.O 51926
58 €SL S8 €SL L%258 8T/0€/9 NOISSIWWOD OSNINNVIA
ONI VYINYOAITYD 40 TAIXAN %1926
| 00°s8 00°S8 85¢£58 8T/0€/9 TYDISAHA FLVWNI
, HITH TYNOILVdNIDO WAVAIN £1926
00°0§¢L 00°0S¢L S£Z58 81/02/L 6T/L-8T/8 TYMINTY TVNNNY
J0 NOILVIDOSSY YAVAIN 21926
00°59%°'0¢2 00°S9%'0¢ 6v€S8 8T/02/L 13000 LOT¥LSIA IST
¥IANIAAA DITENd AHN 11926
00°G6€E 00°S6¢€ £¥€S8 8T/02Z/L
TASNNOD HATIIVISIOAT AAN 01926
SZ°TE€6°T ST T1E6°T 0¥Zs8 8t/0z/L SONI¥AS YNIHD ¥ID 1IST
AT ‘SIDUNOSHA NYWAH AAN 60926
00°95L'6 0072962 8% €S8 81/02/L SHDIAYES HTO¥Yd HINOX
00°"¥6L'9 1ves8 81/02/L SHDIANES 1DFLOYd QTIHD
SHOENOSTE NYWOH AIN 80926
00°00§°'S 00°000'% (42431 81/0¢2/L LNANSSHESSY (Z) 0¥0 " ¥ESSAN
00°00S'T Z%zs8 81/0¢/¢L LNIWSSHSSY (2) 00 ¥ESSUN
SHDANOSEY AALYM AIQ AIN L0926
00°0¢ 00°0¢ S6€58 81/0€/9 ATYOLS/SEAI WIVID ONINIW
STVEEANIN 40 AIQ A3N 90926
05 L6L 05 L6L LGESS 8T/0€/9 SANNOUDNIVE /SILNIUIHADNIL
ALFAYS DITENd IdAA AIN 50926
Z0°19%'8 20°T9% ‘8 9TES8 8T/0€/9 HSYHDINA AALYM ANAL
: SANNO¥D ® 5@ NIWAY AN %0926
00°SET 00°S€T 0TESSs 8t/02/L dIHSYTEWAN STYN
YAVAEN 40 STYN £0926
Q€ 22T 6T €L 8LES8 81/0¢/9 sg1ndg
8% ST 8LESE 8T/0€/9 ¥IA0D HTIOH® Sd1INg
LE VT 95€58 81/0¢€/9 S4v¥dl 30O
91°6T LLZS8 8T/0€/9 HAYL
HOTYA HNYL ISNOH ANNOKW 20926
00°00T 00°00T 08258 8T/0¢€/9 SAXVI AL¥IAOdd IWAJYIANO
TIVHOIW 3 ENAL ‘NOLIOW 10926
00°000°T 00°000'T 59€48 81/0€/2 A004dISHIND FOHYL/ONHY
DNI ‘Olsand 00926
00°52%'2 00°SLS 0tTZs8 8T/02Z/L av aoodlSdND HOHYL HIAON
00°058°T 0TZSs 81/02/L . av dOO0HLSHAND HOHVL/ONIH
ONI 0OLsdd 66526
00°0%8°T
TY10L LNNOWY HSNVIL HIVA # 0/d NOILAI¥DSHEA HDIOANI J0ANIA YHENNN
MDHEHD MDEHD
8T/02/L YALSIDIV XDTHD 81/6T/L0 * @3eQ uny

S abed ALNNOD AHYOLS STETEd :ON 3xoday




£0°1 T8€58 81/0€/9 YANOISSIWNOD

LT €T T8£S8 8T/0€/9 HDOIVASIA TVALNID
pE" 18€58 81/0€/9 ¥OSSESSY
£8° L T8£S8 81/0¢/9 INIWAOTIAZA ALINNWWOD
ve" T8£S8 81/0¢/9 aOOMMDOT/FATA
00" € 18€58 81/0€/9 AATYIHS
65" 18€58 81/0¢€/9 JATIIHS
62°S T8€£58 81/0€/9 SMMOM DITENd
12481 18€£58 8T/0€/9 (On) FAIA
6L°C 18€48 8T/0E/9 AUFTO
a7 NI SEDIA¥EAS IVEOID DES S€926
00-¢2t 00°21 81258 81/0Z/L 81/2T/L - 8T/1/L
ONI ¥AILNIDIEV SAAVH INIVS €926
0S°2LT 0§ 2LT vLzSe 81/0¢/9 SdITddNS WY
ONI 0dddn¥ €€926
00°090°T 00°090°T 89€£58 81/0¢/9 SHDIAMAS AINYOLLY ENNL
4T ‘SEATIVH 3 HMOY z€9T6
0096 00°96 p£2S8 8T/02/L SA¥YOLS0d
ONI ALIVIDEAS HOHV.I ONIHY -~  T€9Z6
00°0S 00°0S szese 8T/0Z/L FAVAYd HLP 404 SHHDOIMANVS
SHIANYD S.dEyd 0€926
¥0° €02 ¥1°18 92€58 81/0€/9 NONVD S¥OSSESSV
06 12T 9Z£S8 8T/0€/9 NONVD TL 1S
(¥D) DONI OD NYOIOW AW 62926
00°082 00°0%T 65248 81/0Z/L TYINGE WOOULSTA -HOA
00°0%T 65258 8tT/02/L TYINEY WOOMLSIYU-INW
0711 EOVdS aIdvd 82926
TP 09L°T TP 09L'T 0Lg€SS 81/02/L 1IS0d3d SSAIIXI ¥VT0d
*ONI SINAAT TIVY L2996
89°68T 2 00" 0%2 [X24%:] 8tT/02/¢L q ‘RATLIVH
89°6%6 T £9258 8T/02/L I '¥0I¥4vY
ININFIILIY ATdWI DITENd 92926
92°9€8'CST 98°6S1'%D 1€€S8 81/0€/9
-9v°888°1 TEESS 81/0€/9
LeLe TEESS 81/0€/9
9¥"SET’T TEESS 8T/0¢/9
-9T"9L6'T T€€S8 8T/0€/9
92" LEL T€£€S8 8T1/0€/9
€57 ¥S TEESS 81/0€/9
L1 92 TEES8 81/0€/9
0L 0E9°2ZL TEESS 8T/0E/9
-yT S€€°8 TEES8 81/0¢€/9
6V €90°'¢ TEESS 81/0€/9
0L %58°08 TEESS B1/0€/9
85°9vz’e TEESS 8T/0€/9
OILYSNIAWOD ADNADY DITHNd 52926
06" €19 00" SL z6158 81/02/L MALINTD dOOMADOT 666TIIDV
00°SL Z6158 81/02/L LEEYLS D § TLE 866TIDOV
06°8LE LEESS 8T/02/L ¥AITd AOW VOLINOW/SUAANYL
00°58 LEESS 8T/02/L ¥d/0S0S ISAL TYIA TYNNNY
ONI SHDIAEQ NOILDELO¥d 2926
00° 98 00°0T LTZS8 81/02/L 8T/2T/L - 8T/T/L
00 9L L1298 81/02/L
HSNOH YIHEJO S.AAdId £2926
00°592°9¢ 00°592'9¢ 8zeS8 8t/02/L HODA/M¥YA TYINLSNANI
A¥IANOLD I z22926
05 €TY
IYIOL INNOWY H#SNVAL AIVA # 0/d NOIIdI¥DSAd TDIOANI HOANIA JAENNN
MDHHD AOFHD
81/02/L ¥ALSIDI™ ADEHD 81/61/L0 * @3eQ uny

9 abeg ALNNOD AHAOLS STE£T8d ‘ON 3xodsy




00°¥99°1
ST°621
00°€0L'T
00°00S°2
00° 0S¥
00°0T8'6
687 €SL
06°€81°582
90 LET
69°€E0T
2S5 S68°T
SE°0T
00°S2
00°S2Z¥%
00°0S
88°L9
00°9L9
00°TS
00°¥v2Ze
08°19
TYLOL
MDHHO

L sbeg

00°21
00°0%T
00°%TS'T
ST 62T
00612
00°v¥8%'1
00°005‘e
00" 0S¥
00°0T8'6
oz 8L
6L°60¢€
SL"2ST
ST°€12
06°€81°68¢
90" LET
69°€€0°T
25°568"'1T
SE€°01
00°s2
00°Ss2T
00°00¢€
00°0s
88°L9
00°90T
00°€6T
00°09
00°8L
00°09
00°09
00°09
00°09
00° 1S
00°21T
00°21T
L0 €2
1e°
LNOONY

zzese

12288
12ess

62258

0zess
ozzse

8€298
£EESS
£6€£S8
LLESS
66258
6LESS
LLESS
€8€58
BEESB
L6ZS8
S0€58
65€58

£T€S8

9vess
To€ES8

0Lzs8
26€£58

86258
86258
86258
86258
86258
86258
86258
86258

61258

69258
69258

8€58
T8€S8

#SNVAL

8T/02/L

81/0Z/L
81/02/L

81/02/L

8T/02/L
8T/02/L

8T/02/L
81/0Z/L
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0Z/L
81/02/L
81/0€/9
8T/02/L
8T/0€/9
81/02/L

81/02/L
81/0€/9

81/02/L
81/0€/9

81/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T1/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0¢€/9
81/0¢/9

81/02/L

81/02/L
81/02/L

81/0€/9
8T/0€/9

a41va

81/0e/L

# 0/4

YILSIDIY AD
ALNNOD ATYOLS

81/2T/L - B1/T/L

OdAH 1004

81/Cct/L - 8T1/1/L
qISYET
AL¥VYd LSVYD

LT/T€/2T ONZ SHINOW 9

ONIAVYd LI

6T/8T XYL ALJHIO¥d DIUL
SEAMEL ¥O4 NOILNL
LJ0ddns daNnr

10183vdd

SNOILdI¥DSHdd ALVKWNI
ALLCO08T HAISALIHM

WOLSND S3Jd0TIANH
1004 ¥04 SNDIS

MT TIOYLNOD LSdd
avOod NVYHINIT 0%T

IT00 'T¥Dod4d
dsns TLL‘Hd ‘€IHNI‘Sdod
SWIOATITOD
SWEOAITOD
SWd0AITOD
SWI0JAITOD
SWH0AITOD
SWYO04ITOD

8T/21/L - 8I/T/L

ATIW HLVWNI
ATIN JLVWNI

2LoA
(OA) HAIdA

NOILJI¥DSHA EDIOANI

dHD

01 SAOEMOD ENOLSHWOL JHL

AZTAIHS ‘A¥¥IAL

S1ONdo¥d 100d ¥O0Idddns

SESTUJYHAILNT AVEAd NOS
AS550d dIIL ALNNOD AFAOLS
07T WILS

D11 ‘SEILVIDOSSY ® dTHILS

WILSAS ¥ILVM 0D IS
ARANSYIIAL OD IS

dATYIHS OO 1S

ONI SHDIAYES ALITILA €4S
o711 ‘SINFTOS

YAILNED ON¥d ® d00A SHLIKWS

INVT ‘HIWS

¥dd OTT SAIMLSNANI MDITS
ONI TOAINOD LSHd VHIIIS

00 ¥WIMOd JIJIDVd VAYIIS

TYLNINNOIIANT VRAUIIS

NITIY NVI¥d ‘JVOHS

ONI SYOLALIYLSIA MAVWIIHS

JOANdA

8T/61/L0
STeETdd

55926

v5926

£5926

25926
15926
05926

67926

8¥%9¢26
L¥9¢C6
9¥9¢%6
S¥926
%926
£v926

[4 4143

%926
0%926

6€9C6

8£926

LE9Z6

9€926

YIEWAN

ADHHD
@3eq uny
ON 3xoday




8

ZE ¥¥3°'S10'2
09°¢8

00°0%L
L6°89T°T
00°000°T
00°L9T’C

00° 002

€9°LTY'TE

00° 0%
TIT°¥SL
0§°¢T¢
S6°67%

85°¢89

00°0S8S

S€°928°¢

00-zotT’'e

IY1OL

MADEHD

abeg

IV¥IOL SXDHHD
09°¢8
00°0%L
L6°89T'T
00°000°T
00°L91'T

00961
00°¥%
00°0%S
£€9°€10'C
00°SLT ¥2
00°0€Z
00 PET’'¥
0092
00°60E°'T
00°0S
TT°¥SL
0§°21¢
S6°6%

90° €97
[4 354

00° 0SS
vSTeELT
89°998°'1
€T°LBE’'T

00°89¢
oorzeL't

LNNOWY

88£498
TeZss
19258
09£58
LECS8

vzess
yzzas

£22Z58
V6€ES8
9L€S8
€2ess
€£2Z58
€278
£€2258
zzess
LTESS
[4 2211
S61S8

00€58
00€S8

98€58
0gZss
0€css
0€zs8

TTTS8
zzess

H#SNVIL

81/0€/9
8T/02/L
81/0€/9
81/0¢€/9
8T/02/L

8T/0Z/L
8T/02/L

81/02/L
81/0€/9
8T/02/L
8T/02/L
8T/02/L
81/02/L
81/02/L
81/02/L
81/02Z/L
81/0€/9
81/02/L

81/0€/9
81/0€/9

81/0¢€/9
8T/02/L
81T/02/L
81T/02/L

81/0Z/L
8T/02/L

JLYa

81/02/L

AVILIINYND ‘ITOD-L

S7IVD € DILdAS HD

STVAN JOOMADO0T 8T0Z dNNL
ANNL- TI¥dY ADOTODIXOL
SHDIAYAS 1SIAHdOT
8T/21/L - 81/1/L

81/2t/L - 8T/T/L

SHOIAYIS dOHVT
WYILS ST ® %T ‘€1 A1IAr

LNID0Q

SHWOOYLSHEA ATNL HILIY

JOOMADOT JIATOOD UALWM

YdI- n¥ad SOLT
S/M- Ndad SOLT

Z00LTIAD A¥HOVZ

80T TISQ HOA

T6T TISA /005 NN Md
Z¢€ 1ISa / 09% 'INA Md
81/e1/L - BI/T/L

NOILdI¥DSHEA IDIOANT

dALSIDIE ADIHD
ALNANOD AJAOLS

HY1 TYINIWNOAIANIT NITLSTM
¥dad AS MNVI DILdIS SYALYM
A¥HES ¥OINIS ALNNOD HOHSVM

YIANOYOD O3 JOHSVM

SALYIDOSSY 2 YIANTYM

ONT S¥MNOL ALID VINIDIIA

0D ¥¥ FAADNUL ¥ VINIDAIA
JLOA

N 40 SEDIA¥YAS HALIS dALINN
ONI ‘SHIDOTONHDHL ¥ATAL

SAS ¥HLVYM SMOAVAW HINDNAL

LNIWNIAACHAWI TYHINID I¥L

‘ATHA  ONOUISWIY ' TYANNOHL

OTT WNITOULId SYWOHL

YOANIA

81/61/L0
STETdd

69926
89926
L9926
99926

59926

%9926

€£9926
29926
19926
09926

65926

89926

L5926

95926

FIAGWON
ADIHD
23eq uny
:oN 3jxodsy




0% €T 9LYT 81/02/L LT AONVSINN SHNAVYLS

08°s¢ 6LYT st/0z/L INAWNDISSY H¥IJ INIDNIANS WM/ITTAATA
£8°€9 6L¥YT 81/02/L IA-YWSES/HLINS/ITIIAZY INS NNI LSTH/ITTAATA
007961 6LYT 81/02/L IJ-VWSHS/HLIWS/ITTIATE NNI NOIT QHd/ATTAATY
65708 6LYT 8T/02/L INAWNDISSY FdId 107T1d /3T THATY
TL 90T 6LVT 81/0Z/L IJ4-VWSHS/HLINS/TTTAATE  ANEDOAD ANO/ATTIAFY
TL°0S 6LYT 81/02/L INTWNDISSY TAIA MOTATIAYK/ATTIATH
¥6° €€ €LYT 8T/0Z/L  HSINIA ¥OOTd DIAAVHL €0/L0 NHSWOHL A
88° €% €LYT 8T/0Z/L DVAOAYY 20/L0 NASWOHL ¥
00°99T €LYT 81/0Z/L D2IT SSANISNE 0€/90 SNINAY' ¥
S6°65 09%1 81/02/L DVYN IANJHINI IHOITA-NI IOAL - WOD dIVODOD Md
| 81°9€£9 09%T 81/02/L FONTAAANOD TYANNVY ODYN  ANYIANAO QIOTAYD Md
| 56760 TLYT 81/02/L D¥V WAISMAN HOIJI0 DT AIHSYIAWIW HTIYISMAN
00°¥Z8 9LYT 81/0Z/L SSVTID ASNI YALYMWIOLS AVEW
06°8T SLYT 81/0Z/L HAY¥Yd HONAT A1AL HLY ISNOH ONILSON aX
58°28 SLYT 81/02/L EAVYVd HONOT ATIAL HLY *LSTY @OVIVA i
L6 8E 99%1 8T/02/L MATIIN QEaEM -MT 1T/L QH-BA4ED
€L LY 99%T 8T/02/L FLAYINOD -SAYOY 82/9 dH-HAJIAL
LL V92 99%1 81/02/L SNOISSIONOD T00d €/L ODISOD-HAIAD
YE VY 99%1 81/02/L NOILYOINII -HOVLLOD T1/L QH -H44E0
| 16°2¥ 99%T 81/02/L SAITAdNS HIE 1T/L QH -H44EL
| 00°£8 99%1 81/02/L 1OW JATTOOD AWYMS -DSOA 6/L QH -HAJAD
66692 1T €LYT 8T/02/L AOVAOLS Z0/L0 NIAEN' L
LS 162'T LT 81/02/L SNOILVDINNWHOD 0T/L0 HONOTINDDW' [
z9° LT LT 8T/02/L STIEVT OWAQ LTOE6SL" " # ANI
66°8 LT 81/0Z/L MALINOADAH LNV 9292809 "' # ANI
00°81Z TLYT 81/0Z/L sasaa LSTILVE " # ANI
£6°¥%T SLYT 81/02/L sav 0Fa0y M00HAIVA
00°sz LYT 81/02/L av §.¥98d41d A00gEIVA
oL Ve SLYT 8T/02/L OEAIA S1€ pilelelzicto) &1
05°91¢€ SL¥YT 81/02/L sav oxaod pilololzicto) £
4 SLYT 81/02/L av X0 M00gHOVA
ZL 16 €LYT 81/02/L INIWINOISSY HAIJ TANJ €1/L0 VWSHS T
00°vZ €LYT 81/02/L IWS/VWSAS/ITTAATYE TVIW €T1/L0 VWSIS'd
58752 €LYT 8T/02/L INIWANDISSY FAId TN 80/L0 VWSIS'H
00°292'1 19%1 81/0Z/L aood ALYANI 0SDS - ANOL ‘NISOQ
107061 ELYVT 81/02/L AONVYNALNIVH dIN0dd ZT/L MEQANS'd
LY 06 €LYT 81/0Z/L  NIWHNDISSY FAIA TaNd €T/L0 MHAANS ' d
z8 Z1g €LYT 8T/0Z/L HONIVINIVA %LL 2T/L0 WHAANS A
00°S6% €LYT 81/02/L INIWEANOISSY H¥Id TaANd Z1/L0 WHAAANS QA
00°sze €LY 81/0z/L  INIWNOISSY HATA TaANd T1/L0 ¥AAANS A
ZL" 889 €LY 81/02/L NDISSY HAId SEAIL 0T/L0 YHAANS A
L8 ¥¥8 €LYT 8T/0Z/L INAWANDISSY HAId STHANA 0T/L0 EAANS A
09°zZ €LYL 81/02/L LIVW dIN0E XAAVIH Z0/L0 WHAANS A
00°0T 8251 81/02/L 897Z9Xd -HSYM uV¥D MIHL J¥NS -NIAEN'D
z6°58 82ST 81/02/L IINSEINI QOOMIDO0T IIV¥ -NIAEN'D
66°69 T9%T 81/02/L WANDYA MT  0SDS - d4dr ‘su¥Emod
00°0S¢2 09%T 8T/0Z/L OILVMLSIDIY FAONFAHANOD  TYANNY ODYN 810Z OV
ST EVS €LY 81/0Z/L INAWNDISSY HTATJd SHALL 0T/L0 MXHDSN ¥
00°198 €LYT 81/0Z/L INAWINDISSY HYIA SHALL 0T/L0 MEHDSON'V
5% 9bE 8LYT 81/0€/9 NOW HDIVASADIND
-91°9 LLYT 8T/0€/9 11Qa¥d XYL SATYS INI¥d VISIA OX
%0701 LLPT 81/0€/9 av IMYED TEIDMOD M00HEIV
00652 8ZST 81/0€/9 $9TTT NI OIS0 TTIVANOLAY
00°0T 8zs1 8T/0€/9 S8TIT NI HDIJL0 FTEVANOIIY
INEWAVA (AYD TYIDATWWNOD ENO STTM %1
IVIOL INNOWY #SNWAL 2LYA NOILAI¥DSIa # EDIOANI IdEA-aNnd AOANIA HAGHAN
a’vo od
AALSIDIN QUYD HSYHONNG 8T/6T/L0 * ™3ed unyg=

1 abeq ALNNOD AHUOLS 1S08vSHd :ON*3xddey




Z

S0°6¥S 91

S0°6%S‘9T

TYLOL
aqivo

sbedq

€7 168
ZT°8L0'T

C8A - {a)

YINOISSTIWWOD

NOILVZIJOHLOV ANV MIIATY 40 LNIWIDATTMONIOV

CLYT
cLYT
ZLYT
CLYVT
YLYT
SLPT
SLPT
SLPT
SLYT
ELPT
9L Y1

H#SNAL

81/02/L W¥HAEIA ISNOHIAYNOD LILY
8T/02/L ¥AEIA HOLVASIA LRIV
8T/02/L dn MOV ¥HLIA QOOMADOT

81/02/L SHANAEd Ddv¥
81/02/L AY MOOHIADVYA YEWWNSAIW
8T/0Z/L ADYLSOd

81/02/L TIVYMHNIA HADVI¥NS MOTIHE

81T/0Z/L SHITAANS HOIAJO
81/02/L HIVId HNYN d¥vod
8T/0Z/L SANA GWIW TYANNY
8T/0Z/L SSYID dSNI dALVMWNOLS

ALYA NOIIdINDSIA

YALSIDHY AIYD ESYHOUN

ALNNOD AF¥OLS

YHDHEO0D6AAELIWNMS
EXOHEOD6 AAHLWMS
262980

TO0TTSO

dIYD A00dADVA DIDA
§4Sn diL

I¥NoNs aL

10dda 351440 dl
HNOZ QIYMY UL
IT/L0 ILLAYHAId L
SENYVLS

+Te30L PIRD«x

# FIDIOANI 1ddd-aNnd

FOANIA HEWON
od
8T/61/L0O 83eq umi,

1508¥5Hd m%;ﬁo%m




HANOISSTIWWOD

, AATIOALFGROD
. FFCFL Fhepesy \.& -

JILYq NOILVZIMOHLAV ONY MITIATY 40 INIWEDAITMONIDVY

oo-osL‘z TYLOL SADFHD (QAdAL

81/€T/L 00°0SL'Z SSYID JANINVLS VAVAIN 62526
TUNIA TRANW Z0# "ANI 00°0SL'2 YPITT 810¢

NOILdI¥DS3Aa #IDIOANI arva AVLOL LNOOWY HWYN JOONIA #AYODHA WVEX AITEWON
ADFHD ADIHD IVOSTd XOEHD . . T -

, Mmamuommmxummonmm? 3\3\3" BMLE&\%
T abeg AINNOD AHUOLS 06€T8d :ON Jioday




00°000°9

00°000°9

Te3oL
309UD

T abeg

d1va

00°000°9

Junowy

AINYOLIV IOIHULISIA

NOILVZINOHLAY ANV MIIATY J0 INIWIDTITMONMOVW

Te30L S}O9UD

9z 81/90/L SEDIANAS TYNOISSHIONd L-DS-8T ANI
DT dNO¥D AALAOL
#Ioyonoa ?jed ﬁOﬂUQﬂMUMOQ 3o TOAUT JIOPUIA
8T/90/L SXO9UD OTUOIIOATH 103 AIISTENY 8T/S0/L0
ALNOOD AFAOLS HO0BETEHA

62

Jaquny
Ho8YD

ajeq uny
:ON 3xoday




T

62°ZL6 L

6Z°LYE'L

02°s¢

T4LOL
QAYD

abeq

00°5¢

LNNOWY

TSv1T
R A AN
95%1
SSPT
8281
R4 AN
8YPT
8vvT
8Vl
8v¥vT
8%Vl
8¥%1
8v¥v1
8vv1l
34 -A
9§%1T
9S¥PT
SSPT
SSPT
SSPT
(X AA%
(3248
£SPT
8CST
6S¥%1
TS%1
IS%T
TS9P1
LYPT
SSYT
82ST
82ST
82ZS1
8Sv1T
8ZST
YSyvl
vSyvl
ZSPT
SSPT
SSY1
SSPT
(A2 AN
SSY1T
SSY1T
SSYv1
TS%T
8yY¥vl
8avT
8S¥T
9v¥1

6S¥1T

#SNVIL

81/90/L
81/90/L
81/90/L
8T/90/¢L
8T/90/L
8T/90/L
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€E/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0E/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9

8T/0€/9

4Lvd

ON0d dIdDSENS DNINIVAEL
¥V ISA LANYALNI AFd WOD
LRLY 1SAd LANIIALNI DODA
L3LY 150 LINYILNI ¥LLS
TSa LANJILNI dOOMADOT
I2LY TSA LINJIINI OSDA
INAWAINOE SOIHAVHD vd
SHALNIAd AFT WOD

ID NOSWYD LINN HAOVEOLS
VIATYL d04 AANNIA

SOD dOdadDVE AAWWNSAINW
ADVYLSOd ¥ SAWVLS
UANNVE OA

SV, NOILUNOQ AINL HLIY
NOILVHELSIOHY AYYION
NIVEIL A¥VION A¥OLVANYW
ULT FONVSINN
SNOISSADONOD ¥V¥H MOVUNS
AANANLAY 1LONAodd
S3I11ddNS €WY ¥04 LS04
1aNA LNWINDISSVY FATA
TdNd INIWINDISSY HAIA
8102 1

HAYYL OL QITIVW SINVID
NOINN ‘ONIENL -T00d
SEITAdNS TIYMAIA-0S
NIXIW ‘ONI€NL -¥AVd DA
ANNATY XYL

S.00G€X DHY

TYMANIY €6¥% X0€ Od

NS OHNTAGYT JIOAIT ISIW
SSVTID ddD AHTIAANOM
a¥ TMYAD TAIOMOD

av TMYED TATOMOD

a¥ ADOLSWOD 40 HLSVL
ao0d HLVWNI

ONILIAW AANNIA

ONILEIW 0IA0Y¥ 1 DNIXTA
VaTd MOGNIM ¥LND 1IISIA
THNA LNIWNNODISSY dJId
HLLVE YOLVTII¥dIAAd M1

YHANNIQ ANOD WAJAD ao0l

dNs ONINVATD dSANEWITA

NOILAI¥DSAA

JALSIDIY qIVD FSYHDANd

ALNNOD XHUOLS

+[e30L PIBDs

901TPSZ¥69
WATIZOS6MANLSMS
SZAAZOSE6MANLSMS
MLOIZOZEMANLAMS
dd04Z0Z6 MANLAMS
ASZAZ0ZE6MANLAMS
096S5L0

T0LYCO
0000-81T00000-¥8ZEQQ
D00 ddHY¥ €M

NOZVWV €M

sdsn ai

MOYVOWOL AH SNDIS 4L
FIEL AVTIOA dL
LSSYIVOdT INADIYS °L
LSSYIVOET INADIYS ° 1L
SENIVYLS

OD1SOD -Ad3YHS

GYINI WOdd ANNARA
12/90 NASWOHL A
1Z/90 HLIIWS'W

81/90 HLIWS'W

N JFWNNS ¥04 HONIDAOT
§d4sn ax

LOdEA FWOH-HAJAL
LOdEd HWOH-HAJHL
LOdEd FWOH -HA43r
AVdANTG-VddYr, I¥9d Or
AN -MNOSY L
680LLYZSETO0T6# ANI
8E€LS8TSO# ANI

AANYVEE ‘ WANZAVD
A00HEDVY A

A009d0vd

poleeiztcie) £

ANOL ‘NASOQ

S ANHOIVVA ad

0¥d MIdHE OavdOa1d ad
SSYID IVLIAVD ada
8T1/90 JYIVIDLS A
SL90€ETISD

LOddd dDI4d0 NO

T1IE LIV ND

ATITINYD

LNFWAVd J¥YD TVIDYIWWOD HNO STTEM 0%l

08DS - NVA ‘INNYD

# EDIOANI 1Ld3d-aNNd

TIINVA ' INOYD 6€T

JOANIA ATAWON
Dd

81/50/L0 : @3eg UNY

1S08%S8d :ON 3xoday

2




00°0ST L9TS8 8T/0€/9 0€/9 NYWHOLVM/Jdddd LHDIN

00°0% L9TS8  B81/0€£/9 T/L 3 0€£/9 SUOLOV OML
1S°L0T L9TS8  BT/0E/9 IDONUNIINIVN LOdIA
£5°9L L9TS8  B81/0€/9 HOVLS QTINd OL STVIAALYW
SEAWYL ‘NVHd 18€26
00" ¥SE‘TT 00" ¥SE’TT L90S8  81/90/L IHOISHAAQ dOTIATA WHWOD
S ONILINSNOD NIO€ HILIVE 08€26
SL 1696 ZE V9T 19158  81/0€/9 8T1/1/9 SUIVATA 1OdHAA
S1° 1€ 19158 81/0¢/9 AVYED 3 NOSIOQ/M HONOT
00°€€€’8 z91S8  81/0€/9 8102 ANAL SADIANIS WO
00°0¥¢E 19158  81/0€/9 LZ/S 3 92/S SUOIDY OML
82071 19158  81/0€/9 TIE TIED IO4HEd ANAL ¥ AV
65°GT T91S8  81/0¢£/9 STAEYT
00705 19158  81/0€/9 HOEYT TYNSYD
9£°90T 19158  81/0€/9 SHITIANS DNIAVIANY'T
00°00T 19158  81/0€/9 HOFYT TYNSYD
00°S¥ 19158  81/0€/9 AOYHOLS ANITNO ENAL-AYW
zZZ 69 19158  81/0€/9 SUAONASSVYA dOA AANYD
00°0¢€ 19158  81/0€/9 SAVMVIATD Avd SYTHIVA
16°21 19158  81/0€/9 SNOONLSHE ¥Od dv0S
26" €01 19158  81/0€/9 AVA SUIAHLYS ¥Od SIINOOD
00°0ST 19158 81/0€/9 AANIVINALNA AVA SATHLIOW
ANIVIA ‘¥EONIAS-TINAXdvE 6LET6
00°0S2 00°052 90058  81/90/L 1M0ddNS TYNNNY
QLT INEWAOTIAZA SAY 8LETE
Z8°STT zZ8 ST 60TS8  8T/0¢£/9 SSATIATIM SX
DTT II ALITIEOW I®LVY LLEZE
9€°00L 9€°00L ¥%058  81/0€/9 SAHd INHWAOTAWZ AITAZIANOM
SSANTTAM ANV HITVEH D¥Y 9LET6
00°06S5'9¢€ 00°06L°82 ¥96%8  81/0€/9 107 ¥¥¥d DSDA
00°008°L v96%8  81/0€£/9 DNIAVA TYINOWIW LW
ONIAVA ¥ ONIAYAD XEAY SLEZ6
6T LOY 0S° 9% €96%8  81/0€/9 HD
£€8°TL £€96%8  81/0€/9 dOHS
£€8°€0T £€96%¥8  81/0€/9 dOHS
05" 9% £96%¥8  8T/0E/9 HD
YE VL €96%¥8  8T/0€/9 dOHS
8502 €00S8  81/90/L AMONOVT SL IS
LL'8 €0058  81/90/L AMANOVT ZL IS
08" €T €£00S8  8T1/90/L AMANOVT TL IS
zS° 01 €00S8  8T/90/L A¥ANNVT %L IS
zS° 01 €00S8  81/90/L A¥ANNVT L 1S
ONI 0DS'TY vLETE
S8°¢S s8° 8¢ z96%8  81/0€/9 SMDO0TAYd -SANAOUDAIVA
00° %1 z96v¥8  8T1/0€/9 SAHN 68€
JONI D071 ANIJTY €LETE
0070008 00°000°'8 55058  81/90/L £O¥d EAONAWT WALYMEAISYM
DT MDOLSWOD TIV ZLEZE
00°002°2 00°00Z‘2 L0O0S8  81/90/L 1340ddNs 6T1/1€/L0-81/10/80
ONI ‘DHLIAYIV TLEZ6
00°20T°'6 00°66%‘¥Y LL6EYP8  8T/0€/9 SHASSY SNOILAWEXH AIIAA0¥d
00°%10°2 LL6¥8  8T/0E/9 LESSY QEXIL’LEHANS ‘TIONAd
00°685‘C LL6Y8  8T/0€/9 1d0ddNs SEINAST WHI
ONI SWHLSAS ¥Ii¥d QIDNVAQY 0L£26
08986 08°986 €L6¥8  81/0€/9 TIVD EDIA¥IS -HD
4 3I¥1Ed ‘NMO¥E 69€26
IYLOL INOOWY #SNVAL CAR(u # o/a NOIILdI¥DSAA TDIOANT FOANIA AHGRNN
MDAHD XDFHD
81/90/¢L HALSIDIAV NDIHD 8T/S0/L0 * ©3eq uny

T abed ALNNOD XHHEOLS STETdd :ON 3xoday

5




4

00°0ve

00°99¥v°Le

99°698

TS IvE ‘L

00°0¢

9L° 008

ST'9¢
00°0s¢
€L729T
0Z2°S08°T
9¢°€CT
00°91¢

0S°050°9

957289

0s°T€T’T

66°6C
00°09
00°GSL8’9
oY 0EY 'V
00°00¢€
v0'vLE
IYLOL
ADEHO

abeg

00°'68
00°G8
8€° 012
0§°LET
00°0%2
00" TY0‘LT
00°GLT
00°052
89°98¢€
65 €81
6E° 662
$8°20%'2C
0Z°G6L0'¥
8% ' €98
00°0€

0z €T
66°GSE
LS 12
52" 9¢
00° 052
€L°29T
02°508°T
9€° €21
00°91¢2

0S5°0S
00°000°9

957289
00°09
057991
00°S00°T
66°6C
0009
00°5L8°9
0V " 0EP ' ¥

00°00¢

LNNOWY

9L6v8
9L6V8
ve6v8
v66%8
verss
26058
520s8
SZ0s8
76058
¥6058
$6058
89698
89678
896%8
$9158
SLTIS8
68158
68158
L9678
00058
05058
TL6%8
996¥8
94158

6¥058
8£058

S96¥8
£E1s8
€ETS8
£e1s8
6L1S8
0€0S8
ZT11s8

LL0S8

ZE1IS8

#SNYAL

81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/90/L
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0¢€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/90/L
8T/0€/9
81/0¢€/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9

8T/0¢€/9
81/90/L

8T/0€E/9
81/0E/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/90/L
8T/90/L
8T1/0€/9

8T/0€/9

HILYA

81/90/L

# o/4d

1d5anNg LNEWNONY /ST
1995and INIWONY /ST
a¥y SSIWWOD OHNINNYIL
INHWANIWY LXHL ANOZ
aTos NID WAD SATLLOE 0¥Z

LI0ddNs WYYD0odd 8T0Z ATNL

JIsANESIA LNIWHSINYVYDO
JISANESId LNAWHSTINIVYD
QEsINGSIA INIWHSINAYD
SHAIL ££€99944

SHYIL Z2€999¥4

SHAIL BLL

SHE4 LINOD DN¥A OO AHAOLS

LOdEd JLVYDLSVYI 0599

aIv¥ LSYId 1004
HA0A/YSSINVA

TIVLD YANVATD ¥OOTd ¥ 4L
€ LNIWDIS -D8C6

LINYTO0D -820993d4

IT Od 8

YIMIS /IILVM
NOILV¥LS MT ¥04 INHY

NOH AILNTOA 82099/0%€£95¥d

81/0€/9 - 81/%1/9

NOILVALSINIWAY DITdNd
1304dNnS HO¥d JILIVNO IST
SOIavd TOdLVd

81/0€/9 - BI/¥I/9

NOIL4I¥DSHA ADIOANI

YALSTIOHE ADAHD
AILNNOD AJUOLS

(JA) FTOINOIHD MDOLSWOD

LYANNOd A¥ALIWAD MDOLSWOD

ONI LSHHD ALINNWWOD

AIN A0 HOIA¥YAS NOILDHTIOD

ONI HAIL DWO

VAINSVIAL NOSHYD 40 ALID

ALID NOSYVDO 40 ALID

¢ "ON NOILVIOdd0D SVINID
L {eL:te]

ATddlS AYVLINVS TVEINED
d¥0D INEWJINOT NVWHSVYD
ONI ¥ATSA¥YHD IDAOA NOSAVD

SYILYO4HA TOLIJVD

NAWIACUYAWI TVIINID NOANYD

ONI ddId S.NOLiINd

SIMAT LLODS ‘TIddang
NNAT NVSAS ‘¥IAONITARNH
a TIISSNA ‘ NOUNVAd
(LdWOD) SINADIA A0 @IV0L
SHSTAJUYALNT A¥AHE
HYJ0g3a ‘JyIANITL

HOANHA

8T/S0/L0O
5T£T8d

20vZe

10%26

00vce

66€£26

86€C6

L6ECH

96€C6
S6EC6
v6€Z6
£€6€£26
26€C6
16€£C6

o6€ce

68€26

88€Z6

LBETE
98€Z6
S8¢€26
¥8¢€c6
£8€26
[4:3 343
ATEWON
ADAHD

@3eg uny
:oN 3jxoday




88°1¢€¢ 86¥8 81/0¢€/9 JISOTO J0O0A GAH -HO

ATONITAD L1%26
05°509°T SZ €09 06058 81/0€/9 00T 1Sd / O0ST 7INA IAL
§2°200°1 06058 8T1/0€/9 9LT TISA / 0%¥Z 'INN MT
WOHTONLAd 1dS/3L¥D NIAATOD 9T%26
00" €ST 00 €ST 8€TS8 81/0€/9 DA ¥Od SHAVWNOOH
‘D SEAWYL ‘TIID S1¥%Z6
08°1¢€6 00°02L 8T1S8 81/90/L LATILS O ¥O4 SUINNVE
08112 LETSS 81/0€/9 SANNO¥OIIVA AY0d SOV
FHL-ONI AEN J0 FIOLS DHYTI ¥1¥26
€1° 222 €1°222 STTS8 81/90/L NIWAY NOISIA FANILANE ATAL
0D SNI FJIT D3S ALITEAIA £1VZ6
9% 6 9% 6 0L678 81/0€/9 MDOTAN ‘SHIL ITEVD
ANYAWOD TYNILSVI zIvZ6
06" 1€ [A2EA2 186%8 81/0€/9 JALIII YEAMES
7 9L LET 186%8 81/0€/9 ASSY QIONITOS LIN O¥1Fd
i ZE' 1§ 18678 8T/0€/9 HATYA TYONYRW
| SIDNAO¥d NOILVOIYAI ONIMI Ti%26
ST 80% 08 LE zTLOGS 81/0€/9 NO¥XHA 8SZTHSLI
06" 8% ZLOS8 81/0€/9 WY WYIAE -096690S
LY 8E ZL0S8 81/0€/9 NIDVY ¥00d DVAH -S2E8F0S
16 €T zLOS8 81/0€/9 DN1d -LIBSTYS
7 LE'T6 zL0S8 81/0€/9 SAINT1d 8STYSII
| T 69 zL0S8 8T/0€/9 SYALTIA -dINDI AAVIH
ZE' 7S zTLOS8 8T/0€/9 AVIM ILXT 9ZEBYOS
| 2L 99 zL0S8 81/0€/9 aIEgaIy A -066T9Md
| z0°'8 zL0S8 81/0€/9 aInNd ZAV¥Eg 006690S
| e 9T zL0G8 8T/0€/9 SYALTIA 066T19Md
. -T9°LS ZL0S8 8T/0€/9 dOHS
0802 zLOSS8 8T/0€/9 JALIIL -0S
ONI X71d44NS 0lAY LIOITII 0T¥%Z6
60°298°T 60°298°T 06158 81/0€/9 ¥LQ TILSNI HONIM
ONI 0T-Xa 60%26
00°0%L 00°0%L £6058 81/0€/9 NVIDINHDHL SEA0Y
| LI¥A ‘ROXIQ 80%26
S¥ 6G€E 58°28 6£058 8T/90/L 440 SA€ -DAS ¥ALYM
56°62 0T1S8 81/0€/9 TYINIE ¥ILYM
06° 1S L60S8 81/90/L ATNL -HD
, 56° 6T T€0S8 81/90/L TYINTY ¥ATOOD 8I0Z AINL
S$6°0€ 86058 8T/0€/9 ¥ALYM SL 1S
S6°9€ 86058 8T/0€/9 ¥AIYM %L IS
S6°0€ 86058 81/0€/9 JAILVM 1L IS
56 €L 86058 8T/0€/9 ¥ALYM TL IS
ONI ¥SN SHOIWA LO%Z6
0%°T20'T 0% 1201 zL678 81/0€/9 AOLDALNI TTAL
ONI A¥ES NOILONAOAd JOMUD 90%26
00°06%'T 00°0S%'T 9€T1S8 8T/0€/9 ONIINOdHI HTID00D
+ VIAIW SIJIONOD FAILVIAD S0¥Z6
056" Z€T 00'ST SETS8 81/0€/9 8T/0€/9 - 8T/%1/9
057202 SETS8 81/0€/9
00°ST SETS8 81/0€/9
D171 TIIN Q109 XDOLSWOD i34
00921 00° 92T LEDSS 8T/90/L AL 140 sSng
ONI AL ALINOWWOD MDOLSWOD £0¥26
8E T8T'T 05889 66678 81/0€/9 SNOIIVDITENd NOILDHTI
00° S8 9L678 8T/0€/9 139and INIWDNY/STY
TYLOL LNOOWY #SNVAL FLYA # 0/d NOILAI¥DSHA FIIOANI FOANIA UATWON
ADIHD MDEHD
| 81/90/L ¥ALSIODAA ADIHO 81/50/L0 ¢ @3eQ uny

€ obeg AINNOD AJUOLS STETEd :ON 3x0day




00°9L6°6
00°€19
£6° %1

007008

TL°SZE

Z6°ST

8V €T

007009

LT %9

00°88Z°T

vz €92°91

00°0ST

0S°SEY ' 0€

00°0L¥'T

08°L88°¢

TS SLE‘T

00°000°S

S 1%¥S

057295

00-2ZL8

TYLOL
ADHHO

4 abeg

00°9L6°6
00°€19
€6° vl

00°00¢€
00°00S

1L sze

66"
€6 V1

(A
ST L

00°00S
LT %9
00°882°1

¥Z°998°V
00" L6E’TT

00°0ST

05°16¢
00" %%
00°000’0€

00°0LY'T

A4 4
[ 44
20°68
80°205°¢€
05°82
05°8¢
05°82
09°€6
05°8¢

PHULGE’T
80°8T0'T

00°000°S
SCT¥S

ooroLe
05°262

c1°0%9

LNNOWY

o¥0s8
TL0S8
Z10S8

0LTS8
0L1IS8

L6678

91148
91158

19058
19058

96058
Sv0S8
0L0S8

65098
65058

9L0S8

6ETS8
6€£1S8
£0TS8

£7058

SB80S8
S8058
58058
58068
58058
s80s8
$8098
s80498
58058

£8678
£8678

€Z2T1S8
16058

y8158
¥81S8

2867%8

#SNVEL

8T/90/L
8T/0€/9
81/0¢€/9

81/0¢€/9
81/0€/9

81/0¢€/9

8T/90/L
81/90/L

81/0€/9
81/0¢€/9

8T/90/L
81/0¢€/9
81/0€/9

8T/90/L
8T/90/L

81/0€/9

8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
81/90/L

8T/0€/9

8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9
8T/0£/9
8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9
81/0€/9

81/0¢€/9
81/0€/9

8T/90/L
8T/0€/9

8T/0€/9
8T/0€/9

81/0¢€/9
qiva

8T/90/L

STYNNVIW DNINIVAL

JISANASTIA INIAWHSINIVO

ONIYHAINIDNE - MOW
8T0Z INNL AdNS-MOW

HIVYMAIYH DSINW

Sav0od SNI HAIT HA¥ILAA
NIWOY SNI H4I7 FIHILIA

IVES dINDE AAVIH
LAASYD 41003 AH

dADI440 HITVIH 8T0C A1AL
QUVOdAEN O3AAIA DIOA
SHSSHILLYW TIVL

HIIA €S000-T%06009T
NIWA¥Y €S000-T1%06009T

IOVELNOD ¥¥d S100" XdIOM
8T1/0€/9 - 8T/%1/9
1490ddNS 90¥d YILIVND IST
LINDNID HAVMOIDIW DYWS
SA17ddNS EWY

SHAITddNS dWY

SHITddNS WY

$417daNs WY

s4I7ddNS WY

SHITddNS WY

SHITddNS €WV

SEITIANS EWV

SHIT4dNS dWY

Savod
sSavod

dSYHOANd dSUYYIH NID WED
ONINIVAL

S¥® S¥H 9
SY$® S¥H S°9

SdIT4d0S TYIYOLINYL
# o/d NOILAI¥DSHA ADIOANT

YILSIDIY ADIHD
ALNNOD ABYOLS

T ON OD dANIDNF AL¥ICIT
211 "T0dIXdT
AHHO ¥V AN3AT

SYTOHDIN ‘ONIY¥VZZVT

W d7T08 ¥0 ¥¥0d T HLANNIA

LSIMAINW ‘TIVEWIN

0D SNI FJ4IT ALID SVYSNWYX

o111 ddar
OdaW NYNNATOW D SIEWYL
011 d2dN0s TLI

ONI ‘SdIfNddns TIVL SDI

HLTYEH NMOLIWOH

JAJFL  NYWIOH

OHDS (¥VM HLINOA DIYOLSIH

DI™YLOFETH ANYTIHOIH

NIJHOS A¥NHEH

arl ‘IvH
YHUEND "3 YONYOIN

HOIAT NILSNL 'WNI¥D

WOL ‘AATESNVAD

JOANIA

8T1/S0/L0O
STETEd

LEDTE
9evZe
SeEvie

yevee

£EVLE

[4% 44

1Ev26

oevce
62¥%26
82vC6

[X4 449
9Z¥cC6

segvee

vevee

[ X4 44

cevee

12Z%26
Q2vis

6T¥C6
81vZ6

YIGWNN
ADHHD

@3eq uny
OoN 3xoday ' -




SADINOSHE NVWNH Id3A AIN LSVvZ6

00°0SL 00-zze 15058 81/90/L 00'9 ® SHAAOTAWYI LE
00°82S 15058 81/90/¢L 00°9 ® SHYAOTAWH 88
SNANI » SSANISNH 1d4dd AAN 95%Z6
LL 088'L9Z LL°088°L9Z LLTISB 81/0¢€/9 SHdd NOILVTINdOd
AATTIOALINOD AIN N 44
00°S¥%S 00°S¥S €L1S8 8T1/0€/9 ASSY NIWAVY 1dN0D LOIVULSIA
YATTOALANOD AZAN vsvee
00" T¥Z’ L 00°69T°S LT0S8 81/0€/9
00°268 LZ0S8 81/0€/9 s3
007509 LT0S8B 81/0€/9
00°s2¢ L2058 8T/0€/9
00°0s2 L2058 81/0€/9
YATIOELINOD AEN £5726
00°05¢2 00°0s2 v00s8 81/90/L 34 1J¥0ddNs NIWAY
dJ0D HAOD TYAIDINAW Z5%26
66°CT 6621 [4AST] 81/0€/9 QUTENIVY -M¥Vd SHANINW
ANTYA INUL ISNOH ANNOW 15%26
98°80T 987801 10058 8T/0€/9 aNNJIA
TAVHOIW ¥ ANNL ‘NOLAOW 0SvZe
00°008°'€ 00°008°¢ ¢e0s8 8T/0€/9 LNWNLS 8T10¢ dNNL
1 L¥390d ‘SIVAOW 67vC6
€L78¢EC 00°s¢ 02158 81/90/L
SLTEVT €T0S8 81/0€/9
86 6S €10S8 8T/0€/9
AVWYL 'NVYODIW 8¥vZ6
£€5°559 v6° 95 20058 81/0€/9 SdITddns ADIA40
R A4 4 866¥%8 8T/0€/9 SHITddNS HDIJJ0
[47 A 12188 8T/90/L
8570V 801S8 81/0€/9
861V 80TS8 81/0€/9
00'¢ge 80158 81/0€/9
¥L 09 £€0598 81/0€/9 ¥dos SdITddNSs 8TAd
[T £€058 81/0¢€/9 ¥ads SHITdANS 8TAd
NI SNOILATOS dDIAJ0 OdALIAW Lv¥C6
00°00T 007001 90158 81/0€/9 LNAWAVIIIAO Td
L TAINYA ‘YNNEIDOW 9¥¥Z6
00°0S%'C 00°0S¥%’2 61158 8T/90/L
HddSOr ‘NAEYLSITIIDW Sv¥vee
L9°999'1 L9°999°1 00TS8 81/90/¢L LI0ddNS WY¥D0dd 8TQ<C R1AC
VLD ALINOWWOD NIYML MUVW 14444
00°28T'T 00°9z2t ov1ss 81/0€/9 81/0€/9 - 8T/¥%1/9
00°9S0°T 0vIse 81/0€/9
NOISNVNW AVIDVW £Ev¥le
00°sLe 00°§¢e 9%0s8 8T/90/L 6T-810Z2 SENU dIHSYLAWIMW
00709 9%058 8T/90/L 61-8T02 SANA dIHSYIIWIN
D0SSVY SUADYNYW AOCD T¥DOT Zvvee
00-00€’'2 00°00€°2 82158 81/90/L YANIVIAE 8T0C ATINL
01T SINIAT dNT1g aIndIT Tvvee
00°000°69 00°000°69 L2158 8T/90/L LADANE INIAF OIJ0YU
D71 SINIAX ANTIE gINOIT ovvie
00°006°LET 00°006°LET v21s8 8T/90/L 1d9dNd SdEOYd TAWVD
0711 SINZAT dFNTE AINDIT 6€¥C6
00°9LE 00°9L¢E 98058 81/0€/9 SIITddNS gWY
ONI LSISSV-34IT 8E¥Z6
00°00S°‘2 00°005‘z £11S8 81/90/L 1J0ddNS WWADHOMd ATIHLIVNO
TY.LOL LNONONY #SNVAL ALYd # 0/d NOILJI¥OSHAd HADIOANI AOANIA YFEWNN
p.tofciziel ADEHD
81/90/L HILSIDAY ADHHD 8T/50/L0 ¢ @3ed uny

S abeg ALNOQD AZUOLS STETEd ‘ON 3jzoday -




00°S¢L 2v0s8 8T1/90/L L3O OL TNL YOLINOW WAYTIY

S8°6LT 59058 8T/90/L FSNOHIVNOD YOLINOW FAIJ
ONI SEDIAHA NOILDALOMA LLYZ6
00°LT0‘Z 00°006°T 09168 81/90/L TIIJEY YELIW FOVLISOd
002t EVT1S8 8T/0€/9 ANIHOVA HOVY1SOd
007501 €L058 81/0€/9 HSYAT ANIHOVYW FDYISOd
ONI SHMOH AINLIA 9LYZ6
00°95 00°8 ZY168 8T/0€/9 8T/0€/9 - 8T/¥%1/9
00" 8% Z¥168 8T/0€/9
HSNOH VIO §.¥FdId SLYZE
00°STE 00°ST€ 1158 8T/0€/9 8T/0€/9 - 81/%1/9
d OTEONY ‘INIVLAd vLYZ6
08°80€ 08°80€ 88678 8T/0€/9 SALYD TO0d
VAINED HDIA¥IAS TIALS WaAd €LYT6
S2°11¢€ §Z°T1¢€ 066%8 8T/0€/9 HOVH SL'€ 099SEL LSND
ONI IHDISNIWNIAO [ 4824
00°959 007959 98678 8T/0¢€/9 HTIDHS ‘ SYYONVH ‘NIVHD -HDA
¥ QYVHDI¥ ‘SYAITO TLYE6
Zv°6S Z¥° 65 €ST1S8 8T/0€/9 SHITAANS FDIJJI0 DSIKW
ONI 10ddd IDIA40 0LYT6
00°¥8L 00°¥8L 9z0s8 81/0€/9 200 AT 8%000 ¥D
| Q¥¥Mga NILSOC ‘SEAVO 69726
W 0T°SPS 8T°8 LB6V8 8T/0€E/9 HdV¥L 10312 -dOHS
60° ¥ L86%8 8T1/0€/9 FAVL LDATH SAVOd
| LL SV L86%8 81/0€/9 ¥80TTE AIAWOD
, 6655 LB6DS 8T/0€/9 NNS FSYAAD-JOHS
(434 L86VS8 8T/0€/9 LIN DA¥S 8%669Ud
SOET L8678 81/0€/9 STOOL FATYA -dOHS
05°ST L8678 81/0€/9 WOOT HJYIM 9S5¥69ud
-66°SC LBEV8 8T/0€/9 dIinid aiAH -dOHS
66°GC IX:134:1 8T/0€E/9 ain1d giAH -dOHS
SHSTAJEAING OLAY ATIIHY. O 89v2C6
00°169'% 00°T69°% 58678 8T/0€/9 S€6 ‘AALOVUA
ONI SHIDOTIONHOIL NIN L9vEs6
, 00°SLT 00°SLT 68068 8T/0€/9 dTHSHIEWAN TYANNY
| YdaN 99%26
00°0S0°L 00°0S0°L ¥8058 8T/90/L I¥0ddNS WYHDO¥d 6T1/8TO0ZAd
dASY ALNNOD T¥ANd VAYAIN 59%¢6
00°Z6€ 00°2Z6€ 99158 8T1/0€/9 aaIdITION SIIA
ONI HDIA¥ES TVOFT YAYAIN ¥9%26
007001 00°00T TT1S8 8T/0€E/9 TII8 ATHINW S3d
(ON¥) QLT INTE YAYAEN £€9%26
00°0T 00°0T 82068 8T/0€/9
YAUNSYAAL AEN z9%26
00°¥8% ‘T 00°2%L g00se 81/0€/9 LNVYO ¥dY OFAIA
00°2Z%L L8058 81/0€/9
AN 40 J¥N0D HAWIHANS AIN 19%26
00°S€€ 00°SEE 66058 81/90/L TYMENIY JIHSUTEWAN 8T0C
D0SSY ¥ALYM TYANA AHN 09vZ6
00°ST6 00°s21 $STS8 8T/0€/9 D¥N PH00LS- 09TLEH#ISND
00°06L 50068 8T/90/L SALNIVLIS AASIATY INIJIJTA
TISNNOD FAIIVWISIDAT AEN 65%26
00°000‘8€ 00°005°LE £2058 8T/90/L YALIVND IST
00°00§ £2068 8T/90/L NOILONAHA STaNd
A41S3d04 0 AIQ AEN 85%26
9% 0%Z'1 9% 0%2’T 78678 8T/0€/9 HOLYW AILNNOD 8T0Z AVW
TYLOL INNOWY #SNVAL FLVd # 0/d NOILAT¥DSHAA EDIOANI YOANIA ALHWAN
| MDFIHD ADIHD
81/90/¢ ¥ALSIODIY MDIHD 81/S0/L0 * @3ed uny

9 abeg ALNNOD AZFUOLS STE€Ted :ON 3xodey




8T 80T 1667v8 81/0€/9 LIND IS O N S%1

SE"E€0T 16678 81/0€/9 SEY Q¥ IHOIYMLAVYD 2192
S8°8%C 16698 8T/0€/9 ¥ 1S AYM NOANYD TE¥
zs'18 16678 81/0€/9 ASHAWNd ILHOTUMIAVYD 0T9Z
Zv 01T T66¥8 8T/0€/9 IHDIT 1S SYANOISSIWWOD JS
99°698 T66¥8 8T/0€/9 SLHOIT 1S ALID VINIOAIA
19 10T 9LTIS8 8T/0€/9 Q¥ HNIQIS ILVDISYE 0S9¥
0D ¥EAMOd DIAIDVd VIIIIS Y6926
00°9€ 00°9¢€ SH1S8 81/0€/9 8T/0€/9 - 8T/%T/9
NATIV NYIdd ‘J4YOHS £6V26
00" %22 007211 5L058 81/0€/9 ATIN HIVANI
00211 §L0S8 81/0€/9 ATIN FLYWNI
ONI SYOLNHINISIA MUVIWIIHS (4324
sz eLe ST 6LT LOTS8 8T/0€/9 $9Z0TIINYAd INWA T8d
DTT ‘ONIJO0¥ LIODS 16%26
LS LOD'T TT°8LO0'T ¥10S8 8T/0€/9 TO0000# dNO¥D
Sv-ezt $10S8 8T/0€/9 SSHATIAAIM TT6
ONI SHDIAYES TVHOTO DdS 06%26
A A 58158 8T/0€/9
a7 NI SEDIANIS T¥HOID DES 68%26
00°000°ST 00°000°ST $01S8 81/90/L 130ddNS WY¥D0dd ATIILIYND
ONI ¥ALNIDIYY SA¥VIW INIVS 88%26
00°000°€ 00°000°€ 0€158 81/90/¢L JOSNOdS HEIA LHAULS TIVd
DNI SMOHSAQVOd LBYZ6
00" %79 00" ¥¥9 62058 81/90/L 1¥0ddN§ 1LSNodNY
ONI ‘SWILSAS DNILIOATA 98%26
00°01T 00°0TT 68678 8T/0€/9 ZAHONYS " €
D I¥DICIAW TYNOIDHN NMONIYH S8%26
00 €LE 00" €LE TOTS8 81/90/L INIVW AT0AL -N¥Fd SOLT
NI ONIAYOSANYT NAFYD ONIY Y8926
00°T0L 00°9LY ¥L0S8 8T/0€/9 1¥ED ONINIVMIL dYASH
00°ST 26678 81/0€/9 aIvsSH
00°0€ 26698 8T/0€/9 QIV¥SH AN¥NTY 1T
00°ST z66v8 8T/0€/9 QEVSH
00°St 26678 8T/0€/9 QavSH
00°ST 6698 81/0€/9 Aaav¥SH
00°0L ¥L0S8 8T/0€/9 ONINIVMLI QVASH
00°'01T 56058 81/0€/9 SL¥dID §1d
00°02 56058 81/0€/9 S1¥dD 514
00°S€E 56058 8T/0€/9 SI¥HED sS4
I1dEd NOILYDNAT YSWIA €8Y26
00°0S 00° 0§ ¥HTS8 8T/0€/9 AV¥L HOIMONVYS HJAVAV]
SHIANYD S.,a3¥ z28%26
00°€69°€ 00°€69°¢€ 69158 8T/0€/9 SC WY ¥d VYW HD
HIAN A¥YD ‘AW 18v26
26 €1 26" €T L¥0S8 8T/0€/9 YIINI¥A €NS dOOMADOT
(¥2) DNI 0D NYDAOW AVY 08Y26
00°000°T 00°000‘T 29058 8T/0€/9 INIVd 90714 JOI¥ILXHT VADS
ONIINIVd HAJIITOAVH 6L%C6
00°000‘9 00°000°€ T70S8 8T/90/L OIMN TYIDOS
00°000°2 Tv0S8 8T/90/L HOVAALNO ‘VYIAIW TYIDOS
00°00S Tv0S8 8T/90/L OIMW ‘SNOILVIHY €nd
00°00S %058 8T/90/L OIMW ‘SNOILVIZH dnd
ONI SHIDELVALS Avd 8LYTZE
0L 60S 00°SL 59058 8T/90/L DJOA WYV
S8°6LT $9058 8T1/90/L I4L ONIMOLINOW HAIA
TYLOL INIOWY H#SNVAL qIYA : # 0/d NOILAI¥DSIA HDIOANI MOANTA YIANON
ADIHD MDFHD
8T/90/L WHALSIOAA MDIHD 8T/S0/L0 ¢ @3eQ uny

.

abeg ALNAOD AHIOLS STETEd :ON 3xoday .




WALSAS ¥ALYM OD LS 10526

Lz €89°¢€E LZ°€89°€€E »IIS8  81/90/L 1¥0ddNS WVIDOHd ATdALEYND
(OA) ALNAD YOINAS 0D IS 00526
ZTL 600°6C 2L 600°6T €918  81/0€/9 QEAIEDEY XVI ALYAdO¥d
IDINLSIA TOOHIS 0D IS 66726
zL sze’1 ZET00% LY1S8  81/0€/9 MIND IISIA 404 NID WEHD
0v-se8 LY1S8  B81/0€/9 MIND LISIA ¥Od NID WD
S ® ANIM SYAZVID NAHHLNOS 86v26
00°59 00°8¢ sL6v8  81/0€/9 NYWIOH
00° LT sSTS8  81/0€/9 NSYHHADW O SA¥YD SSANISAE
VEQ D17 SETALSNANI ADITS LEYZE
00°000‘T 00°000°T 65158  8T1/90/L SYOMAUIA HSO LOT
ONI ¥SN ANVTNIATIS 96726
00°S0T 00°5S 9vTS8  81/0¢€/9 10d3a HD TOMINOD 1Sdd
00°0% 8L0S8  8T/0€/9 INOD 1Sdd
ONI TTO¥INOD LSHd VHHHIS S6%26
L6°LZV 0T 9L°89T 166v8  81/0€/9 ISHANTS LHOTUMIIYD 0192
057219 166%¥8  81/0£/9 (NIVINNOJ) Q3d Q¥ TI0L 00T
LY L6 166%8  81/0€/9 SLHOIT ¥IS HO J0 NMOL
05°5S 166%8  81/0€/9 ¥ 40 € /1S NOINA 09T
06°8€V 166¥8  81/0€/9 $,47d1d -9 N 2T
9€"TST 166¥8  81/0€/9 ADVLLOD -1S NOINA
127 €€ 166¥8  81/0€/9 MI¥Vd Q¥ HONVY I¥dd 0007
ze'ze 166%8  81/0€/9 MAVd HOA Q¥ AAIINE 1viC
85 VLT 166%¥8  81/0€/9 ¥ LINN AM NOANYD 0Z¥
¥9° €8T T66¥8  81/0€/9 g LINN AYM NOANYD 0Z%
66°SS 166v8  81/0€/9 1S O N G8T
TE SLY 166¥8  8T1/0€/9 qA N¥Ad SOLT
Y€ ZET 166¥8  81/0€/9 a¥ HONVY I¥Fd 008
6686 166%8  81/0€/9 SIH9IT LS O § T€§
81716 166¥8  8T/0E/9 SLHOIT IS O § Zbe
80°29 166%8  81/0€£/9 SIHOIT IS D N 9LT
80 ¥E0'T 166%8  81/0€/9 ISNOHIVNO0D 1S € S 92
88°19%'T 166%8  81/0€/9 NOANVD FTIN XIS 0ZZZ
LT S€E 166%8  81/0€/9 I104Ed HO L1INA LS NIVW
TL'19 166%¥8  81/0%/9 (ONINIVEL) IS D N T%I
7 SL ELZ 166%8  81/0%/9 SHANIA IS O N
| L8 EE 166%¥8 81/0€/9 MAYATIVE 1S NOSUYD
9L TET 166%¥8  81/0€/9 DA LINN IS D S
0Z°v€E 16678  BT/0£/9 LIHOIT I¥d/¥00QLA0 IS D S
¥8°LS 166%8  81/0€£/9 1S D ZLE/OA LINO IS D S
ze ze 166¥8  81/0¢£/9 ADOVAVO IS € § ¥01
01" 2¢ 166%8 81/0€/9 1S NOLINS
62" €€ 166%8  8T1/0€/9 M¥Yd DA IS 3 N S0¢2
%17 9€ 166%8  8T/0€/9 wAs Q¥ ANIAVE TYINYAS 00§
20" SET 166%8  81/0€/9 OWISYD IS D S 12
€969 166%8  81/0€/9 INTd dIM IS HLNOS MOOT
L8761 166%8  8T/0£/9 NIV  SNAWATO WVS 06%
¥ 628 166%¥8  8T/0£/9 TIVC T¥€ AMH SN T16
80°92T 166v8  81/0€/9 0S 1S D S S0Z
05°26 166%8  81/0€/9 0S 1S D S €02
11716 166¥v8  81/0€/9 va 1§ 0 § 10T
9L°692 166¥8  8T/0€/9 Z/T dOHS Q¥ TIOL 00T
0T 6ST 166%8  8T/0€/9 2a7dE Q¥ TIOL OTT
Ls 2y 166%8  81/0€/9 Da1d Qi TIOL 0€l
96°6% 166%8  81/0€/9 d0ISISEY IS D N T8¢
TYLOL LNOOWY #SNVIL qIN¥A # o/4 NOILAI¥DSIA FDIOANI HOANAA ATLANN
ADHHD ADAHD
8T/90/L WALSIDAA MOTHD 8T/S0/L0 : ®3eQ uny

8 abed XINQOD AFHOLS STET€d :ON 3aoday

¥




05°296°T L5058 81/0€/9 00Z 1TSA / SIS SFY -Md

£8°2€2'¢C L5058  8T/0€/9 S¥E 1Sa / 00S DI Md
SYULLE LS0S8  81/0%/9 SYT 7ISA HOA
, ve' €S2t L5068  8T/0E/9 0€€ TISA /00S DIT¥ Md
| v LET’T LS0S8  81/0€/9 L8 TISA / 6L9 DIY Md
ST°6L9°C LS0S8  8T/0€/9 0Z¥ 1Sa / €15 DFA -Md
DTT WAHTONLAd SYWOHL 11526
00°v86°Z 00°Z% 0STS8  81/0€/9
00°0€%'2C 0SIS8  8T/0E/9
00°21S 0S1S8  8T/0€/9 8T/0€/9 - 8TI/%1/9
SX0EMOD ANOLSEWOL HHIL 01526
0S5 L60‘'Y 0S5 L60°'Y £€5058  8T/0€/9 1¥N0D EDILSNP
ONI dnowWd ,HENd FTHL 60526
00°26€°T 007211 67158  8T/0E/9
00°082°T 6¥1S8  8T/0E/9 8T/0€/9 - 8T/%1/9
| AETHIHS ‘AN¥HL 80526
00°2L6'T 00°2L6°C 8L6%8  8T/0€/9 ¥STA-NIWAY dddS
dd0D MYT ANDVH NOLLAS L0SZ6
1z'e 1z°2 8%0S8  8T/0€/9 WOWMFHIL T00d
SLONAo¥d 100d ¥OIWHANS 90526
00°L¥9’E 00°LZT'E 8vIS8  8T1/0€/9
00°S0T 8%¥1S8  81/0¢/9
00°STE 8¥158  81/0¢€/9 81/0€/9 - 8T1/%1/9
SHSTHANHING XVAd NAS 50526
00° 00T 00°002 S66v8  81/0¢£/9
VYSSHNVA ‘SNIHAELS $0526
66°507'T £€8°19S €66%¥8  81/0€/9 8T/6T/L0 - 02/90 AZAD IHL
6V 229 €66¥8  B8T/0£/9 WHOD
677062 €668  81/0€/9 8T/61/L0-81/02/90 TL TdId
L8 LY £€66¥8  81/0€/9 NINAQY
09°L6 €668  81/0€/9 8T/61/L0 -81/02/90 TIVL
LS"zoZ €66¥8  8T/0£/9 61/L0-02/90 £/z ZI" 0S
¥ €8S ¥50S8  81/90/L Z/1 HAIIVYISININAY
‘SNOTIUDINAWWOD AYISTAVLS £0526
00°%00°2T 05°998°‘€ LSTIS8  8T/0E/9 ISNOD MEN ® SIITdS DIdL
0S"LET'S8 851S8  81/90/L ZO TYSIV¥ddVYEN HO/DA
MUV ‘' J¥044YLS z0526
08°L28'€E z6° 29 11088  81/0t%/9 WALSAS d4I¥d
z8°99 11058 81/0€/9
65°82T 11058 8T/0£/9 D S zLg
SL€0€ 11058 8T/0¢€/9
ZS LTI 11068 8T/0€/9
zZZ 1vb 11058  8T/0E/9
z6°29 11058 8T/0€/9
L9701 11058  8T/0€/9 1S NOINA
68°299 11058 81/0€/9
SE'B6E 11058 81/0€/9
£€8° %91 T10S8  8T/0€/9
£8°61¢€ 11088 8T/0€/9 98 01
9% L6T 11058 8T/0€/9
ZL 0L 11058 8T/0€/9
657821 11058 8T/0€/9
65°82T 11058  81/0€/9
TL 9%T 11058  81/0%/9
€8 791 11088  8T/0£/9 SAVE TLT
66 821 11058  8T/0€/9
TYLOL LINOOWY #SNWIL 2IVA # o/d NOILAI¥DSHEA HDIOANI AOANIA HAGWAN
MDIHD MOTHD
81/90/L W¥ALSIDAA NDTHD 81/S0/L0 : o3eq uny

6 abeq ALNNOD AHYOLS STETHEd :ON 310day .

3




LT S¥8°900'T IYLOL SMOIHD

00°000°'T 00°000°T TETS8 8T1/90/¢L SNODVAE
ONI ‘EAILVAND NOAT HOVZ 82526
00°00% 00°00% 18058 8T/0€/9 WAYIAIA AZTAIANOM
AWINYT ‘RATHIANOM LZST6
00°02L’'01T 00°002’'2 TL1S8 81/0€/9 TYINIY 4IN0T XOVEL
00°025°8 TLTS8 8T/0€/9 "INIYW ® SNOILDHIASNI AL
ﬁ TATIEYD ‘NVWYTIIM 92526
, 00°598 00°598 09058 8T/0€/9 WHLL ' SYVH
gY] TYINIWNOAIANT NIALSAM 52526
00°0%L 00°0%L 85058 8T/0€/9 STIYD 000E -DILAAS HO
ved AS JANVLI DILdHS SHUALVM [24:14
| 00" €9€ 00 €9¢€ $9158 8T/0€/9 ST6°9LT SUN ONILSIL ¥NA
YAYAEN ‘ALNNOD FTOHSYM €266
0T LOC 0T"L0T 08058 81/0€/9 ADOTODIXOL LI1AAAINL
HIANOUOD 0D HOHSYM [44:343
00°€99°0T 00°€99°0T L8158 8T/0€/9 TIYLSNI % DIT SOVWAA
d¥0D DIALOA 12526
00°9S6°T 00°80T 25158 8T/0€/9 8T/0€/9 - 8T/%1/9
00°8% zS1S8 81/0€/9
00°008°1T ZL1S8 81/0¢€/9 HDIA¥ES XATTIOUL
ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIDAIA 02526
00°0S9°0¢ 00°00% 15148 8T/0€/9
7 00°88 15158 8T/0€/9
00°16 TSTS8 8T/0€/9
00" 8%€ 15158 81/0€/9 8T/0€/9- 8T/%¥1/9
00°9LY ‘€ IG1S8 81/0¢€/9
00°LIO'Y TSTS8 8T/0€/9
00°0€2°21 vLISS 81/0€/9 T/L%0€E/9 SNIVEL NAD/WVIELS
| 00 ¥¥ FANDONAL ¥ VINIDAIA 61526
| 00°999°'8 00°999°‘8 6L678 8T/0€/9 IW¥OY aNnd Lp 1719 810
. IYOINOTORD SHLVIS AILINA 81526
00°00¢ 00°002 Z0TS8 8T/90/L z/1
(DA)  IDTAIOLSOd SN L1SC6
00°2L 00°2L LTTS8 8T/90/L TYMANIH
(DA)  HEDI440LS0d SN 91526
TLZTHT'T 06 TET'T 95068 81/90/L AT TYINAQ FAIILIL
I8°0T 95058 8T/90/L ¥ALYM TYINIQ FIIILAY
0D SNI H¥YDHLTIVEHAALINO S1526
6L 8T 6L°8T 6,058 81/0€/9 AESYNESTA LNIWHSINEYD
TYINLSNANT FONVNIL QdLINO [2a%:143
€6°T¥e £€6°1%Z 28098 8T/0€/9
D17 VAVAAN JO ALIWIOJINN £€1526
00" €06°2CT 00°€06°2T 98158 8T/0€/9
ONI ‘SHIDOTONHDAL YIATAL Z152Z6
BE 8E6°TT 0L"SO€E LS0S8 81/0¢/9 81T TSA~HOA
TYLIOL LNNOWY #SNVAL q1Yd # 0/4d NOILAINOSHA IDIOANI AOANIA ATENNN
ADIHD MDIHD
81/90/L ¥ILSIDIE MDHIHD 81/50/L0 @ @3eQ uny

<

0T 9dbeq AILNNOD AHJOLS §TE€TEd ‘ON 3x0day .




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 7, 2018 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2018-19
Secured Tax Roll for Exemptions

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten

Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961

certain criteria. Exemption applications and renewals are typically due to our office on or
before June 15" of each fiscal year, but circumstances beyond a taxpayer’s control may
cause a delay and, as a result, an exemption not being applied to the tax bill. In cases where
the Assessor’s Office feels that the taxpayer could not have reasonably filed their
exemption application or renewal by the deadline, or if there is an unforeseeable error
causing the exemption to not be applied correctly, the tax bill may be amended by the
Clerk-Treasurer at the direction of the Board and a new tax bill or a refund be mailed to the
affected taxpayer.

4. Staff summary: NRS 361 provides for property tax exemptions to individuals who meet

S. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted assessed values.

| 6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund; Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Revi by:
epartment Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

iy gy
[

Agenda Item No. (p L




STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South B Street
P.O. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 8470904 Fax
Assessor@storeyCounty.org
June 30, 2018

Memo to: Storey County Commissioners
Re: Corrections for Exemptions

The owners of the properties listed below should have had a personal exemption applied to their
property for the 2018-19 tax year. For various reasons, the taxpayer was either unaware of their
eligibility for the exemption, an unforeseen situation prevented them from timely filing, a
clerical error occurred, or the exemption renewals or percentage changes were not received and
processed by our office before the close of the 2018-19 re-opened secured roll. Therefore, we
were unable to apply or adjust the exemptions prior to the printing of their tax bill. The adjusted
net assessed values and the net assessed value overrides should be:

Current et Adlusted et bt Appegpeq -SEYaN Nt
:

APN Assessed Exemption Amount  Exemution NRS Assessed FYGAV Dygrrids, TmuCw% el Anmewmd Yalus.
3-393-10 174,831 2700" 361090 172,131 148,72 3.0% ' 150,004
3-547-10 48,843 27,000 361.091-A 0,843 27,163 3.0% 978
3-552-16 12,970 2700° 36100 10,270 10,732 30% 8,361
3-551-11 2,159 2,700 ° 361,090 25,459 18,445 3.0% 16,298
1-264-11 66,099 27,000 361.091-A 39,099 47,215 3.0% 2163
4.041-29 36,691 2700 361090 33,991 2,957 4.2% nan
1-034-06 50,709 2700 7 361.090 48,009 44,053 3.0% 2,675
1-091-01 20,389 1350 " 361080 19,539 18,260 3.0% 18,488
3-301-04 21,149 1,350 * 361,080 15,793 21,036 3.0% 19,799
3-182.01 50,439 27,000 361.091-A 23,439 63,374 3.0% 2619 0,954 **Adjust for %

*Qverride amount does not include Personal Property Bill attachment

Please approve these corrections, and advise the Treasurer to make the changes and send a new
tax bill or refund as necessary.

Storey County Assessor

Storey County Is an Equal Opportunity Provider




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 8-7-2018 Estimate of time required: 5-10 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title:
Review and possibly appoint Samuel K. Ward Real Estate Appraisers & Consultants to
appraise four properties located in the vicinity of the Virginia City Fairgrounds area.

2. Recommended motion:
To approve the appointment of Samuel K. Ward Real Estate Appraisers & Consultants to
appraise four properties located in the vicinity of the Virginia City Fairgrounds area.

3. Prepared by: Deny Dotson

Department: VCTC Telephone: 775-847-7500
4. Staff summary:
The appraisal is being prepared for use by the Virginia City Tourism Commission and
Storey County to determine the fair market value of each property in negotiating the sale of
each property to Storey County.

5. Supporting materials: attached

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: YES Fund: VCTC (Capital Expense) Comptroller
7. Legal review required: Yes
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X_ Department Head Department Name: VCTC
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
L] Approved ]
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ e

Agenda Item No. b ﬂ




— wnscm——
rr—— ast—

MARK ALAN CHARLTON STORAGE .17-ACRE SITE
LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF PAGE STREET
BETWEEN H & | STREETS
VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA
VIRGINIA CITY, NV

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location - The site is located on the south side of Page Street between H and I
streets in the southeast quadrant of Virginia City in an industrial area currently used as the
Virginia City Fairgrounds and Events Center because of its level terrain.

Legal Description - A complete legal description was not available to the appraiser. The site
may briefly be described as Lots 1 Block 210, Range H, Virginia City, Nevada. The parcel is
also listed by the Storey County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-172-04.

Owner of Record - Mark Alan Charlton

Ownership History - The property has been under the same ownership for over 10 years and
to the knowledge of the appraiser it has never been offered for sale since it was last

purchased.

SITE MAP

4.
o i;$|ua ‘:
Pt 8
R - DI . N
STREET
o g e e e
TTNEY
. .
s @By98: . 1 §
L B §
e
Sochialr S T SN
STREET ¥
e e o R P T ap—
) X ! S AN A S -
, ; e ; \ v .
R a ¢ .
SEIY (075", B I . % la /09 18
v s ¥ ¥ " 14
v TV [ T ,
N N 1 K ’ ¢ - i
: el see K64 o
bt A - AW ,.,c.:.&;.,m,y,f.:.vmgﬂw) wraed
¥ . A
sTREET 4 1
o .

L T @ |8 1 &
SN ( H N 142
vanid) 1 1 t 3 B P
sigesla® 4 T 6 | § 2 [ 721 g
155 Tzl )
i v i) 1% y

*

77 N g 88 »

b IR e L L A Dbl A b ARL A e N A T )

"!' PREPA . b w P R N L R A A A I T L R L T T LA T X P ¥e e - L)
A R R O L L T e Dy Y e S S ) L S R A A TP A M oS e S PP - & /
S L T e e st M ey L B £
"1'0;»”»",“., [T P AT S TP IO E AP I Y s A s > '
45 SIS PPN 1 A T A P T e ST RYNY) o 4
okt #7s [
704%: H 4 k
MG 7
v . ) } 4
3 BEEE FIE il W,

N 4 % . soxrs I
| #2407] .
a0 . . . . . 17734 'Y
b } y . 1 ”:;,H .‘ﬁ”‘ H h,
,"‘;';’ 4 S arranra it THVTY 4 L (4 Ll Chdal Cdl 4 - *
¥ A A e ; ¥
EEI Ly PRI ESEERILERIIRFOREI 120 2P2LPLIFad e N N
I A, R 44 %
B £ $57e0007 AT R B R R .
Pt Y HCHAR RN = < IR Y A el
- - ) o W u
- N LI < | & 2 11 2 N P V7. £7




P —— e o —————— —
——

—

VIRGINIA CITY HOLDINGS 4.54-ACRE SITE
LOCATED BETWEEN H & K STREETS & SILVER STREET
VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA
VIRGINIA CITY, NV
PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location - The subject property consists of four non-contiguous parcels
located on both sides of I Street between Page Street and Flowery Street in the southeast
quadrant of Virginia City in an industrial area currently used as the Virginia City
Fairgrounds and Events Center because of its level terrain. The undeveloped streets in the
old plat of Virginia City separate the sites but these right of ways probably would be
abandoned if the sites were developed as one parcel.

Legal Description - A complete legal description was not available to the appraiser. The sites
may briefly be described as Lots 6-16 and the south half of Lot 5 Block 180; Lots 3 - 17
Block 182; Lots 1 - 6 Block 200, and Lots 1 - 6 Block 200, Range H, Virginia City,
Nevada. The parcels are also listed by the Storey County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel
Numbers (APNs) 001-135-06; 001-136- 01; 001-173-01 and 001-176-01

Owner of Record - Virginia City Holdings, LLC

Ownership History - The property has been under the same ownership for over 10 years and
to the knowledge of the appraiser it has never been offered for sale since it was last
purchased.

SITE MAP

o o A - a 1 1 A [ § L USRS JEND Iy PSS (e R Smem— o
E $ statet

5TRS

STREET

T W AT
@m W

Ny

I e é.._.w!. . & e

STHEET

#a ;wuuv £ SARTEY
25s

Seeesve ung ':E:"?F
i

.
)




VIRGINIA CITY HOLDINGS .34-ACRE SITE
LOCATED BETWEEN H & | STREETS
AND POTOSI AND PAGE STREETS
VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA
VIRGINIA CITY, NV

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location - The subject site is a rectangular parcel located on the north side of
Potosi Street between H Street and I Street in the southeast quadrant of Virginia City in an

industrial area currently used as the Virginia City Fairgrounds and Events Center because of
its level terrain.

Legal Description - A complete legal description was not available to the appraiser. The site
may briefly be described as Lots 6, 7 and 8 Block 210, Range H, Virginia City, Nevada. The

parcel is also listed by the Storey County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-
172-01.

Owner of Record - Virginia City Ventures, Inc.

Ownership History - The property has been under the same ownership for over 10 years and
to the knowledge of the appraiser it has never been offered for sale since it was last

purchased.
SITE MAP
¥ W ""'“’: t:ﬂ"
@ Je *y
2Dz S
: sa !
by 7 .{;;,,,;
W e
(F) 4 o) £y
| (7% B
T e

TR
REIREREPELREASIRENS T &

it
Vel tead SRerdyia

o

ras,
o2
ool

3
<
.

3%
N

I

ASmdnanay

N}
Ao yuy
NN

A W)

&3
A

A
i
S
BN
®
b+,

-

u

PR
N

S3ine

AW L
..
ol
AMNEy >

ST
. -'.‘.g.‘
e
Y
3,

~
RO 1T
Seane Yo

Y
e

GaTassLen
EEIAISES
2705408,




s — sere— per—————

— — A ——— e ——

RICHARD CORRELL .46-ACRE STORAGE WAREHOUSE PROPERTY
LOCATED BETWEEN H & | STREETS

AND

BETWEEN POTOSI AND PAGE STREETS

VIRGINIA CITY FAIRGROUNDS AREA

VIRGINIA CITY, NV
PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location - The subject property is located between H and I streets in the
southeast quadrant of Virginia City in an industrial area currently used as the Virginia City
Fairgrounds and Events Center because of its level terrain.

Legal Description - A complete legal description was not available to the appraiser. The site
may briefly be described as Lots 2, 3, 4 and 5 Block 210, Range H, Virginia City, Nevada.
The parcel is also listed by the Storey County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)

001-172-03.

Owner of Record - Richard S. Correll

Ownership History - The property has been under the same ownership for over 10 years and
to the knowledge of the appraiser it has never been offered for sale since it was last

purchased.

SITE MAP

M i
Q.’”‘/’

| i\a

£
srrt
21

¥ 53
55353555, drrsseite Lpreefiin,
edsrers o
AR e
uuu‘ ooy
S aseress e

vrse,

ot
i iﬁﬁf
:
il

N

NTAS
>

ARSAALY.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 8-7-18. Estimate of time required: 0 - §

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) | move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: Community Deveiopment Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

S. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: _ Comptroller

7. Legal review reguired:

District Attomey

Department Name:

Other agency review;

9. Board action:
(1 Approved (1 Approved with Modifications
(1 Denied (1 Continued

Agenda Item No. m




Storey County @ummuuitp Development
Buginess @B Licensing

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV. 89440 « (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 -mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office July 26,2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the August 7, 2018, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD

FIRST READINGS:

INTEGRATED MANUFACTORING & SUPPYLY - Contractor / 620 Orvis Ave ~ San J ose, CA
AKAZAWA MACHINE CO.,LTD - General / 2-10-6 Tohgo Dohri ~ Osaka, JP
EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES, LLC — General / 210 Sixth Ave ~ Pittsburgh, PA
PETERSEN DEAN INC - Contractor / 39300 Civic Center Dr ~ Freemont, CA
DANIEL W. PHETTEPLACE, DBA: THE ELECTRCIAN - Contractor / 1275 Kleppe ~ Sparks, NV
GAEA GLOBAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC - General / 317 Whitcliff Ct ~ San Ramon, CA "
ASPEN DEVELOPERS CORP —Contractor / 2340 E. 5% St ~ Reno, NV
CUMMINS INC — General / 390 Intercresent St ~ Broomfield, Co
AEGIS ENGINEERING AND MNGMNT GROUP — General / 18601 LBJ Fwy ~ Mesquite, TX
NORMAN S. WRIGHT MECH,EQUIP - Contractor / 99A South Hill Dr ~ Brisbane, CA
BERIAH VETTER, DBA: VETTER WERKS — Home / 131 Elizabeth Ln ~ Dayton, NV
FUKAMI MANUFACTURING CO - General / 1121-1 Yamada ~ Gifu, JP
. FARR WEST ENGINEERING - General / 5510 Longley Lane ~ Reno, NV
ZION BUILDERS INC - Contractor / 1170 Marietta Way ~ Sparks, NV
JOLT ELECTRIC LLC - Contractor / 152 Pebble Dr ~ Dayton, NV
USA SCALES, INC - General / 5401 Byron Hot Springs Rd ~ Byron, CA
SUPERIOR TANK CO — Contractor / 9500 Lucas Ranch Rd ~ Bakersfield, CA
STEVEN GREEN - Home / 5438 Comstock Rd ~ Placerville, CA
MAYA’S SOUTH INDIAN CUISINE - General / 9655 Frankwood Dr ~ Reno, NV
AMIAD USA, INC - General / 120 Talbot Road ~ Mooresville, NC
AI SYSTEMS CO,.LTD — General / 11-18 Motomachi ~ Osaka, JP
. WTR ELECTRIC INC - Contractor / 6005 Hockberry ~ Reno, NV

W. COMINIX U.S.A. INC - General / 990 Hammond Dr ~ Atlanta, GA

X. HOLDIAY ENTERPRISES - Home / 2331 Empire Rd ~ Reno, NV

Y. WELSCO DRILLING CORP - Contractor / 2510 Beasley Dr ~ Fallon, NV

Z. POGGEMEYER DESIGN GROUP INC - General / 6960 Smoke Ranch Rd ~ Las Vegas, NV

SERPROUNQOZENASTRQTEBERARY

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 7, 2018 Estimate of time required: 45 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and possible approval of a presentation and overview of the proposed
economic development financing proposal for a special assessment district and tax increment area
for the effluent pipeline for certain properties in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

2. Recommended motion: I, Commissioner (name), move to approve the presentation and
overview of the proposed economic development financing proposal for a special assessment
district and tax increment area for the effluent pipeline for certain properties in the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center.
3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten

Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: Please see Page 2

5. Supporting materials:  PowerPoint Overview Presentation
Economic Development Financing Proposal — 2018

6. Fiscal impact: Yes

Funds Available: Future Incremental State and County Revenue  Fund: Various
Comptroller

7. Legal review required: Yes

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
’Qwartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

%ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ T—

Agenda Item No.q




4. Staff Summary:

During the past year, much work has been done on the Northern Nevada Regional Economic
Development Project often referred to as the “Pipeline” Project or the “Effluent Importation™
Project or similarly associated names. While much has changed, mostly related to financing
structure, during the interlude, the primary objectives remain focused on the potential massive
fiscal benefits to citizens and corporate entities residing within the jurisdictions of the Cities of
Reno & Sparks; Storey & Washoe Counties as well as their associated residents and corporate
citizens served by the Truckee Meadows Waste-Water Reclamation Authority and the Tahoe-Reno
General Improvement District and also rippling far beyond on a regional and statewide basis. At
the Commission meeting to be held on August 7, 2018, there will be 3 items related to this project,
to be considered after public input as to how Storey County chooses to participate. Those include
establishing a Special Assessment District (SAD) used to generate bond payments for the “off-
site” portion of the project using previously established guidelines. The SAD would eventually be
partnered with a more narrowly defined Tax Increment Area (TIA) used to reimburse, in part or in
whole, those companies paying the Special Assessments. Beginning with our August 7" meeting,
there are a number of steps Storey County needs to perform if this project is to move forward.
Specifically those are:

e Review and consider our desire to participate in this regionally cooperative project

e Consider and possibly approve two separate and non-binding resolutions to forward this
project to the next requisite steps of obtaining potential approvals from the Nevada
Governor’s Office of Economic Development (GOED) as well as the Nevada Legislative
Interim Finance Committee (IFC).

Both recommended outcomes are non-binding as to the specific steps and more importantly, the
potential fiscal obligations, both positive and negative, to Storey County. More simply stated, staff
recommends the potential actions to be considered today as procedural steps with deeper
consideration to occur subsequent to possible approval by GOED and IFC. If approved, staff
believes the outcome will be limited to simply forwarding our application of “interest in
participating” to both GOED and IFC. Should the Commission concur, staff will prepare to
present and testify to both GOED and IFC in order to further our potential interest, as determined
by the Board. Of particular note, any potential involvement by Storey County would be limited to
participating in financing improvements outside any privately owned property. More simply
stated, we might consider this as building a “road” (aka pipe) to a project, but we would not
participate in building nor funding any portion of the project other than the pipeline itself. This
will be presented as both “off-site”, where we might participate, and “on-site” components, which
we would not participate in. Presentations will be coordinated thru Storey County’s Financial
Advisor, Marty Johnson, with JNA Consultants, who is contracted by us but reimbursed by the
project proponents under a previously executed agreement. Additionally, our bond counsel,
Kendra Follet with Sherman Howard, as approved by our District Attorney’s Office and also with
expenses reimbursed by the project proponents will be present to testify as needed. Additionally,
staff from Applied Analysis, who has prepared the requisite applications to GOED will be in
attendance to present and answer questions, as well as a limited number of participants
representing the marquee companies that might potentially participate and commit to making this
project a reality. Although all most likely will not be available to testify due to scheduling
conflicts, those include Tesla, Google, Blockchains, Switch, Reno Land and Emerald Lakes. Staff
recommends approval of the 3 fiscally non-binding steps necessary to further this process.




TRIC
Effluent Pipeline

Presentation
August 2018

E 9
¢ Prepared by
.#8 INA Consulting Group, LLC




L ,/ Storey County, Nevada TRIC Pipeline Presentation

Proposed Project

» Developer proposes to fund the off-
site effluent pipeline with bonds
issued by Storey County paid from
assessments on their parcels (Special
Assessment District or SAD)

» Onsite distribution and treatment
facilities will be privately financed
by the developer

» The County would also form a Tax
Increment Area (TIA) to reimburse
parcel owners for the assessment
payments they make.

i
i@ JNA Consulting Group, LLC 1




‘: xg!'

~

Conbd

Rl

Storey County, Nevada TRIC Pipeline Presentation

Assessment Districts

> Allowed under NRS 271

> Assessments are liens on property
co-equal to property taxes

» Nonpayment of assessment would
lead to foreclosure proceedings

» Assessments are billed and collected
semiannually

» Interest rate on assessments is 1%

higher than the highest rate on the
bonds

> Assessments can be levied for a term
of up to 30 years

> Value of property with project
complete must be at least 3.5x’s the
assessment

|
L JNA Consulting Group, LLC




g ‘ ) Storey County, Nevada TRIC Pipeline Presentation

Proposed Bonds

» Bonds would be issued by Storey
County and purchased by the State
of Nevada

> State’s interest rate is passed through
to the County’s bonds

» The bonds are paid from:
» Assessment payments
» Other resources within SAD
» Reserve Fund

» Uncommitted portion of County
General Fund (6/30/19 estimate -
$2,800,000)

» Maximum term is 30 years
(guidelines state 20 years but
developer has requested 25 years)

ﬁ;ﬁ JNA Consulting Group, LLC 3




8 Storey County, Nevada TRIC Pipeline Presentation

SAD
Flowchart

: Assessment Payment £
: Other SAD Resources #
: Reserve Fund :
General Fun

Debt Service Payment

i,ﬂ JNA Consulting Group, LLC 4




s i P Storey County, Nevada TRIC Pipeline Presentation

Foreclosure
Delinquency and Foreclosure Procedures

» Semi-Annual Assessment Bill Mailed approximately 60 days
(e.g. due 6/1) prior to due date

» First Delinquent Bill (mailed Mailed approximately 4 days after
6/5) semi-annual due date

» County Commissioners (within  Adoption for Foreclosure

60 days) Resolution

» Second Delinquent Bill Mailed certified including First
(mailed 7/1) Demand Letter

» Third Delinquent Bill (mailed  Mailed certified including Second
8/1) Demand Letter

> Lot Books (performed 8/1) Lot book (title search) is done on

each delinquent parcel in order to
identify all lien holders to notice

i > Notice of Sale (mailed 1t week Mailed certified to all recorded

\ of September) parties with an interest, 3 weekly
\
|

publications prior to sale in local
paper
» Foreclosure Sale: September Buyer pays off assessment in full

and receives certificate. Buyer
can take title to property if the
certificate is not redeemed within
the statutory time limit.

@,{4 JNA Consulting Group, LLC 5




Storey County, Nevada TRIC Pipeline Presentation

Sample Cash Flow

Incoming Assessment Payments Outogoing Bond Payments
Net
Year Principal  Interest Total Principal Interest Total Cash Flow

1 951,460 2,100,000 3,051,460 1,060,000 1,750,000 2,810,000 241,460
2 1,008,547 2,042,912 3,051,459 1,110,000 1,697,000 2,807,000 244,459
3 1,069,060 1,982,400 3,051,460 1,165,000 1,641,500 2,806,500 244,960
4 1,133,204 1,918,256 3,051,460 1,225,000 1,583,250 2,808,250 243,210
5 1,201,196 1,850,264 3,051,460 1,285,000 1,522,000 2,807,000 244,460
6 1,273,267 1,778,192 3,051,459 1,350,000 1,457,750 2,807,750 243,709
7 1,349,663 1,701,796 3,051,459 1,420,000 1,390,250 2,810,250 241,209
8 1,430,643 1,620,816 3,051,459 1,490,000 1,319,250 2,809,250 242,209
9 1,516,482 1,534,978 3,051,460 1,565,000 1,244,750 2,809,750 241,710
10 1,607,471 1,443,989 3,051,460 1,645,000 1,166,500 2,811,500 239,960
11 1,703,919 1,347,540 3,051,459 1,725,000 1,084,250 2,809,250 242,209
12 1,806,154 1,245,305 3,051,459 1,810,000 998,000 2,808,000 243,459
13 1,914,523 1,136,936 3,051,459 1,900,000 907,500 2,807,500 243,959
14 2,029,395 1,022,065 3,051,460 1,995,000 812,500 2,807,500 243,960
15 2,151,159 900,301 3,051,460 2,095,000 712,750 2,807,750 243,710
16 2,280,228 771,231 3,051,459 2,200,000 608,000 2,808,000 243,459
17 2,417,042 634,418 3,051,460 2,310,000 498,000 2,808,000 243,460
18 2,562,064 489,395 3,051,459 2,425,000 382,500 2,807,500 243,959
19 2,715,788 335,671 3,051,459 2,550,000 261,250 2,811,250 240,209
20 2,878,735 172,724 3,051,459 2,675,000 133,750 2,808,750 242,709

35,000,000 26,029,189 61,029,189 35,000,000 21,170,750 56,170,750 4,858,439

» Assumes bond interest rate of 5% and 6% for assessments

» Net Cash Flow can be used for administrative expenses
and/or maintained as additional resources for bond
repayment

» Excludes interest earnings on various funds

J*{@ JNA Consulting Group, LLC 6




L , B Storey County, Nevada TRIC Pipeline Presentation

Tax Increment Area

» The TIA would be formed solely to
reimburse parcel owners for their
assessment payments

» Current revenue distribution stays in
place — only future, incremental
revenues are diverted

» Revenues included are:

» Property taxes
» Modified Business Taxes
> Sales Tax

&Q JNA Consulting Group, LLC 7




’ - Storey County, Nevada TRIC Pipeline Presentation

Future Commission Action

If the project is approved to proceed
the following items would be on future
agendas for consideration:

» 8/21 — TIA Resolution for the
provisional order

» 9/4 — SAD Creation Ordinance,
Financing Agreement and Interlocal
Agreement

» 9/18 — SAD Creation Ordinance

> 10/2 — TIA Creation Ordinance and
SAD Bond Ordinance

> 10/16 - TIA Creation Ordinance and
SAD Bond Ordinance

i
1@ JNA Consulting Group, LLC 8




ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
FINANCING PROPOSAL

Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline

Preliminary Draft | For Discussion Purposes Only




Special Note: This Economic Development Financing Proposal has been
prepared in a manner consistent with preliminary guidance provided by Governor's
Office of Economic Development ("GOED"). Storey County, TRI General
Improvement District, its partners and contractors would like to express thanks to
GOED and other state and local government representatives, without whom, this
proposal could not be have been completed.

Application requirements and project financing estimates have been completed to
the best of our knowledge and ability as of the date of this submittal. This having
been said, we are mindful that this proposal is part of a process, and we reserve
the right to amend or modify this proposal should GOED determine that such
revisions are necessary and appropriate to ensure that the state and all interested
parties have the information necessary to consider, and potentially approve, this
proposal.

This document includes forward-looking statements. While the underlying
analyses rely on best available information at the time of submittal, the future
remains uncertain and can be influenced by any number of local, regional, national
and international factors. These limitations and others cited throughout this
application should be carefully considered by all reviewers.



Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STOKEY COUNI Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline FERE

Contents

Section 1: Executive Summary.......cccevesseinannens esemssmssamsssssssnmsannunsuns P 1
1.01: GOED Infrastructure Project & ProCess OVEIVIEW ...............ciueeemiiireenmieenmisieineisesi e eessis s snesns 1
1.02: LEQAIAULNOTIY ........ovvrieeie ittt sttt 4
103 EDFP APDHCANE ..ottt s b et ekt b s bbbt b b bbb b 4
1.04: Infrastructure General PAramELErS.........c.c...ceeriiiieriierii ittt et 6
Section 2: The Qualified Project......... O — cerarmramemennernennen S . 7
2.01: GOED Board Determination of Qualified ProJeCt ... 7
2.02: Tesla as Lead PartiCipant...............cocciiiiieeriiiin ettt e 7
2.03: ProJECt DESCTIPHON .......ocvvviiivieis ettt csere et b bbbt bbbt ek e 9
Section 3: Proposed Infrastructure Project............. S S PO i |
3.01: Market RESEAICH & PIAN .......cccc..ovivieieececree ettt e 1
3.02: TraffIC ANGIYSIS............cieis ittt s s s bR 1
3.03; Infrastructure Project INfOMELIoN ...........ccieririi e 1"
3.04: Infrastructure Project Maps, Plans, and SChEAUIES ...........ccoevercimieiieee s 14
3.05; Updated Infrastructure FacHity BUGGELS ..........ccocurviceircnininrr e 16
3.06: Updated Infrastructure Facilities Development and Construction Maps, Plans, and Schedules...............ccc....... 16
3.07: ProOJECL REAGINESS ........co.cvvviietritec ettt sae v e ses bbb s b bbb 17
3.08: Master Infrastructure Plans and Cost ESMAES ..........cocoeivirieieiiinrciri e 17
Section 4: Proposed Infrastructure Project Financing ......c.ccccesumecnensnennnnnnenns 19
4.01: Overview of Project FINANCING ..........c.iieivririeisicercnei s ecsess s s e 19
4.02: Special Assessment DistriCt (NRS 271)......c.eveiieiiniiciei s 21
4.03: Tax Increment Area (“TIA") (NRS 278C)......ccuuimmrn s st s sss st sssssees 24
4.04: BONA ISSUANCE .........oooiviiiiiiit ettt ettt s eb bbb bbb b e er bbb er st b s 25
4.,05: Bond Repayment MEthOTS. ...ttt 26
Section 5: Infrastructure Project Financial Analysis.......cccccnveiinnnersenncnarinnaasnan 29
5.01: DevelOPMENt BUAGEL.......covvvv ittt sttt e b e st 29
Section 6: Economic Development Financing Agreement ...........cocsciirenennannss 32
B.01; CONrACtING OVEIVIEW.......... vttt iseeeies ettt sttt bbb ss bbb s 32
6.02: FINANCING AGIEEIMEBNE.........cuiuriirieiieiiersinrs ettt ettt b s bbb 33
B.03: InfrastruCture AGrEBMENE ............iviiiee e 33
6.04: Reimbursement AGIEEMENT ..o e 33
6.05: Qualified Project SECUrity AGrEBMENE ..........ocoiv o ittt es s 33
B.06; Development AGrEEMENT ...ttt bbb s 33
B.07: StAE REIBASE .......ocvvii e e h bbbt e bbb 33
6.08: Management and Operations AGrEEMENL ..........ccccreiireeiiernnie et bbb 33
B8.09: INtErlOCAl AGIEEMENLS ........vivivieiveicict et srs bbbt bbbk bbb bbb 33
6.10: Development and Construction INSUrANCE PIaN ..o e s nenre s e, 33
6.11: Prevailing Wage Applicability OpinioN ..ottt 33
EXhibits ..cccccatennnnanmencaness . PSPPI 7.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only.




Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline

Section 1: Executive Summary

1.01: GOED Infrastructure Project & Process Overview
1.01(a): Project Overview

The Tahoe Reno Industrial Center (“TRIC” or “TRI Center") is a significant business park located within Storey County

in the northern portion of the state of Nevada. The park itself has approximately 12,700 acres of development property
| within its industrial complex. TRIC is conveniently located approximately nine miles east of the Reno-Sparks area along
Interstate-80. TR! Center is accessible by both highway and rail, and the Reno-Tahoe International Airport is a relatively
|

Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 57 U REY COUNTY

modest drive from the center. The project has been seeded with major investments by a number of firms ranging from
some of the most technologically advanced companies in the world to large-scale manufacturing, distribution and online
retailers.

TRIC is home to Tesla, Inc.'s Gigafactory 1," which broke ground in June 2014, and Tesla manufactures vehicle

products and energy storage products at this facility. TRI Center is aiso home to Switch, a globally recognized leader
| in future-proof data center design, superscale cloud, unparalleled telecom gateways and energy sustainability. The
| Switch campus, also known as The Citadel Campus, is designed for up to 7.2 million square feet of data center space
| and up to 650 megawatts of power. The 2,000-acre campus is located near the Tesla Gigafactory and is powered by
1 100-percent renewable energy. In addition to the investments that have already been made, other participants of the
project have acquired land and are exploring future development opportunities. Google, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Alphabet, Inc., is a world leader in technology. Google has acquired significant land at TRIC and is studying
opportunities to develop its property in the future. Blockchains, LLC, a technology company that recently became the
largest landowner at TRIC, intends on developing significant operating facilities within the park to showcase the vast
capabilities of blockchain technology. Reno Land is a development company focused primarily on commercial
| development activity at TRI Center. Finally, Emerald City Empire, LLC is a development company with potential plans

for a retail and business park located within TRI Center.

In addition to major anchor tenants noted above, existing and future tenants within TRIC require a stable, predictable
and sustainable operating environment. A key element of the required infrastructure includes non-potable water for
operations. Large amounts of non-potable water for industrial uses (“Process Water”) are needed at TRIC.

To meet the needs of users within TRI Center, the developers have implemented a multi-faceted approach to address
overall water demand within the project. Notably, TRIC is located £13 miles downriver from the Truckee Meadows
Water Reclamation Facility (“TMWRF"), which is owned by the City of Reno and the City of Sparks (‘the Cities”) and
provides centralized wastewater treatment for residents of Truckee Meadows. To meet National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System standards, TMWRF must achieve a complex balance between treatment plant processes, effluent
reuse, water rights requirements, Truckee River water quality standards and numerous other interrelated, regional
water management objectives.

Given the strategic positioning of TRI Center relative to the TMWRF and the needs of TRIC's tenants, the objective of
this financing proposal is to develop a +13-mile effluent water pipeline from TMWREF to TRIC, as well as a number of
storage, advanced treatment and transmission components at TRIC. The entire project will be known as the “Effluent
Project’; the pipeline from TMWRF to TRIC as the “off-site Effluent Project” and the on-site improvements as the “on-
site Effluent Project’. Only the off-site Effluent Project will be considered for financing as part of an Economic
Development Financing Proposal (“EDFP”).2

1 Tesla, Inc. is referred to in this document as “Tesla".
2 Note, Tesla is identified as the “Qualified Project” pursuant to NRS 360.940 for purposes of this EDFP.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 1




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STOuKeY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline ' AR

Increased availability of Process Water at TRI Center from the Effluent Project is expected to resolve short and long-
term load and capacity issues for TMWRF, improve water quality in the Truckee River and facilitate continued major
future economic development benefitting all of northern Nevada, including the neighboring cities.

It is also worth noting that the TRI General Improvement District (‘TRIGID") is a general improvement district and
political subdivision of the State of Nevada created by Storey County pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes “NRS’
Chapter 318 to provide water and sewer service to TRI Center customers. It currently provides service to 91 industrial
and commercial properties and 276 service connections. Like similar government entities providing community
services, TRIGID does not make a profit, but it does currently cover its expenses with revenues generated from TRIGID
customer usage fees. TRIGID does not, and will not as a result of the Effluent Project, discharge treated effluent water
in the Truckee River, significantly enhancing TMWRF's ability to meet total maximum daily loading discharge standards.
TRI Center expects that the demand for Process Water will increase substantially as Tesla, Switch, Google,
Blockchains and other TRIGID customers complete construction and operate their respective facilities.

TRIGID currently holds water rights for use as Process Water (Truckee River water rights, groundwater rights and
effluent from the TRIGID wastewater treatment plant). These sources are sufficient to supply Process Water until the
Effluent Project is completed and operational. The addition of TMWRF effluent water to the TRIGID Process Water
system will enable future economic development opportunities for northern Nevada by companies requiring Process
Water.

TRIGID is expected to operate and maintain, at its expense, the Effluent Project. Neither the Cities nor Storey County
shall bear any responsibility for any costs to operate or maintain TRIGID facilities. Compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations governing the use of treated effluent and all required reporting of such usage shall be the sole
responsibility of TRIGID.

The plan of finance for the off-site improvements involves the issuance of debt, as permitted by Senate Bill 1 (*SB1”)
of the 2015 Special Session of the Nevada Legislature (NRS 360.981 to NRS 360.992). The request is straightforward.
Selected landowners agree to self-assess the cost of the off-site Effluent Project by way of a special assessment district
(“SAD") to support approximately $35 million in bonds for the development of the off-site Effluent Project. The SAD
bonds will be sourced to infrastructure bonding capacity allocated to the Governor's Office of Economic Development
(“GOED") for economic development purposes. The $35 million off-site Effluent Project bond financing is also expected
to comply with Storey County's SAD guidelines (as approved at the February 6, 2018 County Commission meeting).
In addition to the financing of the off-site Effluent Project, Storey County will create a tax increment area pursuant to
Senate Bill 442 (“SB442") of the 2017 Session of the Nevada Legislature that will allow for a cumulative reimbursement
up to an amount equivalent to the debt service, including principal and interest, of the off-site Effluent Project SAD
financing.

In addition to the off-site Effluent Project, the SAD participants intend to privately finance (either directly or through a
third-party) the on-site Effluent Project. The on-site Effluent Project is expected to be segmented into two individual
phases. The first phase focuses on common infrastructure shared among the SAD participants, and it will include water
transmission and storage infrastructure, including wells and a reservoir. This first phase of the on-site Effluent Project
is estimated to cost approximately $30 million. In addition to this phase of the project, selected water users require
more advanced water treatment to generate water suitable for use in their operations. This second phase of the on-
site Effluent Project is estimated to cost between $35 million and $85 million, depending on the number of participants,
the technology employed and the costs associated with a potential third-party operator of these facilities. The combined
cost of the total Effluent Project is expected to range from $100 million to $150 million.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 2




Economic Development Financing Proposal
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline

@ srorev couniy

The following provides a summary of the total capital requirements for the Effluent Project.

Phase Description Estimated Cost _Source of Financing
Off-site Effiuent Project  +£13-mile pipeline to TRIC +$35 Million  SAD bonds through GOED's
infrastructure bonding capacity
On-site Effluent Common infrastructure shared +$30 Million  Private financing sourced to SAD
Project: Phase 1 among SAD participants (water participants or third-party
transmission and storage (responsibility of SAD participants)
infrastructure, including wells and
reservoir)
On-site Effluent Advanced water treatment facilities +$35 Million to  Private financing sourced to selected
Project: Phase 2 to the meet the specifications of +$85 Million  SAD participants or third-party
selected SAD participants (responsibility of selected SAD
participants)

Total Effluent Project

+$100 Million to
+$150 Million

1.01(b): EDFP Process

The EDFP Process is outlined in sections 19-29 of SB1 of the 2015 Special Session of the Nevada Legislature and
amended by SB442 of the 2017 Regular Session of the Nevada Legislature.

1.01(c): EDFP date received

GOED received an initial EDFP on June 30, 2017 (“Initial EDFP"). Since then, selected project and financing elements
have been modified and this EDFP reflects the most recent project structure. Assuming the process moves forward as
planned, Storey County is expected to consider (and possibly approve) the EDFP on August 6, 2018 and direct staff
to submit to GOED in advance of a possible August 14, 2018 special meeting of the GOED board of directors for review
(and possible approval). Note, a draft of the EDFP document (subject to Storey County's review and feedback) is

expected to be provided in advance for review by GOED staff.

1.01(d): EDFP date completed

This EDFP will be deemed complete if, and when, approved by the Governor's Office of Economic Development.

1.01(e): State Treasurer's determination of debt capacity

To be determined by GOED and State Treasurer.

1.01(f): Review period start date

The review period of the Initial EDFP began in mid-2017. Additional review is expected to begin upon receipt of the

revised EDFP draft.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only.

Page 3




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STOUKEY COUNT Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline SRR

1.01(q): Review period expiration date

Intentionally left blank.

1.02: Legal Authority
1.02(a): GOED Authority

The Governor's Office of Economic Development is granted authority to approve an EDFP pursuant to SB1 of the 2015
Special Session of the Nevada Legislature.® The State Board of Finance is granted authority issue bonds for certain
infrastructure projects.

1.02(b): Constitutional Authority

Article 9, Section 3 of the Constitution of the State of Nevada permits the state to contract public debts, given those
debts are authorized by law for some purpose to be distinctly specified.

1.02(c): Applicable Nevada Revised Statutes
NRS 271, NRS 278C (as amended by SB442), NRS 349, NRS 350, NRS 360.

1.03: EDFP Applicant
1.03(a): EDFP Applicant

1.03(a)(i). Project Team
The infrastructure project team consists of Storey County, TRIGID, Farr West Engineering, Tesla, Switch, Google,
Blockchains, Reno Land, and Emerald City Empire, LLC.

Storey County

Created in 1861, Storey County is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada. Located in the northwest
portion of the state, Storey County is home to the TRI Center.

TRIGID

TRIGID has owned and operated the community water and sewer systems at TRI Center since 2001. Pursuant
to state law, TRIGID is governed by a Board of Trustees who are elected or appointed. TRIGID has no debt,
since all water and sewer infrastructure has been built and dedicated by TRI.

Farr West Engineering

District engineering and project management for TRIGID are performed by Farr West Engineering. Farr West
currently performs similar work for a number of small water and sewer purveyors in Northern Nevada,
including Storey County, Yerington, Carlin, Canyon GID, Kingsbury GID, Lovewood, Hawthorne, Silver
Springs Water Company and Lyon County. Farr West was chosen to perform site selection and design of
Reno's Valley Road Lift, the largest in the city, as well as manage the city's 2014 Sewer Rehabilitation Project.

3 See NRS 360.981 to NRS 360.992.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 4




Economic Development Financing Proposal
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline

Tesla

Tesla has constructed its Gigafactory 1 in the TRI Center. Currently utilizing around 5,500,000 square feet of
operational space, this project with a footprint of 1.9 million square feet, making it one of the largest buildings
in the world.

Switch

Switch owns and operates data centers around the world, including those at TRI Center. The build-out of its
footprint at its data center campus at TRI Center is expected to include over 7,000,000 square feet of building
space, requiring significant amounts of Process Water for cooling purposes.

Google

Google is a world-leading technology company and more. Google has acquired land within TRI Center with
the intention of developing facilities to support its mission and operations; the facilities require significant
amounts of Process Water for cooling and other purposes.

Blockchains

Blockchains, LLC is a technology firm at the forefront of one of the most revolutionary innovations since the
advent of the internet, blockchain distributed ledger technology. The development of Blockchain LLC's
corporate campus and other hi-tech facilities that the company plans to develop at the park, along with the
necessary supporting infrastructure, will require Process Water for operations.

Reno Land

Reno Land Inc. is a residential and commercial development firm with land holdings in Storey County that is
focused on the northern Nevada community. The company’s plans require Process Water for future use.
Emerald City Empire

Emerald City Empire, LLC owns property located within the “town center” in TRI Center and is considering
plans to develop commercial uses to support the wide ranges of uses in the park.

1.03(a)(ii). Project Lead
Storey County is the lead applicant for the EDFP. TRIGID will lead the project team for construction of the off-site
Effluent Project, with Farr West Engineering acting as project manager.

1.03(b): Authorizing Support from Storey County Commission

The project plan of finance and EDFP will be considered for approval by the County Commission on August 7, 2018.

1.03(c): Storey County Commission

The Storey County Commission is comprised of three elected officials. The County Commission members serve a 4-
year term and are elected by voters residing in the entire county. The commission serves as the county's local
governing body creating and monitoring the county’s budget, tax rates, and ordinances.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 5




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STUKEY COUNT Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline R P

1.03(d): Financial Statements of EDFP Applicant

Storey County's Comprehensive Annual Financial Statement for 2017 is included in Exhibit A. However, pursuant to
NRS 360.990(3)(A)(4) only the uncommitted portion of the County’s General Fund balance is available for repayment
on the bonds and will only be used if the other sources of repayment are insufficient.

1.03(e): Statement of financing need
Pending. To be provided.

1.04: Infrastructure General Parameters
1.04(a): Infrastructure Project acreage

The infrastructure project consists of a + 13-mile pipeline with an 11,600 square foot area for a pump station, which
will contain a 1,200 square foot building

1.04(b): Types of service area land uses approved at time of EDFP submittal

Parcels in the Project Area are zoned for industrial and commercial use.

1.04(c): Additional land uses planned not already zoned

Additional land uses are planned in TRI Center, but not yet zoned for industrial or commercial uses.

1.04(d): Leasable improved space by land use type served by Infrastructure

The infrastructure will serve the TRI Center as shown in Exhibit B attached.

1.05(e): Total improved space served by Infrastructure

The infrastructure will serve the TRI Center as shown in Exhibit B attached.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 6



Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STOREY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline Voo A

AT
VoA Dy

| Section 2: The Qualified Project

2.01: GOED Board Determination of Qualified Project
2.01(a): Notice

Notice of qualified project status is included in Exhibit C attached.

2.01(b): State Incentive Summary

The State Incentives are outlined in Exhibit C attached.

2.01(c): State Economic Impact Report

The State economic impact report is included in Exhibit D aftached.

2.01(d): State Certificates of Eligibility
The State certificates of eligibility are included in Exhibit C attached.

2.02: Tesla as Lead Participant
2.02(a): Company History

Tesla designs, develops, manufactures and sells high-performance fully electric vehicles, and energy generation and
storage systems, and also installs and maintains such systems and sells solar electricity. Tesla is the world’s only
vertically integrated sustainable energy company, offering end-to-end clean energy products, including generation,
storage and consumption. Tesla has established and continues to grow a global network of stores, vehicle service
centers and Supercharger stations to accelerate the widespread adoption of Tesla's products, and Tesla continues to
develop self-driving capability in order to improve vehicle safety. Tesla's sustainable energy products, engineering
expertise, intense focus to accelerate the world's transition to sustainable energy, and business model differentiate
Tesla from other companies.

Tesla currently produces and sells three fully electric vehicles, the Model S sedan, the Model X sport utility vehicle
(“SUV") and the Modef 3 sedan. All of Tesla’s vehicles offer high performance and functionality as well as attractive
styling.

Tesla commenced deliveries of Model S in June 2012 and has continued to improve Model S by introducing
performance, all-wheel drive dual motor, and autopilot options, as well as free over-the-air software updates. Tesla
commenced deliveries of Model X in September 2015. Model X offers seating for up to seven people, all-wheel drive,
and Tesla's autopilot functionality. Testa commenced deliveries of Model 3, a lower priced sedan designed for the
mass market, in July 2017 and continues to ramp its production.

Tesla also intends to bring additional vehicles to market in the future, including trucks and an all-new sports car. The
production of fully electric vehicles that meets consumers’ range and performance expectations requires substantial
design, engineering, and integration work on almost every system of Tesla’s vehicles. Tesla's design and vehicle
engineering capabilities, combined with the technical advancements of Tesla's powertrain system, have enabled Tesla

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. , Page 7




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STOKEY COUNT Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline R

to design and develop electric vehicles that Tesla believes overcome the design, styling, and performance issues that
have historically limited broad adoption of electric vehicles.

Tesla sells the vehicles through Tesla's own sales and service network which Tesla is continuing to grow globally. The
benefits Tesla receives from distribution ownership enables Tesla to improve the overall customer experience, the
speed of product development and the capital efficiency of Tesla's business. Tesla is also continuing to build the
network of Superchargers and Destination Chargers in North America, Europe and Asia to provide both fast charging
that enables convenient long-distance travel as well as other convenient charging options.

In addition, Tesla is leveraging the technological expertise in batteries, power electronics, and integrated systems to
manufacture and sell energy storage products. In late 2016, Tesla began production and deliveries of the latest
| generation energy storage products, Powerwall 2 and Powerpack 2. Powerwall 2 is a 14 kilowatt hour (kWh) home
‘ battery with an integrated inverter. Powerpack 2 is an infinitely scalable energy storage system for commercial,
industrial and utifity applications, comprised of 210 kWh (AC) battery packs and 50 kVa (at 480V) inverters.

Similar to Tesla's electric vehicles, the energy storage products have been developed to receive over-the-air firmware
and software updates that enable additional features over time.

Finally, Tesla sells and leases solar systems (with or without accompanying energy storage systems) to residential and
commercial customers and sells renewable energy to residential and commercial customers at prices that are typically
below utility rates. Since 2006, Tesla has installed solar energy systems for hundreds of thousands of customers.
Tesla's long-term lease and power purchase agreements with Tesla's customers generate recurring payments and
create a portfolio of high-quality receivables that Tesla leverages to further reduce the cost of making the switch to
solar energy. The electricity produced by Tesla's solar installations represents a very small fraction of total U.S.
electricity generation. With tens of millions of single-family homes and businesses in Tesla’s primary service territories,
and many more in other locations, Tesla has a large opportunity to expand and grow this business.

Tesla manufactures the vehicle products primarily at the facilities in Fremont, California, Lathrop, California, Tilburg,
Netherlands and at Gigafactory 1 near Reno, Nevada. Tesla manufactures the energy storage products at Gigafactory
1 and the solar products at the factories in Fremont, California and Buffalo, New York (Gigafactory 2).

2.02(b): Executive Team

Elon Musk has served as our Chief Executive Officer since October 2008 and as Chairman of our Board since April
2004. Mr. Musk has also served as Chief Executive Officer, Chief Technology Officer and Chairman of Space
Exploration Technologies Corporation, a company which is developing and launching advanced rockets for satellite,
and eventually human, transportation (“SpaceX"), since May 2002, and served as Chairman of the Board of SolarCity
Corporation, a solar installation company (“SolarCity"), from July 2006 until its acquisition by us in November 2016. Mr.
Musk is also a founder of The Boring Company, an infrastructure company, and Neuralink Corp, a company focused
on developing brain-machine interfaces. Prior to SpaceX, Mr. Musk co-founded PayPal, an electronic payment system,
which was acquired by eBay in October 2002, and Zip2 Corporation, a provider of Internet enterprise software and
services, which was acquired by Compagq in March 1999. Mr. Musk holds a B.A. in physics from the University of
Pennsylvania and a B.S. in business from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania.

Jeffrey B. Straubel has served as our Chief Technology Officer since May 2005 and previously served as our Principal
Engineer, Drive Systems from March 2004 to May 2005. Prior to joining us, Mr. Straubel was the Chief Technical
Officer and co-founder of Volacom Inc., an aerospace firm which designed a specialized high-altitude electric aircraft
platform, from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Straubel holds a B.S. in energy systems engineering from Stanford University and a
M.S. in engineering, with an emphasis on power electronics, microprocessor control and energy conversion, from
Stanford University.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 8




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STOREY COUNTY
NS

Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline

Deepak Ahuja has served as our Chief Financial Officer since March 2017, and also previously served as our Chief
Financial Officer from July 2008 to November 2015. Prior to joining us in July 2008, Mr. Ahuja served in various
positions at Ford Motor Company from August 1993 to July 2008, most recently as the Vehicle Line Controller of Small
Cars Product Development from July 2006 to July 2008, and as Chief Financial Officer for Ford of Southern Africa from
February 2003 to June 2006. Mr. Ahuja also served as the Chief Financial Officer for Auto Alliance International, a joint
venture between Ford and Mazda, from September 2000 to February 2003. Mr. Ahuja also served as a director of
FireEye, Inc. from September 2015 to September 2017. Mr. Ahuja holds an M.S.LA. (which was subsequently
redesignated as an M.B.A.) from Carnegie Mellon University, a M.S. in materials engineering from Northwestern
University and a Bachelor's degree in ceramic engineering from Banaras Hindu University in India.

2.02(c): Capital Investment Plan

Tesla and partners have invested and plan to invest for a total of at least $5.0 billion dollars in building and equipment
for the Gigafactory 1 project.

2.02(d): Project Financing Plan

Tesla and partners have used non-municipal financing for the Gigafactory 1 project.

2.03: Project Description
2.03(a): Site Location

Tesla's Gigafactory 1 is located on Electric Avenue in the TRI Center, more specifically parcels 005-091-17; 005-091-
18; 005-091-29; 005-091-42; 005-091-44; 005-091-45; 005-091-47; 005-091-49; 005-091-52; 005-011-21; 005-011-
22; 005-011-24; 005-011-26; 005-111-48. The following map depict the general location of the site.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 9




Economic Development Financing Proposal e STOKEY COUNIT Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline e

2.03(b): Facility Plan

Tesla manufactures vehicle products and energy storage products at the Gigafactory.

2.03(c): Other Participants

Tesla has strategic supplier relationships with a presence at the Gigafactory.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 10




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STUREY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline NV A A

Section 3: Proposed Infrastructure Project

3.01: Market Research & Plan
3.01(a): Current and projected area market demand and supply

Future demand will largely be driven by the needs of the participants of the SAD. The participants have agreed to a
self-assessment for the development of the off-site Effluent Project in anticipation of their future water needs.

3.01(b): Current inventory of industrial parks and park space in the market area

The current TRI Center contains +12,700 acres of development property, £2,000 of which are currently developed.

3.01(c): Projected demand at project for leasable/improved square footage at completion

The SAD participants will dictate demand and have confirmed future need for Process Water for their planned
investments.

3.01(d): Estimated absorption rate and term

The SAD participants will dictate demand and have confirmed future need for Process Water for their planned
investments.

3.01(e): Marketing Plan
Not applicable.

3.01(f): Marketing Budget
Not applicable.

3.02: Traffic Analysis

The scope of the proposed infrastructure project, or the off-site Effluent Project, does not include any transportation-
related projects.

3.03: Infrastructure Project Information
3.03(a): Master Plan

3.03(a)(i): Description of Project
The off-site Effluent Project will consist of a pipeline, one pump station and associated facilities, constructed between
TMWRF and TRI Center, allowing transmission of treated effluent from TMWRF to TRI Center for approved reuse
applications.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 11




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STUKEY COUNI Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline R

At a minimum, the on-site Effluent Project will consist of an increase in storage capacity at the on-site reservoir, two
induction wells and several groundwater wells, and two booster stations and transmission lines to pump effluent to two
storage tanks. The on-site Effluent Project will also consist of an advanced water treatment facility to meet the water
quality needs of the users.

3.03(a)(ii): Description of Infrastructure Installation Plans

An 18" diameter pipe (or larger) will be installed at the existing TMWRF discharge manifold, from which reclaimed water
can be pumped by TMWRF's existing pump station at approximately 138 psi. There is a 120 to 130-foot elevation drop
from TMWRF to TRI Center. East of Mustang in the Truckee River corridor, the pipeline will climb a slope via a pump
station to reach land owned by TR!. From there it will run downhill to TRI Center. The off-site Effluent Project will be
designed to transport 4,000 acre feet or more of treated effluent water annually.

TRIGID has limited storage. Due to the cost of constructing a new storage reservoir within TRI Center, TRIGID intends
only to enlarge, line and fence its existing reclaimed water reservoir to provide at least 1,500 acre feet of storage. This
means reclaimed water from TMWRF will have to be supplied year-round for TRIGID customer use, but flows can be
adjusted in order to meet Truckee River return flow requirements. In order to distribute pipeline reclaimed water within
TRI Center, TRIGID will have to construct additional pipelines, pump stations and storage tanks, in addition to
improvements to its reservoir.

3.03(b): EDFP Financed Improvements

No on-site Effluent Project improvements are under consideration for this EDFP. Only the off-site Effluent Project costs
are proposed for financing through the SAD or reimbursement via a tax increment area (“TIA") to selected property
owners within TRI Center.

3.03(c): Development Management Entity

Farr West Engineering will be the development management entity under the supervision of TRIGID.

3.03(d): Asset Management Entity

TRIGID, the current owner and manager of all water and sewer assets at TRI Center, will be the asset management
entity.

3.03(e): Property Management Entity

TRIGID will be responsible for property/asset management.

3.03(f): EDFP Infrastructure Projects

3.03(A(i): Non-EDFP Improvement Projects (No Funding Requested)

On-site storage, advanced water treatment and transmission projects to distribute Process Water to TRIGID customers
are considered for this project, but do not seek EDFP funding.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 12




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STOKEY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline ¥ LA

3.03(1)(ii): Sources, Pro Forma, and Budget Overview
The off-site Effluent Project will use TMWTF as the source of treated effluent for Process Water for use in various
manufacturing and cooling processes. The following provides a summary of the sources and uses for the off-site
Effluent Project. It is important to note, these sources and uses are preliminary in nature and subject to material review
and revision. More formal uses are expected to be outlined in a proposed financing agreement between Storey County
and the SAD participants in advance of any bond issuance.

USES

Cost Component Est. Cost
Site Preparation and Water Pipeline Development $20,422,260
Pump Station and Supporting Infrastructure $1,334,150
Technical Services (Surveying, Engineering, Management) $2,828,333
Reimbursement Agreement with Storey County to Fund County Costs (Bond Counsel, Financial Advisor, Appraiser) $175,000
Reimbursed Costs of Professional Services for TMWRF, NDOT and Other Contracts $200,000
Reimbursed Costs of EDFP Application Preparation, Research and Other Professional Services $200,000
Land Acquisition/Easements and Construction Contingency* $6,031,766
Total Uses $31,191,509
SOURCES®

Funding Component Est. Yield
Gross Proceeds $35,000,000
Debt Service Reserve Fund ($2,808,491)
Debt Issuance/Transaction Costs ($1,000,000)
Total Sources $31,191,509

In addition to the off-site Effluent Project, the on-site Effluent Project (excluding advanced water treatment) is expected
to cost approximately $30.0 million. The cost of the advanced water treatment component of the project is expected
range from $35.0 million to $85.0 million, depending on the scope of the facilities. The overalil project cost is expected
to range from $100.0 million to $150.0 million when completed.

3.03(f)(iii): Planned Service Capacity
The off-site Effluent Project shall provide a minimum of 4,000 acre-feet of treated effluent per year.

| 3.03(g): Natural Resources Project
The Effluent Project qualifies a Natural Resources Project as defined in SB1 and SB442.

4 The construction contingency has been aggregated and applies to the all individual cost components of the project.

% For modeling purposes, a benchmark amount of $35.0 million in gross proceeds has been assumed. This does not consider a
potential premium or discount structure. The model also assumes a 20-year term and a 5.0 percent interest rate, along with an
estimated one-year debt service reserve fund. Market conditions at the time of issuance will dictate the final structure, term, rates
and other provisions. Note, a 20- to 25-year term is being targeted. The included estimates are considered conservative relative
to what will ultimately be achieved in the market. Debt issuance/transaction costs have been estimated and are intended to cover
underwriter discounts, any state-related fees and other costs of issuance that may be incurred.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 13




Economic Development Financing Proposal @ STUKEY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline R

3.03(h): Maximum Service area and Capacity SOW

The entire Process Water system is to serve the TRI Center is designed for a maximum capacity of 10,000 acre-feet
of water per year, serving properties requiring Process Water in TRI Center.

3.04: Infrastructure Project Maps, Plans, and Schedules
3.04(a): Infrastructure facility plans

3.04(a)(i): Interim Elements
No interim elements are included in this project.

3.04(a)(ii): Permanent Elements
See Exhibit E attached.

3.04(a)(iii); Established District Documentation

The SAD and TIA is defined in Section 4.02(a); The TIA is expected to be formed after GOED and IFCE financing
approval.

3.04(a)(iv): Final District Creation Documentation

The SAD and TIA is defined in Section 4.02(a); The TIA is expected to be formed after GOED and IFC financing
approval.

3.04(b): Assessment Plans

The SAD and TIA is defined in Section 4.02(a); The TIA is expected to be formed after GOED and IFC financing
approval. The TIA is contemplated to reimburse property owners for costs advanced and associated with the off-site
Effluent Project.

3.04(c): Review of Interests Required

3.04(c)(i): Water Rights
TRIGID currently holds water rights for use as Process Water including Truckee River water rights, groundwater rights,
and effluent from the TRIGID wastewater treatment plant. The Truckee Meadows Water Authority (“TWMA") holds
water rights for the treated effluent to be delivered by the off-site Effluent Project.

3.04(c)(ii): Title Reports
Title reports for affected parcels will be available in the quarter following the financing decision, prior to construction.

8|FC is the Interim Finance Committee of the Nevada Legislature.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 14




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STOKEY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline WEVALTA

3.04(c)(iii). Easements
Easements on the affected parcels will be secured by the end of the quarter following the financing decision, prior to
construction.

3.04(d): Project Area Lands in the Service Area

Only those parcels in the TRI Center will be included in the Service Area.

3.04(e): Infrastructure Plots
See Exhibit E attached.

3.04(1): Infrastructure Service Area Boundaries

The service area boundaries are those of the TRI Center, which are shown in Exhibit B attached.

3.04(g): Zoning for the Service Area

Parcels in the Project Area are zoned for industrial and commercial use.

3.04(h): FEMA Flood Zoning
The property is not located in a FEMA Flood Zone.

3.04(i): Proof of Property Control

The legal rights to construct, operate, and repair the Effluent Project will be acquired by obtaining easements after the
financing decision, see 3.04(c)(iii) above.

3.04(j): Phase 1 and 2 reports

3.04(j)(i): Phase 1 Reports
Phase 1 reports will be performed in the quarter following the financing decision, if needed.

3.04(j)(ii): Phase 2 Reports
Phase 2 reports will be performed in the quarter following the financing decision, if needed.

This is a draft document. it is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 15




Economic Development Financing Proposal e STORKEY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline R

3.04(k): Environmental Review and Site Assessment

Preliminary review and assessment have been performed by TRIGID engineers and officers by on-site inspections of
each parcel. No issues have been found. If further review and assessments are needed, they will be performed during
the quarter following the financing decision.

3.04(): Typical Infrastructure Excluded

No infrastructure that is typically a part of this type of project will be excluded.

3.04(m): Non-Included Infrastructure
Not applicable.

3.04(n): Non-Included Infrastructure and Absorption
Not applicable.

3.05: Updated Infrastructure Facility Budgets
3.05(a): Cost Estimates

See Section 3.03(A(ii): Sources, Pro Forma, and Budget Overview for a summary of the costs.

3.05(b): Pre-Approval and Post-Approval Costs, Other Fees

See Section 3.03(f(ii): Sources, Pro Forma, and Budget Overview for a summary of the costs.

3.06: Updated Infrastructure Facilities Development and Construction Maps, Plans, and Schedules
3.06(a): Utility Layout Map
See Exhibit E attached.

3.06(b): Quantity and Size Takeoffs Schedule and Budget

See Section 3.03(A(ii): Sources, Pro Forma, and Budget Overview for a summary of the costs.

3.06(c): Equivalent Development Units
Not applicable.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 16




Economic Development Financing Proposal o STOREY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline IR RSB

3.06(q): Pre-Approval and Post Approval Costs, Other Fees

See Section 3.03(f)(ii): Sources, Pro Forma, and Budget Overview for a summary of the costs.

3.07: Project Readiness
3.07(a): Zoning and Permitting Milestones and Schedule

All permits will be obtained in the quarter following the financing decision. Zoning requirements have been satisfied.

3.07(b): Contractor's Contract Status

No contract currently exists, however TRIGID currently retains Farr West Engineering to perform all engineering and
construction project management functions.

3.07(c): Remaining Requirements

3.07(c)(i): Design
Farr West Engineering currently has 30% completed engineering plans for the Effluent Project. Fully completed plans
for the off-site Effluent Project will be provided after the financing decision.

3.07(c)(ii): Other Contracts
Not applicable.

3.07(c)(iii): GOED Administration
Per SB1 of the 2015 Special Session of the Nevada Legislature, GOED will administer the development funds that

result from an approved EDFP. TRIGID and Farr West Engineering will work with GOED to report and account for all
funds used.

3.07(d): Post-Construction and Ongoing Operations

TRIGID will operate and maintain all infrastructure related to the Effluent Project.

3.08: Master Infrastructure Plans and Cost Estimates
3.08(a): Water
Not applicable.

3.08(b): Wastewater

Master infrastructure plans and cost estimates are included in Section 3.03(f)(ii): Sources, Pro Forma, and Budget
Overview for a summary of the costs.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 17




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STurery COUNIY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline e

3.08(c): Rail Port
Not applicable.

3.08(d): Fire EMS
Not applicable.

3.08(e): Storm Drainage
Not applicable.

3.08(f): Scopes of Work, Budgets, Cashflow, and Construction Timing

See Section 3.03(f)(ii): Sources, Pro Forma, and Budget Overview for a summary of the costs. Timing of expenditures
are contained in Section 5.01(b).

3.08(g): Elements of Complementary Infrastructure
Not applicable.

3.08(h): Development Entitlements

The Development Agreement dated February 1, 2000 between TRI and Storey County is the development entitlement
for construction and operation of water and sewer systems for TRI Center. No additional development entitiements
are necessary except building permits.

3.08(i): Confirmation of Entitlement Readiness
See 3.08(h).

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 18




Economic Development Financing Proposal
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline

Section 4: Proposed Infrastructure Project Financing

4.01: Overview of Project Financing
4.01(a)(i): Project Financing

The SAD financing component of the project is expected to comply with any underwriter and regulatory requirements
of the State Board of Finance, State Treasurer and Storey County, including certain value-to-lien (coverage) ratios.
Storey County has retained an appraiser to appraise the value of the property to be included within the SAD (the list of
parcels is included in Section 4.02(a) below). It is expected that the appraised value of each parcel will be required to
be at least three and one-half (3.5) times the amount of the proposed assessment against the parcel (“3.5x coverage”).
The aggregate proposed assessment across all properties will be approximately $35 million (the cost of the off-site
Effluent Project). In addition, the allocation of the $35 million assessment may be based on water right ownership,
expected water consumption and/or some other reasonable basis determined by an assessment engineer, which has
also been retained by Storey County. To the extent values fall short of the required 3.5x coverage, additional collateral,
guarantees or credit enhancements may be required.

A debt service reserve fund equal to one year's debt service (principal and interest) will be funded from bond proceeds
(subject to market conditions). Currently, the bond term is expected to span twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) years. It is
possible the bonds will consider a premium or discount structure and require funds for debt issuance costs as well. A
more formal plan/model for financing will follow as the process moves forward.”

The off-site Effluent Project is to be financed as previously described in Section 1. Concurrently, a TIA will be created
pursuant to SB442 that will provide an opportunity for a maximum reimbursement of the off-site Effluent Project costs
(and equivalent carrying costs).

4.01(a)(ii): Statement by the governing body of the creation of one or more districts or areas

To be provided by Storey County in conjunction with the creation of a special assessment district as provided for in
SB442. Upon approval of the SAD and EDFP, Storey County will consider the TIA contemplated herein.

4.01(a)(iii): Project infrastructure elements

General

The off-site Effluent Project will consist of a pipeline, one pump station and associated facilities, constructed between
TMWRF and TRI Center, allowing transmission of treated effluent from TMWRF to TRI Center for approved reuse
applications. The Cities will reserve and supply treated effluent in the minimum quantities identified in Subsection
3.03(f)(iii) above.

7 For modeling purposes, a benchmark amount of $35.0 million in gross proceeds has been assumed. This does not consider a
potential premium or discount structure. The model also assumes a 20-year term and a 5.0 percent interest rate, along with an
estimated one-year debt service reserve fund. Market conditions at the time of issuance will dictate the final structure, term, rates
and other provisions. The included estimates are considered conservative relative to what will ultimately be achieved in the market.
The underwriter discount has been modeled at 1.0 percent of the gross proceeds and “other costs” have been assumed.

This is a draft document. it is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 19




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STUREY COUNIT Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline W

Alignment

A portion of the off-site Effluent Project from TMWREF is in Washoe County (0.44 miles). The remainder is in Storey
County (12.5 miles). The proposed alignment is down the Truckee River corridor until it reaches land owned by TRI.
See Subsection 4.01 (c)iii) for cost detail.

4.01(a)(iv): Infrastructure financed by public financing

The cost of the off-site Effluent Project is to be financed via an SAD, which is secured by the revenues and real property
within the SAD. Concurrently, the creation of a TIA is intended to reimburse property owners a maximum amount
equivalent to the off-site Effluent Project (plus equivalent carrying costs), but the developers have sized this request
up to $35 million. It is important to note, the potential tax increment that would inure to the property owners is not
intended for bonding purposes, as such there is no risk on the part of the state or county for default or non-payment.

Bond financing as part of the SAD will be used for the construction of the off-site Effluent Project. Both the off-site and
on-site Effluent Project are necessary to make the project operational. The on-site Effluent Project is expected to be
financed through third-party private financing. Only the amount of bonds necessary to fund the off-site Effluent Project,
pay for the costs of issuance, fund a one-year debt service reserve, and address any State-imposed requirements will
be issued pursuant to the SAD. Only the cost of the off-site Effluent Project is being considered for bond financing
through the State of Nevada.

All costs not covered by bond financing will be paid by TRI Center and the SAD participants in the overall project.

4.01(a)(v): Infrastructure financed by Public Private Partnership (‘P3’)

See 4.01(a)(iv), above. The private portion of the project financing, though not technically through a traditional P3, will
be borne by the private sector developer.

4.01(a)(vi): Infrastructure financed by other financing means

None.

4.01(b)(i): Infrastructure components planned
See 4.01(a)(iii) above.

4.01(b)(ii): Changes to infrastructure component plans

None at this time.

4.01(c)(i): Project elements
See 4.01(a)(iii) above.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 20




Economic Development Financing Proposal
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline

4.01(c)(ii): Service area

The service area for the Effluent Project will be TRI Center, located within Storey County, which is the service area of
TRIGID. As noted, a small portion of the off-site Effluent Project will be within Washoe County, but that is not a part of
the service area. Ancillary benefits, beyond those realized by the primary customers within the TRI Center, will inure
to TMWRF and the Cities of Reno and Sparks.

4.01(c)(iii): Costs

See Section 3.03(f)(ii): Sources, Pro Forma, and Budget Overview for a summary of the costs.

4.01(c)(iv): Planned allocation/coverage of costs
See 4.01(a)(iv) above.

4.01(c)(v): Changes in risk
None identified.

4.01(c)(v)(1): Impact of risk of P3 termination
Not applicable.

4.01(c)(v)(2): Assumption/assignment of responsibility for water and waiver of P3 assuming responsibility
Not applicable.

4.02: Special Assessment District (NRS 271)
4.02(a): Overview

An SAD is intended to cover the cost of the off-site Effluent Project. The proposed SAD will include selected properties
in TRI Center. The following provides a list of parcels to be included in the SAD as well as the TIA; the list identifies
the assessor parcel number (“APN"), the legal owner, the ultimate owner (e.g., parent company), the estimated acreage
and identifies if the parcel is included in TIA. For parcels identified by the Storey County Assessor's Office as having
some “improvements” on site have been excluded from the TIA. Also note, the parcel list is subject to deletions at some
point in the future, but prior to the finalization of the SAD creation.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 21




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STUORKEY COUNT Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline R
Approx. SAD
Parcel No.  Owner - Legal Name Owner - Parent Company Acreage Status TIA
005-111-12  Eagle Valley Acquisition LLC Blockchains 6.58 Vacant YES YES
005-111-51  Eagle Valley Acquisition LLC Blockchains 2262 Vacant YES YES
005-111-58 Eagle Valley Acquisition LLC Blockchains 17.64 Vacant YES YES
005-111-66  Eagle Valley Acquisition LLC Blockchains 4225 Vacant YES YES
005-111-67 Eagle Valley Acquisition LLC Blockchains 214.60 Vacant YES YES
005-011-75  Peru Shelf Acquisition Blockchains 257.65 Vacant YES YES
005-011-88  Peru Shelf Acquisition Blockchains 165.61 Vacant YES YES
005-011-94  Peru Shelf Acquisition Blockchains 90.32 Vacant YES YES
005-011-81  TRIC Acquisition LLC Blockchains 178.53 Vacant YES YES
005-011-84  TRIC Acquisition LLC Blockchains 36.57 Vacant YES YES
005-011-58 _ Silver Slate LLC Google 662.00 Vacant YES YES
005-011-65 Comstock TRIC Associates LLC  Reno Land 491.09 Vacant YES YES
005-011-66 Comstock TRIC Associates LLC  Reno Land 8.00 Vacant YES YES
005-011-70 Comstock TRIC Associates LLC  Reno Land 189.00 Vacant YES YES
005-011-45 Supernap Reno LLC Switch 71.45 Vacant YES YES
005-011-46  Supernap Reno LLC Switch 117.36 Vacant YES YES
005-011-48  Supernap Reno LLC Switch 31454 Improvements YES NO
005-011-49  Supernap Reno LLC Switch 134.04 Vacant YES YES
005-011-50  Supernap Reno LLC Switch 61.56 Vacant YES YES
005-011-85 Supernap Reno LLC Switch 887 Vacant YES VYES
005-011-89  Supernap Reno LLC Switch 278.27 Vacant YES YES
005-071-08 Supernap Reno LLC Switch 2.83 Vacant YES YES
005-071-12  Supernap Reno LLC Switch 18.86 Vacant YES YES
005-071-57  Supernap Reno LLC Switch 162.56 Vacant YES VYES
005-081-07 Supernap Reno LLC Switch 4457 Vacant YES YES
005-081-11  Supernap Reno LLC Switch 172 Vacant YES YES
005-081-10 _ Tahoe-Reno Industrial Cntr LLC  Switch 205.76 Vacant YES YES
005-011-21  Tesla Motors Inc Tesla 5.16 Vacant YES YES
005-091-29 Tesla Motors Inc Tesla 65.90 Vacant YES YES
005-091-42  Tesla Motors Inc Tesla 35.00 Vacant YES YES
005-091-44  Tesla Motors Inc Tesla 42.67 Vacant YES YES
005-091-45 Tesla Motors Inc Tesla 15.98 Improvements YES NO
005-091-47 Tesla Motors Inc Tesla 81.34 Vacant YES YES
005-091-49  Tesla Motors Inc Tesla 35.22 Vacant YES YES
005-091-52 Tesla Motors Inc Tesla 118.22 Vacant YES YES
005-111-48  Tesla Motors Inc Tesla 12.18 Vacant YES YES
005-051-29 1200 USA Parkway Emerald City Empire 18.40 Vacant YES YES
005-051-30  Emeraid City Empire LLC Emerald City Empire 1.08 Vacant YES YES
005-051-53 Emerald City Empire LLC Emerald City Empire 16.73 Vacant YES YES
005-051-57 Emerald City Empire LLC Emerald City Empire 5.08 Vacant YES YES
005-101-36  Emerald City Empire LLC Emerald City Empire 60.22 Vacant YES YES
005-101-39  Emerald City Empire LLC Emerald City Empire 22 Vacant YES YES
005-101-40  Emerald City Empire LLC Emerald City Empire 9.66 Vacant YES YES

Total 4,329.90

Based on the SAD guidelines, a 3.5x value-to-lien ratio per parcel is targeted. Pending the results of the property
appraisals, the list of parcels included or excluded may vary.

This is a draft document. it is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 22




Economic Development Financing Proposal ‘
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline g

STOREY COUNTY

MRV A DY A

4.02(b): Determination of the governing body that tax proceeds will be sufficient

Since the off-site Effluent Project is not considering revenue bonds associated with the TIA, this element is not
applicable.

4.02(c): Infrastructure Projects Included
The off-site Effluent Project is contemplated within the SAD.

4.02(d): Areas Served

The area to be served by the improvements is described in 4.02(a) above.

4.02(e): State Repayment and P3 funding

SAD bond repayments will be made by selected property owners and secured by the underlying real estate.

4.02(f): Undertaking Allocations

As previously noted, the funding of the undertaking is proposed to include proceeds of bonds issued through the State.
The proceeds of the bonds would fund both only the off-site Effluent Project.

4.02(g): District Area

The special assessment district area will encompass selected parcels within TRI Center as noted in 4.02(a) above.

4.02(h): District Funding Analysis

The SAD will be funded (debt serviced) based on a 100-percent self-assessed group of participants. No additional
analysis or speculation with respect to timing and/or participants is required.

4.02(i): Assessment Engineer’s Report

Pending. To be completed.

4.02(j): Municipal Bond Analysis

The following provides a simplified bond amortization for reference (modeling purposes); a more formal bond structure
and estimates will be prepared as the process moves forward. This analysis assumes $35.0 million in borrowings, a

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 23




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STOKEY CUUNI Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline R

20-year term, a 5.0-percent interest rate and an annual payment structure.® Terms are expected to adjust; these have
been incorporated as placeholders to demonstrate order-of-magnitude estimates.

Debt Service Interest Principal Outstanding

Year - Payment Payment Payment Balance

Beginning Balance $35,000,000

| Year 1 $2,808,491 $1,750,000 $1,058,491 $33,941,509

| Year 2 $2,808,491 $1,697,075 $1,111,415 $32,830,094

| Year 3 $2,808,491 $1,641,505 $1,166,986 $31,663,109

Year 4 $2,808,491 $1,583,155 $1,225,335 $30,437,773

Year 5 $2,808,491 $1,521,889 $1,286,602 $29,151,172

Year 6 $2,808,491 $1,457,559 $1,350,932 $27,800,240

Year 7 $2,808,491 $1,390,012 $1,418,479 $26,381,761

Year 8 $2,808,491 $1.319,088 $1,489,403 $24,892,358

| Year 9 $2,808,491 $1,244,618 $1,563,873 $23,328,486

| Year 10 $2,808,491 $1,166,424 $1,642,066 $21,686,420

Year 11 $2,808,491 $1,084,321 $1,724,170 $19,962,250

Year 12 $2,808,491 $998,113 $1,810,378 $18,151,872

Year 13 $2,808,491 $907,594 $1,900,897 $16,250,975

Year 14 $2,808,491 $812,549 $1,995,942 $14,255,033

Year 15 $2,808,491 $712,752 $2,095,739 $12,159,294

| Year 16 $2,808,491 $607,965 $2,200,526 $9,958,768

| Year 17 $2,808,491 $497,938 $2,310,552 $7,648,216

Year 18 $2,808,491 $382,411 $2,426,080 $5,222,137

Year 19 $2,808,491 $261,107 $2,547,384 $2,674,753

Year 20 $2,808,491 $133,738 $2,674,753 $0
| Total $21,169,811 $35,000,000

4.02(k): County Ordinance
Pending. To be completed following GOED's consideration of the EDFP.

4.03: Tax Increment Area (“TIA”) (NRS 278C)
4.03(a): Overview

The proposed TIA will include selected vacant properties in the SAD that have the potential to benefit from the Effluent
Project. The vacant property owners are expected to be limited to Tesla, Switch, Google, Blockchains, Reno Land and
Emerald City Empire. See Section 4.02(a) for a list of the parcels included in the TIA.

4.03(b): Determination of the governing body that tax proceeds will be sufficient

Since the TIA revenues are not to be used for bond repayments, no determination of sufficiency is necessary.

4.03(c): Infrastructure Projects Included

The TIA revenues will only be utilized to reimburse an amount equivalent to the aggregate cost of the off-site Effluent
Project of $35 million, which includes principal and interest.

8 While a 20-year term is modeled in the accompanying schedule, the proposed transaction contemplates a 20- to 25-year bond
term, subject to market conditions at the time of issuance.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 24




Economic Development Financing Proposal e STUKEY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline WA AL

4.03(d): Areas Served

The area to be served by the improvements is described in 4.03(a) above.

4.03(e): Undertaking Allocations

As previously noted, the funding of the undertaking is proposed to include proceeds of bonds issued through the State
via an SAD. No bonds are to be collateralized or secured by the tax increment revenues.

4.03(g): Tax Increment Funding Analysis

TIA revenues are not utilized to fund the improvements, so no funding analysis is contemplated.

4.03(h): Municipal Bond Analysis

No bonds will be issued that are secured by TIA revenues.

4.03(f): Tax Increment Area

The revenues permitted to be captured for use for reimbursement of the off-site Effluent Project will be generated by
future development within the TIA. Revenue increment to be captured by the TIA include real and personal property
taxes, sales and use tax, and modified business tax. The TIA is defined in Section 4.02(a).

4.03(i): County Ordinance

The ordinance establishing the TIA will be adopted by Storey County and will be provided once the TIA is formally
created.

4.04: Bond Issuance
4.04(a): Summary of Project Bond Financing Profile

4.04(a){(i). Bond principal amount requested
The principal amount being requested is $35 million through an SAD. The net amount that will be impacted by the cost
of issuance, the funding of a debt service reserve and any other structural requirements or features of the debt.
importantly, the ultimate bonding capacity, terms and structure will be subject to market conditions at the time of
issuance. TIA revenues are not securing the bonds.

4.04(a)(ii): Tax-exempt or taxable bonds being sought

To the degree permitted by Federal Tax Code, the intent is to maximize the use of tax-exempt bonds. Tax opinions
will be rendered by bond counsel at the time the bonds are issued.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 25




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STOUKEY COUNIT Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effiuent Water Pipeline N

4.04(a)(ii): Term
The contemplated term of the bonds will be less than 30 years. As noted, the term of the SAD bonds for this project
will comply with this restriction. A term of 20 to 25 years is assumed, subject to market conditions.

4.04(a)(iv): Interest Rate
The interest rate for this analysis assumes a tax-exempt benchmark for AA rated general obligation debt plus an
| additional margin to hedge against future market movement. For modeling purposes, a 5.0 percent interest rate is
| assumed, which will adjust based on market conditions at the time of issuance.

4.04(a)(v): Security
The bonds issued by Storey County will be secured by the following sources: 1) assessment payments by the property
| owners, 2) a reserve fund, 3) available funds within the assessment district cash flow and 4) the uncommitted portion
‘ of Storey County's general fund. The Bonds will be purchased by the State Bond Bank.

4.04(a)(vi): Project total financing costs
Costs of project financing are expected to include underwriter's discount, legal fees, financial advisory fees, and other
typical costs of issuance. See section 3.03(f)(ii) for costs assumed in computing both the funds available for
construction and the associated debt service costs. The applicant also recognizes that since these bonds would be
issued through the State of Nevada, additional requirements may be imposed by the State Treasurer's Office in
advance of issuance.

1 4.05: Bond Repayment Methods
4.05(a): Overview of Bond Payment Methods

4.05(a)(i): Special Assessment District
The SAD will be repaid through assessments on selected properties noted in Section 4.02(a).

4,05(a)(ii): Reserves
The bonding structure assumes a one-year debt service reserve fund.

4.05(a)(iii): Tax Increment Area
TIA revenues are not to be bonded against.

4.05(a)(iv): Collateral Property

Assessments levied on the properties within the SAD will be collateral for the bonds. Foreclosure proceedings will
commence to service any due and outstanding assessments in the event of delinquencies.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 26




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STOKEY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline Foomb A
4.05(a)(v): Local Government

Given the anticipated assessment payments, the reserve fund and other resources available within the assessment
district cash flow, it is not expected that the uncommitted portion of the general fund balance would be used to repay
the bonds.

4.05(a)(vi): State Securities Law

This issuance is expected to be compliant with the requirements of SB1 of the 2015 Special Legislative Session and
SB442 in all respects, and will fully comply with all Constitutional and statutory requirements and limits that pertain to
the issuance of bonds through the State Bond Bank. There is not expected to be an impact upon the State's general
fund.

4.05(b): Financing Amount
4.05(b)(i): Terms
4.05(b)(){1) Principal Amount
The SAD bond modeling assumes a principal amount of approximately $35.0 million.

4 05(0)(){(2): Term for natural resources project

As the project is a treated effluent pipeline, it qualifies as a natural resource project. As noted herein, the term is
expected to be no more than 30 years. The SAD bonds are targeting a term of 20 to 25 years, subject to market
conditions. For modeling purposes in this EDFP, a 20-year term is assumed.

4.05(b)(1)(3): Term for non-natural resources project
Not applicable.

4.05(b)(i)(4): Review of Nevada Constitutional Requirements regarding Bond Payments

This applies to general obligations of the State, other than bonds issued through the State Bond Bank and, thus, does
not present a concern for the issuance of bonds for the off-site Effluent Project.

4.05(b)(ii): Projected Interest Rate

The interest rate assumed on the SAD bonds is approximately 5.0 percent. The actual interest rate will be determined
at the time of issuance of the bonds; the current estimate assumes capacity for future rate increases in advance of
issuance. The interest rate on the assessments will be no higher than 1.0 percent over the highest rate on the bonds.

4.05(b)(iii): Projected Issuance Costs

The costs of issuance assumed in the SAD bonding mode! include an underwriter's discount of approximately 1.0
percent and other costs (legal, financial advisors, and other customary costs).

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 27




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STUOKEY CUUNIT Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline TRA S

4.05(b)(iv): Payment Amount per Acre
Not applicable.

4.05(b)(v): Prepayment Penalty
The bonds may include a prepayment penalty based on market conditions at the time of issuance.

4.05(b)(vi): Tax Exemption Opinion
Bond counsel will issue a tax opinion prior to the issuance of the bonds. These are public purpose bonds to extend a
pipeline from a currently operating wastewater treatment plant (TMWRF). The bonding models have assumed a tax-
exempt financing for this project, as it is a natural resource project being issued through the State of Nevada Bond
Bank.

4,05(b)(vii); Issuance Fees
Only customary fees as may be assessed by the State Treasurer's Office for the use of the State Bond Bank.

4.05(b)(viii). Refinancing and Bond Paydowns
Bond refinancing and prepayments will be allowed, subject to market conditions at the time of issuance.

4.05(c): Plans to Treat Potential Cost Overruns
Project cost overruns, if any, will be the responsibility of TRI Center and the SAD participants.

4.05(d): Subordinate Financing

No additional financing is contemplated at this time. If additional debt is issued in the future, it is expected that it would
be subordinate to the bonds issued for this project.

4.05(e): Statement Regarding Subordination

There are no plans for the issuance of additional debt at this time. The issuance may include an additional bonds test
that may affect any future borrowings against this credit.

4.05(f): Credit Enhancements

Since these are expected to be State obligations issued through the State Bond Bank, and since there is expected to
be adequate security, no credit enhancements are being contemplated.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 28




Economic Development Financing Proposal o STOKEY CUUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline ' S A TS

Section 5: Infrastructure Project Financial Analysis

5.01: Development Budget
5.01(a): Sources & Uses of Funds

Sources and uses of funds are outlined in the tables included in Section 3.03(f)(ii).

5.01(b): Pro Forma Development Phase Cash Flow

5.01(b)(i-vii): Pro Forma Model
The following provides estimated cash fiows and timing for the development of the off-site Effiuent Pipeline.

Site Preparation ~ Pump Stations Reimburse

and Pipeline  and Supporting  Technical Professional Land Acquisition Total Account
Month Development Infrastructure Services Services/Costs _and Contingency | Expenditures Balance
Month 0 $31,741,509
Month 1 $1,134,570 $111,179  $157,130 $575,000 $365,654 $2,343,532 | $29,397,977
Month 2 $1,134,570 $111,179  $157,130 $365,654 $1,768,532 | $27,629,445
Month 3 $1,134,570 $111,179  $157,130 $365,654 $1,768,532 | $25,860,912
Month 4 $1,134,570 $111179  $157,130 $365,654 $1,768,532 | $24,092,380
Month 5 $1,134,570 $111,179  $157,130 $365,654 $1,768,532 | $22,323,847
Month 6 $1,134,570 $111179  $157,130 $365,654 $1,768,532 | $20,555,315
Month 7 $1,134,570 $111,179  $157,130 $365,654 $1,768,532 | $18,786,782
Month 8 $1,134,570 $111,179  $157,130 $365,654 $1,768,532 | $17,018,250
Month 9 $1,134,570 $11,179 $157,130 $365,654 $1,768,532 | $15,249,717
Month 10 $1,134,570 $111,179  $157130 $365,654 $1,768,532 | $13,481,185
Month 11 $1,134,570 111179 $157,130 $365,654 $1,768,532 | $11,712,652
Month 12 $1,134,570 $111,479  $157,130 $365,654 $1,768,532 | $9,944,120
Month 13 $1,134,570 $157,130 $365,654 $1,657,353 | $8,286,767
Month 14 $1,134,570 $157,130 $365,654 $1,657,353 | 96,629,413
Month 15 $1,134,570 $157,130 $365,654 $1657,353 | $4,972,060
Month 16 $1,134,570 $157,130 $365,654 $1,657,353 | $3,314,707
Month 17 $1,134,570 $157,130 $365,654 $1,657,353 | $1,657,353
Month 18 $1,134,570 $157,130 $365,654 $1,657,353 $0
Total $20,422,260 $1,334,150  $2,828,333 $575,000 $6,581,766 | $31,741,509

5.01(b)(viii): Key Ratios and Measures
5.01(b)(viiij{1): Estimated Payments
Estimated payments for the SAD bonds (as currently modeled) are fixed annually at approximately $2.8 million
(principal and interest).

5.01(b)(viii}(2): Debt Coverage Ratio
With SAD bonds there is typically not a debt service coverage ratio. A value-to-lien ratio is more typically used. It is
expected that each parcel will have an appraised value of at least 3.5 times the amount of its assessment. In addition
to the 3.5:1 ratio, a reserve fund equal to one year of debt service and other available resources within the assessment
district cash flows provide additional security for repayment.

5.01(b)(viii)(3). Loan to Value
The anticipated value-to-loan is approximately 3.5 times per parcel.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 29



Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STUKEY COUNT Y
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline Al

| 5.01(b)(viif)(4): Mitigation Plan for Low Value-Lien Ratios
Not applicable at this time; pending results of the appraisal.

! 5.01(b)(xi): Supporting Cash Flow Statements
See the summary bonding amortization schedule at Section 4.02(j).

5.01(b)(x): Prepayment and Yield Maintenance
Prepayment is expected to be permitted, subject to market conditions at the time of issuance.

| 5.01(c): Reserves

A pre-funded debt service reserve of one-year of debt service has been assumed in the bonding mode!.

5.01(d): Revenue Plan

‘ 5.01(d}(i): Pledged Revenues
The assessments to be pledged for the repayment of SAD debt will be the SAD payments from property owners. TIA
revenues are not pledged for debt repayment.

5.01(d)(ii): Uncommitted Balance of the General Fund of the Local Government
As noted in 5.01(d)(i), above, local governments issuing securities through the State as permitted by SB1 of the 2015
‘ Special Legislative Session and SB442 are required to make their uncommitted balances of their general fund available
to the State in the event cash flows are insufficient to meet debt service requirements as they come due. The term
“‘uncommitted balance” has been defined by the Department of Taxation, and issuers through the State are required to
comply with this definition and the requirements of SB1.

5.01(d)(iii): Contingency Plan Regarding State Securities Law

As required, the issuer will be required to make the “uncommitted balances” of its general fund available to address
any shortfalls in cash flow. Beyond the pledged revenues and the commitment of the “uncommitted balances”, there
are no other contingencies in place. NRS 350A.153 may provide an avenue of additional contingency, if so elected by
the State and the issuer.

5.01(d)(iv): Payment by Local Governments Not Secured by Their Taxing Power
There will be no underlying general obligation pledge to levy a property tax on the part of the issuer.

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 30




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STORKEY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline Vlom v

5.01(d)(v): Proposed Transfer and Accounting of Bond Proceeds to GOED

The project is expected to commence in early-2019, with system operation expected to commence in late-2020.
Construction draws against bond proceeds will be performed in a manner agreed to by all parties in a financing
agreement.

5.01(e): Costs

5.01(e)(i-vi). Project Costs
Cost of the off-site Effluent Project are contained in Section 3.03(f)(ii).

5.01(e)(vii): Cost Overrun Plans
Cost overruns, if any, will be the responsibility of TRI Center and the SAD participants.

5.01(f): Debt Repayment

See the summary bonding amortization schedule at Section 4.02(j).

‘ This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 31




Economic Development Financing Proposal e STOKEY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline R

Section 6: Economic Development Financing Agreement

6.01: Contracting Overview
6.01(a): Project Developer

6.01(a)(i): Profile
TRIGID is a general improvement district and political subdivision of the State of Nevada created by Storey County
pursuant to NRS Chapter 318 to provide water and sewer service to TRI Center customers, which currently include 91
industrial and commercial properties and 276 service connections.

6.01(a)(ii): Ability to do Business in Nevada
TRIGID was created by Storey County pursuant to NRS 318.

6.01(a)(iii). Development Agreement between Applicant and Project Manager
To be provided during the quarter after the financing decision.

6.01(b). Project Manager

6.01(b)(i). Profile
Farr West Engineering is a 50-employee civil, environmental, and electrical engineering firm located in Reno, Nevada.
Farr West has provided municipal and utility engineering services to the City of Reno, including the City’s 2014 sanitary
sewer rehabilitation project and the Valley Road Lift Station. It also serves as the engineer of record and project
manager for TRIGID, creating the master plan for the non-potable water system.

6.01(b)(ii): Ability to do Business in Nevada

Farr West Engineering is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State, business 1D NV20011242988. It also employs
multiple Professional Engineers and Professional Land Surveyors licensed who are licensed in the State of Nevada.
Farr West has operated in Nevada for over 15 years.

6.01(b)(iii): Development Agreement between Applicant and Project Manager
To be provided during the quarter after the financing decision.

6.01(b)(iv): State Protection
To be provided with development agreement in 6.01(b)(iii).

This is a draft document. it is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 32




Economic Development Financing Proposal
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline

6.02: Financing Agreement

To be completed in advance of the bond issuance.

6.03: Infrastructure Agreement
May not be applicable.

6.04: Reimbursement Agreement
Completed and on file with Storey County.

6.05: Qualified Project Security Agreement
May not be applicable.

6.06: Development Agreement
May not be applicable.

6.07: State Release
May not be applicable.

6.08: Management and Operations Agreement
May not be applicable.

6.09: Interlocal Agreements

To be completed prior to bond issuance.

6.10: Development and Construction Insurance Plan

May not be applicable.

6.11: Prevailing Wage Applicability Opinion
May not be applicable.

9 STOREY COUNTY

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only.

Page 33




Economic Development Financing Proposal 9 STUKEY COUNTY
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline R

Exhibits
Exhibit A: Storey County Comprehensive Annual Financial Statement, 2016

{see http://www.appliedanalysis.com/edfp/2018/docs/Exhibit A.pdf)
Exhibit B: TRI Center Master Plan

(see http://www.appliedanalysis.com/edfp/2018/docs/Exhibit_B.pdf)
Exhibit C: GOED Notice of Qualified Project Status and Certificates

(see http://www.appliedanalysis .com/edfp/2018/docs/Exhibit C.pdf)
Exhibit D: State Economic Impact Study of the Qualified Project

{see hitp://www.appliedanalysis.com/edfp/2018/docs/Exhibit D.pdf)
Exhibit E: 30% Engineering Plans

(see http://www.appliedanalysis.com/edfp/2018/docs/Exhibit_E.pdf)

This is a draft document. It is intended for discussion purposes only. Page 34




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

—

5
Meeting date: August 7, 2018 Estimate of time required:.45 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and possible approval of resolution 18-501 approving the
economic development financing proposal for the effluent pipeline for certain properties
in the Tahoe Regional Industrial Center; directing the Clerk of the County to notify the
Governor’s Office of Economic Development and the Interim Finance Committee of the
Nevada Legislature of the County’s approval; and providing other details in connection
therewith.

2. Recommended motion: I, Commissioner (name), move to approve resolution 18-501
approving the economic development financing proposal for the effluent pipeline for
certain properties in the Tahoe Regional Industrial Center; directing the Clerk of the
County to notify the Governor’s Office of Economic Development and the Interim
Finance Committee of the Nevada Legislature of the County’s approval; and providing
other details in connection therewith.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: Please see Page 2

5. Supporting materials: Draft Resolution 18-501

6. Fiscal impact: Yes

Funds Available: Future Incremental State and County Revenue  Fund: Various
Comptroller

7. Legal review required: Yes

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
@VDepartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

‘ . 2 ~County Manager Other agency review:

‘ 9. Board action:
| [] Approved
(] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
Continued

1
—

} Agenda Item No. ]O




4. Staff Summary: This step will only be required if the Commission approves Item #10.




RESOLUTION NO. 18-501

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT FINANCING PROPOSAL FOR THE

EFFLUENT PIPELINE; DIRECTING THE CLERK OF THE

COUNTY TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND THE INTERIM

FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE NEVADA LEGISLATURE

OF THE COUNTY'S APPROVAL; PROVIDING OTHER

DETAILS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH.

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") of Storey County,
Nevada (the "County") proposes to issue approximately $35,000,000 special assessment bonds (the
"Bonds"), for the purpose of financing certain water projects (the "Project") pursuant to NRS chapter
271 (the "Project Act") and proposes to create a special assessment district (the "District") pursuant
to the Project Act and to create a tax increment area pursuant to NRS 278C (the "Tax Increment Area
Act"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 360.989, the Board has received notice that the Project
will be located in the jurisdiction of the County and there has been prepared and submitted to the
Board the Economic Development Financing Proposal, (the " Economic Development Financing
Proposal™) in substantially the form on file with the County Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA:

Section 1. Pursuant to NRS 360.989, the Board has received notice that the
Project will be located in the jurisdiction of the County and there has been prepared and submitted to
the Board the Economic Development Financing Proposal pursuant to which the Board proposes to
create one or more districts or areas pursuant to the Project Act and the Tax Increment Area Act and
the pledge of revenue from the District for the repayment of the Bonds. The Board hereby
determines that there is a need to finance the Project within the jurisdiction of the County to support
the development of the Project. The Board hereby approves the Economic Development Financing

Proposal, in substantially the form now before the Board and on file with the County Clerk, with

such changes, additions and deletions as are consistent with the facts and not inconsistent with this

48764542




resolution as may be approved by the County Manager whose execution thereof shall be conclusive
evidence of such officer's approval of such changes, additions and deletions.

Section 2. Pursuant to NRS 278C.280, to defray in whole or in part the cost of an
undertaking as defined in NRS 278C.130, the County desires to issue the Bonds upon the approval of
the Interim Finance Committee of the Nevada Legislature (the "IFC") pursuant to NRS 278C.157 for
a purpose related to natural resources as defined in NRS 350A.090 purchased by the State Treasurer
in accordance with the provisions of NRS chapter 350A.

Section 3. All actions, proceedings, matters and things heretofore taken, had and
done by the Board, and the officers thereof (not inconsistent with the provisions of this resolution)
directed toward the issuance of the Bonds, be and the same hereby are, ratified, approved and
confirmed.

Section 4. The County Clerk is authorized and directed to notify immediately
GOED and the IFC of the Board's approval of the Economic Development Financing Proposal.

Section 5. All resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this
resolution, are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This repealer shall not be
construed to revive any resolution, or part thereof, heretofore repealed.

Section 6. The officers of the County, the County's financial advisor and bond
counsel be, and they hereby are, authorized and directed to take all action necessary or appropriate to
effectuate the provisions of this Resolution.

Section 7. If any section, paragraph, clause or other provision of this resolution
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such
section, paragraph, clause or other provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this
resolution.

Section 8. This Resolution shall become effective and be in force immediately

upon its adoption.

48764542




ADOPTED this August 7, 2018.

(SEAL)
Attest: Chairman

Board of County Commissioners
County Clerk

48764542




STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.

COUNTY OF STOREY )

I am the duly chosen and qualified County Clerk of Storey County (herein "County"),
Nevada do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages constitute a true, correct, complete and compared copy of
a resolution adopted by the Board of County Commissioners of the County (the "Board") at a
meeting held on August 7, 2018.

2. The adoption of the resolution was duly moved and seconded and the
resolution was adopted by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of Board as follows:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

3. All members of the Board were given due and proper notice of such meeting.

4. All members of the Board were given due and proper notice of the meeting.
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, written notice of the meeting was given at least three working days before
the meeting, including in the notice the time, place, location and agenda of the meeting:

(a) By mailing a copy of the notice to each member of the Board,

(b) By posting a copy of the notice on the State's official website, the County's
website; at the principal office of the Board, or if there is no principal office, at the building in which
the meeting is to be held; and at least three other separate, prominent places within the jurisdiction of
the Board, to wit:

(i) Virginia City Post Office

(>i1) Storey County Courthouse

(iii))  Virginia City Fire Station

(iv)  Virginia City Highlands Fire Station

48764542




%) Lockwood Fire Station

and

(c) By giving a copy of the notice to each person, if any, who has requested notice
of the meetings of the Board in compliance with Chapter 241 of NRS.

5. Prior to 9:00 a.m. at least 3 working days before such meeting, such notice
was mailed to each person, if any, who has requested notice of meetings of the Board in compliance
with NRS 241.020(3)(b) by United States Mail, or if feasible and agreed to by the requestor, by
electronic mail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on August 7, 2018.

County Clerk

48764542




EXHIBIT A

(Attach Copy of Posted Notice of Meeting)

48764542




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

-—

5
Meeting date: August 7, 2018 Estimate of time required: 45 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and approval of resolution 18-502 concerning the financing of
natural resource projects; directing the Clerk of the County to notify the Interim
Finance Committee of the Nevada Legislature of a request for approval pursuant
to NRS 278C.157 and 278C.280; and providing other details in connection
therewith.

2. 2. Recommended motion: I, Commissioner (name), move to approve resolution 18-502
concerning the financing of natural resource projects; directing the Clerk of the
County to notify the Interim Finance Committee of the Nevada Legislature of a
request for approval pursuant to NRS 278C.157 and 278C.280; and providing other
details in connection therewith.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: Please see Page 2

5. Supporting materials:  Draft Resolution 18-502

6. Fiscal impact: Yes

Funds Available: Future Incremental State and County Revenue  Fund: Various
Comptroller

7. Legal review required: Yes

____ District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
‘//—\Zi/f)epartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
Qw":”_q{ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

Approved

[] Approved with Modifications
[l Denied ”

Continued

—
et —

i Agenda Item No. | |




4. Staff Summary: This step will only be required if the Commission approves Item #10.




RESOLUTION NO. 18-502

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE FINANCING OF

NATURAL RESOURCE PROJECTS; DIRECTING THE

CLERK OF THE COUNTY TO NOTIFY THE INTERIM

FINANCE COMMITTEE OF A REQUEST FOR APPROVAL

PURSUANT TO NRS 278C.157 AND 278C.280; PROVIDING

OTHER DETAILS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH.

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") of Storey County,
Nevada (the "County") proposes to issue approximately $35,000,000 special assessment bonds (the
"Bonds"), for the purpose of financing certain water projects (the "Project") pursuant to NRS chapter
271 (the "Project Act") and proposes to create a special assessment district (the "District") pursuant
to the Project Act and to create a tax increment area (the "Tax Increment Area") pursuant to NRS
278C (the "Tax Increment Area Act""); and

WHEREAS, in connection with the Tax Increment Area, the Board desires to make
a contract with property owners in the Tax Increment Area pursuant to NRS 278C.157(1)(d) only
after approval by the Interim Finance Committee of the Nevada Legislature (the "IFC") of a written
request submitted by the County; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 278C.280, upon approval of the IFC, the County may
issue municipal securities, including assessment bonds issued by the County under the Project Act,
upon approval of the IFC pursuant to NRS 278C.157, for a purpose related to natural resources, as
defined in NRS 350A.090, purchased by the State Treasurer in accordance with the provisions of
NRS chapter 350A; and

WHEREAS, upon approval of the IFC pursuant to NRS 278C.157 and 278C.280, the
Board desires to issue the Bonds to be purchased by the State Treasurer in accordance with the
provisions of NRS chapter 350A and to create the Tax Increment Area and to make a contract with
property owners in the Tax Increment Area pursuant to NRS 278C.157(1)(d); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA:

Section 1. The Board hereby requests the IFC to approve the written request of
the County pursuant to NRS 278C.157 and 278C.280 of the Project, the Bonds, the District and the

Tax Increment Area.

48764391




Section 2. All actions, proceedings, matters and things heretofore taken, had and
done by the Board, and the officers thereof (not inconsistent with the provisions of this resolution)
directed toward the issuance of the Bonds, be and the same hereby are, ratified, approved and
confirmed.

Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this
resolution, are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This repealer shall not be
construed to revive any resolution, or part thereof, heretofore repealed.

Section 4. The officers of the County, the County's financial advisor and bond
counsel be, and they hereby are, authorized and directed to take all action necessary or appropriate to
effectuate the provisions of this Resolution.

Section 5. If any section, paragraph, clause or other provision of this resolution
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such
section, paragraph, clause or other provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this
resolution.

Section 6. This Resolution shall become effective and be in force immediately
upon its adoption.

ADOPTED this August 7, 2018.

(SEAL)
Attest: Chairman

Board of County Commissioners
County Clerk

48764391




STATE OF NEVADA )

) ss.
COUNTY OF STOREY )

I am the duly chosen and qualified County Clerk of Storey County (herein "County"),
Nevada do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages constitute a true, correct, complete and compared copy of
a resolution adopted by the Board of County Commissioners of the County (the "Board") at a
meeting held on August 7, 2018.

2. The adoption of the resolution was duly moved and seconded and the
resolution was adopted by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of Board as follows:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

3. All members of the Board were given due and proper notice of such meeting.

4, All members of the Board were given due and proper notice of the meeting.
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, written notice of the meeting was given at least three working days before
the meeting, including in the notice the time, place, location and agenda of the meeting:

(a) By mailing a copy of the notice to each member of the Board,

(b) By posting a copy of the notice on the State's official website, the County's
website; at the principal office of the Board, or if there is no principal office, at the building in which
the meeting is to be held; and at least three other separate, prominent places within the jurisdiction of
the Board, to wit:

(1) Virginia City Post Office

(i1) Storey County Courthouse

(iii)  Virginia City Fire Station

(iv)  Virginia City Highlands Fire Station

48764391




(v)  Lockwood Fire Station

and

() By giving a copy of the notice to each person, if any, who has requested notice
of the meetings of the Board in compliance with Chapter 241 of NRS.

5. Prior to 9:00 a.m. at least 3 working days before such meeting, such notice
was mailed to each person, if any, who has requested notice of meetings of the Board in compliance
with NRS 241.020(3)(b) by United States Mail, or if feasible and agreed to by the requestor, by
electronic mail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, | have hereunto set my hand on August 7, 2018.

County Clerk

48764391



EXHIBIT A

(Attach Copy of Posted Notice of Meeting)

48764391




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August7,2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 18-503 regarding the
request by the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry to approve the
Findings of Fact pertaining to the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds in one or more
issues in an aggregate amount not to exceed $44,000,000 for the purpose of assisting in the
financing or refinancing of a portion of the additional costs of (i) constructing and equipping a
facility to be used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products located on an
approximately 19.4 acre site to be located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
Storey County, Nevada, and (ii) the improvements to and equipping of the facility used for for
preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an approximately 10 acre
site at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Nevada, Storey County, Nevada. The project will be owned
by Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC and operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. Approval of the
County is required pursuant to NRS 349.580(2).

2. Recommended motion: I, (Commissioner), move for approval of Resolution 18-503
regarding the request by the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry
to approve the Findings of Fact pertaining to the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds
in one or more issues in an aggregate amount not to exceed $44,000,000 for the purpose of
assisting in the financing or refinancing of a portion of the additional costs of (i) constructing and
equipping a facility to be used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products
located on an approximately 19.4 acre site to be located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada, and (ii) the improvements to and equipping of the
facility used for for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an
approximately 10 acre site at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Nevada, Storey County, Nevada. The
project will be owned by Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC and operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc.
Approval of the County is required pursuant to NRS 349.580(2).I lephone: 847-0968

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioner’s Office

4, Staff summary: Please see Page2
5. Supporting materjals: Draft Resolution 18-503

] . Director's Findings

6. Fiscal impact: No Resolution 17-463
Resolution 17-468

Resolution 17-479

Funds Available: N/A Fund: Comptroller |7




7. Legal review required: Yes _KL___District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
“&/ﬁepartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
é m}b:&/C;nty Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
] Approved ] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.

4. Staff summary: The Board of Commissioners have previously approved Resolutions regarding
the requests by the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry to approve
the Findings of Fact pertammg to the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds for the
purpose of assisting in the financing of constructing and equipping a facility owned by Fulcrum and
operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy to be used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable
fuel products located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center and/or the
improvements to and equlpplng of the facility owned and operated by Fulcrum used for the
preliminary sorting and processing of mumc1pal solid waste located at 350 Saddle Court in
Mustang, Nevada, both locations being in Storey County, Nevada. Approval of the County is
required pursuant to NRS 349.580(2).




RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
THE COUNTY OF STOREY APPROVING CERTAIN FINDINGS MADE
BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND
INDUSTRY OF THE STATE OF NEVADA PURSUANT TO NEVADA
REVISED STATUTES SECTION 349.580 RELATING TO THE
FINANCING OF A SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITY PROJECT
LOCATED IN THE COUNTY OF STOREY; AND PROVIDING OTHER
MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Fulcrum”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator™), has applied
to the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) for
the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (the “Bonds™) pursuant to Nevada Revised
Statutes (“NRS”) Sections 349.400 to 349.670, inclusive, for the purpose of assisting in the
financing or a refinancing of a portion of the additional costs of (i) constructing and equipping a
facility owned by Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC (the “Project Company”) and operated by the
Operator to be used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products located on
an approximately 19.4-acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
Storey County, Nevada (the “Biorefinery”) and (ii) the improvements to and equipping of the
facility owned by the Project Company and operated by the Operator used for preliminary sorting
and processing of municipal solid waste located on an approximately 10.0-acre site located at 350
Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada (the “Feedstock Processing Facility” and,
together with the Biorefinery, the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS Section 349.580, the Director, after reviewing the
application and other materials submitted to the Director, has made certain findings with respect
to the financing of the Project as are provided in the “Findings of the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 349.580(2)
Relating to the Financing of an Industrial Project to be Located in Storey County, Nevada” (the
“Director’s Findings”), contained in a Memorandum of Findings, dated July 25, 2018, addressed
to the Nevada State Board of Finance and the Storey County (the “County”) Board of County
Commissioners (the “Board of County Commissioners”); and

WHEREAS, the Director requests in the Director’s Findings that the Board of County
Commissioners approve the Director’s Findings pursuant to NRS Section 349.580(2); and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has reviewed the Director’s documents
and heard testimony before the Board of County Commissioners concerning the Director’s
Findings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of
Storey County, Nevada the following:

1. The Director’s Findings be and the same hereby are approved pursuant to NRS
Section 349.580(2), based upon the materials submitted by the Director and other material

Page 1 of 2




submitted to the Board of County Commissioners, the existence of all discretionary approvals
necessary for the construction, improvement, rehabilitation or redevelopment of the project and
testimony described above in the final preamble hereto. This approval is made for the purposes of
NRS Section 349.580(2). It is not (i) an analysis of the Bonds or the appropriateness or risks of
the Bonds as investments, (ii) a guarantee, or (iii) a finding that there is no risk in the Project, the
Bonds or both.

2. The approval in Paragraph 1 is based upon the satisfaction of the requirements of
the Director.

3. The Clerk-Treasurer of the Board of County Commissioners is hereby authorized
and directed to mail a certified copy of this Resolution to the Director.

4. Nothing in this Resolution obligates the County in any way with respect to the
Project or the Bonds.
5. If any action taken herein is found to be unenforceable, the remaining actions and

provisions of this Resolution shall remain valid and enforceable unless and until the Board of
County Commissioners determines otherwise.

6. The County Manager and County Attorney are authorized to take all steps
necessary to carry out the actions taken herein and to carry out the purpose and intent of this
Resolution.

7. This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage and approval.
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS __ day of ,2018.
AYES:
NAYS:
Marshall McBride
Chairman
ATTEST:

Vanessa A. Stephens
County Clerk-Treasurer

Page 2 of 2




BRIAN SANDOVAL C.J. MANTHE
Governor Director

STATE OF NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR

MEMORANDUM OF FINDINGS

TO: Nevada State Board of Finance and Storey County Board of County
Commissioners

FROM: C.J. Manthe, Director, State of Nevada Department of Business
and Industry

DATE: July 25,2018

RE: Memorandum of the Director Substantiating Findings Pursuant to Nevada

Revised Statutes 349.580(2) and 349.590 relating to the issuance of industrial
revenue bonds for the Fulcrum Biorefinery and Feedstock Processing Facility
Project

BACKGROUND

Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 349.400 through 349.670, inclusive, (the “Act”) authorize
the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) to issue
industrial development revenue bonds for financing projects owned, operated, or used by one or
more obligors for industrial uses, including assembling, fabricating, manufacturing, processing or
warehousing.

The Nevada State Board of Finance (the “Board of Finance”) and the Board of County
Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada (the “County Commissioners”) are being asked to
approve findings of the Director in connection with a proposed issuance of approximately
$44,000,000 Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry Environmental
Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC Project) (Green Bonds) in one or
more series or issues (the “Bonds”). Currently the Director expects to issue approximately
$44,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds in August or September 2018, contingent
upon its receipt of 2018 volume cap and an opinion of bond counsel. Fulcrum Sierra Holdings,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, validly authorized to do business under the laws of

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




the State of Nevada (“Fulcrum™) has requested that the Director issue the Bonds on its behalf.
Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used for the purpose of assisting in the financing or
refinancing of a portion of the additional costs of (i) constructing and equipping a facility owned
by Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC (the “Project Company”) and operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy,
Inc. (the “Operator”) to be used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products
located on an approximately 19.4-acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, Storey County, Nevada (the “Biorefinery”) and (ii) the improvements to and equipping of
the facility owned by the Project Company and operated by the Operator used for preliminary
sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an approximately 10.0-acre site located
at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada (the “Feedstock Processing Facility” and,
together with the Biorefinery, the “Project”). Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of up to
$47,000,000 (excluding any original issue premium or discount) may be issued with respect to
either component of the Project identified herein; however, the aggregate amount of Bonds to be
issued for the Project will not be greater than $47,000,000.

The Board of Finance and the County Commissioners previously approved certain findings
of the Director, dated as of July 14, 2017, relating to the Director’s $150,000,000 Environmental
Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC Project), Series 2017 (Green Bonds)
issued on October 27, 2017, and certain findings of the Director, dated as of November 27, 2017,
relating to the Director’s $21,960,000 Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum
Sierra BioFuels, LLC Project), Series 2017A (Green Bonds) issued on December 21, 2017 and the
Director’s $3,040,000 Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels,
LLC Project), Series 2018 (Green Bonds) issued on March 6, 2018 (collectively, the “Project
Bonds”). The proceeds of the Project Bonds were loaned to the Project Company to finance a
portion of the costs of the acquisition, construction, and equipping of the Project. Fulcrum is the
sole member of Fulcrum Sierra Finance Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Sierra Finance”), which is the sole member of the Project Company.

The additional costs of the Project being financed by the Bonds are being incurred to
provide certain upgrades to the Project. Such upgrades include (i) the construction of a water
treatment facility that will enable the Project Company to recycle water and reduce its water
consumption by approximately 48 million gallons per year (or approximately 50% of its expected
water consumption per year), which will address the growing concern with respect to the increased
burden on local groundwater wells and the Truckee River and decrease the burden on local sewage
and treatment facilities and (ii) the acquisition and installation of additional trommel screens and
dryers that will enhance the processing of the feedstock. Proceeds of the Bonds in the amount of
approximately $20 million will be used to construct the water treatment facility, approximately
$15 million will be used for the acquisition and installation of the trommel screens and dryers, and
the remaining portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to finance additional improvements
to the Project, pay capitalized interest on the Bonds, fund certain reserves relating to the Bonds,
and pay certain issuance expenses of the Bonds. The Operator will also make an equity
contribution of approximately $10 million for the additional costs of the Project.

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




Fulcrum submitted its application for this industrial development bond financing to the
Director on June 6, 2018 (the “Application”). A summary memorandum of the Application and
proposed financing prepared by the financial advisor to the Director is attached hereto as
Exhibit A. The Director and Fulcrum signed a Letter Agreement dated July 17, 2018, setting forth
certain requirements and fees to be paid by Fulcrum for the bond financing. Pursuant to NRS
349.585 the Director received approval of the Office of Economic Development to finance or
refinance the Project on July 20, 2018, attached hereto as Exhibit B. The Director also received a
resolution in support of the Project from the County adopted June 19, 2018, attached hereto as
Exhibit C. A public hearing to receive public comment regarding the issuance of the Bonds and
necessary to satisfy the public approval requirement of Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “TEFRA Hearing”) was held on July 3, 2018. Upon approval of
the Findings, the Director expects to issue a certificate of private activity bond volume cap
allocation for the Project. Subject to final approval from the Board of Finance and the County
Commissioners, the Bonds will be sold in a negotiated, limited public offering and are expected to
be issued in August or September 2018, subject to market conditions.

The Bonds and the interest due thereon will not be an obligation, debt or liability of the
State of Nevada or the Director and will not constitute or give rise to any pecuniary liability or
charge against the credit of the Director or the credit or taxing power of the State of Nevada, but
will be a limited obligation payable solely from loan payments made by Fulcrum, the guaranty of
the Operator and other revenues derived from the financing. Unlike the Project Bonds, which are
secured by a mortgage covering the Project, the Bonds cannot be secured by a mortgage on the
Project due to certain restrictions required by the owners of the Project Bonds and, pursuant to
NRS 349.620(1)(a), the Director has not required that a mortgage be delivered to cover the Project.
However, in order to provide additional security for the Bonds, Fulcrum will deliver a technology
performance insurance policy from Indian Harbor Insurance Company and a pledge of the
membership interests of the Operator in Fulcrum and Holdings in Sierra Finance.

As a prerequisite to the issuance of the Bonds, attached are findings of the Director as
required by NRS 349.580(2) (the “Findings”) for approval by the Board of Finance and the County
Commissioners. Additional considerations of the Director as set forth in NRS 349.590 (the
“Additional Considerations™) are also attached.

Additional documents relevant to the Findings and Additional Considerations have been
placed on file with the Ex-Officio Secretary of the Board of Finance and the County Manager of
Storey County and are available for review by the Board of Finance and the County
Commissioners. A list of such additional documents is attached to the Findings. The Findings are
based on the totality of the record, and the Director has not attempted to list each element of the
record which has led to each of the determinations made in the Findings. The Director, in
consultation with financial professionals, legal counsel and bond counsel, represents that the
Findings comply with NRS 349.580(2) and recommends approval of the Findings by the Board of
Finance and the County Commissioners for the issuance of the Bonds.

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




If the Board of Finance and the County Commissioners approve the Findings as required
by law, the financing may proceed. Issuance of the Bonds as tax-exempt obligations is contingent
upon the satisfaction of the following conditions:

l. Receipt of an unqualified opinion from Gilmore & Bell, P.C., bond counsel to the
State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry, that interest on the Bonds will be tax-
exempt for federal tax purposes. This opinion will be in a standard form acceptable to the financial
market. The financing will not go forward unless such opinion is delivered.

2. The issuance by the Director of a certificate of private activity bond volume cap
allocation.
3. The final agreements related to the Bonds will be in forms acceptable to the

Director and its legal counsel.

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




FINDINGS OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF
BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 349.580(2)
RELATING TO THE FINANCING OF AN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT
TO BE LOCATED IN STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company validly
authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Nevada (“Fulcrum”) has submitted its
application dated June 6, 2018, as amended (the “Application™), to the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) for the issuance of industrial
development revenue bonds in an amount not to exceed $47,000,000 (excluding any original issue
premium or discount) (the “Bonds”); and

WHEREAS, proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used for the purpose of assisting
in the financing or refinancing of a portion of the additional costs of (i) constructing and equipping
a facility owned by Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the
“Project Company”) and operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator”) to be used for
converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products located on an approximately 19.4-
acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada
(the “Biorefinery”) and (ii) the improvements to and equipping of the facility owned by Fulcrum
and operated by the Operator used for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste
located on an approximately 10.0-acre site located at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County,
Nevada (the “Feedstock Processing Facility” and, together with the Biorefinery, the “Project™).
Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of up to $47,000,000 (excluding any original issue
premium or discount) may be issued with respect to either component of the Project identified
herein; however, the aggregate amount of Bonds to be issued for the Project will not be greater
than $47,000,000; and

WHEREAS, the Director has authority to issue the Bonds pursuant to the Nevada Revised
Statues, including Sections 349.400 through 349.670, inclusive, thereof (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum, the Project Company, the Operator, and other interested parties have
prepared and submitted to the Director certain reports, records and other information related to the
Project, and the Director has reviewed such reports, records and other information and has
otherwise investigated the facts concerning the Project to enable the Director to make the following
findings in accordance with the Act;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to Section 349.580(2) of the Act, the Director hereby finds
and determines as follows (the “Findings”):

1. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(a) of the Act, based on the Application and other
documents on file with the Director, the Project consists of land, buildings and other improvements
and all real and personal property necessary in connection therewith (excluding inventories, raw

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




materials, and working capital) which is suitable for construction, improvement, preservation,
restoration, rehabilitation or redevelopment of an industrial or other commercial enterprise.

2, Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(b) of the Act, based on the Application, and other
documents on file with the Director, the Project will provide significant public benefits. The public
benefits include an approximately $410 million investment in the Project ($58 million of which is
attributable to the proposed financing) located in Storey County, Nevada (the “County”) which is
expected to add (a) 550 construction jobs (50 of which are attributable to the proposed financing);
(b) 120 permanent, direct jobs; and (c) more than 1,100 indirect jobs (100 of which are attributable
to the proposed financing) and provide other economic benefits to the County. In addition, a
portion of the Bonds will be used to construct a water treatment facility (the “Water Treatment
Facility”) that will enable the Project Company to recycle water and reduce its water consumption
by approximately 48 million gallons per year (or approximately 50% of its expected water
consumption per year), which will address the growing concern with respect to the increased
burden on local groundwater wells and the Truckee River and decrease the burden on local sewage
and treatment facilities. See Exhibit A for a summary of estimated economic benefits.

3. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(c) of the Act, based on the Application, financial
statements of Fulcrum, the Project Company, and the Operator, a technology performance
insurance policy to be entered into by Indian Harbor Insurance Company, The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as collateral agent (the “Collateral Agent”), and the Borrower in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds, and other documents on file with the Director, Fulcrum,
the Project Company and the Operator have sufficient financial resources to place the Project in
operation, continue or cause the operations conducted at the Project to be continued, and meet the
obligations of (a) Fulcrum under the Financing Agreement to be entered into by Fulcrum and the
Director in connection with the issuance of the Bonds (the “Financing Agreement”), and (b) the
Operator under the Guaranty Agreement to be entered into in connection with the issuance of the
Bonds (the “Guaranty”).

4. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(d) of the Act, based on the Financing Agreement,
the Trust Indenture to be entered into by the Director and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”), in connection with the issuance of the Bonds (the
“Indenture™), and other financing documents on file with the Director, there are sufficient
safeguards to assure that all money provided by or through the State of Nevada Department of
Business and Industry will be expended solely for the purposes of the Project, including (a) certain

“provisions in the Financing Agreement and other financing documents that have been or will be
entered into in connection with the issuance of the Bonds which set forth procedures ensuring that
such moneys shall only be used to pay for certain costs relating to the acquisition, construction,
improvement and equipping of the Project, and (b) the appointment of The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as the Trustee and the Collateral Agent with respect to the Bonds
to ensure such procedures are correctly followed. See Exhibit F hereto for related document
extracts.

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




5. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(e) of the Act, based on the Application, a special
use permit issued by the County and other documents on file with the Director, the Project will be
compatible with the existing facilities in the area adjacent to the location of the Project.

6. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(f) of the Act, based upon the Application, including
the table of governmental approvals, an email from the Nevada Division of Environmental
Protection confirming that no additional permits are necessary for the construction and operation
of the Water Treatment Facility, and opinions of counsel to Fulcrum attached thereto, the
certificate of Fulcrum attached hereto as Exhibit G and other documents on file with the Director,
the Project has received all approvals by local, state and federal governments which may be
necessary at this time to proceed with the construction, improvement, rehabilitation or
redevelopment of the Project.

7. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(g) of the Act, by submission of the Application for
financing, Fulcrum has requested the Director to issue the Bonds to assist in the financing or
refinancing of the Project.

(Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank)

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED
STATUTES 349.590 RELATING TO THE FINANCING OF AN INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT PROJECT TO BE LOCATED IN STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

Pursuant to NRS 349.590, as additional considerations required for the approval and
issuance of the Bonds, the Director has determined the following (the “Additional
Considerations”). The Director hereby requests the Board of Finance to make the same
determinations.

1. Pursuant to Section 349.590(1) of the Act, based upon the Application, and other
documents on file with the Director, the total amount of funds necessary to be provided by the
Director through the issuance of the Bonds shall not exceed $47,000,000 (exclusive of any original
issuance premium or discount).

2. Pursuant to Section 349.590(2)(a) of the Act, the Director has received a 5-year
operating history from each of Fulcrum, the Project Company, and the Operator, either on an
individual or consolidated basis. Further the Director has received assurances based on covenants
in the Indenture that all the Bonds will be sold only to qualified institutional buyers as defined in
Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and/or
accredited investors as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) promulgated under the Securities
Act in minimum denominations of $100,000.

3. Pursuant to Section 349.590(3) of the Act, based upon the Application and other
documents on file with the Director, Fulcrum, the Project Company, and the Operator are not
currently rated by Moody’s Investors Service, S&P Global Ratings, or Fitch Ratings, Inc.

4. Pursuant to Section 349.590(4) of the Act, based upon the Application and other
documents on file with the Director, there are no existing facilities of a like nature within the
County. The Director is not prohibited from financing the Project as provided in NRS 349.565.

5. Pursuant to Section 349.590(5) of the Act, the Director has considered the extent to
which the Project is affected by various federal, state and local governmental action, activities,
programs and development and has determined to issue the Bonds, including the consideration that
the U.S. Department of Defense is providing a grant of up to $70 million for the Project and that
the Project is deemed a National Security Program.

6. Pursuant to Section 349.590(6) of the Act, none of Fulcrum, the Project Company,
or the Operator have maintained facilities appropriate to the community in Nevada for longer than
ten years, but have maintained facilities since 2016.

These Findings and Additional Considerations are made only for the purposes of Sections
349.580 and 349.590, respectively, of the Act and do not constitute a guarantee of financial results

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




with respect to the Project or otherwise with respect to the business prospects of Fulcrum, the
Project Company, or the Operator. These Findings are not intended as an analysis of the Bonds as
investments or intended to be relied upon by investors.

(Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank)

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




NOW, THEREFORE, the Director hereby requests, pursuant to Sections 349.580 and
349.590 of the Act, that the Nevada State Board of Finance and the Board of County
Commissioners of Storcy County, Nevada approve the Findings as sct forth above and evidence
such approval by execution of the certificatc and adoption of the resolution, respectively, each in
the respective form attached hereto as Exhibit H.

Dated this 25th day of July, 2018

DIRECTOR OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY

o (1. hadta

0 C.]. Manthe
Director

8-1

Carson Clty: 1830 E. Collage Parkway, Suits 100 Carson City, Nevaa 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2098 - Fax {775) 684-2098

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 83101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax {702) 486-2758
wurw business.mwv.gov




EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT B

EXHIBIT C

EXHIBIT D

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT G

EXHIBIT H

LIST OF EXHIBITS
Financial Advisor Memorandum
Office of Economic Development Approval
County Support Resolution
Reserved

Governor’s Certificate regarding the issuance of the Bonds for TEFRA Hearing
Purposes

Document Extracts Regarding Use of Funds
Certificate of Fulcrum Regarding Federal, State & Local Approvals

Form of Certificate of Approval by the State Board of Finance and Resolution of
Approval by the County Commissioners

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS ON FILE

1. Revenue Bonds for Industrial Development Act (NRS 349.400 — 349.670)

2. Regulations Pertaining to the Act (NAC 349.010-349.080)

3. Fulcrum Application
4. Trust Indenture (draft), between the Director and the Trustee
5. Financing Agreement (draft), between the Director and Fulcrum

6. Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum (draft) relating to the Bonds

7. Bond Purchase Agreement (draft) among the Director, Fulcrum and the underwriters
named therein

8. Guaranty Agreement (draft) of the Operator

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758

www.business.nv.gov




EXHIBIT A
FINANCIAL ADVISOR MEMORANDUM

(Attached)

A-1

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




LEWIS ([l YOUNG
ROBERTSON & BURNINGHAM, nc.

AN INDEPENDENT MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY
AND CONSULTING FIRM

July 23, 2018

C. 1. Manthe

Director

Nevada Department of Business & Industry
1830 College Pkwy Ste# 100

Carson City, NV 89706

Re: Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC
(Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc.)
Environmental iImprovement Revenue Bonds

Director Manthe:

Acting in its capacity as Financial Advisor (“FA”) to the Nevada Department of Business & Industry
(“B&I”), Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. (“LYRB") is providing this letter to complement your
Findings to be submitted to the Board of Finance addressing the Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC (“Fulcrum
Holdings”) financing application and the proposed issuance by the Director of the B&! of approximately
$44,000,000 Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC Project), Series
2018 (“Series 2018 Bonds"”) (industrial development revenue bonds) to finance the Fulcrum Project, as
more fully described below.

The proposed financing of the Series 2018 Bonds is in concert with the initial three financings recently
completed totaling $175,000,000 of Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra
BioFuels, LLC Project), Series 2017 & 2018 (Green Bonds) for Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC (“Fulcrum
BioFuels”). As Fulcrum has discovered efficiencies in engineering the plant, along with reducing
dependency on outside services, Fulcrum Holdings is seeking additional funding to integrate an onsite
water treatment facility along with incorporating strategic trommels and dryers into the process. These
enhancements will make the plant more efficient, reduce operating costs and streamline the processing
of the materials onsite.

Fulcrum has investigated a variety of funding sources for these improvements to the Project. Upon
initial feedback from its various lending sources and its underwriter, this financing will deliver the best
financing package which will enable Fulcrum to maximize cash flow to maintain overall financial
strength. These bonds are projected to realize a higher interest rate than the aforementioned
transactions but are anticipated to still outperform the alternatives.

Whereas the Series 2017 & 2018 Bonds were issued on behalf of Fulcrum BioFuels, a subsidiary of
Fulcrum Holdings, Fulcrum Holdings will be the beneficiary of the Series 2018 Bonds.

introduction

The B&I has successfully facilitated the issuance of three prior series of bonds in the aggregate amount
of $175,000,000 to finance the overall Project as described below. The first financing was completed in
October 2017 and the latest transaction closed in March of 2018. All of these transactions were for
Fulcrum BioFuels which provided a security interest in the revenues of the Project, along with a security

GATEWAY PLAZA BUILDING TELEPHONE B801.596.0700
41 NORTH RIO BGRANDE, SUITE 11 TOLL FREE BOR.581.1100
BALYT LAKE CITY, UTAH 84101 FAX 801,586.23800

WWW.LEWIBYOUNG.COM




interest in the assets. Since there are certain covenants and limitations on additional bonds that can be
issued on behalf of Fulcrum BioFuels, Fulcrum Holdings has applied for this 2018 Project financing.

Fulcrum Holding's assets consist of its ownership interests in its subsidiaries and the realized revenues
from those projects. As such, Fulcrum Holdings is limited in its ability to secure additional bonds. The
Series 2018 Bonds will be secured as described below. LYRB is tasked, along with Gilmore & Bell, P.C,, to
review Fulcrum Holding’s application and suppiemental materials on the validity of the application in
concert with your Findings. This letter highlights segments of the review process.

Summary of Original Project:

The Fulcrum Project will annually convert approximately 175,000 tons of municipal solid waste (MSW)
diverted from the local landfill, into approximately 10.5 miilion gallons of low-carbon transportation fuel
to be utilized primarily for aircraft fuel, but also potentially for military purposes.

s

e
R gE

The entire Fulcrum Project, located in Storey County, Nevada, is being constructed in two phases. Phase
1, located at 350 Saddle Court, Mustang, Storey County, is the Feedstock Processing Facility where the
MSW is sized, sorted and processed to meet the specifications of the Biorefinery. The Feedstock
Processing Facility is approximately 65,000 square-feet with a capacity to process more than 1,500 tons
of MSW per day and is strategically located on 10-acres adjacent to the Lockwood Regional Landfill. The
Feedstock Processing Facility utilizes conventional MSW processing equipment, including shredders,
waster screens, density separators, magnets, eddy currents and other equipment to process and remove
high-value recyclable products (metals and plastics) and inorganic materials not suitable for the
feedstock.

The Feedstock Processing Facility was completed in 2016 and has been operational since that time.
Construction of Phase 1 was 100% financed through equity contributions. Proceeds from the second
issuance of bonds will finance approximately $8.5 million of equipment upgrades for the Feedstock
Processing Facility.

2|

ity




Phase 2 of the Project, located at 3600 Peru Drive, in
the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, Storey County, is
the Biorefinery where the feedstock is converted into
a low-carbon, renewable synthetic crude oil, or
“syncrude”. This Biorefinery is located on 19.4 acres,
about 20 miles east of Reno, Nevada and 10 miles east
of the Feedstock Processing facility. The Biorefinery
employs commercially proven equipment deployed in
a proprietary and innovative process utilizing a steam-
reforming gasifier to convert the MSW-derived
feedstock into syncrude. This syncrude product will be :
transported to Andeavor’s (formerly known as Tesoro .
Corporation) refinery to be further processed into Frocessing System
transportation fuel.

Fulcrum has entered into a fixed-priced, guaranteed Engineering, Procurement, and Construction (EPC)
contract with an EPC Contractor for the construction of the Biorefinery. The Bonds will fund a portion of
the construction of Phase 2 of the Fulcrum Project which is expected to begin operation in early 2020.

Additional site and facility photos are in Appendix A.

% i

Biorefinery site w/ readering overlay

Summary of the 2018 Project:

The 2018 Project will be comprised of two components: a water treatment facility (the “Water
Treatment Facility”) along with incorporating trommels and dryers.

A Water Treatment Facility will be constructed at the Biorefinery to enable the Project to recycle water
and reduce its water consumption by approximately 48 million gallons per year {or approximately 50%

3]




of its expected water consumption per year). As confirmed by Farr West Engineering, the engineer of it}
record for the TRI General Improvement District (the “District”) which operates the water and sewer

systems in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (“TRIC"), the Water Treatment Facility will enable the

Biorefinery to “maximize the reuse of water and minimize consumption” as referenced above. Further,

the 2018 Project addresses the overall concern regarding the increased burden of existing water

supplies of the District, including groundwater wells and the Truckee River, to facilitate growth and

expansion in TRIC. The Water Treatment Facilities will allow the Project to “operate more autonomously

and decrease its burden on local sewage systems and treatment facilities, which will, in turn, preserve

such facilities and capacity for other industrial development in the area.”. Additionally, this aspect of the
Project will reduce expenses and reliance on third-party entities to operate the Project.

Other enhancements to the Project will include installing trommels and dryers to the process. The
trommels will aid in sorting materials to reduce excess burden on other machinery in the process. The
dyers will enable more efficient processing of the materials throughout the plant. Together, the
trommels and dryers will extend the useful life of the Plant’s machinery, reduce repair & replacement of
parts, improve operations and reduce overall costs.

Process and Product:

Fulcrum has developed and perfected the process of gasification and FT technologies, in connection
with other standard refining processes at a commercial level of operation, to process waste diverted
from local landfills into jet fuel of a quality to be purchased directly by a major airline and for potential
military uses at competitive market pricing. Fulcrum has already demonstrated its process at a fully-
integrated plant with over two years of successful operations.

Fulcrum expects to deliver approximately 10.5 million gallons of syncrude per year at full capacity.
Fulcrum has entered into agreements with its strategic partners to provide the MSW stream (Waste
Management of Nevada), refine the syncrude (Andeavor Offtaker) and take delivery of the final
transportation product (United Airlines and potential military clients).

Construction & Permits

Fulcrum has confirmed that site preparation and construction related activities have commenced at the
various sites as appropriate to the overall construction schedule.

As for the new 2018 Project components, Fulcrum and its related parties have confirmed that all
pertinent permits and approvals are in place. Considering the 2018 Project components, the Nevada
Division of Environmental Protection (“NDEP”) has confirmed that no other water pollution control
permits from the NDEP will be required for the construction or operation of the Biorefinery, but for the
storm water permits already in process. ‘

Economic impact to Nevada

Fulcrum anticipates that the overall, the Project will have a significant economic impact by creating
skilled, high-paying jobs both from the initial construction phase and from full-time permanent jobs,
generating both new property and sales tax revenues. These jobs and revenues will generate additional
economic value within the community with its employees utilizing local services. In summary, Fulcrum
anticipates the following benefits to the local economy:

4]




®  Construction i
o $410 million to fund construction of the Feedstock and Biorefinery projects
o Subsequently, Fulcrum expects to spend approximately $20-30 miilion to install a jet
fuel upgrading system
o Future plans include a 30-million gallon per year expansion totaling $450 million
# Job Creation
o Fulcrum projects creating approximately 550 construction jobs and more than 1,100
indirect jobs in the area.
o Fulcrum projects creating approximately 120 non-construction permanent jobs, all of
which will be filled by local residents but for one person being transferred
o Anticipated $9.4MM in expected payroll increase for the first three years
o Anticipated $4MM+ annual salary budget with the following likely positions and salary
ranges for the 120 non-construction permanent jobs are as follows:

s Management / Supervisor (7): $22.77/hour to $64.42/hour

= Operators (28): $24.88/hour to $32.82/hour

®  Maintenance (34): $29.11/hour to $29.34/hour

«  Equipment Operators (10): $17.25/hour

s Other (41): $11.61/hour

o Trucking - $1.0MM annually for 20 drivers at $24.04/hour

o Maintenance - $600,000 annually for a third-party employer for 10 positions at
$28.85/hour

o Wastewater Treatment & ASU — $750,000 annually for a third-party for 10 positions at
$36.06/hour

o Construction Jobs (550)

s Construction labor will be hired by Fulcrum’s construction contractor under a
fixed-price EPC agreement.

*  Although the detailed hourly wage information is not available to Fulcrum, the
budgeted construction costs include an estimate of over $60MM for the labor
portion of the fixed-price contract, which includes the various construction,
engineering & design subcontractors.

= Various jobs will include construction, engineering & design subcontractors

o Indirect jobs (1,100)
= Jobs generated within the community
B Taxes
o Property taxes are estimated at $13 million over a 10-year tax abatement period
{3 In Millions) Amount Paid Amount Abated Amount Paid Amount Abated
10-Yr Total 10-Yr Total Annual Average Annual Average
Biorefinery $11.50 $11.50 $1.15 $1.15
Feedstock Facility 1.50 1.50 0.15 0.15
Total $13.00 $13.00 $1.30 $1.30

o Sales taxes of approximately $11 million generated during construction and over the 10-

year tax abatement period

= Additional sales tax will be generated through normal operations of the Project
and from employees living within the community

5]




=

(S In Millions) | Amount Paid | Amount Abated
During Construction

Biorefinery $3.90 $10.90
Feedstock Facility 0.34 0.95

10 Yrs. of Operations

Biorefinery $6.20 $0.00
Feedstock Facility 0.60 0.00
Total | $11.04 | $11.85

¥ Benefit to the Local Utility District

o]

o

With the Water Treatment Facility, the District will retain valuable resources that can be
applied to other growth and development in TRIC.

Additionally, the Water Treatment Facility will enable Fulcrum to not use local resources
to deliver or treat water and sewer. It will not be creating a new demand on the District
which could impact its operations and/or capital improvement plan

Appraisal and Market Study

Fulcrum originally engaged Duff & Phelps, LLC {D&P) to provide an estimate of the fair market value of
the Project, a plant located in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada, as if complete,
as of May 31, 2017 (Valuation Date). Based on D&P’s analysis as detailed in its report and exhibits, the
Fair Market Value of the Plant is reasonably estimated at $340 million as of the Valuation Date. 1t would
be expected that the 2018 Project will only increase the estimated value of the Plant and its assets.

Fulcrum engaged Argus Consulting Services and Nexant, Inc. to prepare market study reports. The
reports’ findings are as follows:

W Quality:

o]

“In summary, the Project’s FT Syncrude’s primary qualities overall are superior for the
production of transportation fuels compared to conventional crude oils being processed
at Tesoro’s Martinez refinery. A number of secondary characteristics, including poor
cold flow properties, a highly paraffinic naphtha fraction, and its oxygen content, make
the FT Syncrude somewhat more challenging to refine to finished products. However,
the plan to blend Fulcrum’s FT Syncrude in small percentages with conventional crude
oils will mitigate these issues, and based on Nexant’s review of the FT Syncrude’s
characteristics, Nexant concludes that the Project’s FT Syncrude overall is an easier and
less costly refinery feedstock to process than the types of conventional crude oils
typically processed at Tesoro’s Martinez refinery, and in the quantities being
considered, will not require any modifications to the existing Martinez refinery.”

# Competition:

o “The Project is a one-of-a-kind, processing municipal solid waste into a FT syncrude

product that will be sold to Tesoro’s Martinez refinery located in the San Francisco Bay
area. Nexant evaluated the competitiveness of the Project against U.S. competitive
facilities and international imports.”

“National: Nexant reviewed the potential competitiveness of the Project versus the
ongoing U.S. projects and concluded that there is almost no competition to the Project.

6|




California refiners, especially in the targeted San Francisco area, are an attractive
market for the Project’s FT syncrude since the Project will have advantages due to
superior logistics, attractive costs for refiners, and limited competition from other FT-
based facilities.”

o “International: All the worldwide FT syncrudes produced today are captively processed
into intermediate or finished products on site. None of the synthesis activities suggest
that there is a potential for them to supply FT syncrude to the United States. As such,
Nexant does not foresee any international competition for the Project’s FT syncrude.”

®  Price Sensitivity:

Wherein the Cellulosic Waiver Credit (“CWC”) price is inversely correlated to gasoline
prices, the CWC creates an effective hedge against gasoline and oil prices. Even in a low
oil price environment of $35 per barrel, the effective floor for Fulcrum’s Cellulosic RIN
will exceed $3.50 per gallon. This Renewable Fuel Standard mechanism that is
established under law provides Fulcrum with price stability in any oil price environment.
Because the CWC is inversely correlated to gasoline prices, the CWC creates an effective
hedge against gasoline and oil prices (see the “Market Overview—Renewable Fuel
Standard” section in the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum). As oil prices go
down, cellulosic RIN prices go up.

Revenues & Expenditures Summary

Fulcrum anticipates generation of meaningful revenues from the Project in FY 2020 with full operations
commencing in 2022. Fulcrum will increase production over a 3-year period beginning with 6 million
gallons in 2020 to approximately 10.5 million gallons in 2022. Approximately 80-85% of the revenues
are derived from generating the syncrude with the balance coming from tipping fees, portfolio energy
credits and recyclables being the largest revenue component. As for expenditures, approximately 80%
are comprised of plant labor & maintenance, purchased natural gas & power and other operating and
General & Administrative expenses. Other expenditures include catalyst and chemicals, an operating
cost contingency, property taxes, insurance and transportation.

Fulcrum has engaged third-party consultants to determine the feasibility and integrity of the model by
stressing the variables and inputs to the model. Conservative inflators were incorporated accordingly.

In servicing the debt, Fulcrum BioFuels projects 1.4x, 1.6x and 1.9x coverage respectively in the first
three years of operations, with an average of 2.4x coverage for the next 5-yrs. This is conservative in
nature with contingencies incorporated into the mode! allowing flexibility in managing future cash-
flows. The excess revenues will be available for the repayment on the Series 2018 Bonds.

The projected debt service coverage for the Fulcrum Holdings’ Series 2018 Bonds is 5.5x, 3.1x and 6.0x
respectively for the first three years and averaging 3.9x for the next 5-yrs thereafter.

Financing Summary

Fulcrum requesting that approximately $44,000,000 of tax-exempt bonds together with an additional
$10,000,000 of equity from its partners be applied as follows:

#® Sources:
o Bonds Issued: $44,000,000

7|




o Fulcrum Equity Contribution: $10,000,000 7]
o Total Sources of Funds: $54,000,000
¥ Uses:

o Project costs: $30,600,000
8 Water Treatment Facility: $19,600,000
= Trommels and Dryers: $11,000,000
o Financing Costs:
e Capitalized Interest (through February 2021): ~$15,000,000
= Debt Service Reserve Fund: $4,400,000
= Costs of Issuance: $1,300,000
s  Performance Insurance Premium: $1,000,000
s Electrical Substation: $500,000
= Engineering Services: $500,000
a  Start-Up: $700,000
# Payments
o The first interest payment will be February 15, 2019 and semiannually thereafter
o The first principal payment will be August 15, 2023 and semiannually thereafter
= The final principal payment is anticipated to occur in February 2038
= There will be level debt service payments on the bonds
o The projected average annual debt service payment after the capitalized interest period
is: $5,725,000

Financing Security:
As alluded to above, Fulcrum Holdings has limited assets that could be pledged to secure the Series 2018

Bonds in its ownership interest in its subsidiaries. Accordingly, the following items have been pledged the
security for the Series 2018 Bonds:

o All revenues and funds of Fulcrum Holdings under the Trust Indenture and Collateral Agreement
which include the following:

o Debt service reserve fund: $4,400,000
o Capitalized interest fund: ~$15,000,000

o Fulcrum provides a Parent Guaranty on the timely repayment of the Series 2018 Bonds of all
principal, interest and other payments due under the Financing Agreement.

o Although the EPC Contract is for Fulcrum BioFuels, it contains specific Project performance
security measures, including a guarantee of cost, schedule and performance, a standby letter-of-
credit, and a guarantee by the EPC Contractor’s parent company, Abengoa, for the Project each
as more particularly described below:

o That the Biorefinery will meet all the performance guarantees set forth in the EPC
Contract, satisfy all other conditions set forth in the EPC Contract, and cause the
Biorefinery to achieve Final Completion

o An unconditional, irrevocable (subject to the terms thereof) standby letter-of-credit in
the amount of approximately $18.2 million has been issued by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

8|




p a— g

© On October 27, 2017, the EPC Contractor furnished to Fulcrum BioFuels a parent {[[[Ji

guarantee from Abengoa guaranteeing the payment and performance of EPC Contractor’s
obligations under the EPC Contract.

As for the Water Treatment Facility, there is a separate EPC contract with Aquatech International,
LLC that will guarantee specific performance measures including necessary costs, schedule and
general Facility performance. This EPC is still being finalized as of the date of this letter, but will
be place prior to the marketing and sale of the Series 2018 Bonds.

The trommels are being purchased under a fixed-price agreement that guarantees, price,
schedule and performance. The contract for the dryers has yet to be finalized, but will also include
such guarantees.

In addition to the EPC Contractor’s guarantees, Fulcrum has provided $10 million of contingent
equity capital and has committed up to an additional $12.2 million of contingent equity capital
pursuant to the Fulcrum Project Support Agreement to cover additional costs of the Project.

Fulcrum Holdings secured a technology performance insurance policy from Indian Harbor
Insurance Company (the “Performance Insurer”) that insures against losses resulting from
defective, faulty or incomplete performance of the Biorefinery at Mechanical Completion. The
Performance Insurance Policy will provide funds for the mandatory redemption of the Series 2018
Bonds (up to the lesser of (A) the maximum principal amount of the Series 2018 Bonds
outstanding as of the Mechanical Completion Date, together with capitalized interest accrued but
not paid prior to the Mechanical Completion Date and {B) the par amount of Series 2018 Bonds
should, among other required loss triggers, projected cash flows not meet the minimum loan-life
coverage ratio of 1.20 as calculated in the Performance Insurance Policy prior to the Mechanical
Completion Date due to defective, faulty or incomplete performance of the Biorefinery. The
Performance Insurance Policy does not guarantee payment on the Series 2018 Bonds and is NOT
a municipal bond insurance policy.

The Series 2018 Bonds are obligations exclusively of Fulcrum Holdings and are not guaranteed by
any of its subsidiaries. Because Fulcrum Holdings is a holding company with no material assets
other than its ownership interests in its subsidiaries and all of its operations are conducted by its
subsidiaries, the Series 2018 Bonds are structurally subordinated to ali existing and future debt,
trade credit and other liabilities of those subsidiaries including Fulcrum BioFuels and Fulcrum
Holdings’ rights, and hence the rights of the Series 2018 Bondholders, to participate in any bond
distribution of assets of the Fulcrum BioFuels upon liquidation or reorganization or otherwise
would be subject to the prior claims of such subsidiary’s creditors, except to the extent that
Fulcrum Holdings’ claims as a creditor of such subsidiary may be recognized.

In addition to the EPC Contractor’s guarantees, Fulcrum has committed $10 million in equity
capital as contingency to cover costs incurred in excess of the EPC Contractor’s $18.2 million
liability during performance testing of the Biorefinery.

Series 2018 Bond Sale Summary

With approval of the Board of Finance, Fuicrum Holdings expects to release the preliminary limited
offering memorandum to investors soon after the August Board meeting. Upon such release, the
underwriter will immediately market the bonds with an anticipated closing date with a few weeks of

approval.

91




Sos——

—r

vy
In speaking with the underwriter, due to the unique structure and credit quality of the Series 2018 [T}
Bonds, it is likely that existing bond holders of the Fulcrum BioFuels Project Financings would be prime
candidates to invest in the Series 2018 Bonds.

Estimated Draw Schedule

Fulcrum issued the full notice to proceed to the EPC contractor on October 31, 2017. Construction
began in May of 2018 with construction completion expected in December 2019. Fulcrum has three
main sources of funds for the Project: Investor Equity, a Department of Defense Grant and the Tax-
Exempt Bonds issued through the B&I. It should be noted that Fulcrum has already expended
approximately $57.4MM for development of Phase 1 of the Project. Fulcrum anticipates spending down
the balance of the funds for Phase 2 accordingly:

¥ Construction:
o May 2018 thru December 2019
o Total: $410MM
= This amount includes equity funds expended to date along with new energy risk
insurance
®  Use of Funds
o Investor Equity ($123.5MM)
e 100% of the Investor Equity was spent prior to expending any bond proceeds
o Department of Defense Grant ($67.5MM)
= Is being expended having started in November 2017 on thru August 2019
o Fulcrum BioFuels Tax-Exempt Bonds issued through the B&I ($175MM)
®  Was used to reimburse approximately $17MM of investor equity expended to
date (after capitalized interest, debt service reserve and COI are paid at closing)
» The remaining is being expended from February 2018 thru November 2019
{including payment of capitalized interest through 2020)
o Fulcrum Holdings Tax-Exempt Bonds issued through the B&! ($44MM)
= Will be used to finance the Water Treatment Facility and incorporate trommels
and dryers into the Process {after capitalized interest, debt service reserve and
costs of issuance (“COI”) are paid at closing)

Fulcrum did begin utilizing its Equity and Grants before expending bond proceeds.

Conclusion

The Fulcrum group has created a unique project that, if successful, will bring great economic and
environmental benefits to the region in creating new jobs, generating a positive economic impact while
reducing landfill waste to produce renewable energies. There are structural components to this
financing that are less secure than the Fulcrum BioFuels financings. However, Fulcrum Holdings has
sought additional measures to counter the unique nature of the financing. This is all supported by the
strong, diverse partnerships Fulcrum has cultivated to make success realistic.

Since the Series 2018 Bonds have a variety of security features and enhancements to the overall
Fulcrum Project which will reduce the impact on local service providers by reducing consumption of
local resources, particularly water and sewer, and proactively managing operational costs, | concur with
you and Bond Counsel that this Financing Application is appropriate for your consideration and shouid
be allocated private activity bond resources.

10 |




A~

rrvrre
LYRB concurs with the B&I and Bond Counsel that the Fulcrum Project meets the requisite Nevada (i
Revised Statutes and should be presented to the Board of Finance for its approval.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the Fulcrum financing application. Please contact me at (801)
456-3903 or by cell (801) 647-4823 or by e-mail david@lewisyoung.com.

Sincerely,

I

David Robertson
Vice President

11|




APPENDIX A

FEEDSTOCK AND BIOREFINERY PHOTOS

Bicrefinery site {current)

T T :
P s - gt e . —, - - '
/ l'. P 5 ror pvIew
C Y I T e .
F O A it - wa
A PO !L__ s |. .,-" : 28
/ . z£ -
3 / ' . 5§
" wd
. =2
N
. ‘ ‘
s < oy - i
oL s Ty L N —

AN

¢ . st nm—

wras Conahi, Yoy
Fulcrum Siorra Bofueis, LLC
Themet, Lo

~
20 - epme e e

- ierp am

= ~.
1
-
¢
N
\\
H
Fulorum Feedstnck Facility

S g 5 .
K n/'mmvm TVEN Y wike
- s

Fpr Site Layout




Tipping f!oof V o ‘ Post-Shredded MSW Mo{/ing Into the Processing System'

§ A
MSW Shredder and Conveyor Moving MSW into the Waste tipper

| Processing System

13 |




EXHIBIT B
OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL

‘ (Attached)

B-1

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




DETERMINATION AND APPROVAL OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED
STATUTES 349.585 RELATING TO THE FINANCING OR REFINANCING OF A

PROJECT LOCATED IN STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Fulcrum”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulcrum Bioenergy, Inc. (the “Operator”) has
submitted the attached application dated June 6, 2018 (the “Application™) to the Director of the
State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) for the issuance of industrial
development revenue bonds in an amount not to exceed $47,000,000 (the “Bonds”) for the purpose
of assisting in the financing or refinancing of a portion of the costs of (i) constructing and
equipping a facility owned by Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company (the “Project Company™) and operated by the Operator to be used for converting
municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products located on an approximately 19.4-acre site at
3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada and (ii) the
improvements to and equipping of the facility owned by the Project Company and operated by the
Operator used for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an
approximately 10.0-acre site at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada
(collectively, the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Director has authority to issue the Bonds pursuant to the Nevada Revised
Statues, including Sections 349.400 through 349.670 thereof (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum, the Operator, and other interested parties have prepared and
submitted to the Director certain reports, records and other information related to the Project, and
the Director has reviewed such reports, records and other information and has otherwise
investigated the facts concerning the Project so as to enable the Director to make certain findings
in accordance with the Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 349.585 of the Act, the State of Nevada Office of
Economic Development (the “Office”) must, prior to the issuance of the Bonds, determine that the
Project is consistent with the State Plan for Economic Development and must approve the
financing of the Project;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to Section 349.585 of the Act, the Office hereby
determines and approves as follows:

The Project is consistent with the State Plan for Economic Development developed by the
Executive Director of the Office pursuant to Subsection 2 of Section 231.053 Nevada Revised
Statutes.

Based upon the foregoing, the Project is hereby approved by the Office.

This determination and approval is made only for the purposes of Section 349.585 of the
Act and does not constitute a guarantee of financial results with respect to the Project or otherwise
with respect to the business prospects of Fulcrum, the Project Company, or the Operator. This




determination and approval is not intended as an analysis of the Bonds as investments or intended
to be relied upon by investors.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the STATE OF NEVADA OFFICE OF ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT has caused this determination and approval to be made this Z&"° day of
%ﬁ ,2018

THE STATE OF NEVADA OFFICE OF
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

DMWEST #9453593 v1 2




EXHIBIT C
COUNTY SUPPORT RESOLUTION

(Attached)

C-1

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




RESOLUTION NO. 18-497

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY
OF STOREY, NEVADA PROVIDING FOR THE TRANSFER OF THE COUNTY’S
2018 PRIVATE ACTIVITY BOND VOLUME CAP TO THE DIRECTOR OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 348A of the Nevada Revised Statutes
(“NRS?) and Chapter 348A of the Nevada Administrative Code (“NAC”), there has been allocated
to the County of Storey, Nevada (the “County” and “State,” respectively), the amount of
$215,227.18 in tax-exempt private activity bond volume cap for year 2018 (the “2018 Bond Cap”);
and

WHEREAS, the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the
“Director”), has requested that the County transfer the 2018 Bond Cap to the Director for the
purpose of assisting in the financing or refinancing a portion of the costs of (i) improvements to
and equipping of a facility to be used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel
products located on an approximately 19.4-acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada (the “Biorefinery”) and/or (ii) improvements to and
equipping of a facility used for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located
on an approximately 10.0-acre site located at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada
(the “Feedstock Processing Facility” and, together with the Biorefinery, the “Project™); and

WHEREAS, the County is a “local government” as defined by NAC 348A.070; and

WHEREAS, Section 348A.180 of the NAC provides a procedure whereby the County may,
by resolution, transfer to the Director, the 2018 Bond Cap to assist in the financing of an eligible
project; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County has the responsibility for
allocating private activity bond volume cap available to the County, including the 2018 Bond Cap.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of County Commissioners of the County do hereby find,
resolve, determine and order us follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth herein above are true and correct in all respects.

Section 2. Transfer of Private Activity Bond Volume Cap. Pursuant to NAC 348A. 180, the
County hereby transfers the 2018 Bond Cap to the Director for the Project, to be undertaken by
Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC (“Fulcrum Holdings”).

Section 3. Use of 2018 Bond Cap. The Director will use the 2018 Bond Cap for the Project
in calendar year 2018, or carry forward any remaining amount according to the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, for such purposes.




Section 4. Support of County. The Board of County Commissioners of the County do
hereby endorse and support Fulcrum Holdings’ efforts to obtain bonding and funding support for
the Project through the Nevada Department of Business and Industry.

Section 5. Representative of County. Pursuant to NAC 348A.180(1), the Director may
contact Pat Whitten regarding this Resolution at (775) 847-0968 or in writing at 26 S. B Street,
P.0O. Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

Section 6. Additional Action. The Board of County Commissioners of the County are
hereby authorized and directed to take all actions as necessary to effectuate the transfer of the 2018
Bond Cap, and carry out the duties of the County hereunder, including the execution of all
certificates pertaining to the transfer as required by NAC Ch. 348A. The Clerk-Treasurer of the
Board of County Commissioners is hereby authorized and directed to mail a certified copy of this
Resolution to the Director.

Section 7. Obligation of the County: This Resolution is not to be construed as a pledge of
the faith and credit of or by the County, or of any agency, instrumentality, or subdivision of the
County. Nothing in this Resolution obligates or authorizes the County to issue bonds for any
project or to grant approvals for a project or constitutes a representation that such bonds will be
issued.

Section 8. Enforceability. If any section, paragraph. clause or provision of this Resolution
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this
Resolution. This Resolution shall go into effect immediately upon its passage.

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 19th day of June, 2018.

COUNTY OF STOREY, NEVADA

ATTEST:




EXEH

[IBIT B




CERTIFICATE OF TRANSFER OF VOLUME CAP
I, [ Morshall MCARride. 1, am the duly chosen and qualified

]

[ BOrC. Choirmoun ] of the County of Storey, Nevada (the “County”) and in the
performance of my duties as [ Chairmalin ] do hereby certify to the Office of Business
Finance and Planning in accordance with Section 348A.260 of the Nevada Administrative Code
(“NAC™), that the private activity bond volume cap allocated to the County for the year 2018 in
the amount of $215,227.18 has been transferred as follows:

$215,227.18 has been transferred pursuant to NAC 348A.180 from the County, a “local
government” as defined by NAC 348A.070, to the Director of the State of Nevada
Department of Business and Industry for the purpose of assisting in the financing or
refinancing a portion of the costs of (i) improvements to and equipping of a facility to be
used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products located on an
approximately 19.4-acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, Storey County, Nevada and/or (ii) improvements to and equipping of a facility used
for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an
approximately 10.0-acre site located at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County,
Nevada, to be undertaken by Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC.

This certificate is being filed within five (5) days of the transfer being made in accordance
with NAC 348.260.

COUNY OF STOREY, NEVADA

mi&%ﬁd&




EXHIBIT D

RESERVED

D-1

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W, Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




EXHIBIT E

GOVERNOR’S CERTIFICATE REGARDING THE
ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS FOR TEFRA HEARING PURPOSES

(Attached)

E-1

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 436-2758
www.business.nv.gov




STATE OF NEVADA

CERTIFICATE BY THE GOVERNOR
REGARDING DIRECTOR OF THE STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS
AND INDUSTRY’S ISSUANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE
BONDS

I, Brian Sandoval, Governor of the State of Nevada, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

A public hearing was held on July 3, 2018, at the principal office of the Nevada Department
of Business and Industry Director’s office located at 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 200, Carson
City, Nevada 89706 to hear public comment on plans for the issuance and sale of up to $47,000,000
Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC Project) (Green
Bonds) to be issued in one or more series or issues (the “Bonds”) to assist in the financing or
refinancing of a portion of the costs of constructing and equipping a facility to be used for
converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products and the improvements to and
equipping of the facility used for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste, each
located in Storey County, Nevada.

Notice for the hearing was given and the hearing was conducted in accordance with the
Report of Hearing. Such Notice and Report of Hearing are attached hereto as Exhibit A. Solely for
the purpose of satisfying the public approval requirements of Section 147(f) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and for no other purpose, I hereby approve the plan of
financing for the issuance of the Bonds. This approval is not to be construed as a pledge of the
faith and credit of or by the State of Nevada, or of any agency, jnstrument lity, munigipglity, or
subdivision of the State of Nevada.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this day'of July, 2Q'18.

/ BRIAN SANDOVAL
Governor, State of Nevada




EXHIBIT F
DOCUMENT EXTRACTS REGARDING USE OF FUNDS

(Attached)

F-1

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




Extracts from the Indenture

Section 5.02 Delivery of Series 2018 Bonds and Other Moneys.

(a) On the Closing Date, the Trustee shall deposit the proceeds of the Series 2018
Bonds, in the aggregate amount of $[ | (representing $44,000,000 of proceeds of the
Series 2018 Bonds less the underwriting fee and expenses of § ), as follows:

(i) | ], allocable to the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds, to the
Series 2018 Capitalized Interest Account held by the Trustee;

) 9§ |, allocable to the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds, to the
Series 2018 Costs of Issuance Account held by the Trustee;

(i)  $f ], allocable to the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds, to the
Construction Collateral Account within the Construction Collateral Fund held by the Collateral
Agent; and

iav) [ |, allocable to the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds, to the
Series 2018 Debt Service Reserve Account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund held by the Trustee.

(b)  On the Closing Date, the Trustee shall deposit $[ | received from the
Director as a return of an application deposit, to the Series 2018 Costs of Issuance Account held
by the Trustee.

(©) On the Closing Date, the Trustee shall deposit $| | received from the
Company as an equity contribution, to the Series 2018 Costs of Issuance Account held by the

Trustee.

(d) On the Closing Date, the Trustee shall deposit $[ | received from the
Company as an equity contribution, to the Series 2018 Equity Capitalized Interest Account held
by the Trustee.

Section 5.03  Project Fund.

(a) Subaccounts. The Trustee, upon direction from the Company on behalf of the
Director, shall open new subaccounts of the Project Fund as specified by the Company for the
purpose of (i) depositing the proceeds of any Bond (other than proceeds to be applied to a refunding
of the Series 2018 Bonds) permitted to be incurred by the Bond Documents, (ii) accounting for
and payment of the capitalized interest or costs of issuance thereof, or (iii) for any other purpose
permitted by the Bond Documents. To the extent that a subaccount of the Project Fund is
established, such proceeds may be used for the purposes for which such Bonds are issued and
applied or requisitioned solely as set forth in any related Supplemental Indenture; provided, that
the Company may, at any time, (x) open such subaccounts, (y) direct the Trustee to retain any
necessary amounts therein and (z) transfer any remaining funds therein to the Revenue Fund;
provided, further, that, for the avoidance of doubt, amounts on deposit in the other accounts

F-2

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




pursuant to this Indenture or any Project Accounts pursuant to the Collateral Agency Agreement
may not be transferred to such new subaccounts unless expressly permitted herein or therein.

(b) Series 2018 Capitalized Interest Account; Series 2018 Equity Capitalized Interest
Account. Amounts on deposit in the Series 2018 Capitalized Interest Account and the Series 2018
Equity Capitalized Interest Account shall be used to pay capitalized interest related to the Series
2018 Bonds or to reimburse any affiliate of the Company for capitalized interest actually paid by
or on behalf of the Company and eligible for reimbursement pursuant to the Tax Certificate. On
any date upon which capitalized interest is due and payable, and prior to any payments under
Section 5.05(a) hereto, in accordance with schedule attached as Exhibit C hereto, the Trustee shall,
without further authorization, instruction or delivery by the Company of a Requisition, withdraw
sufficient funds to make such payments first from the Series 2018 Capitalized Interest Account
until such account is depleted and then from the Series 2018 Equity Capitalized Interest Account.
Upon receipt of interest earnings, the Trustee shall, without further authorization, instruction or
delivery by the Company of a Requisition, transfer any interest earned on the Series 2018
Capitalized Interest Account and the Series 2018 Equity Capitalized Interest Account to the
applicable subaccount of the Construction Collateral Account held by the Collateral Agent for the
payment or reimbursement of Tax-Exempt Project Costs pursuant to the Collateral Agency
Agreement. Upon the acceleration of the Series 2018 Bonds pursuant to Section 7.03 hereof, the
amounts on deposit in the Series 2018 Capitalized Interest Account and the Series 2018 Equity
Capitalized Interest Account shall be applied in accordance with Section 7.06 hereof, provided
that if such acceleration shall be rescinded before such application date, any unapplied amounts
on deposit in such Series 2018 Capitalized Interest Account or the Series 2018 Equity Capitalized
Interest Account shall continue to be applied as provided herein.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds remain in the Series
2018 Capitalized Interest Account or the Series 2018 Equity Capitalized Interest Account on the
earlier of (i) the date on which the Company reasonably determines that the Biorefinery and Stage
2 of the Feedstock Processing Facility will not be completed, or (ii) the later of the date on which
the Biorefinery is placed in service for federal income tax purposes or the date on which Stage 2
of the Feedstock Processing Facility is placed in service for federal income tax purposes, then to
the extent the Company does not reasonably expect those proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds will
be allocated to costs of the Project consistent with the Tax Certificate, unless the Company obtains
an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that a failure to redeem Tax-Exempt Bonds as
contemplated by Section 7.3(c) of the Financing Agreement will not adversely affect the tax-
exempt status of the Tax-Exempt Bonds, then proceeds of Series 2018 Bonds in the Series 2018
Capitalized Interest Account or the Series 2018 Equity Capitalized Interest Account may be used
to redeem Series 2018 Bonds or other Tax-Exempt Obligations.

Subject to the requirements set forth in the Tax Certificate, any amount remaining in the
Series 2018 Capitalized Interest Account and the Series 2018 Equity Capitalized Interest Account
upon the final scheduled payment of capitalized interest on the Series 2018 Bonds, shall, without
further authorization, instruction or delivery by the Company of a Requisition, be transferred by
the Trustee to the Collateral Agent for deposit as follows: (i) if such transfer occurs prior to
Trustee’s receipt of written notice from the Company confirming the occurrence of the Final

F-3

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




Completion Date, to the applicable subaccount of the Construction Collateral Account of the
Construction Collateral Fund, and (ii) if such final disbursement occurs on or after the Trustee’s
receipt of a certification from the Company that the Final Completion Date has occurred, to the
Revenue Fund.

(c) Series 2018 Costs of Issuance Account. Amounts on deposit in the Series 2018
Costs of Issuance Account shall be used to pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2018 Bonds or
to reimburse the Company or any affiliate of the Company for costs of issuance of the Series 2018
Bonds actually paid by or on behalf of the Company and eligible for reimbursement, all in
compliance with the Tax Certificate, upon receipt of an executed COI Requisition, in substantially
the form attached to this Indenture as Exhibit D. The Trustee shall from time to time withdraw
sufficient funds from the Series 2018 Costs of Issuance Account to fund disbursements made with
respect to the Series 2018 Bonds on the date of issuance of such Series 2018 Bonds. Any amounts
remaining in the Series 2018 Costs of Issuance Account on the 90th day after the Closing Date
shall be transferred by the Trustee to the applicable subaccount of the Construction Collateral
Account held by the Collateral Agent.

Section 5.04 [Reserved].

Section 5.05 Debt Service Fund. Pursuant to the Financing Agreement, the Company
shall pay or cause moneys to be paid by the Collateral Agent to the Trustee for deposit in the
accounts within the Debt Service Fund described below at the times and in the amounts necessary
for the Trustee to make the transfers described below. Such amounts shall be paid by the Company
in accordance with Exhibit C hereto; provided, however, that the Company shall, from time to
time, prepare and provide to the Trustee an amended Exhibit C as may be required in connection
with any prepayments, optional redemptions or mandatory redemptions that result in a change in
Debt Service hereunder. The Trustee shall create, and shall apply money contained, in the accounts
described below at the following respective times in the manner hereinafter provided, which
accounts the Trustee hereby agrees to establish and maintain within the Debt Service Fund so long
as this Indenture is not discharged in accordance with Article IX and each such account shall
constitute a trust fund for the benefit of the Bondholders, and the money in each such account shall
be disbursed only for the purposes and uses hereinafter authorized. Funds will be applied pro rata
across all Outstanding Series of Bonds.

(a) Bond Interest Account. The Trustee, on each Interest Payment Date, shall
withdraw and apply from moneys on deposit in the Bond Interest Account, an amount
which shall be sufficient to pay interest payable on the Outstanding Bonds on such Interest
Payment Date.

(b)  Bond Principal Account. The Trustee, on each Principal Payment Date,
shall withdraw and apply from moneys on deposit in the Bond Principal Account, an
amount equal to the principal due on Bonds on each date on which principal is due (other
than a Redemption Date). Money in the Bond Principal Account shall be used and
withdrawn by the Trustee on each date on which principal is due solely for the payment of
the principal of Outstanding Bonds.

F-4

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




(©) Bond Redemption Account. The Trustee, on each Redemption Date, shall
withdraw and apply moneys on deposit in the Bond Redemption Account, amounts
required to pay the redemption price on Bonds to be redeemed prior to their stated maturity.
Money in the Bond Redemption Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee on
each Redemption Date solely for the payment of the redemption price other than in the case
of a Sinking Fund Installment, which payments shall be made from the Bond Sinking Fund
Installment Payment Subaccount.

(d) Bond Sinking Fund Installment Payment Subaccount. The Trustee shall
deposit to the credit of the Bond Sinking Fund Installment Payment Subaccount within the
Bond Principal Account moneys deposited by the Company or the Collateral Agent to pay-
each Sinking Fund Installment when due.

Extracts from the Collateral Agency Agreement

Section 5.05 Construction Collateral Fund.

(@ Construction Collateral Account. On the Series 2018 Bonds Closing Date, the
proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds, net of all costs and expenses incurred in connection with the
issuance thereof and the costs and expenses of the borrowing of Loans related to the issuance of
the Series 2018 Bonds under the Financing Agreement, amounts for the payment of which shall
be deposited into the Series 2018 Costs of Issuance Account under the Indenture, and net of the
amounts to be deposited into the Series 2018 Capitalized Interest Account and the Series 2018
Debt Service Reserve Account, shall be deposited into a segregated subaccount of the Construction
Collateral Account and thereafter, any interest earned on such proceeds shall be deposited into the
Construction Collateral Account. Amounts on deposit in the Construction Collateral Account shall
be used to pay Tax-Exempt Project Costs or to reimburse the Company or any affiliate of the
Company for any Tax-Exempt Project Costs actually paid by the Company or on behalf of the
Company and eligible for reimbursement, allocation or reallocation pursuant to the Tax Certificate.
The Collateral Agent shall from time to time withdraw funds from the Construction Collateral
Account in accordance with a Requisition delivered by the Company pursuant to Section 5.06.
The Construction Collateral Account is created solely for the benefit of the Trustee on behalf of
the owners of the Bonds and shall not be subject to any Lien in favor of any Person other than the
Collateral Agent solely for the benefit of the Trustee on behalf of the owners of the Bonds and
shall be held by the Collateral Agent for the exclusive benefit of only such parties.

(b)  Disbursements from Construction Collateral Account. The Collateral Agent
shall make withdrawals, transfers and payments from the Construction Collateral Account, or any
additional Project Account or subaccount created within the Construction Collateral Fund as set
forth in Section 5.01(a), in accordance with Sections 5.05(a) and in the amounts, at the times and
only for the purposes specified in this Section 5.05.

©) Reserved.

(d Equity Construction Account. On the Series 2018 Bonds Closing Date, the
Company shall make an equity contribution into the Equity Construction Account in an amount
F-5

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




equal to $[ . From time to time, the proceeds of any subsequent equity contributions
may be deposited into the Equity Construction Account or into a new sub-account of the
Construction Collateral Fund pursuant to the terms hereof at the sole option of the Company. From
time to time, on not less than ten (10) Business Days’ notice to the Collateral Agent, the Company
may deposit Additional Equity Letters of Credit with the Collateral Agent for deposit into the
Equity Construction Account, and at the direction of the Company at the time of deposit of any
such Additional Equity Letter of Credit, the Collateral Agent shall release an amount of cash from
the Equity Construction Account equal to the stated amount of the Additional Equity Letter of
Credit and transfer such released amount to such accounts or payees as set forth in such
direction. For all purposes of this Section 5.05(d), each Additional Equity Letter of Credit shall
be deemed to be an Equity Construction Letter of Credit. The Company hereby agrees and directs
the Collateral Agent to execute and deliver to the issuer of the applicable Equity Construction
Letter of Credit (i) promptly, upon five (5) Business Days prior written notice from the Company,
a fully completed drawing certificate in the amount set forth in such written notice, and (ii) thirty
(30) days prior to the expiration date of the Equity Construction Letter of Credit, a fully completed
drawing certificate in an amount equal to the Equity Construction Letter of Credit’s then-current
stated amount (as determined in accordance with the terms thereof), only to the extent that the
Company has not provided to the Collateral Agent prior to such date a substantially similar (in all
material respects) letter of credit, or other letter of credit in form reasonably acceptable to the
Collateral Agent, issued by an Acceptable Letter of Credit Bank with a stated amount equal to the
undrawn amount of the Equity Construction Letter of Credit that such letter of credit replaces. The
Collateral Agent shall promptly execute and deliver a fully completed drawing certificate under
the Equity Construction Letter of Credit to the issuer thereof pursuant to a Direction Notice. All
amounts drawn on any Equity Construction Letter of Credit shall be deposited in the Equity
Construction Account and all amounts available under any such Equity Construction Letter of
Credit shall be deemed to be on deposit in the Equity Construction Account for all purposes
hereunder. Amounts on deposit in the Equity Construction Account shall be used to pay Project
Costs or to reimburse the Company or any affiliate of the Company for any Project Costs actually
paid by the Company or on behalf of the Company. The Collateral Agent shall from time to time
withdraw funds from the Equity Construction Account in accordance with a Requisition delivered
by the Company pursuant to Section 5.06. In the event that, on the Series 2018 Bonds Closing
Date, the Company has not deposited an Equity Construction Letter of Credit, then any Additional
Equity Letter of Credit thereafter delivered, in substitution for cash as provided in Section 5.05(d)
above or otherwise, shall be a direct pay letter of credit and provide that the Collateral Agent shall
make drawings thereunder for the purposes set forth in this Agreement and in the form of the
Additional Equity Letter of Credit by sending a sight draft and drawing certificate in the form
attached to such Additional Equity Letter of Credit signed by an authorized officer of the Collateral
Agent under the circumstances described in this Section 5.05(d), within the time period specified
in the Additional Equity Letter of Credit, and there shall be no other preconditions to any such
drawing.

() Reserved.

® Reserved.

F-6

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




€3} Final Project Costs. Subject to Section 5.05(1), pursuant to instructions of the
Company, at any time on or prior to the Mechanical Completion Date, the Company shall direct
the Collateral Agent in writing to retain in the Construction Collateral Fund or its sub-accounts
amounts necessary for the payment or reimbursement of all remaining Project Costs reasonably
expected to become due and payable on or prior to the Final Completion Date. On the Operations
Date, the Collateral Agent shall pursuant to instructions of the Company transfer any remaining
amounts in the Construction Collateral Fund (except for amounts to be retained therein or in any
sub-account thereof pursuant to the first sentence of this Section 5.05(g)) to the Revenue Fund;
provided, however, that Collateral Agent shall retain in the Construction Collateral Fund an
amount equal to all remaining Project Costs certified in writing by the Company as reasonably
expected to be due and payable in order to achieve the Final Completion Date.

(h)  Reserved.

() Closing Date Costs. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, any
disbursements requested to be made from the Equity Construction Account of the Construction
Collateral Fund for payments to be made on or in connection with the Series 201 8 Bonds Closing
Date shall be made pursuant to a Requisition delivered on or within ninety (90) days after the
Series 2018 Bonds Closing Date.

§)) Proceeds of Additional Obligations. Except as otherwise provided in the
Financing Documents, net proceeds of Additional Obligations issued to finance Project Costs prior
to the Final Completion Date (but not refinancing proceeds which may be deposited under the
Indenture to facilitate such refinancing) shall be remitted to the Collateral Agent, for deposit into
additional sub-accounts of the Construction Collateral Fund as provided in Section 5.01(a) and
Section 5.05(k).

&) Sub-Accounts. In accordance with the terms of Section 5.01(a), the Collateral
Agent, upon direction from the Company, shall open new sub-accounts of the Construction
Collateral Fund as specified by the Company (including the name of any such sub-account) for the
purpose of (i) depositing the proceeds of any Additional Obligations (but not refinancing proceeds
which may be deposited under the Indenture or as provided in Section 5.05(j) to facilitate such
refinancing) permitted to be incurred by the Financing Documents in accordance with Section
5.05(j), (ii) accounting for and payment of the capitalized interest, costs of issuance or otherwise
thereof, or (iii) any other purpose permitted by the Financing Documents pursuant to Section 5.06.

) Funds Transfer Required Pursuant 0 the Financing
Agreement. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 5.05 to the contrary, on or after the earlier
of the third anniversary of the issuance date of the Series 2018 Bonds or the Final Completion
Date, the Collateral Agent shall transfer all amounts on deposit in the Construction Collateral Fund
representing the proceeds of Tax-Exempt Bonds to the Trustee for the purpose of redeeming Tax-
Exempt Bonds in accordance with Section 7.3(c) of the Financing Agreement.

(m) Reserved.

(n) Reserved.
F-7

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




(o) Reserved.
Section 5.06 Construction Collateral Fund Requisition Procedures.

(a) Withdrawals from all sub-accounts of the Construction Collateral Fund,
collectively, may be made from time to time, subject to the terms and conditions of Section 5.05
and this Section 5.06 (to the extent applicable).

(b) Subject to the last sentence of this clause (b) and other than as expressly
provided in Sections 5.05(g) and 5.05(k), the Company shall request disbursements of monies on
deposit in the Construction Collateral Fund (and any sub-account thereof) by delivering to the
Collateral Agent (with a copy to each Agent), not later than the tenth (10™) Business Day prior to
the proposed date of disbursement (unless such disbursement is requested on the Series 2018
Bonds Closing Date, in which case no prior notice shall be required), a withdrawal certificate (the
“Company Withdrawal Certificate™) signed by an Authorized Company Representative in the form
of Exhibit I attached hereto (a “Requisition”) (together with a certificate of the Engineer in the
form of Exhibit H attached hereto (the “Engineer Withdrawal Certificate”), in each case, to the
extent necessary for compliance with Section 5.06(c) and Section 5.06(d)) (collectively, a
“Requisition”); provided, that an Engineer Withdrawal Certificate shall only be required to the
extent a Requisition includes a disbursement for payment of Project Costs. Upon receipt of each
Requisition, the Collateral Agent shall make the payments set forth in such Requisition out of
money in the Construction Collateral Fund (and each sub-account thereof) as set forth in such
Requisition. For the avoidance of doubt, the Collateral Agent is not prevented by the two (2)
Business Day notice requirement from paying the obligations set forth in the Requisition prior to
the date of disbursement proposed in the Requisition. In making such payments the Collateral
Agent may conclusively rely upon the Requisition without further inquiry. However,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, Collateral Agent may decline to
disburse funds pursuant to a Requisition if Collateral Agent determines that any such Requisition
is incomplete in any material respect, or does not include the attachments required by this Section
5.06 and provides notice thereof and the basis for such assertion to the Company. Except as
provided in Sections 5.05(g), 5.05(k) and 5.05(1), any payments from the Construction Collateral
Fund shall be made by the Collateral Agent solely based on Requisitions received from time to
time pursuant to this Section 5.06. The opening of or requisitioning of amounts on deposit in any
new sub-accounts pursuant to Section 5.05(k) shall be made by the Collateral Agent solely based
on instructions received by the Collateral Agent from the Company.

(c) Each Company Withdrawal Certificate shall set forth the funds requested to be
withdrawn and the applicable accounts and payees to which such funds shall be transferred (with
a description of the purpose therefor), referencing customary invoices, to the extent required, and
attaching a lien waiver from the EPC Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the EPC
Contract, and lien waivers in accordance with the requirements of the EPC Contract from all Major
Subcontractors with respect to which work has been performed and for which disbursement is
requested, conditioned solely upon payment of such requisitioned funds. Such Company
Withdrawal Certificate shall also include a statement from the EPC Contractor representing that
the EPC Contractor has made all payments or arranged for payment of all payments due and

F-8

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




payable to all of its Subcontractors (as defined in the EPC Contract) with respect to work which
has previously been reimbursed by a Requisition. Each Company Withdrawal Certificate shall
include the following certifications of the Company as of the date of proposed requisition:

() All amounts previously requisitioned pursuant to prior Requisitions for
the payment or reimbursement of Project Costs have been applied solely to pay or
reimburse Project Costs;

(i)  All amounts requisitioned in such Company Withdrawal Certificate
relate to Project Costs that have been or are reasonably projected to be incurred in
connection with the Facilities within thirty (30) days and none have been the basis for a
prior Requisition that has been paid; and

(ili)  Solely to the extent funds are being requisitioned pursuant to such
Requisition to pay Project Costs, no Funding Shortfall exists; and

(iv)  No Event of Default has occurred and is continuing.

(d) Subject to Section 5.06(¢) and Section 5.06(f) hereof, each Engineer
Withdrawal Certificate shall include the following certifications of the Engineer, in its reasonable
belief, as of the date of proposed requisition:

() Based on its reasonable belief, no Funding Shortfall exists; and

(ii) Solely to the extent funds are being requisitioned pursuant to
such Requisition to pay the EPC Contractor, (A) the work performed by the EPC Contractor
pursuant to the EPC Contract to date has been performed in accordance with the terms of the EPC
Contract; (B) the amount being paid to the EPC Contractor pursuant to the applicable Requisition
does not exceed the amount then due and payable to the EPC Contractor under the EPC Contract,
and (C) in its reasonable belief, Substantial Completion can be achieved by the Qutside Operations
Date.

(e) No funds shall be requisitioned under this Section 5.06 from any sub-account
of the Construction Collateral Fund with respect to the payment of interest on the Series 2018
Bonds unless no more funds are available in the Series 2018 Capitalized Interest Account under
the Indenture, and the only certification required to be made to requisition for due payment of
interest shall be a certification by the Company that as of the date of the proposed requisition, no
Financing Default Event has occurred and is continuing with respect to the applicable Bonds (each
such requisition solely of interest in accordance with this Section 5.06(e), an “Interest
Requisition”); provided that, following the funding by the Collateral Agent of any Interest
Requisition, the Collateral Agent shall request a certificate from the Engineer certifying that, based
on its reasonable belief, no Funding Shortfall then exists or would directly result from such
requisition. If the Engineer cannot deliver such certificate, the Collateral Agent shall withhold
funding future Interest Requisitions unless and until (i) the Engineer is able to deliver a certificate
to the Collateral Agent certifying that, based on its reasonable belief, no Funding Shortfall then
exists or would directly result from such requisition, or (ii) the Collateral Agent is instructed by

F-9

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




the Trustee (at the direction of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of at least a majority of the
aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding) to resume funding of such Interest Requisitions
without the delivery of such certificate; provided further that, notwithstanding any instructions of
the Holders or Beneficial Owners of Bonds, the Collateral Agent shall not withhold funding of any
requisitions that satisfy all the conditions that would otherwise apply to requisitions of such
amounts pursuant to this Section 5.06 (other than this clause (€)).

® Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not be able to requisition for
the payment of Project Costs from any sub-account of the Construction Collateral Fund subject to
the requisition procedures of Section 5.06 to the extent that an Event of Default has occurred and
is continuing.

F-10

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 88706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
. www.business.nv.gov




EXHIBIT G
CERTIFICATE OF FULCRUM REGARDING FEDERAL, STATE & LOCAL APPROVALS

(Attached)

G-1

Carson City: 1830 E. College Pariway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




CERTIFICATE OF FULCRUM SIERRA HOLDINGS, LLC REGARDING FEDERAL,
STATE, AND LOCAL APPROVALS OF THE PROJECT

This certification is made by Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company validly authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Nevada
(“Fulcrum™), in connection with the findings made by the Director of the State of Nevada
Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes
349.580(2)(b) relating to the issuance by the Director of the State of Nevada Department
of Business and Industry Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra
Holdings, LLC Project) (Green Bonds) in one or more issues, for the purpose of assisting
in the financing or refinancing of a portion of the additional costs of (i) constructing and
equipping a facility owned by Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC (the “Project Company”) and
operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator™) to be used for converting municipal
solid waste into renewable fuel products located on an approximately 19.4-acre site to be
located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada
(the “Biorefinery”) and (ii) the improvements to and equipping of the facility owned by the
Project Company and operated by the Operator used for preliminary sorting and processing
of municipal solid waste located on an approximately 10.0-acre site at 350 Saddle Court in
Mustang, Storey County, Nevada (the “Feedstock Processing Facility” and, together with
the Biorefinery, the “Project™).

THE UNDERSIGNED, DOES HEREBY CERTIFY THAT the Project has
received all approvals by local, state and federal governments which may be necessary at
this time to proceed with the construction, improvement, rehabilitation or redevelopment
of the Project.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my signature as an authorized
officer of Fulcrum this 18" day of July, 2018.

FULCRUM SIERRA HOLDINGS, LLC, a
Delaware limited Jiability company

(Signature Page to Certificate of Fulcrum Regarding Federal, State, and Local
Approvals of the Project)




EXHIBITH

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL BY THE STATE BOARD OF FINANCE
AND RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL BY THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

(Attached)

H-1

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL BY THE STATE BOARD OF FINANCE

The undersigned duly qualified Chief Deputy Treasurer and Ex-Officio Secretary of the
State Board of Finance of the State of Nevada (the “Board of Finance™), does hereby certify as
follows:

1. The Board of Finance met on August 14, 2018, in a duly noticed open meeting at
which a quorum of the members of the Board of Finance were in attendance.

2. At such meeting the Board of Finance approved the Findings of the Director of the
Department of Business and Industry of the State of Nevada (the “Director”) dated as of July 25,
2018, relating to its Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC
Project) (Green Bonds) to be issued in one or more series or issues (the “Bonds”) and reviewed
the Additional Considerations contained therein.

3. The foregoing actions have not been amended, modified, rescinded and are now in
full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed and delivered this Certificate on the date set
forth below.

Dated this day of , 2018.
STATE BOARD OF FINANCE
By:
Tara Hagan
Chief Deputy Treasurer
Ex-Officio Secretary
H-2

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
THE COUNTY OF STOREY APPROVING CERTAIN FINDINGS MADE
BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND
INDUSTRY OF THE STATE OF NEVADA PURSUANT TO NEVADA
REVISED STATUTES SECTION 349.580 RELATING TO THE
FINANCING OF A SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITY PROJECT
LOCATED IN THE COUNTY OF STOREY; AND PROVIDING OTHER
MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Fulcrum”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator”), has applied
to the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) for
the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) pursuant to Nevada Revised
Statutes (“NRS”) Sections 349.400 to 349.670, inclusive, for the purpose of assisting in the
financing or a refinancing of a portion of the additional costs of (i) constructing and equipping a
facility owned by Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC (the “Project Company™) and operated by the
Operator to be used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products located on
an approximately 19.4-acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
Storey County, Nevada (the “Biorefinery”) and (ii) the improvements to and equipping of the
facility owned by the Project Company and operated by the Operator used for preliminary sorting
and processing of municipal solid waste located on an approximately 10.0-acre site located at 350
Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada (the “Feedstock Processing Facility” and,
together with the Biorefinery, the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS Section 349.580, the Director, after reviewing the
application and other materials submitted to the Director, has made certain findings with respect
to the financing of the Project as are provided in the “Findings of the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 349.580(2)
Relating to the Financing of an Industrial Project to be Located in Storey County, Nevada” (the
“Director’s Findings”), contained in a Memorandum of Findings, dated July 25, 2018, addressed
to the Nevada State Board of Finance and the Storey County (the “County”) Board of County
Commissioners (the “Board of County Commissioners”); and

WHEREAS, the Director requests in the Director’s Findings that the Board of County
Commissioners approve the Director’s Findings pursuant to NRS Section 349.580(2); and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has reviewed the Director’s documents
and heard testimony before the Board of County Commissioners concerning the Director’s
Findings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of
Storey County, Nevada the following:

H-3

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




1. The Director’s Findings be and the same hereby are approved pursuant to NRS
Section 349.580(2), based upon the materials submitted by the Director and other material
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners, the existence of all discretionary approvals
necessary for the construction, improvement, rehabilitation or redevelopment of the project and
testimony described above in the final preamble hereto. This approval is made for the purposes of
NRS Section 349.580(2). It is not (i) an analysis of the Bonds or the appropriateness or risks of
the Bonds as investments, (ii) a guarantee, or (iii) a finding that there is no risk in the Project, the
Bonds or both.

2. The approval in Paragraph 1 is based upon the satisfaction of the requirements of
the Director.

3. The Clerk-Treasurer of the Board of County Commissioners is hereby authorized
and directed to mail a certified copy of this Resolution to the Director.

4. Nothing in this Resolution obligates the County in any way with respect to the
Project or the Bonds.
5. If any action taken herein is found to be unenforceable, the remaining actions and

provisions of this Resolution shall remain valid and enforceable unless and until the Board of
County Commissioners determines otherwise.

6. The County Manager and County Attorney are authorized to take all steps
necessary to carry out the actions taken herein and to carry out the purpose and intent of this

Resolution.

7. This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage and approval.
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ____ day of ,2018.
AYES:
NAYS:
Marshall McBride
Chairman
ATTEST:

Vanessa A. Stephens
County Clerk-Treasurer

H-4

Carson City: 1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 634-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov




RESOLUTION #17-463

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR FULCRUM BIO-ENERGY

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2008, Fulcrum BioEnergy (then Fulcrum Sierra Biofuels,
LLC/IMS Nevada, LLC) was granted No. 2007-062 by the Storey County
Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, in 2009 the company was granted an amendment to the Special Use
Permit allowing relocation to a larger parcel; and

WHEREAS, in 2014 the company was granted a subsequent amendment to the
Special Use Permit for modified processing and other considerations; and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Bio-Energy is in compliance with the conditions of its special
use permit and is in good standing with Storey County. Fulcrum Bio-Energy and
Storey County have maintained continuous communication about the company’s
proposed design, future plans of construction and permitting; and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Bio-Energy will undoubtedly serve as an economic
development engine for Storey County and the region.

THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN to all present that the Board of Co_unty
Commissioners of Storey County do hereby endorse and support Fulcrum Sierra
Biofuels, LLC/IMS Nevada LLC’s efforts to obtain bonding and funding support thru
the Nevada Department of Business & Industry.

PASSED and ADOPTED the 30th day of June 2017, by the following:

AYES: McBride, McGuffey and Gilman ‘

NAYS: None

And Signed:
Marshall McBride, Chairman

Jack M
L1

{afce Gilman; Corvmissioner

Attested:




-
RESOLUTION NO. 403

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
THE COUNTY OF STOREY APPROVING CERTAIN FINDINGS MADE
BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND
INDUSTRY OF THE STATE OF NEVADA PURSUANT TO NEVADA
REVISED STATUTES SECTION 349580 RELATING TO THE
FINANCING OF A SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITY PROJECT
LOCATED IN THE COUNTY OF STOREY; AND PROVIDING OTHER
MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Fulcrum™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator’™), has
applied to the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the
“Director”) for the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (the “Bonds”™) pursuant to
Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) Sections 349.400 to 349.670 for the purpose of assisting in the
financing of a facility to be used for the disposal of solid waste and conversion to renewable fuel
products to be owned by Fulcrum and operated by the Operator, consisting of real and personal
property to be located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center in Storey County,
Nevada (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS Section 349.580, the Director, after reviewing the
application and other materials submitted to the Director, has made certain findings with respect
to the financing of the Project as are provided in the “Findings of the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 349.580(2)
Relating to the Financing of an Industrial Project to be Located in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, Storey County, Nevada” (the “Director’s Findings”), contained in a Memorandum of
Findings, dated July 14, 2017, addressed to the Nevada State Board of Finance and the Storey
County (the “County”) Board of County Commissioners (the “Board of County
Commissioners™); and

WHEREAS, the Director requests in the Director’s Findings that the Board of County
Commissioners approve the Director’s Findings pursuant to Section 349.580(2); and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has reviewed the Dil_rector’s
documents and heard testimony before the Board of County Commissioners concerning the
Director’s Findings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of
Storey County, Nevada the following:

1. The Director’s Findings be and the same hereby are approved pursuant to NRS
Section 349.580(2), based upon the materials submitted by the Director and other material
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners, the existence of all discrétionary approvals
necessdry for the constriiction, improvement, rehabilitation or redevelopment of the project and
testimony described above in the final preamble hereto. This approval is made for the purposes
of NRS Section 349.580(2). It is not (i) an analysis of the Bonds or the appropriateness or risks

Page 10f2




of the Bonds as investments, (ii) a guarantee, or (iii) a finding that there is no risk in the Project,
the Bonds or both.

2. The approval in Paragraph 1 is based upon the satisfaction of the requirements of
the Director.

3. The Clerk-Treasurer of the Board of County Commissioners is hereby authorized
and directed to mail a certified copy of this Resolution to the Director.

4. Nothing in this Resolution obligates the County in any way with respect to the
Project or the Bonds.

5. If any action taken herein is found to be unenforceable, the remaining actions and
provisions of this Resolution shall remain valid and enforceable unless and until the Board of
County Commissioners determines otherwise.

6. The County Manager and County Attorney are authorized to take all steps
necessary to carry out the actions taken herein and to carry out the purpose and intent of this
Resolution. ‘

7. This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 1st day of August, 2017.

AYES: All
NAYS: None
Al Al T A el
Marshall McBride
Chairman
ATTEST:

Vanessa A. Btephens
County Clerk-Treasurer

Page 2 of 2




RESOLUTION NO. 17-479

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
THE COUNTY OF STOREY APPROVING CERTAIN FINDINGS MADE
BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND
INDUSTRY OF THE STATE OF NEVADA PURSUANT TO NEVADA
REVISED STATUTES SECTION 349.580 RELATING TO THE
FINANCING OF A SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITY PROJECT
LOCATED IN THE COUNTY OF STOREY; AND PROVIDING OTHER
MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Fulcrum™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator”), has applied
to the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) for
the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) pursuant to Nevada Revised
Statutes (“NRS”) Sections 349.400 to 349.670, inclusive, for the purpose of assisting in the
financing or a refinancing of a portion of the costs of (i) constructing and equipping a facility
owned by Fulcrum and operated by the Operator to be used for converting municipal solid waste
into renewable fuel products located on an approximately 19.4-acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive
in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada (the “Biorefinery”) and/or (ii) the
improvements to and equipping of the facility owned by Fulcrum and operated by the Operator
used for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an approximately
10.0-acre site located at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada (the “Feedstock
Processing Facility” and, together with the Biorefinery, the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS Section 349.580, the Director, after reviewing the
application and other materials submitted to the Director, has made certain findings with respect
to the financing of the Project as are provided in the “Findings of the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 349.580(2)
Relating to the Financing of an Industrial Project to be Located in Storey County, Nevada” (the
“Director’s Findings™), contained in a Memorandum of Findings, dated November 27, 2017,
addressed to the Nevada State Board of Finance and the Storey County (the “County”) Board of
County Commissioners (the “Board of County Commissioners”); and

WHEREAS, the Director requests in the Director’s Findings that the Board of County
Commissioners approve the Director’s Findings pursuant to NRS Section 349.580(2); and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has reviewed the Director’s documents
and heard testimony before the Board of County Commissioners concerning the Director’s
Findings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of
Storey County, Nevada the following:

1. The Director’s Findings be and the same hereby are approved pursuant to NRS
Section 349.580(2), based upon the materials submitted by the Director and other material
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners, the existence of all discretionary approvals

Page1of2




necessary for the construction, improvement, rehabilitation or redevelopment of the project and
testimony described above in the final preamble hereto. This approval is made for the purposes of
NRS Section 349.580(2). It is not (i) an analysis of the Bonds or the appropriateness or risks of
the Bonds as investments, (ii) a guarantee, or (iii) a finding that there is no risk in the Project, the
Bonds or both.

2. The approval in Paragraph 1 is based upon the satisfaction of the requirements of
the Director.

3. The Clerk-Treasurer of the Board of County Commissioners is hereby authorized
and directed to mail a certified copy of this Resolution to the Director.

4. Nothing in this Resolution obligates the County in any way with respect to the
Project or the Bonds.
5. If any action taken herein is found to be unenforceable, the remaining actions and

provisions of this Resolution shall remain valid and enforceable unless and until the Board of
County Commissioners determines otherwise.

6. The County Manager and County Attorney are authorized to take all steps
necessary to carry out the actions taken herein and to carry out the purpose and intent of this
Resolution.

7. This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 5 day of Deremloe2017.

AYES:
NAYS:
g 7 A
Marshall Mc¢Bride
Chairman
ATTEST:

County Clerk-Treasurer

Page 2 of 2




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 7,2018 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

Title: Discussion/Possible Action. First Reading of Ordinance 18- 288. An ordinance adding

chapter 2.22 to the Storey County Code establishing a procedure for creating or amending a list of

appraisers qualified to conduct appraisals of real property offered for sale or lease by the board and

providing for other matters properly related thereto.

1.

2. Recommended motion: I (Commissioner) move to approve the first reading of
Ordinance 18-288

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Under NRS 244.2795 (2) (attached) the County must enact an ordinance to
establish a list of appraisers whom are qualified to appraise county properties which are
proposed to be sold. The proposed ordinance provides the required procedure for
establishing a list of qualified appraisers.

S. Suppeorting materials: Ordinance 18-288; NRS 244.2795

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[] Approved with Modifications
(1 Denied (1]

Continued

Agenda Item No. |%




ORDINANCE NO. 18- 288

Summary

An Ordinance establishing procedure for creating or amending a list of appraisers
qualified to conduct appraisals of real property offered for sale or lease by the board.

Title

An ordinance adding chapter 2.22 to the Storey County Code establishing a procedure for
creating or amending a list of appraisers qualified to conduct appraisals of real property
offered for sale or lease by the board and providing for other matters properly related
thereto.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION 1

2.22.020 Purpose

As required by state law, the board of county commissioners establishes these procedures for
creating or amending a list of appraisers qualified to conduct appraisals of real property owned
by the county and offered for sale or lease by the board.

2.22.040 Requirements

Before the county may sell or lease county-owned property, the county manager or a department
head authorized by the board to negotiate to sell or lease the property must obtain an appraisal
or appraisals prepared by appraisers selected from a list established by section 2.22.080.

"~ 2.22.060 Qualifications of Appraisers

In order for an appraiser to be placed on the county’s list of qualified appraisers, the appraiser
must meet at least the following requirements:

A. Hold a general appraiser certificate from the Nevada Real Estate Division.

B. Have five years of experience in appraising real property in northern Nevada.

C. Provide a resume describing the appraiser’s qualifications, certifications, years of
experience, and professional expertise.

D. Provide an estimation of the time it will take for the appraiser to complete appraisal
projects.

E. Provide a list of fees charged by the appraiser.

F. Provide a copy of and maintain a policy of professional liability insurance as required by
the county.

G. Be willing to indemnify the county for errors, omissions and negligence.




H. Meet any other criteria the board determines to be necessary.

2.22.080 Appraiser List
A list of appraisers will be established by the board as follows:

A. The county manager or his designee will send notice to the current certified general
appraisers with offices in northern Nevada requesting a response with their qualifications if they
are interested in providing appraisals for the sale or lease of real property owned by Storey
County.

B. The county manager or his designee will review and compile a list of qualified appraisers
and organize it in random order.

C. After an appraiser has completed an appraisal, the appraiser will be rotated to the bottom
of the list.

D. The list may be amended by the county manager or his designee to remove names on
written request from the appraiser, on information received from the state of Nevada that the
appraiser is no longer active, or on the board’s determination that there is a basis for removal.

E. The list may also be amended to add names of qualified appraisers who subsequently
request to be added to the list or whom are later solicited by the county manager or his designee
and are qualified to conduct general appraisals.

2.22.100 Selection of Appraisers

When an appraisal is required, the county manager must submit the qualifications of the
appraiser or appraisers at the top of the list established pursuant to section 2.22.080 to the board
for verification of their qualifications. The submittal must be accompanied by a proposal from
the appraiser(s) selected setting forth the time frame within which the appraiser will complete
the appraisal, a fee quote, their qualification for the particular assignment and the disclosure
statement required by NRS 244.2795(3). If the board does not accept an appraiser as qualified,
the county manager shall submit the qualifications of the next appraiser on the list for
verification along with the accompaniment required of the appraiser. This process shall
continue until the board has verified the qualifications of the number of appraisers required to
conduct the appraisal. An appraiser that is found not qualified for a job retains the same
position on the list for the next job.

2.22.120 Sunset Provision

This ordinance is effective until the date of repeal of the state law requiring the board of county
commissioners to obtain appraisals when offering any county-owned real property for lease or
sale and to adopt an ordinance creating a list of appraisers.

Proposed on , 2018.
Proposed by Commissioner
Passed on: , 2018




Vote:

Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent: Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chairman

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk

This ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after the
month of of the year 2018.

day of the




NRS 244.2795 Sale or lease of certain real property: Appraisal required; qualifications and selection of
appraisers; disclosure statements; interest of appraiser or related person in property or adjoining
property prohibited; effect of sale or lease in violation of section.

1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 244.189, 244,276, 244.279, 244.2815, 244.2825,
244.2833, 244.2835, 244.284, 244.287, 244.290, 278.479 to 278.4965, inclusive, and subsection 3 of NRS
496.080, except as otherwise required by federal law, except as otherwise required pursuant to a
cooperative agreement entered into pursuant to NRS 277.050 or 277.053 or an interlocal agreement in
existence on or before October 1, 2004, except if the board of county commissioners is entering into a
joint development agreement for real property owned by the county to which the board of county
commissioners is a party, except for a lease of residential property with a term of 1 year or less, except
for the sale or lease of real property to a public utility, as defined in NRS 704.020, to be used for a public
purpose, except for the sale or lease of real property to the State or another governmental entity and
except for the sale or lease of real property larger than 1 acre which is approved by the voters at a
primary or general election or special election, the board of county commissioners shall, when offering
any real property for sale or lease:

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, obtain two independent appraisals of the
real property before selling or leasing it. If the board of county commissioners holds a public hearing on
the matter of the fair market value of the real property, one independent appraisal of the real property
is sufficient before selling or leasing it. The appraisal or appraisals, as applicable, must have been
prepared not more than 6 months before the date on which the real property is offered for sale or
lease.

(b) Select the one independent appraiser or two independent appraisers, as applicable, from the
list of appraisers established pursuant to subsection 2.

(c) Verify the qualifications of each appraiser selected pursuant to paragraph (b). The
determination of the board of county commissioners as to the qualifications of the appraiser is
conclusive.

2. The board of county commissioners shall adopt by ordinance the procedures for creating or
amending a list of appraisers qualified to conduct appraisals of real property offered for sale or lease by
the board. The list must:

(a) Contain the names of all persons qualified to act as a general appraiser in the same county as
the real property that may be appraised; and

(b) Be organized at random and rotated from time to time.

3. An appraiser chosen pursuant to subsection 1 must provide a disclosure statement which
includes, without limitation, all sources of income that may constitute a conflict of interest and any
relationship with the real property owner or the owner of an adjoining real property.




4. An appraiser shall not perform an appraisal on any real property for sale or lease by the
board of county commissioners if the appraiser or a person related to the appraiser within the first
degree of consanguinity or affinity has an interest in the real property or an adjoining property.

5. If real property is sold or leased in violation of the provisions of this section:

(a) The sale or lease is void; and

(b) Any change to an ordinance or law governing the zoning or use of the real property is void if
the change takes place within 5 years after the date of the void sale or lease.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 08/07/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: (Continued from July 3, 2018, board meeting.) Consideration of
letters of interest and appointment of a planning commissioner to fill the vacancy and serve the
remainder of the term representing Precinct 1 Virginia City on the Storey County Planning
Commission.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I [commissioner] motion to
appoint Jim Collins to fill the vacancy and serve the remainder of the term representing Precinct 1
Virginia City on the Storey County Planning Commission.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Human Resources and Planning Telephone: 847-1144

5. Staff summary: Pursuant to Storey County Code 2.12 and NRS, the term of a planning
commissioner is four years. The incumbent on June 11, 2018, announced his need to retire from
the planning commission. The incumbent is in good standing with the county and his 23 years
of service on the planning commission was admirable and is highly appreciated. The Precinct 1
planning commissioner term expires December 31, 2020.The vacancy was posted according to
policy and NRS, and two letters of interest were received. Both applicants show an impressive
background and their interest in serving our community is appreciated. Based on qualifications
and experience, staff recommends the appointment of Jim Collins to serve on the planning
commission for the remainder of the term. A notice of appointment needs to be posted again
near the expiration of the term.

6. Supporting materials: Enclosures: (A) vacancy public posting; and (B) letters of interest.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required:
District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
; Department Head Department Name:
dﬂv County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

=
TS S—)

Agenda Item No. \4.

Page 1 of 2




Enclosure A: Public Vacancy Posting

STOREY COUNTY PUBLIC NOTICE
PLANNING COMMISSIONER POSTING
Precinct 1 (Virginia City)
Position: Storey County Planning Commissioner to represent Precinct] (Virginia City).
All interested parties must live within this voting district. Incumbent Planning Commissioner is eligible to
request reappointment. The Planning Commission is an advisory body to the Board of County
Commissioners. It is responsible for directing the short- and long-range growth and development of the
county through maintenance and implementation of the county master plan, zoning ordinances, and other
applicable land-use policies. It is composed of seven commissioners who serve two or more times per
month on the body and who are compensated pursuant to NRS 278.040. Each commissioner is appointed
by the Board of County Commissioners to serve at its pleasure for a four year term with possible re-
appointment following expiration of the term.
Preferred Qualifications: A Planning Commissioner’s primary duty is to make land-use decisions that
are consistent with the policies and plans formally adopted by the Board of County Commissioners.
Therefore, the first priority of a Planning Commissioner is to have strong decision-making skills and
develop knowledge of county policies and applicable Nevada Revised Statutes. It is not necessary to have
training in the fields of planning, architecture, law, civil engineering, geology, economics, or
demography; these are skills that are available to the commissioner from staff, consultants, and
applicants. The Planning Commissioner’s job is to weigh input given in staff reports and other
professional reports, meeting testimonies, and other correspondence. A Planning Commissioner is like a
judge who renders decisions based on the testimony of experts and others who appear as witnesses in a
trial. Minimum qualifications of a Planning Commissioner include: a willingness and ability to research
and report on issues, programs, and policies related to local land-use matters; ability to attend afternoon
and night meetings on a regular basis; ability to sustain harmonious working relationships with
commission members, the Board of County Commissioners, staff, residents, applicants, and the public;
ability to act within the ethical standards set forth by NRS and NAC; and willingness to expand
knowledge related to land-use planning. The new-appointee must successfully pass a criminal background
investigation.
Letter of Interest: All interested parties must submit a letter of interest showing qualifications and reason
for applying for the appointment. An official job application is not necessary.
Closing Date: Letters of interest (originals) must be received by the Storey County Human Resources
Office, Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street (P.O. Box 176), Virginia City, NV 89440 by
5:00 p.m., Monday, June 25, 2018. Please contact 775.847.0968 for further questions.
Appointment Date: The Board of County Commissioners will consider letters of interest at its July 3,
2018 regularly scheduled meeting. Applicants may be asked to speak and should attend.
Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. Posting dates: 06/11/18 — 06/25/18

Page 1 of 1




Custom Homes, Additions & Garagcs
NSCL #52058, |_imit$ 500,000

198 N (59t Virginia ( ity, NV 89440
o Box 1065 Virginia (;itg, NV 89440
Thone: 775.847-7525%

Cell: 775-720-8010
[oax: 775-847-7524

June 20, 2018

Storey County Human Resources Office
Storey County Gourthouse

26 South "B"

P.O. Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

Dear Sir or Madam:;

1 should like to express my interest in the position of Storey County Planning Commissioner, representing
Precinct 1. | have lived and worked in Storey County for more than 25 years. | believe | would be an asset
to the Board of Commissioners and to the citizens of our community by bringing an understanding of the
issues that builders and homeowners come across.

My knowledge and experience over the past 17 years as a licensed general contractor in Virginia City
glves me the insight and commitment to help make our community safer and a better place to live and
work.

| would appreciate being considered for the position of Storey County Planning Commissioner, allowing the
opportunity to contribute to bettering our community.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sinceremﬁ
/f .

llins




{"*'Y RERA"
Jy
|

Paul A, Kvam
P.O. Box 1159 MU Jun 14 208

8 South F Street i 8
Virginia City, BV 89440

Home Phone: 775-847-7177
Cell Phone: 775-813-7778

Storey County Human Resources June 14, 2018
26 South B Street
P.0.Box 176
Virginia City, NV 89440
Re: Planning Commissioner-Precinct 1

Dear Board of Commissioners,

I would like to apply for the position of Planning Commissioner-Precinct 1. | live in Precinct 1 at 8 South F
Street, Virginia City, aka the Crooked House. | have resided at this address with my wife since late May,
2002. | have never been arrested, and I'm drug-free, and seldom drink {never to excess). I've always
been registered to vote and rarely miss an election.

I am applying for this position for the following reasons:

1. My dedication to public service and at this point of my life, Storey County.
Since I'm retired from state service, | have the time for the position.

3. Iwould like to learn mare about the planning process in local government. While at the
PSC/PUC and while conducting pro-bono work with the natural gas project for the Comstock, |
approached the field of government planning for utility service, but never did this area of work.

4. I'm objective and balanced in my decision-making process, largely due to my experience at the
PSC/PUC and working in law enforcement. There are always at least two sides to every story.

5. | have extensive experience in interpreting statutes, rules, and regulations.

Please contact me if you have any questions or need any information.

Sincerely,




Education

Paul A. Kvam

P.O. Box 1159, No. 8 So. F Street
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Home (775) 847-7177
Cell (775) 813-7778

B.S. Degree in Accounting
University of Nevada - Reno
Graduated - May 1981

M.S. Degree in Administration of Justice
San Jose State University - San Jose, CA
Graduated - August 1979

B.S. Degree in Administration of Justice
San Jose State University - San Jose, CA
Graduated - May 1972

Certificate of Course Completion in Law Enforcement
Butte Community College - Durham, CA
Graduated - May 1970

Experience

04/13-Current

01/07-06/09

Utility Analyst Unpaid Position
Storey County Government
Virginia City, NV

In this position, | am leading the effort to bring natural gas service

to the Virginia City and Gold Hill area. | represent Storey County
government in meetings with the Public Utilities Commission, Southwest
Gas, the Nevada Legislature, and other entities.

| work directly for Storey County Manager, Pat Whitten

Financial Analyst $72,000/Year
Tariffs and Compliance Division, Public Utilities Commission

Carson City, NV




12/96-01/07

07/95-12/96

1/86-7/95

At the PUC, | conducted audits and financial investigations as an
independent advisor to the Commission. My work was summarized

in the form of affidavits, prefiled testimony, and testimony in open

and closed hearings. | have testified many times on a wide variety of

utility issues during my twelve years with both the PUC and its predecessor,
the Public Service Commission.

Auditor 1 $62,000/Year
State Dairy Commission, Reno, NV

Telephone: 775.688.1211

In my current position, | travel to licensee locations in the
western US to conduct audits with companies in the dairy
business. The audits | conduct consist of revenue collection
and cost audits of businesses in the dairy business.

Audits | conduct include cost of service analysis
of licensee operations and products for sale.

Formal workpapers are prepared for every audit.
Supervisor: Mark French, Executive Director (Now Retired)
Telephone: 775.688.1211

Compliance Audit investigator Il $46,000/Year

Employment Security Division
Reno, NV Field Office

Telephone: 775.688.2663

-—-Investigated Companies & Filed Claims for Compliance.
-—Collected Taxes, Seized and Froze Bank Accounts.

-—--Serve Legal Documents.

-—-Investigated Fraudulent Identities.

----Conduct Business Background / Ownership Investigations.
Supervisor: Paul Barton

Staff Auditor $48,000/Year

Public Service Commission, Carson City, NV

Telephone: 775.687-6001




10/81-1/86

05/75-10/81

05/74-05/75

Personal:

-—Audited Books and Records of Utility Companies.
-—-Conducted Efficiency and Prudence Studies.
---Investigated Utility Practices and Actions.

Supervisor:  Phil Williamson ( Now Retired)

Investigator $30,000/Year
State Gaming Control Board, Carson City, NV

—Conducted Background and Financial Investigations.
-—Audited Books and Records of Gaming Applicants.

Field Agent $22,000/Year

Motor Carrier Division, Carrier Enforcement, Reno, NV

(Now NHP Trooper, This agency was merged into the Nevada Highway
Patrol).

This position was subsequently merged into the Nevada Highway Patrol. |
was a uniformed law enforcement officer enforcing commercial vehicle
and general traffic laws upon Nevada highways.

Deputy Sheriff/Full-time and Reserve
Douglas County Sheriff's Office, Stateline, NV

I was an off-road motorcycle officer during the summer of 1974. My remaining
time with DCSO was spent as a reserve deputy, while working on my master's
thesis with the department,

Birthdate: 04/08/50
Health: Excellent, 5-10, 200 Ibs.
Background: No arrests, light drinker, never used illegal drugs




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 08/07/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-286 an
ordinance amending Chapter 2.12 of the Storey County Code providing for the creation, duties,
and powers of the Planning Commission, and other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I
[commissioner] motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-286 an ordinance amending
Chapter 2.12 of the Storey County Code providing for the creation, duties, and powers of the
Planning Commission, and other properly related matters.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning / Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: The proposal makes necessary changes to existing county code regarding the
creation, duties, and powers of the Storey County Planning Commission. The Planning
Commission is an advisory body to the County Commissioners.

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Draft Ordinance 18-286.
7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:
District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
~—aZrDepartment Head Department Name:

% County Manager Other agency review:
10."Board action:

I Approved Approved with Modifications
L1 Denied Continued

f— p—
[ —

Agenda Item No. ]5

Page 1 of 1




Ordinance No. 18-286

Summary

An ordinance an ordinance amending Chapter 2.12 of the Storey County Code providing for the
creation, duties, and powers of the Planning Commission, and other properly related matters.

Title

An ordinance an ordinance amending Chapter 2.12 of the Storey County Code providing
for the creation, duties, and powers of the Planning Commission, and other properly
related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

Storey County Code Chapter 2.12 is hereby amended to provide as follows:
Chapter 2.12

PLANNING COMMISSION
Sections:

2.12.010 Created--Membership.
2.12.020 Appointment.
2.12.025 Districts.

2.12.030 Term of office.
2.12.040 Regular meetings.
2.12.050 Special meetings.
2.12.060 Filling of vacancies.
2.12.070 Organization.
2.12.080 Powers generally.
2.12.090 Scope of authority.
2.12.100 Funding.

2.12.010 Created--Membership.

There is created the planning commission to consist of seven members. (Ord. 61 § 1, 1973) (Ord.
No. 12-245, § 1, 12-4-2012)

2.12.020 Appointment.

A. The members of the planning commission are appointed by the chair of the board of county
commissioners, with the approval of the board of county commissioners.




B. The No planning commission members may not-hold-other-publie concurrently be a member
of the Board of Storey County Commissioners or an employee of Storey County or the Storey

County Fire Protection District. unless-autherized-by-law- (Ord. 61 §§ 2, 3, 1973) (Ord. No. 12-
245, § 1, 12-4-2012)

2.12.025 Districts.

The county is divided into five planning districts, with two additional at-large districts. Each
appointed planning commissioner must have a primary residence in his or her district. The two
at-large positions are available to any citizen in the county for appointment. The planning
commission districts are as follows:

Precinct 1, Virginia City.
Precinct 2, Gold Hill/Virginia City.
Precinct 3 and 6 (combined), River District.

Precinct 4, Mark Twain.

mo 0w

Precinct 5, Highlands (including Virginia City Highlands, Highland Ranches, and Virginia
Ranches

F. Two at-large districts. (Ord. No. 12-245, § I, 12-4-2012)

2.12.030 Term of office
The terms of the members of the commission are as follows:

A. Upon the first appointment, one member must serve for one year, one member must serve
for two years, two members must serve for three years, and three members must serve for four
years.

B. Following initial appointments, all members must serve for four years or until their
successor takes office.

C. Members of the planning commission may be removed, after public hearing, by a majority
vote of the governing body for just cause.

D. Vacancies occurring other than through the expiration of term must be filled for the
unexpired term. (Ord. 61 § 4, 1973) (Ord. No. 12-245, § I, 12-4-2012)

2.12.040 Regular meetings.

A. The planning commission must hold at least one regular meeting in each month, and must
adopt rules for transaction of business and keep a record of its resolutions, transactions, findings,
and determinations, which is a public record.

B. The planning commission must take action on any applications before it and announce and
record its recommended action in the form of a motion. The motion must include findings of fact
for approval, approval with conditions, or denial. Notice of the approval, approval with

conditions or a denial with findings of fact must be prepared by the director of community
development planning and sent to the applicant and the board by the agenda cut-off date of the
board meeting at which the item will be heard. (Ord. 61 §§ 5, 9, 1973) (Ord. No. 12-245, § I, 12-
4-2012)




2.12.050 Special meetings.

The planning commission may enact regulations it deems necessary for the holding of special
meetings, these regulations must include the proper notification of the commission members and
the general public. (Ord. 61 § 10, 1973) (Ord. No. 12-245, § 1, 12-4-2012)

2.12.060 Vacancies and filling of vacancies.

A. The position of any planning commission member must be declared vacant if the member is
absent for four consecutive regular meetings or is absent for six meetings in any calendar year,
whichever occurs first. These provisions do not apply in the event of illness of the member or
death in the family. A member’s absence for business or other personal reasons is not considered
valid excuse under this section. (Ord. 61B 1977) (Ord. No. 12-245, § 1, 12-4-2012)

B. Vacancies will be posted in the officially recognized newspaper of the county and on the
county website. The posting will contain the title “planning commissioner”, a short summary of
the duties of a planning commissioner, the precinct of the vacancy or the at-large status for at-
large vacancies, that the applicants must live within the subject precinct, reference to NRS
278.040 regarding compensation of a planning commissioner, the duration and closing date of
the posting, the location to which letters of interest may be submitted and the deadline for
submittals, and the date of the meeting at which the board may consider appointment of a
planning commissioner to fill the vacancy.

C. Planning commissioners will be appointed in accordance with the applicable provisions of
this code.

2.12.070 Organization.

The commission must elect its chairman from its appointed members. The term of chair is for 1
year, with eligibility for reelection. (Ord. 61 § 6, 1973) (Ord. No. 12-245, § I, 12-4-2012)

2.12.080 Powers generally.

The planning commission has the powers authorized by state law, or ordinance, subject to
provisions of section 2.12.090 including the preparation and adoption of a master plan setting
forth a comprehensive, long-term general plan for the physical development of the county. (Ord.
61 § 12, 1973) (Ord. No. 12-245, § 1, 12-4-2012)

2.12.090 Scope of authority.

The planning commission is an advisory body to the board of county commissioners, and any
decisions rendered by the planning commission are a recommendation to the board. (Ord. 61
§ 11, 1973) (Ord. No. 12-245, § I, 12-4-2012)

2.12.100 Funding.

The county-commissioners board must appropriate sufficient funds necessary to the work of
planning commission. (Ord. 61 § 7, 1973) (Ord. No. 12-245, § 1, 12-4-2012)

Signatures on next page




Proposed on , 2018.
Proposed by Commissioner

Passed on: , 2018
Vote:
Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent: Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chairman

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk

This ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after the
month of of the year 2018.

day of the




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

‘ Meeting date: 08/07/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

‘ Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-285 an
| ordinance amending Chapter 2.44 of the Storey County Code re-establishing the Storey County
| Regional Transportation Commission, removing redundant provisions from Chapter 3.80 of the
Storey County Code, and providing for other matters properly related thereto.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, 1
[commissioner] motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-285 an ordinance amending
| Chapter 2.44 of the Storey County Code re-establishing the Storey County Regional
| Transportation Commission, removing redundant provisions from Chapter 3.80 of the Storey
| County Code, and providing for other matters properly related thereto.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: The proposal makes necessary changes to existing county code regarding the
creation, duties, and powers of the Storey County Regional Transportation Commission (RTC),
and it authorizes creation of a county RTC in order for the orderly planning and development of
transportation systems in the county and for appropriate cooperation with other transportation
agencies, authorities, and commissions in the region and state.

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Draft Ordinance 18-285.

| 7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

| Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
| 8. Legal review required:
District Attorney
‘ 9. Reviewed by:
‘ Department Head Department Name:
| County Manager Other agency review:
|

10. Board action:
(] Approved [
| []  Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

A et

Agenda Item No. \{0

| Page 1 of 1




ORDINANCE NO. 18-285

Summary

An Ordinance reestablishing the Storey County Regional Transportation Commission.

Title

An ordinance amending Chapter 2.44 of the Storey County Code reestablishing the Storey
County Regional Transportation Commission, removing redundant provisions from
Chapter 3.80 of the Storey County Code and providing for other matters properly related
thereto.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

TITLE: Storey County Code Chapter 2.44 title is hereby amended to provide as follows:

REGIONAL-STREET-AND-HIGHWAY COMMISSION REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
COMMISSION

SECTION 1: Storey County Code section 2.44.010 is hereby amended to provide as follows:

The Board of County Commissioners does hereby create the Storey County Regional

Transportation-Commission regional-street-and-hishwaycommission-of Storey-County.
SECTION 2: Storey County Code Section 2.44.020 is hereby amended to provide as follows:

The commission shall be composed of representatives to be selected as follows: two members of
the board; and one representative of the public;-who is a resident of the largesttown-inthe
county.

SECTION 3: Storey County Code section 2.44.040 is amended to provide as follows:

The commission will meet on the first or third Thursday quarterly, that being the months of July,
October, January, and April, and at any other time that a special session is called by a majority
of the members of the commission or as directed by the board of county commissioners. The
meetings will be held in conjunction with the regular board of commissioners’ meeting of the
month, unless the commission, by resolution unanimously adopts at a regularly scheduled
meeting, designates a different meeting date and time._In no event will there be less than one
meeting per quarter in each fiscal year—The-commission-shall-meet-at-such-times-and-places-as

.......
- O D) =

be-held-in-each-calendar month:
SECTION 4: Storey County Code Section 2.44.050 is amended to provide as follows:




The commission shall exercise or perform only those powers and duties specifically granted to
them and enumerated in NRS Chapter 277A.

SECTION S: Section 3.80.010 is hereby amended to provide as follows:

3.80.010 Definitions.

ha = N - gluan - a ha = ha '
b )

f the Storey County Code, unless the context

the-construetion- 4s used in Chapter 3.80, o

otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in this section have the meanings ascribed to

them in this section:

"Board" means the board of county commissioners.

"Commission" means the regional transportation commission created pursuant to Storey County
Code Chapter 2.44.

1. "Dealer" means and includes every person who:

a. Refines, manufactures, compounds or otherwise produces motor vehicle fuel and

sells or distributes the same to the county;

b. Import motor vehicle fuel into this county and sells or distributes the same
therein, whether in the original package or container in which it is imported or
otherwise, or who uses the motor vehicle fuel in this county after having imported the

same;

c. Having acquired motor vehicle fuel in this county in the original package or
container, distributes or sells the same in such original package or container, or

otherwise, or in any manner uses the same;

d. Otherwise acquires in this county for sale or distribution in this county motor
vehicle fuel with respect which there has been no prior taxable sale, use or
distribution.

2. "Dealer" shall not include any person who imports into this county motor vehicle fuel
in quantities of five thousand gallons or less purchased from a supplier who is licensed as a
dealer under Chapter 365, Nevada Revised Statutes and who shall assume liability for the

collection and remittance of the applicable excise tax to this county.




"Department” means the Department of Taxation.

Distribute--Distribution. All motor vehicle fuel sold, donated, consigned for sale, bartered, used
or in any way voluntarily disposed of so as to terminate the ownership and possession thereof by
the dealer or any other person who imports such motor vehicle fuel owned by him shall be
deemed to be "distributed" and considered as "distribution" under this chapter.

"Highway" means every way or place of whatever nature open to the use of the public for

purposes of surface traffic, including highways under construction.

"Motor vehicle" means and includes every self-propelled motor vehicle, including tractors,

operated on a surface highway.

"Motor vehicle fuel" means and includes gasoline, natural gasoline, casinghead gasoline and any
other inflammable or combustible liquid, by whatever name such liquid may be known or sold,
the chief use of which in this state is for the propulsion of motor vehicles, motorboats or
airplanes. Kerosene, gas oil, fuel oil, jet aircraft fuel, diesel fuel and liquefied petroleum gas shall

not be considered motor vehicle fuel for the purposes of this chapter.
"Nevada Department of Taxation" means and includes its duly authorized agents.

"Person" means and includes every natural person, association, firm or partnership, corporation,
municipal corporation, quasi municipal corporation, political subdivision, governmental agency,
trustee, receiver and the legal representative or representatives of the estate of any deceased

person and their agents.
"Retailer" means and includes every person, other than a dealer as defined in this section
engaged in the business of selling motor vehicle fuel.

SECTION 6: Sections 3.80.020, 3.80.030, and 3.80.040 of the Storey County Code are hereby
repealed.

Proposed on , 2018.
Proposed by Commissioner
Passed on: , 2018
Vote:

Ayes: Commissioners

Nays: Commissioners




Absent: Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chairman

Attest;

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk

This ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after the
month of of the year 2018.

day of the




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 08/07/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: (Continued from the 07/03/18 board meeting) Modification to
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC-Storey County Development Agreement, in accordance with
Section 5.2, by accepting and approving amendments to Chapter 8, Storey County Code 17.28 C
Commercial Zone modifying building height limitation from 3 stories or 45 feet to 6 stories or 75
feet, adding to Section 17.28.020 Permitted Uses urgent-cares, truck sales, heavy equipment sales,
microbreweries, and micro-distilleries; adding to Section 17.28.030 Uses Subject to Permit buildings
exceeding 6 stories or 75 feet, and hospitals, convalescent homes, and sanitariums; and amending
SCC 17.36 11 Light Industrial Zone modifying building height limitation from 4 stories or 50 feetto 6
stories or 75 feet, and other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: See Enclosure A Recommended Motion 2018-023.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

4. Staff summary: In the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, property owners may seek approval from
Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to apply the SCC 17.28 Commercial zone
and may apply SCC 17.36 11 Light Industrial uses to land already zoned 12 Heavy Industrial. The
total commercial allotment must not exceed 10 percent of land in the industrial center. The proposed
amendment allows hotels and other commercial uses to be built to a height which is consistent with
the underlying 12 zoning requirements, it enhances economic development opportunity and eliminates
unnecessary and burdensome regulations in a pre-approved industrial center environment regulated
by the development agreement, and it requires board and planning commission review and approval
for certain uses causing potential impact to county resources and infrastructure. These amendments
will only apply to zoning and land within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

&

Supporting materials: Enclosures: (A) Recommended Motion; (B) Proposed text amendment; and
(C) Notice of Acceptance
7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: ___ Comptroller
8. Legal review required: ____ District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:

____ Department Head Department Name: Planning

_____ County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[1 Approved Approved with Modifications

[]
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. \'7




2018-023 Enclosure A: Recommended Motion

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I [commissioner] motion to approve modification
to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC-Storey County Development Agreement, in accordance
with Section 5.2, by accepting and approving amendments to Chapter 8, Storey County Code

17.28 C Commercial Zone modifying building height limitation from 3 stories or 45 feet to 6
stories or 75 feet, adding to Section 17.28.020 Permitted Uses urgent-cares, truck sales, heavy
equipment sales, microbreweries, and micro-distilleries; adding to Section 17.28.030 Uses Subject
to Permit buildings exceeding 6 stories or 75 feet, and hospitals, convalescent homes, and
sanitariums; and amending SCC 17.36 11 Light Industrial Zone modifying building height
limitation from 4 stories or 50 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, and other properly related matters.




2018-023 Enclosure B: Proposed Amendment to Development

Agreement
Chapter 17.28
C COMMERCIAI ZONE
Sections:

17.28.010 Applicability.
17.28.015 Purpose and intent.
17.28.020 Permitted uses.

‘ 17.28.030 Uses subject to permit.

‘ 17.28.040 Building height and width.
17.28.050 Yards.

17.28.010 Applicability.
The C commercial zone shall be governed by the
| provisions set forth in this chapter. (Ord. 159 § 2(part),
| 1999)

17.28.015 Purpose and intent.
To provide suitable areas within Storey County where
commercial uses and activities may be established and
maintained, to promote efficiency by grouping compatible
land uses, and to protect residential areas from the
adverse impacts that may be associated with commercial
‘ uses. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

17.28.020 Permitted uses.

The following uses are permitted in the C commercial
zone:

A. Retail sales, new and used, of items as such as
antiques, books, appliances, bakeries, hardware, clothing,
pharmacies, dry goods, fabrics, flowers, furniture,
electrical and electronic equipment, animal feed, gifts,
groceries, jewelry, liquor, lumber, sporting goods, pets,
toys and other similar retail uses and activities, service
stations and mini-marts;

B. Commercial offices and financial institutions,
such as real estate, medical and dental, banks,
accountants, insurance, employment agencies, consulting
firms, manufacturer representatives, newspapers,
secretarial services, credit unions, associations and other
similar office uses and activities;

C. Personal services, such as barbers, beauticians,
dry cleaning, laundromats, funeral homes, health clubs,

Page 1 of 7




tailors, travel agencies, wedding chapels, child care and
other similar service uses and activities;

D. Tourist and visitor related services, such as
hotels, motels, bed and breakfast inns, restaurants, cafes,
souvenir sales, gift shops, fast food establishments,
commercial museums, and other similar visitor related uses
and activities;

E. Places of religious worship such as churches,
temples and synagogues, including accessory facilities and
uses normally associated with such religious use;

F. Recreational uses and activities, including
bowling lanes, billiard parlors, gaming (when incidental to
a primary use and limited to no more than fifteen slot
and/or video machines), golf driving ranges, miniature
golf, health clubs, pool halls, skating rinks, theaters,
and other similar recreational uses and activities;

G. Public facilities and uses, such as ambulance
services, libraries, governmental offices, parking lots and
structures, medical clinics, urgent-cares, museums, post
offices, telephone exchanges, utility company offices, and
other similar public facilities and uses and activities;

H. General service uses and activities, such as
animal hospitals, bars and taverns, car washes (coin
operated), catering, private schools and academies,
equipment and appliance repair, equipment rental, feed
stores, manufactured home sales and service, night clubs,
pawn brokers, pet sales and grooming, print shops,
upholstery shops, video rentals, and other similar general
services uses and activities;

I. Automotive related use and activities, such as
automobile and light truck sales, truck and heavy equipment
sales, auto and truck parts sales, automobile service and
repair (except body repair and painting), automobile
rentals, tire shops, gasoline service stations,
recreational vehicle sales and service, and other similar
uses and activities; however, auto wrecking yards+

avtomobile—paint—shops—and bedy repair—sheps—truck——sales
ane—service—and—heavyequipmentsates—andserviee—are

prohibited.

J. Other commercial uses as follows:

1. Billboards;

2. Building materials, but not including ready-mix
concrete or hot mix asphalt plants;

3. Contractor storage yards;

4. Fraternal lodges, recreational and social clubs,

labor halls, serv1ce clubs and other private clubs
[y

v
N Al ~na~eanrntE W Aamaa Al v o
oy cCoRvareSeehHte 11uul\.,u, o — oo™

[¢
q
[¢
e
Hi-

Page 2 of 7




6. Lumber yards;

7. Microbreweries micro-distilleries with on-site
sales only.

7. Signs.

K. Other uses similar to the above which are

determined by the board of county commissioners to be
consistent with the uses permitted within the zone, after
considering a recommendation on such use by the planning
commission. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

17.28.030 Uses subject to permit.

The following additional uses may be permitted subject
to securing a special use permit as provided for in Chapter
17.62 of this title:

A. Automobile paint shops and body repair shops;

B. Fortunetellers;

C. Buildings and structures constructed for
permitted uses as listed in Section 17.28.020 of this
ordinance that will exceed fexrty-fiwve seventy-five feet in
height or six stories, er—that—will be less—than—twenty
five—feet—in—widthy not including silos, stacks or
antennas.

D. Car washes using production line methods such as
a chain conveyor, blower, steam cleaning device or other
mechanical devices;

E. Casinos and gaming establishments of more than
five thousand square feet of total floor area where slots
or video machines are located and where other forms of
gambling may take place such as poker, craps, blackjack,
sports book and other similar activities;

F. Equestrian facilities, including riding stables
and pony rides;

fal M3 o bhyratamaiyrd o PRI 0 SN P I NP BN nlsxze

T e LA.L\./J_TLJJ_\.,W\/-I—J.\_/AJ, v T CIT /1T [ Sy W ) [ %, g Sy oy ) VJ-L-L_Y,

H. Manufactured home sales lots;

I. Propane sales and storage;

J. Public utility service yards, electric

transmission stations and gas transmission stations;
Recreational vehicle parks;

Wholesale businesses and distributing operations.
Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent.
Hospitals, convalescent homes, and sanitariums.

2=t

(Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

Page 3 of 7




17.28.040 Building height and width.

No building shall be higher than £hree steries—not—+te
exceced—forty—five feet; six stories or seventy-five feet
without a special use permit. and—the width of any building

shaltt—rnot—be tess—than—twenty—five—feet—{O0rd—350
§2+tpartr+—3599), not including silos, stacks or antennas.

17.28.050 Yards.

There shall be no front yard or side yard required,
except wherever a building is located on a lot adjacent to
an R-1, R-2 or E zone boundary, there shall be provided a
side yard of not less than ten feet on the side of the
building adjacent to the zone boundary line. There shall be
a rear yard of ten feet provided behind every building.
(Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

Chapter 17.36

I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL ZONE

Sections:
17.36.010 Applicability.
17.36.015 Purpose and intent.
17.36.020 Permitted uses.
17.36.030 Uses subject to permit.
17.36.040 Minimum parcel area.
17.36.050 Setbacks.
17.36.060 Loading zone.
17.36.070 Building height.

17.36.010 Applicability.

The I-1 light industrial zone shall be governed by the
provisions as set forth in this chapter. (Ord. 159
§ 2 (part), 1999)

17.36.015 Purpose and intent.

The I-1 light industrial zone is intended to provide
areas for the development and operation of industrial uses
which do not create or cause fumes, odor, smoke, gas, noise
or vibrations which are or may be detrimental to other
properties in the neighborhood. (Ord. 159 § 2 (part), 1999)

Page 4 of 7




17.36.020 Permitted uses.

The following uses are permitted in the I-1 light
industrial zone:

A. Ten percent of the total area in the light
industrial zone as designated in the Storey County master
plan may be utilized for commercial use. A site plan must
be approved by the Storey County building and planning
department. No special use permits shall be required of
commercial uses, but Chapter 17.28 shall apply to
commercial uses in an I-1 light industrial =zone;

B. Storage warehouses for industrial, agricultural,
commercial or other products;

C. Automobile paint shops and body repair shops;

D. Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent
including recreational vehicle storage;

E. Wholesale businesses and distributing operations;

E. Welding shops;

G. Warehouses and warehouse complexes;

H. Limited manufacturing and assembly uses, such as

electronic parts and equipment, when conducted solely
within an enclosed building;

I. Car washes using production line methods such as
a chain conveyor, blower, steam cleaning device or other
mechanical devices;

J. Casinos and gaming establishments where more than
fifteen slots or video machines are located and where other
forms of gambling may take place such as poker, craps,
blackjack, sports book and other similar activities;

K. Heavy equipment sales and service;

L. Truck sales and services;

M. Truck refueling facilities;

N. Commercial offices and financial, institutions,

such as real estate, medical and dental, banks,
accountants, insurance, employment agencies, consulting
firms, manufacturer representatives, newspapers,
secretarial services, credit unions, associations and other
similar office uses and activities;

0. Public facilities and uses, such as ambulance
services, libraries, governmental offices, parking lots and
structures, medical clinics, museums, post offices,
telephone exchanges, utility company offices, and other
similar public facilities and uses and activities;

P. Ten percent of the total industrial building
improvements may be used for commercial sales to the
general public. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

Page 5 of 7




17.36.030 Uses subject to permit.

The following additional uses may be permitted subject
to securing a special use permit as provided for in Chapter
17.62 of this title:

A. Casinos and gaming establishments over five
thousand square feet where more than fifteen slots or video
machines are located and where other forms of gambling may
take place such as poker, craps, blackjack, sports book and
other similar activities;

B. Watchman’s dwelling, permanent or temporary;

C. Buildings and structures constructed for uses
listed in Sections 17.36.020 and 17.36.030 of this chapter
that will exceed £ifty seventy-five feet in height or six

stories;
D. Kennels for the maintenance, raising, breeding,
or caretaking of four or more dogs over twelve weeks old;
E. Agricultural product processing;
F. Recycling centers.

(Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

17.36.040 Minimum parcel area.

One acre, except commercial uses in a light industrial
zone area for which there is a fifteen thousand square foot
minimum per parcel. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

17.36.050 Setbacks.
No building shall be located closer than twenty feet
to any property line. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

17.36.060 Loading zone.

Loading area shall have adequate room. All truck
parking and docking areas shall be so designed that county
streets shall not be impacted by the operation of the
business. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

17.36.070 Building height.

No building shall have a height greater than feur six
stories or £i+fty seventy-five feet, not including silos,
stacks or antennas. A special use permit will be required
if the facility exceeds these limits. +40rd—359-52{tparti+
1885

Dated this day of ,2018.
DEVELOPER: COUNTY :

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, THE COUNTY OF STOREY, a

Page 6 of 7




LLC, a Limited liability
company .

By: Norman Properties, Inc. a
California corporation,
Managing Member

By:

Lance L. Gilman,
Representative

Page 7 of 7

political Subdivision of the
State of Nevada

Marshall McBride, Chairman




Notice to Storey County of Acceptance of Land Use Regulations

2018-023 Enclosure C: Notice of Acceptance

NOTICE TO STOREY COUNTY OF ACCEPTANCE OF LAND USE
REGULATION

The Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC hereby gives notice pursuant to Section 5.2 of
the Development Agreement Between The County of Storey and Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, LLC and DP Operating Partnership, LP that it approves of and accepts the
application of Chapter 8, Storey County Code 17.28 C Commercial Zone modifying
building height limitation from 3 stories or 45 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, adding to
Section 17.28.020 Permitted Uses urgent-cares, truck sales, heavy equipment sales,
microbreweries, and micro-distilleries; adding to Section 17.28.030 Uses Subject to
Permit buildings exceeding 6 stories or 75 feet, and hospitals, convalescent homes, and
sanitariums; and amending SCC 17.36 I1 Light Industrial Zone modifying building
height limitation from 4 stories or 50 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, and other properly
related matters. Said amendments will be apply to the 1999 Storey County Zoning
Ordinance as applicable to land within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

Dated this day of ,2018.
DEVELOPER: COUNTY:
TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, THE COUNTY OF STOREY, a
LLC, a Limited liability company. political Subdivision of the State of
Nevada

By: Norman Properties, Inc. a California
corporation, Managing Member Marshall McBride, Chairman

By:

Lance L. Gilman, Representative

Page 10f1




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 08/07/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Resolution No. 2018-500, for ten dollars, acceptance of grant,
bargain, sale, and conveyance from Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to Storey County rights, title,
and interest in real property described in Enclosure A, that being vacant property that will facilitate
county and other communications facilities at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey
County, Nevada.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I [commissioner] motion
to approve Resolution No. 2018-500, for ten dollars, acceptance of grant, bargain, sale, and
conveyance from Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to Storey County rights, title, and interest in
real property described in Enclosure A, that being vacant property that will facilitate county and other
communications facilities at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

4. Staff summary: The subject action will for ten dollars deed and dedicate to Storey County
approximately 40 acres of land located adjacent to S.R. 439 USA Parkway approximately two miles
north of the Storey-Lyon County boundary. The subject land will be used by Storey County to
facilitate county, state, and other communications towers and facilities.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosure A: Deed of Dedication; Exhibit A Communication Site parcel

description.
7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: __ Comptroller
8. Legal review required: _____ District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
____ Department Head Department Name: Planning
____ County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[1 Approved

Approved with Modifications
} [] Denied
\

Continued

—r
—_—

Agenda Item No. \8




STATE OF NEVADA

DECLARATION OF VALUE
1. Assessors Parcel Number
a) 004-171-24
b)
c)
d)
2. Type of Propetty:

Pursuant to NRS 375.030, the Buyer and Seller shall be jointly and severally liable for any additional amount owed.

comapaeify: Grantor

Signature: M M*

a) @ Vacant Land
c) D Condo/Twnhse
e) [_] Apt. Bldg

2 D Agricultural

i) D Other Water Rights

b) D Single Fam. Res.

d) [] 2-4Plex
1) D Comm’l/Ind’1

h) [:] Mobile Home

Total Value/Sales Price of Property:
Deed in Lieu of Foreclosure Only (value of property)

Transfer Tax Value;

Real Property Transfer Tax Due:

1f Exemption Claimed:

8. Transfer tax Exemption per NRS 375.090 Section #

Lo -

2

FOR RECORDERS OPTIONAL USE ONLY

DOCUMENT/INSTRUMENT #:

BOOK PAGE

DATE OF RECORDING:

NOTES:

411.43

0.00
0.00

b.  Explain Reason for Exemption: Transfer to a government entity.

Partial Interest: Percentage being transferred:

The undersigned declares and acknowledges, under penalty of perjury, pursuant to NRS 375.060 and NRS 375.110 that
the information provided is correct to the best of their information and belief, and can be supported by documentation if
called upon to substantiate the information provided herein. Furthermore, the parties agree that disallowance of any
claimed exemption, or other determination of additional tax due, may result in a penalty of 10% of the tax due plus interest

at 1% per month.

%

7
Signature: Capacity:
SELLER (GRANTOR) INFORMATION BUYER (GRANTEE) INFORMATION
Print Name: Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC Print Name: Storey County
Address: c/o Robert M. Sader, Esq. Address: 26 South B Street
City: 8600 Technology Way, Suite 101 City: Virginia City
State: Reno, NV Zip: 89521 State: NV Zip: 89440
PA : , E
(required if not the seller or buyer)
Print Name: Robert M, Sader, Ltd. Escrow #: DOD-Communications Site
Address: 8600 Technology Way, Suite 101 )
City: Reno State: NV Zip: 89521

(AS A PUBLIC RECORD THIS FORM MAY BE RECORDED/MICROFILMED)




After Recording, Return To:

Storey County Clerk
26 South B Street
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

APN: 004-171-24
NRPTT-Exempt

Recorder Affirmation Statement: The undersigned hereby affirms that this document, including
any exhibit, hereby submitted for recording does not contain the social security number of any
person or persons (per NRS 293B.030).

DEED OF DEDICATION

This Deed of Dedication is made between TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, referred to as “Grantor”; and the COUNTY OF
STOREY, political subdivision of the State of Nevada, referred to as “Grantee”.

In consideration for the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) paid by Grantee to Grantor and other
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor hereby grants,
bargains, sells and conveys to Grantee, all Grantor’s right, title and interest in the real property
located in Storey County, Nevada, more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto
and incorporated herein by this reference, (“Real Property”).

Reserving and excepting unto Grantor and Grantor’s successors and assigns in perpetuity
all water rights appurtenant to the Real Property, surface or underground, of whatever kind or
nature, including all permits, applications and certificates regarding said water rights, whether

such water rights exist at the time of this conveyance or are obtained in the future by Grantor.

TOGETHER WITH ALL and singular the improvements, tenements, hereditaments and
appurtenances thereunto belonging or in manner appertaining, and the reversions, remainder and
remainders, rents, issues and profits thereof, and excepting all easements and encumbrances of

record.

(signatures on next page)

S:\Main\TR1/Storey County/Deed of Dedication - C jcations Site.doc




TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said premises, together with the appurtenances, unto

Grantee and to its successors and assigns forever,
ACCEPTED AND AGREED:

COUNTY OF STOREY, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada

By and Through its Board of County

Commissioners
By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Date:
STATE OF NEVADA )
COUNTY OF )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on _J{A L ¢ /&

GRANTOR:

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company

By: Norman Properties, Inc., a California
corporation, its Manager

LN
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘

(7Y

L. Lance Gilman, Authorized

Representative 5::;21 N
Ynfe
7

Date;

,2018

by L. LANCE GILMAN, authorized representative of NORMAN PROPERTIES, INC., a
California corporation, Manager of TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC, a Nevada

limited liability company.

S:\\Main\TRV/Storey County/Deed of Dedication - Communicalions Site.doc

%MW
Signatufe of Notary Officer




TRI STATE SURVEYING, LTD.
1925 E. Prater Way
Sparks, Nevada 89434
Telephone (775) 358-9491 ¢ FAX (775) 358-3664
Toll Free: 1-800-411-3752

January 6, 2018
Job No. 17102.01.RM

Exhibit “A”
COMMUNICATION SITE

All that certain parcel situate within portions of Section Twenty-Seven (27) and Twenty-Eight
(28), Township Nineteen (19) North, Range Twenty-Two (23) East, Mount Diablo Meridian,
being all of Parcel 2017-49 as shown and so designated on Map of Division Into Large Parcels,
File No. 1269730fficial Records of Storey County, Nevada.

. k, P.L.
Nevada Certificate No. 10836




TRI STATE SURVEYING, LTD.
1925 E. Prater Way
Sparks, Nevada 89434
Telephone (775) 358-9491 ¢ FAX (775) 358-3664
Toll Free: 1-800-411-3752

January 6, 2018
Job No. 17102.01.RM

Exhibit “A”
COMMUNICATION SITE

All that certain parcel situate within portions of Section Twenty-Seven (27) and Twenty-Eight
(28), Township Nineteen (19) North, Range Twenty-Two (23) East, Mount Diablo Meridian,
being all of Parcel 2017-49 as shown and so designated on Map of Division Into Large Parcels,
File No. 1269730fficial Records of Storey County, Nevada.

Date (?//07/20/ '8

David C. Créok, P.L.S.
Nevada Certificate No. 10836




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 08/07/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Resolution No. 2018-499, for ten dollars, acceptance of grant,
bargain, sale, and conveyance from Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to Storey County rights, title,
and interest in real property described in Enclosure A, that being portions of Milan Drive at the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, | [commissioner] motion

10.

to approve Resolution No. 2018-499, for ten dollars, acceptance of grant, bargain, sale, and
conveyance from Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to Storey County rights, title, and interest in
real property described in Enclosure A, that being portions of Milan Drive at the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
Staff summary: The subject action will for ten dollars deed and dedicate to Storey County
approximately one mile extension of improved Milan Drive in accordance with the
development agreement between Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center.
Supporting materials: Enclosure A: Deed of Dedication; Exhibit A Parcel 2012-2; Exhibit A 2014-
2; Exhibit Map to Accompany Parcel Descriptions Portions of the N1/2 of
Section 6, Township 19N, Range 23E, MDM.
Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
Legal review required: District Attorney
Reviewed by:
\%_Department Head Department Name: Planning
//% oumy Manager Other agency review:
Board action:

[1] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[l Denied [] Continued
Agenda Item No, lq




STATE OF NEVADA
DECLARATION OF VALUE

1. Assessors Parcel Number
a) 005-111-52 and 36

b)
)
d)
2. Type of Property: FOR RECORDERS OPTIONAL USE ONLY
a) Ij Vacant Land b) |____] Single Fam. Res.
I:] DOCUMENT/INSTRUMENT #:
c) Condo/Twnhse d) 2-4 Plex
D BOOK PAGE
€ Apt. Bld Comm’l/Ind’l
) D d & D D DATE OF RECORDING:
Agricultural h Mobile H
g) I:l gricultura ) D obile Home NOTES:
i) D Other Water Rights
3. Total Value/Sales Price of Property: $ 0.00
Deed in Lieu of Foreclosure Only (value of property) $
Transfer Tax Value: $ 0.00
Real Property Transfer Tax Due: $ 0.00

4. If Exemption Claimed:
a.  Transfer tax Exemption per NRS 375.090 Section # 2
b. Explain Reason for Exemption: Transfer to a government entity,

5. Partial Interest: Percentage being transferred: %

The undersigned declares and acknowledges, under penalty of perjury, pursuant to NRS 375.060 and NRS 375.110 that
the information provided is correct to the best of their information and belief, and can be supported by documentation if
called upon to substantiate the information provided herein. Furthermore, the parties agree that disallowance of any
claimed exemption, or other determination of additional tax due, may result in a penalty of 10% of the tax due plus
interest at 1% per month.

Pursuant to NRS 375.030, the Buyer and Seller shall be jointly and severally liable for any additional amount owed.

Signature: M - Capacity: _Grantor
Robert M. Sader, Counsef

Signature: Capacity:

SELLER (GRANTOR) INFORMATION BUYER (GRANTEE) INFORMATION
Print Name: Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC Print Name: Storey County
Address: ¢/o Robert M. Sader, Esq. Address: 26 South B Street
City: 8600 Technology Way, Suite 101 City: Virginia City
State: Reno, NV Zip: 89521 State: NV Zip: 89440

' ANY/PERSO UESTIN C I
(required if not the seller or buyer)

Print Name: Robert M. Sader, Ltd, Escrow #: DOD-East Milan
Address: 8600 Technology Way, Suite 101
City: Reno State: NV Zip: 89521

(AS A PUBLIC RECORD THIS FORM MAY BE RECORDED/MICROFILMED)




After Recording, Return To:

Storey County Clerk
26 South B Street
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

APN: 005-111-52 and 36
NRPTT-Exempt

Recorder Affirmation Statement: The undersigned hereby affirms that this document, including
any exhibit, hereby submitted for recording does not contain the social security number of any
person or persons (per NRS 293B.030).

DEED OF DEDICATION

This Deed of Dedication is made between TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, referred to as “Grantor”; and the COUNTY OF
STOREY, political subdivision of the State of Nevada, referred to as “Grantee”.

In consideration for the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) paid by Grantee to Grantor and other
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor hereby grants,
bargains, sells and conveys to Grantee, all Grantor’s right, title and interest in the real property
located in Storey County, Nevada, more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto
and incorporated herein by this reference, (“Real Property”).

Reserving and excepting unto Grantor and Grantor’s successors and assigns in perpetuity
all water rights appurtenant to the Real Property, surface or underground, of whatever kind or
nature, including all permits, applications and certificates regarding said water rights, whether

such water rights exist at the time of this conveyance or are obtained in the future by Grantor.

TOGETHER WITH ALL and singular the improvements, tenements, hereditaments and
appurtenances thereunto belonging or in manner appertaining, and the reversions, remainder and
remainders, rents, issues and profits thereof, and excepting all easements and encumbrances of

record.

(signatures on next page)

§:\\Main\TRI/Storey County/Deed of Dedication — East Milan doc




TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said premises, together with the appurtenances, unto

Grantee and to its successors and assigns forever.

ACCEPTED AND AGREED:

COUNTY OF STOREY, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada

By and Through its Board of County
Commissioners

By:
| Marshall McBride, Chairman

Date;

STATE OF NEVADA )

COUNTY OF wik /b )

limited liability company.

SMMain\TRYStorey County/Deed of Dedication — East Milan doc

GRANTOR:

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company

By: Norman Properties, Inc., a California
corporation, its Manager

2L &

. Lance Gilman, Authorized
Representative

Date; ?/)3'/ A
]/

By:

This instrument was acknowledged beforemeon_J (2 ¢ /2 , 2018
by L. LANCE GILMAN, authorized representative of NORMAN PROPERTIES, INC,, a
California corporation, Manager of TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC, a Nevada

Signatfire of Notary Officer

BETTY MELARKEY

) Notary Public - State of Nevasa

a;:';:,,,: Recondad in Washop Counly - Nomasides 1
> m:umm-mmm.m;ﬁ 3




March 29, 2018
Job No. 9373.000 T003
EXHIBIT “A”
PARCEL 2012-2

All that certain real property situated within a portion of the northwest one-quarter (1/4) of Section
Six (6), Township 19 North, Range 23 East; Mount Diablo Meridian, Storey County, State of
Nevada, being all of Parcel 2012-2 as shown on that “Record Of Survey For Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, LLC”, recorded in the office of the Storey County Recorder, May 2, 2012, File No. 116605,
and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the south line of Milan Drive as shown on said Record of Survey Map
No. 116605, said drive being a portion of said Parcel 2008-47, from which point the west one-
quarter (1/4) corner of said Section 6 bears S 24°41°49" W, 2924 .93 feet;

Thence, along said south line of Milan Drive, N 88°40'40" W, 1139.07 feet, to the south line of
Milan Drive as Dedicated to Storey County per Document No. 110596, Official Records of Storey
County, Nevada;

Thence, N01°19°20" E, 120.00feet, to the north line of said Milan Drive;

Thence, along said north line of Milan Drive, S 88°40'40" E, 1139.07 feet;

Thence, leaving said north line of Milan Drive, S 01°19°20" W, 120.00 feet, to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 3.14 acres of land, more or less.

The Basis of Bearings for this description is Nevada State Plane Coordinate System, West Zone
NAD&83(94) HARN Extension, based upon the grid bearing of N 68°20'45" E, between NGS
stations N339 and X146. The project combined factor of 1.000254928, scaled from 0.00N ,0.00E
and converted to U.S. survey feet.

Prepared by:

Lumos & Associates, Inc.
David C. Crook, PLS 10836
178 South Maine Street
Fallon, NV 89406




March 29, 2018
Job No. 9373.000 T003

EXHIBIT “A”
PARCEL 2014-2

All that certain real property situated within a portion of the north one-half (1/2) of Section Six (6),
Township 19 North, Range 23 East, and a portion of the southeast one-quarter (1/4) of Section
Thirty-one (31), Township 20 North, Range 23 East, Mount Diablo Meridian, Storey County, State
of Nevada, Mount Diablo Meridian, Storey County, State of Nevada, being all of Parcel 2014-2 as
shown on that “Record Of Survey For Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LL.C”, recorded in the office
of the Storey County Recorder, June 30, 2014, File No. 120559, and being more particularly
described as follows:

Beginning at a point marked by a rebar and cap stamped “PLS 18368, being on the south line of
Milan Drive, from which point the west one quarter corner of said Section 6 bears S24°41'49" W,
2924 .93 feet;

Thence, N01°19'20" E, 120.00feet;

Thence, S88°40°40"E, 1472.54feet;

Thence, along a tangent curve to the left having a radius of 790.00 feet, a central angle of 30°56'06",
and an arc length 0f 426.54 feet;

Thence, N60°23'14"E, 317.00feet;

Thence, along atangent curve to the left having a radius of 790.00 feet, a central angle 0f46°29'17",
and an arc length of 640.98 feet;

Thence,N 13°53'57"E, 633.32 feet;

Thence, along a tangent curve to the right having a radius of 850.00 feet, a central angle of
27°16'22", and an arc length 0f 404.60 feet;

Thence, N41°10'19" E,210.67 feet;

Thence, along atangent curve to the left having a radius of 790.00 feet, a central angle of 34°25°16",
and an arc length 0f474.60 feet;

Thence, N06°45'03" E, 246.87 feet;

Thence, along atangent curve to the left having a radius of 470.00 feet, a central angle 0f24°46'42",
and an arc length 0£203.26 feet;

Thence, N60°23'14"E, 121.98feet;




Thence, along a non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of 590.00 feet, a central angle of
27°09'28", with a radial line in of S 69°35'35" W and a radial line out of S83°14'57"E foran
arc length 0f279.66 feet;

Thence, S06°45'03" W, 246.87 feet;

Thence, along a tangent curve to the right having a radius of 910.00 feet, a central angle of
34°25'16", and an arc length of 546.69 feet;

Thence, S 41°10°19" W, 210.67 feet;

Thence, along a tangent curve to the left having a radius of 730.00 feet, a central angle 0f27°16'22",
and an arc length of 347.48 feet;

Thence, S 13°53'57"W,633.32feet;

Thence, along a tangent curve to the right baving a radius of 910.00 feet, a central angle of
46°29'17", and an arc length of 738.34 feet;

Thence, S60°23°14" W, 317.00feet;

Thence, along a tangent curve to the right having a radius of 910.00 feet, a central angle of
30°56'06", and an arc length 0f491.33 feet;

Thence, N88°40'40" W, 1472.54 feet to the POINT OFBEGINNING.
CONTAINING 14.21acres ofland, more or less.

The Basis of Bearings for this description is Nevada State Plane Coordinate System, West Zone
NAD83(94) HARN Extension, based upon the grid bearing of N 68°20'45" E, between NGS
stations N339 and X146. The project combined factor of 1.000254928, scaled from 0.00N
,0.00E and converted to U.S. survey feet.

Prepared by:

Lumos & Associates, Inc.
David C. Crook, PLS 10836
178 South Maine Street
Fallon, NV 89406




APN 003-111-51
PARCEL 2014-3
ROS 120559

EAGLE VALLEY
ACQUISITION LLC

APN 005—111-10
PARCEL 2007-87
ROS 108983
EAGLE CPT LLC

APN 005—111—__
PARCEL 2018-15
ROS 127460
TR.I.C.

022277727,

MLAN DRVE
7

PARCEL 2012-2
APN 005-111-38
ROS 116606
T.R.I.C.

/Y

LUMOS

& ASS0CIAILS
800 E. COLLEGE PARKWAY

PARCEL 201413 T
ROS 120587 PARCEL 2014-2

TESLA MOTORS INC APN 005-111-562
ROS 120559
T.R.I.C.

EXHIBIT MAP

TO ACCOMPANY PARCEL DESCRIPTIONS

APN 005-111-82
PARCEL 2017-2
25434

ROS 1
SIERRA PAC
POWER CO.

APN
005-111—__
PARCEL 2018-14
ROS 127480
T.R.IC

GREELY
DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

APN 005-011-27
PARCEL 2014-17

ROS 120839

ELACSS LAND ACQUISITION

Date: 03/29/2018

PORTIONS OF THE N1/2 OF SEC. 6, Scale: N.T.S.

T19N, R23E, MDM

Job No: 9373.000 T003

CARSON CITY, NEVADA 88706

TEL (775) 883-7077 FAX (775) 863-7114 |  STOREY COUNTY

NEVADA




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 7, 2018 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action to approve the Storey County Fire Protection District
Annual Operating Plan with the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District.

| - 2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the Annual Operating Plan between the Storey
| County Fire Protection District and the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and
authorize the Chairman to sign.

3. Prepared by: Jeff Nevin
Department: Fire District Telephone: (775) 847-0954
4. Staff summary: This is an update to the annual operating plan between the Storey County Fire
Protection District and the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District, provided through
| NRS for 474 fire districts to enter into agreements for assistance for mutual aid and/or
automatic aid. The annual operating plan is reviewed each year to provide updates and

associated costs for equipment and personnel for billing purposes after the first 24 hours or
for specialized equipment not covered under automatic or mutual aid.

S. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: N/A Fund: N/A Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
__JN__ Department Head Department Name: Fire District
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

— —
[ T




Agenda Item No.




Annual Operating Plan Rate and Cost Agreement
between

Storey County Fire Protection District
and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Storey County Fire Protection District

Declared Costs — Personnel and Equipment

Effective March 22, 2018

|

Regular Regular Regular Regular

Hourly 1/2 Time 1.50T 2.100T7

Battalion Chief $53.50 $26.75 $80.25 $112.35
Fire Captain/Fire Marshal $51.16 $25.58 $76.74 $107.43
Fire Fighter/Paramedic $46.43 $22.52 $69.64 $97.50
Fire Fighter/AEMT $41.37 $20.68 $62.05 $86.87
Heavy Equipment Operator $43.59 $21.79 $65.39 N/A
All Risk 6-Month Seasonal Firefighter $16.50 $8.25 $24.75 N/A
All Risk 6-Month Lead Seasonal
Firefighter $19.02 $9.51 $28.53 N/A
Volunteer Firefighter Volunteer FF will be paid actual costs at most current AD rates relevant to position filled.

NOTE: All staffing costs are in addition to apparatus costs and will be charged at actual hourly rates.

2.10 Overtime Defined: This overtime category is designed for the 56 hour work week employee to default to a 40
hour work week overtime rate. It is used when individuals are dispatched outside of Storey County for all-risk
incidents. It is also used for calculation of Call-Back time to multiple alarms, natural disaster, etc. as defined in the
CBA.

Page 10of 7




Apparatus Type Rate Mileage

Type | Engine - Structure Engine $190/hour Included in hourly

Type lI Engine — Brush Engine $170/hour Included in hourly

Type IV, Vi Engine — Brush Patrol $100/hour Included in hourly

Type | Water Tender $170/hour Included in hourly

Command Vehicle $96.00/daily .55 Per Mile for Travel and Fuel Cost at Incident Only
Utility (1/2 Ton and Smaller) $86.00/daily .55 Per Mile for Travel and Fuel Cost at Incident Only
Pickup {3/4 Ton and Above) $96.00/daily .55 Per Mile for Travel and Fuel Cost at Incident Only
Rescue $75.00/hour Included in hourly

Heavy Rescue $175.00/hour Included in hourly

Air Truck $150.00/hour Inciuded in hourly

Fuel Truck $75.00/Hour Included in hourly

Hazmat Unit $225.00/hour Included in hourly

Heavy Equipment Mechanic Truck $125.00/hour Included in hourly
Transport/Lowboy $95/hour $1.75 per mile

Dozer Tender $75.00/hour $1.55 per mile

Type Hl Dozer $115/hour Incident pays for fuel costs or $44.00 per hour additional
Ambulance $125/hour $23.37 Per Mile for Travel and Transports (Bllled to Patient)
Fuels Trailer $75/day No mileage charges

Special Event Staffing $560/day Includes one unit with two personnel
Durable Medical Equipment $250.00/day N/A

Polaris UTV $150.00/day Included in daily cost

-Each dozer will be dispatched with a Dozer Tender. This vehicle will be assigned for the entire duration of the

incident.

-Dozer Operator and Transport Driver will be charged at their Departmental rates.

-Staff responding to an incident will be charged separately from the cost of the equipment.

-When an incident does not provide subsistence for assistance-by-hire personnel per diem at the federally
established regional or CONUS rate shall apply in accordance with GSA per diem rates at www.gsa.gov
Documentation in the form of receipts must be provided for reimbursement.

Page 2of 7




Contact persons and phone numbers

Storey County Fire District Staff:

Mobile Office
Jeff Nevin, Fire Chief (775) 721-3790 (775) 847-0954
Ron Adkins, A Shift Battalion Chief (775) 721-6169 (775) 847-0954
Roy Thomsen, Acting B Shift Battalion Chief (775) 721-8010 (775) 847-0954
Shane Dixon, Acting C Shift Battalion Chief (775) 771-4685 (775) 847-0954
Tiffany Pieretti, Administrative Assistant (775) 847-0954
Fire Stations:
Fire Station #71, 145 N. “C” St., Virginia City (775) 847-0954
Fire Station #72, 2610 Cartwright Rd, Virginia Highlands (775) 847-0971
Fire Station #74, 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood (775) 342-0220
Fire Station #75, 1705 Peru Drive, McCarran (775) 343-3300
Storey County Communications Center {(775) 847-0950

Communications:

As indicated within the Mutual Aid Agreement, both parties agree to allow the other to operate on their
frequency during responses to incidents. it is also agreed that any incidents within Storey County will
operate on SCFD North Repeater for command and V-Fire 21 for tactical operations. When V- Fire 21 is
being used within the region the tactical frequency shall go to V-Fire 22, V-Fire23 and so on.

. Storey County Communications Frequencies:

POS  RXF RXPL TXF TXPL USER NAME

1 155.070 79.7 155.865 79.7 FD1 South {SCFD Como)
2. 155.070 79.7 155.865 173.8 FD2 Central (SCFD Ophir)
3. 155.070 79.7 155.865 186.2 FD3 North (SCFD Pond)
4 155.070 79.7 155.070 79.7 FD4 Local (SCFD Local)
9. 159.075 159.075 SC General Use

10. 156.165 159.075 100.0 SC General Use RPTR

12. 154.2800 154.2800 V FIRE 21

13. 154.2650 154.2650 V FIRE 22

28 154.2950 154.2950 V FIRE 23

29 154.2725 154.2725 V FIRE 24

30 154.2875 154.2875 V FIRE 25

31 154.3025 154.3025 V FIRE 26

Page 3 of 7




TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

2018 BILLING RATES

All rates based on actual cost to the Fire Protection District. Billed rate will be at the actual
cost and may be different than the rate quoted in this document.

APPARATUS RATES

Equipment responding to an incident on an equipment resource order (“E” number) will be
billed for hours worked as indicated on the Crew Time Report/Shift Ticket and will include
travel time. Equipment is not included in portal to portal pay provisions; however usage will
be reimbursed at the rate indicated in the rate schedule.

e Structure Engine - Type | $190.00/hr.
e Brush Engine - Type III $170.00/hr.
e Water Tender $170.00/hr.
e Patrol Truck — Type VI $100.00/hr.
e Rescue $75.00/hr.
e Heavy Rescue $175.00/hr.
e Air Truck $150.00/hr.
e Fuel Truck $75.00/hr.
e Water Rescue Unit w/Boats $75.00/hr.
e Hazmat Unit $225.00/hr.
e Heavy Mechanic Truck $125.00/hr.
e Rapid Extraction Module Support ~ $146/day plus $0.545 per mile

SUPPORT VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT RATES

Medical Equipment: Reimbursement will be made for expendable medical supplies such as
drugs, IV fluids, cardio electrodes, etc. A pre-incident and post-incident inventory, approved
by the Incident Commander, will be required for reimbursement request submitted with the
billing package. If a pre and post-incident inventory cannot be obtained, an invoice of
supplies consumed signed by the Incident Commander will suffice.

e ALS, Durable Medical Equip. Kit  $250.00/day

County or Fire District Owned Vehicles:

e Command Vehicle $96.00/day plus $0.545 per mile

e SUV/Pickup (%2 ton and below) $86.00/day plus $0.545 cents per mile

e Pickup (3/4 ton and above) $96.00/day plus $0.545 cents per mile

e Polaris UTV $150.00/day (must be ordered via resource order)
e Privately Owned Vehicle $0.545 cents per mile

e Masticator $115.00/hr. plus fuel costs or $44.00/hr. additional
e Ambulance $125.00/hr.

Page 4 of 7




PERSONNEL RATES

Backfill (for 56 hour personnel only) personnel and their invoices amounts will be shown on
the same invoice as incident personnel. Backfill dates will be noted. All personnel are
charged consistent with the District’s current labor agreements and/or resolutions as

approved by the Board.
40 Hour Rate Regular oT CB OT
Chief 126.81
Deputy Chief 107.97
Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention 106.63
Division Chief 100.23 133.87 147.30
Battalion Chief 91.10 97.26 133.88
Fire Prevention Specialist I1 56.23 65.45 82.48
Fire Prevention Specialist I 48.87 56.89 71.69
Training Captain 76.97 82.18 113.12
Logistics Chief Officer 88.52 94.51 130.09
Fleet Manager 67.71 78.81 99.32
Fire Mechanic 50.47 58.75 74.04
Fire Mechanic/Logistics Assistant 38.22 44.49 56.06
PIO 48.67 56.65 71.40
Communications Tech 60.64 70.58 88.96
Air Resource Advisor 57.14 66.51 83.82
56 Hour Rate Regular OT CB OT
Battalion Chief 65.07 69.47 95.62
Training Captain 49.97 53.36 73.45
Captain 49.97 53.36 73.45
Operator 44.54 47.56 65.46
Firefighter Paramedic 44.54 47.56 65.46
Firefighter 38.89 41.52 57.15
BILLING ADDRESS

Truckee Meadows/Sierra Fire Protection District
P.O.Box 11130

1001 E. Ninth Street

Reno, NV 89520-0027

Page 5 of 7




CONTACT INFORMATION

Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief
(775) 328-6123 Mobile (775) 313-8903

Scott Gorgon, Deputy Chief
(775) 328-6125 Mobile (775) 315-6649

Cindy Vance, Chief Fiscal Officer
(775) 326-6070

Administrative Office
(775) 326-6000 Fax (775) 326-6003

DUNS NUMBER
006811244

TAX ID NUMBER
EIN # 38-3856902

STATION LOCATIONS

Career Stations

Station #13 — 10575 Silver Lake Rd., Stead,
Station #14 — 470 Foothill Rd., Reno

Station #15 — 110 Quartz Ln., Sun Valley

Station #16 — 1240 E. Lake Blvd., Washoe Valley
Station #17 — 500 Rockwell Blvd. Spanish Spring
Station #18 — 3680 Diamond Peak Dr., Cold Springs
Station #30 — 3905 Old Hwy 395, Washoe Valley
Station #35 — 10201 W. 4™ St., Mogul

Station #36 — 13500 Thomas Creeck Rd., Reno
Station #37 — 3255 W. Hidden Valley Dr., Reno
Station #39 — 4000 Joy Lake Rd., Reno

Volunteer Stations

Station #221 — 11525 Red Rock Rd., Silver Lake
Station #223 — 130 Nectar St., Lemmon Valley
Station #225 — 400 Stampmill Dr., Wadsworth
Station #227 — 3010 Lakeshore Blvd., Washoe Valley
Station #229 — 6015 Ironwood Rd., Palomino Valley
Station #301 — 345 Bellevue Rd., Washoe Valley
Station #351 — 165 Bridge St., Verdi

Page 6 of 7




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The parties hereto have caused this Annual Operating Plan
Agreement between Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and Storey County Fire
Protection District to be executed as of the day and year of the last signature herein
below.

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTI@N DISTRICT

Mael -S%Kb 1- 24418

Marsha Berkbigler, Chair Date
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection Qiétrict
Board of Fire Commissioners

STOREY COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT

Marshall McBride, Chairman Date
Storey County Fire Protection District
Board of Fire Commissioners

Page 7 of 7




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 7, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

10.

. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Variance 2018-024 request to allow for a reduction to the rear

yard setback for the construction of a one-story addition to an existing building (Red Dog Saloon).
The applicant requests the rear yard setback be reduced from the required 10-feet to the proposed 0-
feet. The property is located at 76 N. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s
Parcel Number (APN) 001-084-16.

Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning
Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, I (county commissioner), recommend approval of a variance (Variance 2018-024) to the
rear yard setback for the construction of a one-story addition to an existing building (Red Dog
Saloon). The applicant requests the rear yard setback be reduced from the required 10-feet to the
proposed O-feet. The property is located at 76 N. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-084-16.

Prepared by: Kathy Canfield
Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-024
Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-024
Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: _____Comptroller

al review required: District Attorney

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Planning

County Manager Other agency review:

Board action:
[1 Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued
Agenda Item No. 2_5




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County
Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department
August 7, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Nevada

Staff Contact: Kathy Canfield

File: Variance 2018-024

Applicant: Loren Pursel

Property Owner: Comstock House LLC

Property Location: 76 N. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, APN 001-084-16.

Request: The applicant requests a variance (Variance 2018-024 to the rear yard setback
for the construction of a one-story addition to an existing building (Red Dog
Saloon). The applicant requests the rear yard setback be reduced from the
required 10-feet to the proposed O-feet. The property is located at 76 N. C
Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)
001-084-16.

1. Background & Analysis

A. Site Location and Characteristics. The approximate 7,777 square foot commercial

property is located between C and B Streets. The parcel contains an existing commercial
building (Red Dog Saloon), an outdoor patio and stage, an approved restroom building
and a shed. The saloon and outdoor patio are accessed from C Street and the entire
parcel is at the C Street elevation with a two-story concrete block retaining wall along
the B Street property line. The property is zoned Commercial/Residential (CR) and all
surrounding land is also zoned CR.




urrounding Properties




wid

Pera e

R
&

Assessor’s Parcel Map
B. Proposed Use. The applicant is proposing to construct a one-story building addition.

The addition will contain an expanded kitchen area for the existing Red Dog Saloon, will
encompass the existing storage shed area and will be constructed within the existing
rear yard. The proposed addition will be constructed up to the existing retaining wall on
the property within the rear yard setback, proposing a 0-foot setback as opposed to the
required 10-foot setback. The CR zoning allows for O-foot setbacks for the front and

side yards.




: View looking at south property line.

L

e

View looking at west property line.




View from B Street looking down at proposed addition location, rear of existing building.




Paep Kadhen
Baith Envahon

.“ ey
: A T
. . £
v ! Wizhan Prep P
: Aiflactst Cooing
: ; o — ?I &-q
Lot 9 Lot 12
Lot 13 ‘ “Barkeaam
b o Fm—— South Eievason
75 S £ Sanant BT T
C Seret
Plot Plan
C. Variance. The applicant has requested a variance to the rear yard setback. The

proposed building will be constructed up to and including the existing block retaining
wall for a O-foot setback (vs the required 10-foot). Section 17.03.140 of the Storey
County Code identifies the process for Variances. The applicant and this report follow
the requirements outlined in the Code.

2. Compatibility and Compliance

A.

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land
uses, zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding
the proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed building
addition and Storey County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan with the exception
of the setbacks which are addressed with the Variance application.




Land Use Master Plan Designation | Zoning

Applicant's Land Commercial Mixed Use CR Commercial Residentiat
Commercial Residential

Land to the North Commercial Mixed Use CR Commercial Residential
Commercial Residential

Land to the East Commercial Mixed Use {R Commercial Residential
Commercial Residential

Land to the South Commercial Mixed Use CR Commercial Residential
Commercial Residential

Land to the West Residential Mixed Use CR Commerdial Residential

Commercial Residential

Variances. The SCC 17.03.140 Variances states that a Variance to the provisions of its
title may be granted by the Storey County Board of County Commissioners (the Board)
with action by the Storey County Planning Commission (the Planning Commission)
where by reason of exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or shape of a specific piece of
property at the time of enactment of the regulations, or by reason of exceptional
topographic conditions or other extraordinary and exceptional situation or condition of
the lot or parcel, the strict application of the regulations enacted under this title would
result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties to, or exceptional and undue
hardships upon the owner of property.

Within Section SCC 17.03.140 (F) it states: The Board’s approval, approval with
conditions, or denial of a Variance must be based on Findings that indicate that the
proposed use is appropriate in the location for which it is approved. The Findings listed
in this subsection are the minimum to be cited in an approval; the body may include
additional Findings in their decision. The Board and Planning Commission must cite
Findings of fact in the motion for approval, approval with conditions, or denial.

At a minimum, an approval must be based on Findings that the proposal:

(1) That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property,
including shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive the subject property of
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone
classification.

The proposed variance would allow for construction on an existing excavated
patio area. The project is a proposed one-story kitchen expansion to an existing
commercial building. The addition will be located approximately two stories
below the elevation of B Street and would not be visible from the B street or
adjacent rear neighbors. Options for the additional kitchen area are limited as
the existing kitchen is located at the rear of the building. The existing side yard
currently provides outdoor space and a stage; constructing the kitchen addition
in this area would divide this open area and curtail this existing use. Outdoor
venues for entertainment with associated restaurants are limited in Virginia City
and this provides an alternative entertainment option for both residents and
tourists.




(2) That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

The location of the proposed addition will abut next to the existing retaining
walls, leaving adjacent open areas on the property for outdoor use and the
stage.

(3) That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the subject property and
will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious
to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property.

The proposed addition will be one story, which is located below the adjacent B
Street right-of-way. The addition will not be visible to property owners to the
west because of the large difference in elevation. The area of the proposed
addition has been previously excavated, no additional earthwork is required for
the construction of the addition. The property currently has an iron fence along
the property line for safety. There is approximately 17 linear feet from the top
of the retaining wall (property line) to the edge of pavement of the B Street
pavement.

Storey County Zoning Code. The property is located within CR Commercial Residential
zoning. The Storey County Zoning Code states “The commercial-residential zone is
intended to serve as a walkable, pedestrian-friendly, live-work community providing a
three dimensional center of vertical and horizontal mixed uses including single-family
and multi-family residences which are stand-alone and/or integrated with commercial,
cultural, and civic uses. In general, the zone provides for centers and uses of regional
importance and provides an integrated and attractive environment for visitors and
residents. Eating and drinking places area an allowed use for the CR zoning. This
property is located within the Virginia City Downtown District of the CR zone and the
stated setbacks are O-feet for front and side yards, and 10-feet for rear yards.

2016 Storey County Master Plan. Chapter 3, Land Use, of the Storey County Master
Plan identifies that the historic use patterns on the Comstock should be maintained. To
maintain these historic use patterns, one objective to implement zoning, regulations,
and practices and to maintain conformance with historic use patterns. Approval of this
variance is not expected to impact the historic patterns of land use.

3. Findings of Fact

A.

Motion for approval. The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the
requested Variance when the recommended conditions of approval in Section 4,
Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

(2) The applicant requests a variance (Variance 2018-024) to the rear yard setback
for the construction of a one-story addition to an existing building (Red Dog




(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

{7)

(8)

Saloon). The applicant requests the rear yard setback be reduced from the
required 10-feet to the proposed O-feet. The property is located at 76 N. C
Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)
001-084-16.

The subject property is located within CR Commercial Residential zoning with an
existing restaurant as a primary use. The property has existing excavated
outdoor space surrounding the building that is located at the “C” Street
elevation, two stories below the elevation of the adjacent “B” Street.

That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property,
including shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive the subject property of
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identicat zone
classification.

That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the area of the subject property and will not be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property
or improvements in the area of the subject property.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and
Storey County regulations.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140
Variances and 17.30 CR Commercial Residential Zone when all Conditions of
Approval are met.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives
and policies of the 2016 Storey County Master Plan.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Variance request, the

following Findings with explanation of why should be included in that motion.

(1)

(2)

This denial is for the applicant’s request for a variance (Variance 2018-024) to
the rear yard setback for the construction of a one-story addition to an existing
building (Red Dog Saloon). The applicant requests the rear yard setback be
reduced from the required 10-feet to the proposed O-feet. The property is
located at 76 N. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 001-084-16.

There are no special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including
shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the




zoning ordinance that would deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed
by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone classification.

(3) The granting of the application is not necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

(4) That the granting of the application will, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the area of the subject property and will be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property
or improvements in the area of the subject property.

(5) The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with all Federal, Nevada
State, and Storey County regulations.

(6) The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with and does not
support the goals, objectives and recommendations of the Storey County
Master Plan.

(7) The conditions of approval under the Variance do not adequately mitigate

potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for the surrounding uses.

(8) No reasonable level of conditions of approval imposed on this Variance would
be sufficient to reasonably mitigate visual, safety or other potential impacts on
adjacent and surrounding residences and land uses.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

A. Variance Number 2018-024. This approval is for a variance to the rear yard setback for
the construction of a one-story addition to an existing building (Red Dog Saloon). The
applicant requests the rear yard setback be reduced from the required 10-feet to the
proposed O-feet. The property is located at 76 N. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-084-16.

B. Compliance. The Variance must comply with Storey County Codes, and submitted plans
and reports, as approved. The Applicant must provide the Building Department site
plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining a Building Permit.

(o Null and Void. If the Variance is not exercised within 12 months of the date of approval,
unless additional time is granted by the Board with action by the Planning Commission,
based upon consideration of the specific circumstances of the project, then without
further action, the Variance will be null and void and no non-conforming development
activity may be made on the property except on the granting of a new Variance.

D. Comstock Historic District Commission. The Applicant must obtain a Certificate of
Appropriateness from the Comstock Historic District and submit the Certificate to the
Building Department prior to obtaining the associated Building Permit.



E. Hold Harmless. The Property Owners agree to hold Storey County, its Officers and
Representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any
damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result
of this Variance.

F. Permits and Expiration. The Applicant shall apply for all Building and Fire permits for
the structure within 12 months from the date of Board approval for this Variance, and
continuously maintain the validity of those permits, as appropriate, or this approval will
become null and void.

G. Taxes Paid. Before obtaining a Building Permit, the Applicant must show the Planning
Department evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

H. Distances. The reduced rear yard (west) setback is approved to be O-feet. All other
setbacks for the proposed and existing structures must be in compliance with the Storey
County Code.

l. Building and Fire Requirements. The Storey County Building Department and Storey
County Fire Protection District may require additional construction requirements,
because of the close proximity of structures. All existing and proposed infrastructure
must comply with Building and Fire Codes.

J. Easement. The granting of this Variance will not affect any existing easements on the

subject property. No building may be constructed over an easement, ROW within a
building setback area not otherwise allowed by this Variance.

Public Comment

As of July 18, 2018, Staff has not received any comments from the public regarding this Variance
request.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the Findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the findings under
Section 3.A of this report. Those findings should be made part of the approval motion. A
motion for denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown
in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the Board of County
Commissioners should be made part of either motion.




Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (county commissioner), recommend approval of a variance (Variance 2018-
024) to the rear yard setback for the construction of a one-story addition to an existing
building (Red Dog Saloon). The applicant requests the rear yard setback be reduced
from the required 10-feet to the proposed O-feet. The property is located at 76 N. C
Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-084-
16.

Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, but in accordance
with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, | (county commissioner),
recommend denial of a variance (Variance 2018-024) to the rear yard setback for the
construction of a one-story addition to an existing building (Red Dog Saloon). The
applicant requests the rear yard setback be reduced from the required 10-feet to the
proposed O-feet. The property is located at 76 N. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-084-16.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

L]

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 0- 5
8-7-18
Agenda: Consent { ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by; Melissa Field

Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4, Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: _Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

____District Attomey

8. Reviewed by
x__D ent \ﬁ‘_’\ Department Name:
O

. County Manager Other agency review:

9..Board action:
(] Approved

(1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

iy gy
incmnep s

Agenda [tem No. 2_4,




Storey County Community Development
Business {

P O Box 526 * Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 « mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office July 26,2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the August 7, 2018 COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

ECOCLEAN, INC - General / 26801 Northwestern Hwy ~ Southfield, MI

4 CONCRETE LLC - Contractor / 2735 Azuza Lane ~ Reno, NV

URETEK USA, INC - Contractor / 13900 Humble Rd ~ Tomball, TX

C.G. AUTOMATION & FIXTURE, INC — General / 5352 Rusche Dr ~ Comstock Pk, MI
RON COLCORD CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 280 Vermillion ~ Reno, NV
ADVANTAGE TECHNICAL RESOUCING - General / 201 E. 4% St ~ Cincinnati, OH
AMERICAN SCALE CO, INC - General / 21326 E. Arrow Hwy ~ Covina, CA

LYRA CLINICAL ASSOCIATES, P.C. — General / 205 Park Rd ~ Burlingame, CA
ACE INSULATION NV INC - Contractor / 1306 Dynamic St ~ Petaluma, CA

WADE METAL WORKS LLC - General / 3025 Mill St ~ Reno, NV

MEE2, INC, DBA: RENO FORKLIFT — General / 171 Coney Island ~ Sparks, NV
FCC COMMUNICATION, INC - General / 1360 Greg St ~ Sparks, NV

. SAIKAI ELECTIC CO, LTD — General / 34-19 Suehiro-cho ~ Osaka, JP

AEM CONSULTING GROUP, INC - General / 1125 Ivy Lane ~ Ashland, OR
ECARGO LLC, DBA: ROCKIN DINER ROLLIN - 545 Valle Verde ~ Sparks, NV
L.P.R. CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 1171 Des Moines Ave ~ Loveland, CO

NOZENREIIQOTMEPORP

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office




P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 * mfield@storeycounty.org

Page 1.
LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

AA. SAFETY ON SITE — General / 316 California Ave ~ Reno, NV
BB. NAISBITT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4 Hardy Dr ~ Sparks, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office




